
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee agenda - Tuesday, 24 MAY 2022 

 Page 1 

 
 
 
FULL MEETING PACK  
 
The agenda and its supplements were published on South Oxfordshire District Council’s 
website, and can be found below in its entirety (Pages 3 - 349) 
 



  1 

 

Agenda 

   
 
Contact Officer: Michael Flowers, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 07895 213735 

 

E-mail: michael.flowers@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 19 May 2022 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk  www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 24 MAY 2022  AT 6.30 PM 
 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Members of the Committee: 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council 
(Membership to be confirmed at Full 
Council on 19 May 2022) 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council 
 
 
Amos Duveen (Co-Chair) 
Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair) 
Simon Howell 
Mike Pighills 

 
 
 
 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 2

Agenda Annex

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

 
 
1  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
2  Minutes  (Pages 4 - 9) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2022.   
 
3  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and any conflicts of 
interest in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.    

 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   
 
6  External auditor's audit results report - 2020/21  (Pages 10 - 101) 

 
To consider the report of EY, the council’s external auditor. 

 
7  Statement of accounts - 2020/21  (Pages 102 - 299) 

 
To receive and approve the statement of accounts 2020/21 for South Oxfordshire 
and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 

 
8  Annual governance statements - 2020/21  (Pages 300 - 335) 

 
To receive and approve the South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District 
Council’s Annual Governance Statements 2020/21, which form part of the statement 
of accounts.  

 
9  Letters of representation to the external auditor  (Pages 336 - 

344) 
 

To receive and agree that the committee’s co-chairs from South Oxfordshire and 
Vale of White Horse may sign their respective letters of representation to the 
external auditor. 

 

Page 3



  3 

 

10  Work programme  (Pages 345 - 347) 
 

To note the committee’s work programme. 

 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

 

 
 

Page 4



 1 

Minutes 

 

  

OF A MEETING OF THE 
 

 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
HELD ON TUESDAY 29 MARCH 2022 AT 6.30 PM 
 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 

Present in the meeting room  
Members:  
South Oxfordshire District Councillors: Mocky Khan (Co-Chair in the Chair) and Peter 
Dragonetti  
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair), Simon Howell, and 
Mike Pighills 
Officers: Michael Flowers (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

Remote attendance:  
South Oxfordshire District Councillor: Leigh Rawlins 
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Amos Duveen, Debby Hallett, and Emily Smith 
Officers: Patrick Arran (Head of Legal and Democratic and Monitoring Officer), Victoria 
Dorman-Smith (Internal Audit Manager), David Fairall (People and Culture Manager), 
Simon Hewings (Head of Finance), Jeremy Lloyd (Broadcasting Officer), Richard 
Spraggett (Strategic Finance Manager), and Ben Watson (Exchequer Procurement 
Manager) 
 

117 Apologies for absence  
 
South Oxfordshire District Council Councillors George Levy and Jane Murphy tendered 
apologies. 
 

118 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 25 January 2022 as 
a correct record and agree that the chair signs them as such. 
 

119 Declarations of interest  
 
None. 

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



 2 

 
 

120 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
The chair informed the committee that an additional meeting would be held on the 24th 
May, which would be for the statement of accounts 2020/21. 
 

121 Public participation  
 
None. 
 

122 Statement of accounts - 2021/22  
 
The strategic finance manager introduced the report. The committee were informed that 
this was the annual update to note the progress on completing the current year’s 
statement of accounts. The deadline for the draft statement was the 31st July and they 
were expecting to complete the work by the 30th June. The audited accounts would then 
need to be approved by the 30th November, which was a four month extension from the 
statutory deadline of the 31st July and a two month extension from the temporary deadline 
of 30th September. This was due to ninety-one per cent of councils failing to meet the 30th 
September deadline for the 2021 statement of accounts. It was also noted that the 
accounting policies for both councils were shown in appendixes one and two of the report.  
The strategic finance manager then explained that CIPFA had consulted with councils for 
two issues which were identified as helping councils get their audits back on track. The 
first was to introduce the use of property indices to replace property evaluations, and the 
second was to delay IFRS16 leases by two years.  
 
South Oxfordshire District Council RESOLVED: to 

a. Note the progress on completing the 2021/22 statement of accounts 

b. To approve the statement of accounting policies as shown in Appendix 1 of the 

report. 

Vale of White Horse District Council RESOLVED: to 
a. Note the progress on completing the 2021/22 statement of accounts 

b. To approve the statement of accounting policies as shown in Appendix 2 of the 

report 

 

123 Internal audit activity report - fourth quarter 2021/22  
 
The internal audit manager introduced the report. The committee was informed that for the 
activity report, two planned audits had been completed during the quarter, and no limited 
assurance audits needed to be raised to the committee. The internal audit manager 
highlighted for the committee that an error had been identified on page fifty of the report at 
section seven, and confirmed that only two satisfactory audits had happened and zero full 
audits.  
 
The committee was informed that there was an update on the Covid-19 grants audit, and 
this included a summary of the grants being looked into and that the recommendations 
were being finalised with auditees. The expectation was that this could then be presented 
to the committee at its next meeting.  A question was asked by the committee on whether 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2

Page 6



 3 

the joint Covid-19 grants report would be ready for the committee in May. The response 
from the internal audit manager was that she expected it would be.  
 
A secondary question followed, requesting clarification of the outstanding items being 
completed. The response to this was that the item was raised with Ernst and Young (EY) 
and they responded that it was a management decision, and so would go to the senior 
management team in the next week. 
 
A final question was asked by the committee on ‘not agreed actions’ for the joint contract 
management, seeking clarification on what this meant. The internal audit manager 
confirmed that this was an abbreviation and should read the number that was agreed. 
Additionally, they were all agreed on contract management. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the internal audit activity report – fourth quarter 2021/22. 
 

124 Internal audit management report - fourth quarter 2021/22  
 
The internal audit manager confirmed that there were no specific concerns to raise to the 
committee’s attention.  
 
RESOLVED: to note the internal audit management report – fourth quarter 2021/22. 
 

125 Internal audit plan - 2022/23  
 
The internal audit manager introduced the report. The committee was shown the proposed 
audit plan for the next financial year, and how it had been put together. The internal audit 
manager highlighted that she had mapped the top risks of both councils’ corporate risk 
registers for the next three years. Secondly, the plan for the current year was to reassess 
the audit plan at the half year mark to make sure it was in-line with any changes to risks or 
services across the councils. 

 
The committee commented that they were happy with the work that had been done for the 
audit plan and it was a good example of joined up thinking and was to be commended. 
 
A question was raised regarding the war in Ukraine and whether there were any emerging 
risks relating to the associated refugee crisis from the war. The response was that the 
internal audit manager did meet regularly with the risk team to share any new risks added 
to the register and so they would be monitoring this. There was also budget in the plan in 
the event any unexpected reviews of that nature were required. 
 
A final question followed asking if there had been any progress with the external 
consultant on identifying properties that were not paying non-domestic business rates or 
council tax. The head of finance responded that they had engaged an external company 
and were currently working through the results of this. The revenue and benefits client 
manager was putting together a report and the results could be shared with the committee 
at a later date. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the internal audit plan – 2022/23. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2

Page 7



 4 

 

126 Insourcing of exchequer services and financial management 
system upgrade  
 
The exchequer procurement manager introduced the report. The committee were informed 
that the councils had taken control of financial services in February 2020, and this had 
been a two stage process with accountancy work returning in April 2020, and exchequer 
services in April 2021. It was explained to the committee that the council had subsequently 
embarked on work to upgrade their financial management system. Confirmation was given 
that despite a challenging timetable, the councils were able to recruit a new exchequer 
team, upgrade the existing system, and complete ancillary activities. It was concluded by 
the exchequer procurement manager that the service was now stable, and the councils 
were already seeing the benefits from a modern financial management system. 

 
The committee asked whether there could be any assurance that no duplication would 
work between EY and internal audit in relation to the new system. The response by the 
exchequer procurement manager was that EY would complete their normal auditing work 
and the records held within the system would be looked into. The internal audit manager 
commented that their team was planning to conduct a detailed user access review, and 
they would check with EY to avoid duplication. 
 
The committee expressed satisfaction regarding the work that had been undertaken, and 
commented that they had been impressed with this. 
 
The committee asked whether there had been any reputational damage arising from the 
issues surrounding the backlog of payments. The response from the exchequer 
procurement manager was that the backlog had been cleared for some time and everyone 
was being paid on time. They confirmed that they were not aware of any reputational 
damage. 
 
The committee asked a final question on what feedback had been received from users. 
The response to this was that the system was largely a newer version of the previous 
system, but feedback had been positive. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the insourcing of exchequer services and financial management 
system upgrade report. 
 

127 Adoption of Oxfordshire code of conduct for councillors  
 
The monitoring officer introduced the report and explained that they had some concerns 
regarding the existing code of conduct for the two councils. The monitoring officer 
explained that they had worked with other monitoring officers across Oxfordshire to 
produce an Oxfordshire Code of Conduct which was based on the LGA model code with 
some refinements. The proposed model code was described as being far more 
comprehensive, and gave members clearer guidance on what was expected in terms of 
ethical standards and behaviour. The guidance that would complement the new document 
was expected to act as a complimentary piece. The committee were then told that further 
training for members would take place in June and September, and the monitoring officer 
concluded that should the committee express satisfaction and commend the code of 
conduct to the council, it would be sent to Annual Council and take immediate effect once 
adopted. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2

Page 8



 5 

 
The committee commented that they supported the harmonisation of a code of conduct 
across the Oxfordshire authorities, and that this would both protect members and officers, 
and be a positive step forward. The committee also expressed wider support for the 
training that would be delivered and indicated strong support for the proposed Oxfordshire 
Code of Conduct. 
 
A question was asked regarding other registrable interests and what was considered a 
body in which an interest would need to be declared. The response from the monitoring 
officer was that it would be applicable where a member had influence such as 
management or general control. This would take away from purely a financial perspective, 
but ensure members did not take part in matters where they would have other vested 
interests. 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council RESOLVED: to approve the Oxfordshire Code of 
Conduct appended in the report and commend it to the council for adoption. 
 
Vale of White Horse District Council RESOLVED: to approve the Oxfordshire Code of 
Conduct appended in the report and commend it to the council for adoption. 
 

128 Health and safety progress review  
 
The Vale of White Horse cabinet member for corporate services and transformation 
introduced the report. The committee were informed that this was the first review since 
health and safety had been brought into the people and culture service. The initial priority 
following this transition was the publication of a new health and safety policy which would 
underpin the management framework. The new policy was now live, and there was a 
number of supplementary policies and procedures currently being completed. It was 
confirmed that the production of training courses for staff was also currently underway.  
 
RESOLVED: to 

a. Agree to a half-yearly progress review of health and safety actions as outlined in the 

health and safety strategic review 

b. To note the progress made against the corporate health and safety action plan 

 

129 Work programme  
 
The committee were informed that in addition to the items on the work programme, that 
the annual internal audit report would be presented at the July meeting of the committee. 
In addition, the treasury management outturn report would be presented to the committee 
in the September meeting.  

 
The democratic services officer informed the committee that alongside the May meeting 
that was mentioned in the chair’s announcements, that a provisional meeting of the 
committee was being arranged for November, with a date to be confirmed.  
 
RESOLVED: to note the committee work programme. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2

Page 9



 6 

The meeting closed at 7.15 pm 
 
 
 
Chair Date 

 

 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2

Page 10



South Oxfordshire District Council 

Audit results report 

Year ended 31 March 2021

May 2022

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 11



2

16 May 2022

Dear Joint Audit and Governance Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our audit results report for the forthcoming meeting of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee. This report 
summarises our audit conclusions in relation to the audit of South Oxfordshire District Council for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Subject to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report, we confirm that we expect to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the financial 
statements in the form at Section 3. We also have no significant matters to report on your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in your use of resources

This report is intended solely for the use of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee Members, other members of the Authority, and senior 
management. It should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.

We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the meeting of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 24 
May 2022.

Yours faithfully 

Kevin Suter

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 12



3

Contents

Executive 
Summary

01 Audit 
Differences

Areas of Audit 
Focus

02 Audit Report03 04

05 09Other 
Reporting 
Issues

06 Independence07 Appendices08Value for 
Money

Assessment of 
Control 
Environment

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management of South Oxfordshire District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management of South Oxfordshire District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and 
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management of South 
Oxfordshire District Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

V
F
M

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 13

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Executive Summary01

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 14



5

Executive Summary

Scope update

In our Audit Planning Report presented at the 25 January 2022 Joint Audit and Governance Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope 
and approach for the audit of the financial statements of South Oxfordshire District Council. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan.

Status of the audit

We have substantially completed our audits of South Oxfordshire District Council financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021. The following items relating to 
the completion of our audit procedures were outstanding at the date of this report:

• Review of the requested amendments to the final version of the accounts

• Completion of subsequent events review up to the date of signing the audit report;

• Receipt of the signed accounts and management representation letter

Subject to satisfactory completion of the following outstanding items we expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements in the form which 
appears at Section 3. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise. We will provide an update on the status of the audits at the 24 May 2022
committee meeting. 

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 15



6

Executive Summary

Status of the audit – Value for Money

In our Audit Planning Report and subsequent update to the Audit Committee, we reported that we had substantially completed our value for money (VFM) risk 
assessment and had identified one risk of significant weakness against the reporting criteria financial sustainability.

We have since completed our VFM risks assessment and confirm that we have identified no other risk of significant weakness. We have therefore identified one risk at in 
relation to the significant budget gap in the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and the continued drawdown of reserves. This risk falls into the criteria “Financial 
sustainability:  How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver their services”.

We have completed our planned procedures which included assessing the process the Council had undertaken to address this issue, and evaluated the 2022 MTFP.

We have determined that there is not a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for supporting its financial sustainability. 

We have also revisited our risk assessment on completion of the audit of the financial statements and have not identified any new risks of significant weakness in VFM 
arrangements. 

We plan to issue the VFM commentary as part of issuing the Auditor’s Annual Report. We include further details in Section 04.

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code of Audit Practice 2020 

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are still required to consider whether the Authority has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness on its use of resources. The 2020 Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report to the 
Authority a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the Authority has in place to secure value for money through economic, 
efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Authority uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 16



7

Executive Summary

Audit differences

We have identified adjusted audit differences for South Oxfordshire District Council, and no unadjusted audit differences.
We have also identified some adjustments required to disclosure notes.  Further details are set out in Section 4.

As our audit work is ongoing at the time of writing this report, further adjusted and unadjusted misstatements may be identified. We will update the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee at the meeting on 24 May 2022 if we identify any issues by the time of the meeting.

Areas of audit focus

Our Audit Planning Report identified key areas of focus for our audit of the financial statements. This report sets out our observations and conclusions, including our 
views on areas which might be conservative, and where there is potential risk and exposure. We summarise our consideration of these matters, and any others 
identified, in the “Areas of Audit Focus" section 2 of this report. We have identified no new audit risks since our Audit Planning Report.

We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report to ensure:

• There are no other considerations or matters that could have an impact on these issues

• You agree with the resolution of the issue

• There are no other significant issues to be considered.

There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Control observations

We have identified one control observation in respect of the adequacy of managements challenge and review of the work of their specialist employed in the valuation of 
property, plant and equipment and investment property. We judge that the Council’s internal control environment with regard to this specific was not sufficient and 
potentially could have led to material misstatements. Further details are presented in section 7 of this report.

We have not identified any other significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial 
statements and which is unknown to you. P

age 16

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 17



8

Executive Summary

Other reporting issues

We review the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Authority. We do not have any matters
to report as a result of this work.

We are yet to perform the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. This is because the  NAO are as 
yet unable to issue their group audit instruction.

We have no other matters to report.

Independence

Please refer to Section 8 for our update on Independence. We have no independence issues to report. 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 18



9

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 19



10

Areas of Audit Focus

Fraud Risk

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue 
recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements 
may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We have assessed that the risk is most likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure, as there is an incentive to reduce expenditure which is funded from Council Tax. This could 
then result in funding of that expenditure, that should properly be defined as revenue, through 
inappropriate sources such as capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition, 
through inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure

What did we do?

We have:

• reviewed and tested revenue and expenditure recognition polices;

• tested PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds to ensure that the expenditure incurred 
and capitalised was clearly capital in nature;

• tested expenditure classified as REFCUS using lowered testing thresholds to ensure it is 
appropriate for the revenue expenditure incurred to be financed from ring fenced capital 
resources;

• Sought to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals transferring 
expenditure from revenue to capital codes at the end of the year;

• We utilised our data analytics capabilities to assist with our work, including journal entry 
testing.

What are our conclusions?

We have completed our planned procedures with regard to this 
fraud risk and have identified two misstatements.

Testing of property, plant and equipment additions identified 
duplicate expenditure of £169k 

We identified in REFCUS that the Council included salary 
recharges for survey works to council properties to determine 
whether property should be kept, disposed or improved. We 
challenged as to a) whether this meets capitalisation criteria, and 
b) whether it meets REFCUS. 
Our assessment was it met neither.

Management agreed with our view, and an amendment was made.

We have assessed the misstatements and concluded they are 
caused by error and not by fraud. 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 20



11

Areas of Audit Focus

Fraud Risk

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or 
error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability 
to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or 
error

What did we do?

We undertook our procedures to address fraud risks, which included:

• inquiring of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those 
risks.

• understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s 
processes over fraud.

• considering the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

• performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks, including:

o testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the preparation of the financial 
statements.

o evaluating accounting estimates for any evidence of management bias

o evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions

What are our conclusions?

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or 
evidence of material management override.

We did not identify any inappropriate journal entries.

We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements 
being applied in estimates from management bias.

We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which 
appeared unusual or outside the Council’s normal course of 
business

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 21



12

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be matters that we report on

What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

Valuation of Land and Building, and Investment Property

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment 
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in both Council’s 
balance sheets and are subject to valuation changes, impairment 
reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make 
material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to 
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

We have:

• considered the work performed by the Council’s valuers (LSH), including the adequacy of 
the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their 
work; 

• reviewed the internal challenge of LSH’s valuations by the Council’s surveyor;  

• sample tested key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation 
(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenged 
the key assumptions used by the valuers; 

• considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 
5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment 
Property.

• reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2020/21 to confirm that the remaining asset 
base is not materially misstated; 

• considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; 

• tested to confirm that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial 
statements.

We have completed our planned procedures with regard to this area of audit focus and have 
identified no material misstatements with regard to investment properties.    For one asset we 
challenged the yield used by the valuer as a key assumption, where their evidence provided 
did not support the yield used.  An adjustment was agreed, resulting in a change of value 
(reduction) of £217k.

In relation to the valuation of operational land and buildings we identified that the Council had 
not obtained the detailed valuation report until we requested it for our audit.  Therefore, we 
have identified a control deficiency as a result of our work. This is included in Section 7.

Areas of audit focus

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 22



13

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be matters that we report on

What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require 
the Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial 
statements regarding its membership of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme administered by Oxfordshire County Council. 

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance 
and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Councils’ 
balance sheet. The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 
report issued to the Council by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to 
undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 
require us to undertake procedures on the use of management 
experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates. 

We have:

• liaised with the auditors of the Oxfordshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the 
information supplied to the actuary in relation to South Oxfordshire District Council;

• assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Barnett Waddingham) including the 
assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries 
commissioned by Public Sector Auditor Appointments for all Local Government sector 
auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; 

• reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s 
financial; 

• engaged the EY actuarial team to calculate a point estimate of each Council’s pension 
liability.

The revised auditing standard requires auditors to test the method of measurement of 
accounting estimates to determine whether the model is appropriately designed, consistently 
applied and mathematically accurate, and that the integrity of the assumptions and the data 
has been maintained in applying the model. Neither we, nor PWC as consulting actuary 
commissioned by the NAO for all local government sector audits, were able to access the 
detailed models of the actuaries in order to evidence these requirements. Therefore we 
needed to create an auditor’s estimate of the Council’s pension liability, to provide a different 
method of gaining assurance than in previous years. The results of this exercise showed the 
actuarial estimate to be accurate within a reasonable range.

We have completed our planned procedures in relation to this area of audit focus and have no 
matters to report.

Areas of audit focus

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 23



14

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be matters that we report on

What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

Accounting for Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Income

We identified material errors in relation to CIL income in our 
2019/20 audit. The errors were corrected by management, and we 
reported these as adjusted misstatements to the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee in our 2019/20 audit results report in 
November 2021. Whilst management has corrected its accounting 
policy in relation to CIL income, due to the timing of when the error 
was identified, there remains a risk that the impact of the previous 
incorrect accounting policy is not quantified correctly and adjusted 
for in the 2020/21 financial statements.

We:

• Tested CIL income using lowered testing thresholds and ensure income is appropriately 
supported by documentary evidence,

• Tested cut-off to ensure CIL income is being accounted for in the correct financial year, 
and in accordance with the accounting treatments specified in the CIPFA Code.

We have completed our planner procedures in relation to this area of audit focus and have 
identified one projected misstatement at South Oxfordshire District Council with an income 
effect of £137k.

Accounting for Covid-19 Related Grants

The Council has received a significant level of government funding in 
relation to Covid-19. Whilst there is no change in the CIPFA Code or 
accounting standard (IFRS 15) in respect of accounting for grant 
funding, the emergency nature of some of the grants received and in 
some cases the lack of clarity on any associated restrictions and 
conditions, means that the Council will need to apply a greater 
degree of assessment and judgement to determine the appropriate 
accounting treatment in the 2020/21 statements.

We have:

• considered the Council’s judgement on material grants received in relation to whether it is 
acting as:

o An agent, where it has determined that it is acting as an intermediary; or

o Principal, where the Council has determined that it is acting on its own behalf.

We have completed our planned procedures in relation to this area of audit focus and have no 
matters to report.

Areas of audit focus

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 24



15

Audit Report03

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 25



16

Audit Report

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are 
independent of the authority in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, 
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor 
General’s (C&AG) AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Head of 
Finance & Section 151 Officer’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any 
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or 
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the authority’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a period of 12 months  from when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Head of Finance & 
Section 151 Officer with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report.  However, because not all future events 
or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the 
authority’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH 
OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of South Oxfordshire District 
Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the:

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
• Movement in Reserves Statement, 
• Balance Sheet, 
• Cash Flow Statement
• the related notes 1 to 32 and Statement of Accounting Policies
• Collection Fund Account and the related notes 1 to 3

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.

In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of South Oxfordshire 
District Council as at 31 March 2021 and of its expenditure and income 
for the year then ended; and
• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 26



17

Audit Report

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:
• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or 
inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our 
knowledge of the Council;
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;
• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 
• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of 
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014;
• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014;
• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
• we are not satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for 
the year ended 31 March 2021. 

We have nothing to report in these respects 

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the 
Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.  The Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer is 
responsible for the other information contained within the Statement of 
Accounts.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this 
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we 
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in 
the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the 
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 27



18

Audit Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.  

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws 
and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, 
outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of 
not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate 
concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or 
through collusion.   The extent to which our procedures are capable of 
detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the 
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with 
both those charged with governance of the entity and management. 

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that 
are applicable to the authority and determined that the most significant 
are: 

• Local Government Act 1972, 

• Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992), 

Responsibility of the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the 
statement of accounts set out on page 17  the  Head of Finance & 
Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement 
of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance 
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and 
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Head of Finance & Section 
151 Officer is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Authority either intends to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, 
to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly 
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 28



19

Audit Report

We assessed the susceptibility of the /authority’s financial statements to 
material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding 
the potential incentives and pressures for management to manipulate the 
financial statements, and performed procedures to understand the areas 
in which this would most likely arise. Based on our risk assessment 
procedures, we identified improper recognition of revenue and 
expenditure (through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure) and management override of controls to be our fraud risks. 

To address our fraud risk of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure we tested the authority’s capitalised expenditure to ensure 
the capitalisation criteria were properly met and the expenditure was 
genuine, and tested revenue expenditure funded from capital under 
statute (REFCUS) to ensure it’s classification was correct. 

To address our fraud risk of management override of controls, we tested 
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed 
whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are 
indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any 
identified significant transactions that were unusual or outside the normal 
course of business. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report.

• The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) 

Regulations 2003 as amended in 2018 and 2020, 
• Planning Act 2008 and the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/948) 
• The Local Government Finance Act 2012,
• The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and
• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

In addition, the council has to comply with laws and regulations in the 
areas of anti-bribery and corruption, data protection, employment 
Legislation, tax Legislation, general power of competence, 
procurement and health & safety. 

We understood how South Oxfordshire District Council is complying 
with those frameworks by understanding the incentive, opportunities 
and motives for non-compliance, including inquiring of management, 
head of internal audit and those charged with governance and 
obtaining and reading documentation relating to the procedures in 
place to identify, evaluate and comply with laws and regulations, and 
whether they are aware of instances of non-compliance. We 
corroborated this through our reading of the authority’s committee 
minutes, through enquiry of employees to confirm authority policies, 
and through the inspection of other information. Based on this 
understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures had a focus 
on compliance with the accounting framework through obtaining 
sufficient audit evidence in line with the level of risk identified and with 
relevant legislation.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 29



20

Audit Report

Delay in certification of completion of the audit 

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until 
we have completed the work necessary to issue our assurance statement 
in respect of the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation 
pack. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the 
financial statements or our work on value for money arrangements.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of South Oxfordshire District 
Council, as a body,  in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 
43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 
published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than South Oxfordshire District Council and the Authority’s 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions 
we have formed.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified reporting 
criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in April 
2021, as to whether South Oxfordshire District Council had proper 
arrangements for financial sustainability, governance and improving 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. The Comptroller and Auditor 
General determined these criteria as those necessary for us to consider 
under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether Vale 
of South Oxfordshire District Council put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. 
Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we 
considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant 
respects, South Oxfordshire District Council had put in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has 
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all 
aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 
effectively. 

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 30



21

Audit Differences04

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 31



22

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and 
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and 
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to 
interpretation. 

We highlight the following misstatements greater than £0.876m which have been corrected by management that were identified during the course of our audit:

• £0.650 incorrect revaluation of revaluations of finance lease debtor. 

• £2.3m amendment of business rates and council tax income, identified from errors in completing the CIPFA model 

Our work also identified a number of inconsistencies within the financial statements and errors in disclosure notes.  

There were no uncorrected misstatements.

Summary of adjusted differences

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 32



23

Value for Money05 01

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 33



24

Value for money

The Council's responsibilities for value for money (VFM)

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while 
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and 
how this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its 
own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements set out in the CIPFA code of practice on local authority accounting. This includes a 
requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Arrangements for

Securing value for

money 

Financial

Sustainability

Improving

Economy,

Efficiency &

effectiveness

Governance 

V
F
M

Risk assessment

In our Audit Planning Report we reported that we had substantially completed our value for money (VFM) 
risk assessment and had identified one risk of significant weakness against the reporting criteria financial 
sustainability.

We have since completed our VFM risk assessment and confirm that we have identified no other risk of 
significant weakness. We have therefore identified one risk at the Authority in relation to the significant 
budget gap in the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and the continued drawdown of reserves. This 
risk falls into the criteria “Financial sustainability:  How the Council plans and manages its resources to 
ensure it can continue to deliver their services”.

We have completed our planned VFM procedures and have no matters to report by exception in the 
auditor’s report (see Section 03). We include below the findings from our work on the risk of significant 
weakness we identified. We plan to issue the VFM commentary as part of issuing the Auditor’s Annual 
Report.

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 34



25

Value for Money

What is the risk of significant weakness?
What arrangements did 
this impact? What  did we do?

The Council has a significant gap in its medium term financial plan 
(20/21 version), and a continued drawdown of reserves.

When presenting our Audit Results Report from the 2019/20 audit, our 
presentation to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee set out an 
expectation that the Council would need to be reviewing it plans and 
taking action before reserves diminished significantly.

Financial sustainability:  
How the Council plans and 
manages its resources to 
ensure it can continue to 
deliver their services

We:
• Reviewed the updated Medium Term Financial 

Plan, approved as part of the 2022/23 budget 
process;

• Identified the key changes since the previous 
version;

• Analysed changes in planned drawdown of 
reserves

Responding to a risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

Findings

We note a marked reduction in the use of reserves as compared to the previous MTFP, down from £16.9m to £12.7m, a reduction of 25%.

We have reviewed the MTFP to understand the improvement, with specific focus on the first year of the MTFP (i.e. 2022/23). We can see Base Budget 
Savings have increased from £1.2m to £2.5m, plus an additional £0.3m of savings per year from 2022/23. Whilst other factors are moving each way, it 
is clear that material savings have been made to the budget. 

We have reviewed the MTFP, and then considered the associated budget to which it relates as agreed in February 2022.  The budget quotes our previous 
message to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee, and explains the process the Council have used to review the budget through the Base Budget 
Challenge.  That challenge includes processes to remove ongoing surpluses, consolidate contingency into one, move towards ensuring costs are covered 
by discretionary fees and charges, and centralising and number of budgets such as legal, IT and property.  

The budget paper then summarises the changes into additions (Appendix A.3) and reductions (Appendix A.4) from savings identified by management.   
To manage the risk, central contingency is increased.  Transformation activity is still included, aiming to facilitate savings and efficient ways of working.

We concluded that assumption and proposals looked reasonable in our judgement.

The resulting impacts on planned drawdowns from reserves are set out overleaf, demonstrating that the reliance on reserves has reduced.

V
F
M

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 35



26

Value for Money

Responding to a risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

Findings

V
F
M

We recognise that the latest SODC MTFP (the 2022 MTFP) still shows a continued drawing down of reserves, however there has been marked improvement since the 
prior MTFP. This improvement has been underpinned by material savings which have been identified - providing assurance that officers and members have progressed 
the arrangements to ensure financial sustainability in the medium term. We note that the remaining significant drawdowns are in the final years of the plan, which is not 
uncommon as council's often have not identified the savings that may need to be made over that horizon.

That said, there is still a significant drawing down of c. £2m per annum in the next two years. Whilst in the long term this is not sustainable, we note the very strong 
reserve position of the council, and it would take a long time for reserves to deplete even at this rate of drawdown.

Given the strong level of reserves and the significant reduction in drawdowns, we are satisfied that there is no significant risk to financial resilience in the short or 
medium term. Therefore, we are satisfied with the direction of travel and that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to manage it’s medium term 
sustainability.

 -  1,000,000  2,000,000  3,000,000  4,000,000  5,000,000  6,000,000

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

Reserve Drawdowns

Per MTFP @ Feb 2021 Per MTFP @ Feb 2022

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

General Funds + Earmarked Reserves

2021 MTFP 2021 MTFP

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 36



27

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 37



28

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the South Oxfordshire’s Statement of Accounts 2020/21 with the audited 
financial statements

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it complies 
with relevant guidance. 

Financial information in the South Oxfordshire Statement of Accounts 2020/21 published with the financial statements was consistent with the audited financial 
statements.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statements and can confirm they are consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and we 
have no other matters to report.

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of 
our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

The group instruction is yet to be issues by the NAO, delayed because the consolidation tool has not been released by the Treasury,

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit, 
either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which required us 
to issue a report in the public interest. 

We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our responsibilities under 
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We did not identify any issues. P

age 37

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 38



29

Assessment of Control 
Environment

07

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 39



30

Assessment of Control Environment

Review and challenge of external valuation reportArea

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Council’s both employ a management specialist to assist in the valuations of their 
property, plant and equipment (PPE) and investment properties (IP). The external valuer employed is LSH.

There is no issue or concern with management’s use of a specialist in this area, however it management are still expected to review 
and challenge the output of their specialists. 

LSH provided the figures for their valuation in time for completion of the financial statement, however the full report (which included 
key details including the valuers methodology) was not received by the council until requested during the external audit period.

Observation

When the final report from the valuer was received, some figures contained within were different to the original figures LSH provided 
over email.

Since the accounts were prepared prior to the receipt of this report, it is our judgement that management did not sufficiently or 
adequately challenge the findings of their specialist. Had the full report been obtained and reviewed, this misstatement may have not 
occurred.

Impact

Rating

It is accepted that the issue occurred and the service management are in the process of taking steps to ensure that there will be no re-
occurrence. Strategic Property will work with Finance to agree a clear programme for delivery of asset valuations in a timely manner. A 
check and challenge process will be built into the programme.  LSH are contacted to deliver asset valuations for 21/22 and 22/23.  The 
draft valuations are due to be delivered by LSH by the end of May 2022.

Management 
comment

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 40



31

Assessment of Control Environment

Debtor and Creditor ListingsArea

Sampling of debtor and creditor balances was impeded by the Council being unable to provide clean listings of the amounts on the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2021.  Listings often contained opening balances and movements during the year, not the final 
balances.

Observation

The lack of clean listings impeded the efficiency of the audit as it took time to provide listings, and when provided samples often had to 
be returned and replaced because the items were not debtor of creditor balances as at 31 March.

The wider implication is that if listings cannot be provided for the audit process, there may be further weaknesses in the Council’s 
ability to manage its creditors and debtors.

Impact

Rating

The quality of balance sheet reconciliations is being addressed for the March 2022 Year End close. To alleviate the burden on the 
financial accounting staff who have been solely responsible for these reconciliations in the past, the finance business partners will 
become directly involved in the process of preparation and clearance.
Standard templates are being agreed and where necessary staff are being trained on the correct presentation. 

Management 
comment

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 41



32

Independence08

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 42



33

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Confirmation

We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our confirmation in our audit planning board report tabled at the 25 January 
2022 Joint Audit and Governance Committee. 

We complied with the FRC Ethical Standards and (the requirements of the PSAA’s Terms of Appointment. In our professional judgement the firm is independent 
and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements.

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should review, as well as us. It is important that you and your Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee consider the facts known to you and come to a view. If you would like to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be 
pleased to do this at the meeting of the Joint Audit Committee and Governance Committee.

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside the NAO Code requirements, other than the role of reporting accountant for both authority’s 
housing benefit subsidy return.  This is a permitted service under the NAO’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 (AGN01)

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 43



34

Appendix A – Fees 
The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government.  

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Description

Final Fee 2020/21

£

Planned Fee 2020/21 

£

Final Fee 2019/20

£ 

Audit Scale Fee – Code work 37,103 37,103 37,103

Changes in work required to address professional and 
regulatory requirements and scope associated with risk 
(see Note 1)

36,969 29,575 29,575

Revised Proposed Scale Fee 74,072 66,678 66,678

Scale Fee Variation – new VFM arrangements (Note 2) 6,000 6,000 - 11,000 N/A

Scale Fee Variation – revised ISA 540 (Note 2) 2,500 2,500 N/A

Scale Fee Variation due to one-off issues impacting 
2019/20 and 2020/21 audits (see Note 3) 

TBD N/A 29,525

Total Proposed Audit Fee TBD 96,203

None Audit Fee - Housing Benefit Certification Work TBD 10,500 10,933

Note 1 - We have previously discussed with the management and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we do not believe the existing scale fees provide 
a clear link with a public sector organisation’s risk and complexity and laid out the impact of regulatory changes which have caused that. We have quantified the 
implications of these factors on our assessment of the baseline fee to deliver a sustainable high-quality external audit. For 2019/20 and 2020/21 the scale fee has 
been re-assessed to take these into account, using the same inputs. The fee impact rises by 25% in 2020/21, because PSAA fee variations rates have increased by 
25%.

Note 2 - In 2020/21, we expect the new VFM arrangements and revised ISA 540 (estimates) to result in a scale fee variation. PSAA have published guidance on 
these matters and advise for minimum additional fees, for a district council, of £6,000 - £11,000 in respect of the new VFM arrangements, and a minimum of 
£2,500 in respect of the revised ISA 540.  We expect the final fee to be toward the bottom end of the ranges.

Note 3 – we will complete the calculation of any specific variations, such as accounting for Covid-19 grants, at the completion of the audit.  We expect the 
additional inputs to be less than the prior year, due to general improvements by the Council assisting the completion of the audit.

Note 4 – The Housing Benefit non-audit work is still in progress.  Final fees will be calculated including any additional testing required for any identified errors in the 
subsidy claim, consistent with the DWP HBAP instruction.

All audit fees are subject to determination by PSAA.

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 44



35

Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and your Authority, and its directors and senior management 
and its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to your Authority, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services 
provided to other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could 
compromise independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.

There are no relationships from 1 April 2020 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The fee table above includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2021 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard 
and in statute.

We confirm that none of the services listed in the fee table above has been provided on a contingent fee basis.

As at the date of this report, we are contracted to provide audit services for a further three years from 1 April 2020.

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2020: 

EY UK Transparency Report 2020 | EY UK

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 45

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2020


36

Appendices09

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 46



37

Appendix A

Required communications with the Joint Audit & Governance 
Committee

There are certain communications that we must provide to the those charged with governance of UK entities. We have detailed these here together with a reference of 
when and where they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported?
When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the joint audit and governance committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit planning report

Planning and audit 
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings 
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process.

Audit results report

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 47



38

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

No conditions or events were identified, either 
individually or together to raise any doubt 
about South Oxfordshire District Council’s 
ability to continue for the 12 months from the 
date of our report.

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected

• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any subsequent 
events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

No subsequent events have come to our 
attention which might affect the financial 
statements.

Fraud • Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the Authority, any 
identified or suspected fraud involving:

a. Management; 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when 
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit results report

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 48



39

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related 
parties including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit planning report
and
Audit results report

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 49



40

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

• Details of any inconsistencies between the Ethical Standard and Group’s policy for the 
provision of non-audit services, and any apparent breach of that policy

• Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services

• Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply more restrictive rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard

• The audit committee should also be provided an opportunity to discuss matters affecting 
auditor independence

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit results report

Consideration of laws 
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly 
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance 
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur 
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the 
audit committee may be aware of

We have not identified any material instances 
or non-compliance with laws and regulations

Significant deficiencies in 
internal controls identified 
during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit results report/Annual Audit Letter

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 50



41

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Written representations 
we are requesting from 
management and/or those 
charged with governance

• Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies or 
misstatements of fact 
identified in other 
information which 
management has refused 
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit planning report is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit Planning Report

Audit Results Report

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 51



42

Appendix B

Management representation letter

fair view of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) 
and cash flows of the Council in accordance with [the CIPFA LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and are 
free of material misstatements, including omissions.  We have approved the 
financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the 
financial statements are appropriately described in the financial 
statements.

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has 
a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of 
accurate financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
We have disclosed to you any significant changes in our processes, controls, 
policies and procedures that we have made to address the effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic on our system of internal controls.

5. There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current 
audit and pertaining to the latest period presented.

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s 
activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that 
we are responsible to identify and address any non-compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud. 

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the 
financial statements of South Oxfordshire District Council “the Council”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2021.  We recognise that obtaining representations 
from us concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant 
procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the Council financial position of South 
Oxfordshire District Council as of 31 March 2021and of its income and 
expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21. 

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to 
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination 
of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you 
considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify -
nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other 
irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered 
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory 
authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2020/21. 

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our 
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  We 
believe the financial statements referred to above give a true and

Management Representation Letter

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 52



43

Appendix B

Management representation letter

• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and 
all material transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the financial 
statements, including those related to the COVID-19 pandemic].

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council 
and committees, including the Cabinet and Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee,  (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes 
have not yet been prepared) held through the  to the most recent meeting 
on the following date: [list date].

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the 
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the 
Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions 
of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of 
assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-
monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period 
ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the period 
end.  These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in the financial statements. 

5. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used 
in making accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and 
consistently applied to achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure 
that is in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of 
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, 
conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with 
laws or regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Council 
(regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, any 
allegations by “whistleblowers”), including non-compliance matters:

• involving financial statements;

• related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the 
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the [Council]’s 
financial statements;

• related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which 
may be fundamental to the operations of the Council’s activities, its 
ability to continue to operate, or to avoid material penalties;

• involving management, or employees who have significant roles in 
internal controls, or others; or 

• in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-
compliance with laws and regulations communicated by employees, 
former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:

• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation 
and other matters;

• Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 
the audit; and

Management Representation Letter

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 53



44

Appendix B

Management representation letter

1. There have been no events including events related to the COVID-19 
pandemic, and including events related to the conflict and related sanctions 
in Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus, subsequent to period end which require 
adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

G. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises Narrative Statement.

2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is 
consistent with the financial statements.

H. Ownership of Assets

1. Except for assets capitalised under finance leases, the Council has 
satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the balance sheet(s), and there 
are no liens or encumbrances on the Council’s assets, nor has any asset 
been pledged as collateral. All assets to which the Council has satisfactory 
title appear in the balance sheet.

I. Reserves

1. We have properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements the 
useable and unusable reserves. 

7. From the date of our last management representation letter 
(30/11/2021) through the date of this letter we have disclosed to you 
any unauthorized access to our information technology systems that 
either occurred or to the best of our knowledge is reasonably likely to 
have occurred based on our investigation, including of reports 
submitted to us by third parties (including regulatory agencies, law 
enforcement agencies and security consultants) , to the extent that such 
unauthorized access to our information technology systems is 
reasonably likely to have a material impact to the financial statements, 
in each case or in the aggregate.

D. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with 
guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are 
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.  

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and 
claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related 
to litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed 
in Note 24 to the financial statements all guarantees that we have given 
to third parties. 

E. Going Concern 

1. Note 31 to the financial statements discloses all the matters of which we 
are aware that are relevant to the Council’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, including significant conditions and events, our plans for future 
action, and the feasibility of those plans.

F. Subsequent Events 

Management Representation Letter

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 54



45

Appendix B

Management representation letter

L. Retirement benefits

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate 
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 
scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All 
significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have 
been identified and properly accounted for.

M. Climate-related matters

1. We confirm that to the best of our knowledge all information that is relevant 
to the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of climate-
related matters has been considered and reflected in the financial 
statements.

1. The key assumptions used in preparing the financial statements are, to the 
extent allowable under the requirements of CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, aligned 
with the statements we have made in the other information or other public 
communications made by us.

J. Use of the Work of a Specialist

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate 
the valuation of property, plant and equipment and of investment 
property; and the valuation of the net pension liability and have 
adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining 
the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the 
underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions 
to be given to the specialists with respect to the values or amounts 
derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware 
of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity 
of the specialists.

K. Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and 
Net Pension Liability Estimate (‘the Estimates’)

1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the estimates 
have taken into account all relevant information  of which we are aware. 

2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions 
and data used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or 
used in making the estimates.

3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with 
respect to the estimates, including those describing estimation 
uncertainty, are complete and are reasonable in the context of the 
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2020/21.

4. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been 
applied in making the estimates.

5. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the estimates and 
disclosures in the financial statements, including due to the COVID-19 
pandemic.

Management Representation Letter

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 55



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 56



Vale of White Horse District Council

Audit results report 

Year ended 31 March 2021

May 2022

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 57



2

16 May 2022

Dear Joint Audit and Governance Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our audit results report for the forthcoming meeting of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee. This report 
summarises our audit conclusions in relation to the audit of Vale of White Horse District Council for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Subject to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report, we confirm that we expect to issue unqualified audit opinion on the financial 
statements in the form at Section 3. We also have no significant matters to report on your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in your use of resources

This report is intended solely for the use of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee Members, other members of the Authority, and senior 
management. It should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.

We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the meeting of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 24 
May 2022.

Yours faithfully 

Kevin Suter

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 58



3

Contents

Executive 
Summary

01 Audit 
Differences

Areas of Audit 
Focus

02 Audit Report03 04

05 09Other 
Reporting 
Issues

06 Independence07 Appendices08Value for 
Money

Assessment of 
Control 
Environment

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management of Vale of White Horse District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management of Vale of White Horse District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and 
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management of Vale of White 
Horse District Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

V
F
M

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 59

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Executive Summary01

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 60



5

Executive Summary

Scope update

In our Audit Planning Report presented at the 25 January 2022 Joint Audit and Governance Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope 
and approach for the audit of the financial statements of Vale of White Horse District Council. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan.

Status of the audit

We have substantially completed our audit of Vale of White Horse District Council financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021. The following items relating to 
the completion of our audit conclusion procedures were outstanding at the date of this report:

• Review of requested amendments to the final version of the accounts;

• completion of subsequent events review up to the date of signing the audit report;

• Receipt of the signed accounts and management representation letter

Subject to satisfactory completion of the outstanding items we expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements in the form which appears at 
Section 3. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise. We will provide an update on the status of the audits at the 24 May 2022 committee meeting. 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 61



6

Executive Summary

Status of the audit – Value for Money

In our Audit Planning Report we reported that we had substantially completed our value for money (VFM) risk assessment and had identified one risk of significant 
weakness against the reporting criteria financial sustainability.

We have since completed our VFM risks assessment and confirm that we have identified no other risk of significant weakness. We have therefore identified one risk at 
the Authority in relation to the significant budget gap in the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and the continued drawdown of reserves. This risk falls into the 
criteria “Financial sustainability:  How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver their services”.

We have completed our planned procedures which included assessing the process the Council had undertaken to address this issue, and evaluated the 2022 MTFP.

We have determined that there is not a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for supporting its financial sustainability. 

We have also revisited our risk assessment on completion of the audit of the financial statements and have not identified any new risks of significant weakness in VFM 
arrangements. 

We plan to issue the VFM commentary as part of issuing the Auditor’s Annual Report. We include further details in Section 04.

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code of Audit Practice 2020 

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are still required to consider whether the Authority has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness on its use of resources. The 2020 Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report to the 
Authority a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the Authority has in place to secure value for money through economic, 
efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Authority uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 62



7

Executive Summary

Audit differences

We have identified adjusted audit differences for Vale of White Horse District Council and no unadjusted audit differences. We have also identified some adjustments 
required to disclosure notes.  Further details are set out in Section 4.

As our audit work is ongoing at the time of writing this report, further adjusted and unadjusted misstatements may be identified. We will update the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee at the meeting on 24 May 2022 if we identify any further issues by the time of the meeting.

Areas of audit focus

Our Audit Planning Report identified key areas of focus for our audit of the Authority financial statements. This report sets out our observations and conclusions, 
including our views on areas which might be conservative, and where there is potential risk and exposure. We summarise our consideration of these matters, and any 
others identified, in the “Areas of Audit Focus" section 2 of this report. We have identified no new audit risks since our Audit Planning Report.

We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report to ensure:

• There are no other considerations or matters that could have an impact on these issues

• You agree with the resolution of the issue

• There are no other significant issues to be considered.

There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Control observations

We have identified one control observation in respect of the adequacy of managements challenge and review of the work of their specialist employed in the valuation of 
property, plant and equipment and investment property. We judge that the Council’s internal control environment with regard to this specific was not sufficient and led 
to material misstatements. Further details are presented in section 7 of this report.

We have not identified any other significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial 
statements and which is unknown to you. P

age 62

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 63



8

Executive Summary

Other reporting issues

We review the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Authority. We do not have any matters
to report as a result of this work.

We are yet to perform the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. This is because the NAO are as yet 
unable to issue the group instruction.

We have no other matters to report.

Independence

Please refer to Section 8 for our update on Independence. We have no independence issues to report. 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 64



9

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 65



10

Areas of Audit Focus

Fraud Risk

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue 
recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements 
may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We have assessed that the risk is most likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure, as there is an incentive to reduce expenditure which is funded from Council Tax. This could 
then result in funding of that expenditure, that should properly be defined as revenue, through 
inappropriate sources such as capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition, 
through inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure

What did we do?

We have:

• reviewed and tested revenue and expenditure recognition polices;

• tested PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds to ensure that the expenditure incurred 
and capitalised was clearly capital in nature;

• tested expenditure classified as REFCUS using lowered testing thresholds to ensure it is 
appropriate for the revenue expenditure incurred to be financed from ring fenced capital 
resources;

• Sought to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals transferring 
expenditure from revenue to capital codes at the end of the year;

• We utilised our data analytics capabilities to assist with our work, including journal entry 
testing.

What are our conclusions?

We have completed our planned procedures with regard to this 
fraud risk and have identified one adjusted misstatement. 

We identified in REFCUS that the Council included salary 
recharges for survey works to council properties to determine 
whether property should be kept, disposed or improved. We 
challenged as to a) whether this meets capitalisation criteria, and 
b) whether it meets REFCUS.
Our assessment was it met neither.

Management agreed with our view, and an amendment was made.

We have assessed the misstatement and concluded that it is 
caused by error and not by fraud. 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 66



11

Areas of Audit Focus

Fraud Risk

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or 
error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability 
to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or 
error

What did we do?

We undertook our procedures to address fraud risks, which included:

• inquiring of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those 
risks.

• understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s 
processes over fraud.

• considering the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

• performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks, including:

o testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the preparation of the financial 
statements.

o evaluating accounting estimates for any evidence of management bias

o evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions

What are our conclusions?

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or 
evidence of material management override.

We did not identify any inappropriate journal entries.

We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements 
being applied in estimates from management bias.

We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which 
appeared unusual or outside the Council’s normal course of 
business

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 67



12

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be matters that we report on

What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

Valuation of Land and Building, and Investment Property

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment 
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in both Council’s 
balance sheets and are subject to valuation changes, impairment 
reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make 
material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to 
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

We have:

• considered the work performed by the Council’s valuers (LSH), including the adequacy of 
the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their 
work; 

• reviewed the internal challenge of LSH’s valuations by the Council’s surveyor;  

• sample tested key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation 
(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenged 
the key assumptions used by the valuers; 

• considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 
5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment 
Property.

• reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2020/21 to confirm that the remaining asset 
base is not materially misstated; 

• considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; 

• tested to confirm that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial 
statements.

We have completed our planned procedures with regard to this area of audit focus and have 
identified no misstatements with regard to investment properties.  In relation to the valuation 
of operational land and buildings we identified an unrecorded property valued at £2.9m that 
was within the valuers report, but was not on the asset register.  The council did not identify 
this as until we requested the detailed valuation report, as they had not obtained this from the 
valuer.  Therefore, we have identified a control deficiency as a result of our work. This is 
included in Section 7.

Areas of audit focus

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 68



13

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be matters that we report on

What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require 
the Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial 
statements regarding its membership of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme administered by Oxfordshire County Council. 

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance 
and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Councils’ 
balance sheet. The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 
report issued to the Council by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to 
undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 
require us to undertake procedures on the use of management 
experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates. 

We have:

• liaised with the auditors of the Oxfordshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the 
information supplied to the actuary in relation to Vale of White Horse District Council;

• assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Barnett Waddingham) including the 
assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries 
commissioned by Public Sector Auditor Appointments for all Local Government sector 
auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; 

• reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s 
financial; 

• engaged the EY actuarial team to calculate a point estimate of each Council’s pension 
liability.

The revised auditing standard requires auditors to test the method of measurement of 
accounting estimates to determine whether the model is appropriately designed, consistently 
applied and mathematically accurate, and that the integrity of the assumptions and the data 
has been maintained in applying the model. Neither we, nor PWC as consulting actuary 
commissioned by the NAO for all local government sector audits, were able to access the 
detailed models of the actuaries in order to evidence these requirements. Therefore we 
needed to create an auditor’s estimate of the Council’s pension liability, to provide a different 
method of gaining assurance than in previous years. The results of this exercise showed the 
actuarial estimate to be accurate within a reasonable range.

We have completed our planned procedures in relation to this area of audit focus and have no 
matters to report.

Areas of audit focus

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 69



14

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be matters that we report on

What is the risk/area of focus? What did we do?

Accounting for Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Income

We identified material errors in relation to CIL income in our 
2019/20 audit. The errors were corrected by management, and we 
reported these as adjusted misstatements to the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee in our 2019/20 audit results report in 
November 2021. Whilst management has corrected its accounting 
policy in relation to CIL income, due to the timing of when the error 
was identified, there remains a risk that the impact of the previous 
incorrect accounting policy is not quantified correctly and adjusted 
for in the 2020/21 financial statements.

We:

• Tested CIL income using lowered testing thresholds and ensure income is appropriately 
supported by documentary evidence,

• Tested cut-off to ensure CIL income is being accounted for in the correct financial year, 
and in accordance with the accounting treatments specified in the CIPFA Code.

We have completed our planned procedures in relation to this area of audit focus and have no 
misstatements to report.

Accounting for Covid-19 Related Grants

The Councils have received a significant level of government funding 
in relation to Covid-19. Whilst there is no change in the CIPFA Code 
or accounting standard (IFRS 15) in respect of accounting for grant 
funding, the emergency nature of some of the grants received and in 
some cases the lack of clarity on any associated restrictions and 
conditions, means that the Council will need to apply a greater 
degree of assessment and judgement to determine the appropriate 
accounting treatment in the 2020/21 statements.

We have:

• considered the Council’s judgement on material grants received in relation to whether it is 
acting as:

o An agent, where it has determined that it is acting as an intermediary; or

o Principal, where the Council has determined that it is acting on its own behalf.

We have completed our planned procedures in relation to this area of audit focus and have no 
matters to report.

Areas of audit focus

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 70



15

Audit Report03

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 71



16

Audit Report

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are 
independent of the authority in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, 
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor 
General’s (C&AG) AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Head of 
Finance & Section 151 Officer’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any 
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or 
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the authority’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a period of 12 months  from when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Head of Finance & 
Section 151 Officer with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report.  However, because not all future events 
or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the 
authority’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VALE OF 
WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Vale of White Horse 
District Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 under the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements comprise 
the:

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
• Movement in Reserves Statement, 
• Balance Sheet, 
• Cash Flow Statement
• the related notes 1 to 32 and Statement of Accounting Policies
• Collection Fund Account and the related notes 1 to 3

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.

In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Vale of White 
Horse District Council as at 31 March 2021 and of its expenditure and 
income for the year then ended; and
• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 72



17

Audit Report

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:
• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or 
inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our 
knowledge of the Council;
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;
• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 
• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of 
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014;
• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014;
• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
• we are not satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for 
the year ended 31 March 2021. 

We have nothing to report in these respects 

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the 
Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.  The Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer is 
responsible for the other information contained within the Statement of 
Accounts.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this 
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we 
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in 
the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the 
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 73



18

Audit Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.  

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws 
and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, 
outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of 
not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate 
concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or 
through collusion.   The extent to which our procedures are capable of 
detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the 
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with 
both those charged with governance of the entity and management. 

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that 
are applicable to the authority and determined that the most significant 
are: 

• Local Government Act 1972, 

• Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992), 

Responsibility of the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the 
statement of accounts set out on page 17  the  Head of Finance & 
Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement 
of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance 
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and 
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Head of Finance & Section 
151 Officer is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Authority either intends to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, 
to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly 
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 74



19

Audit Report

We assessed the susceptibility of the /authority’s financial statements to 
material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding 
the potential incentives and pressures for management to manipulate the 
financial statements, and performed procedures to understand the areas 
in which this would most likely arise. Based on our risk assessment 
procedures, we identified improper recognition of revenue and 
expenditure (through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure) and management override of controls to be our fraud risks. 

To address our fraud risk of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure we tested the authority’s capitalised expenditure to ensure 
the capitalisation criteria were properly met and the expenditure was 
genuine, and tested revenue expenditure funded from capital under 
statute (REFCUS) to ensure it’s classification was correct. 

To address our fraud risk of management override of controls, we tested 
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed 
whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are 
indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any 
identified significant transactions that were unusual or outside the normal 
course of business. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report.

• The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) 

Regulations 2003 as amended in 2018 and 2020, 
• Planning Act 2008 and the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/948) 
• The Local Government Finance Act 2012,
• The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and
• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

In addition, the council has to comply with laws and regulations in the 
areas of anti-bribery and corruption, data protection, employment 
Legislation, tax Legislation, general power of competence, 
procurement and health & safety. 

We understood how Vale of White Horse District Council is complying 
with those frameworks by understanding the incentive, opportunities 
and motives for non-compliance, including inquiring of management, 
head of internal audit and those charged with governance and 
obtaining and reading documentation relating to the procedures in 
place to identify, evaluate and comply with laws and regulations, and 
whether they are aware of instances of non-compliance. We 
corroborated this through our reading of the authority’s committee 
minutes, through enquiry of employees to confirm authority policies, 
and through the inspection of other information. Based on this 
understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures had a focus 
on compliance with the accounting framework through obtaining 
sufficient audit evidence in line with the level of risk identified and with 
relevant legislation.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 75



20

Audit Report

Delay in certification of completion of the audit 

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until 
we have completed the work necessary to issue our assurance statement 
in respect of the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation 
pack. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the 
financial statements or our work on value for money arrangements.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of Vale of White Horse District 
Council, as a body,  in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 
43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 
published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than Vale of White Horse District Council and the 
Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified reporting 
criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in April 
2021, as to whether the Vale of White Horse District Council had 
proper arrangements for financial sustainability, governance and 
improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. The Comptroller and 
Auditor General determined these criteria as those necessary for us to 
consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves 
whether Vale of White Horse District Council put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. 
Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we 
considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant 
respects, Vale of White Horse District Council had put in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has 
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all 
aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 
effectively. 

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 76



21

Audit Differences04

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 77



22

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and 
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and 
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to 
interpretation. 

We highlight the following misstatements greater than £0.840m which have been corrected by management that were identified during the course of our audit

• £2.9m understatement assets for an unrecorded property (see page 12)

• £0.852m incorrect upward revaluation of long term leases (debtors)

Our work also identified a number of inconsistencies within the financial statements and errors in disclosure notes.  This included errors in relation to brought forward 
balances, and errors made in subsequent versions of the accounts prior to the final version.  Management’s controls processes in this area could be improved. 

There are no uncorrected misstatements.

Summary of adjusted differences

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 78



23

Value for Money05 01

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 79



24

Value for money

The Council's responsibilities for value for money (VFM)

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while 
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and 
how this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its 
own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements set out in the CIPFA code of practice on local authority accounting. This includes a 
requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Arrangements for

Securing value for

money 

Financial

Sustainability

Improving

Economy,

Efficiency &

effectiveness

Governance 

V
F
M

Risk assessment

In our Audit Planning Report we reported that we had substantially completed our value for money (VFM) 
risk assessment and had identified one risk of significant weakness against the reporting criteria financial 
sustainability.

We have since completed our VFM risk assessment and confirm that we have identified no other risk of 
significant weakness. We have therefore identified one risk at the Authority in relation to the significant 
budget gap in the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and the continued drawdown of reserves. This 
risk falls into the criteria “Financial sustainability:  How the Council plans and manages its resources to 
ensure it can continue to deliver their services”.

We have completed our planned VFM procedures and have no matters to report by exception in the 
auditor’s report (see Section 03). We include below the findings from our work on the risk of significant 
weakness we identified. We plan to issue the VFM commentary as part of issuing the Auditor’s Annual 
Report.

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 80



25

Value for Money

What is the risk of significant weakness?
What arrangements did 
this impact? What  did we do?

The Council has a significant gap in its medium term financial plan 
(20/21 version), and a continued drawdown of reserves.

When presenting our Audit Results Report from the 2019/20 audit, our 
presentation to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee set out an 
expectation that the Council would need to be reviewing it plans and 
taking action before reserves diminished significantly.

Financial sustainability:  
How the Council plans and 
manages its resources to 
ensure it can continue to 
deliver their services

We:
• Reviewed the updated Medium Term Financial 

Plan, approved as part of the 2022/23 budget 
process;

• Identified the key changes since the previous 
version;

• Analysed changes in planned drawdown of 
reserves

Responding to a risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

Findings

We note a marked reduction in the use of reserves as compared to the previous MTFP, down from £19.5m to £8.2m, a reduction of over 50%. 

We have reviewed the MTFP to understand the improvement, with specific focus on the first year of the MTFP (i.e. 2022/23). We can see Base Budget 
Savings have increased from £0.7m to £1.9m, plus an additional £0.3m of savings per year from 2022/23. There is also a repeated gross improvement 
of £0.4m p.a. in treasury income contributing towards the improved MTFP position. Whilst other factors are moving each way, it is clear that material 
savings have been made to the budget. 

We have reviewed the MTFP, and then considered the associated budget to which it relates as agreed in February 2022.  The budget quotes our previous 
message to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee, and explains the process the Council have used to review the budget through the Base Budget 
Challenge.  That challenge includes processes to remove ongoing surpluses, consolidate contingency into one, move towards ensuring costs are covered 
by discretionary fees and charges, and centralising and number of budgets such as legal, IT and property.  

The budget paper then summarises the changes into additions (Appendix A.3) and reductions (Appendix A.4) from savings identified by management.   
To manage the risk, central contingency is increased.  Transformation activity is still included, aiming to facilitate savings and efficient ways of working.

The resulting impacts on planned drawdowns from reserves are set out overleaf, demonstrating that the reliance on reserves has significantly reduced.

V
F
M

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 81



26

Value for Money

Responding to a risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

Findings

V
F
M

-1,000,000  -  1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000 6,000,000

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

Reserve Drawdowns

Per MTFP @ Feb 2021 Per MTFP @ Feb 2022

We recognise that the latest VOWH MTFP (the 2022 MTFP) still shows a continued drawing down of reserves, however there has been marked improvement since the 
prior MTFP. This improvement has been underpinned by material savings which have been identified - providing assurance that officers and members have progressed 
the arrangements to ensure financial sustainability in the medium term. We note that the remaining significant drawdowns are in the final years of the plan, which is not 
uncommon as council's often have not identified the savings that may need to be made over that horizon.

Therefore, we are satisfied with the direction of travel and that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to manage it’s medium term sustainability.

-5,000

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

General Funds + Earmarked Reserves

2021 MTFP 2021 MTFP

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 82



27

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 83



28

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Vale of White Horse Statement of Accounts 2020/21 with the audited 
financial statements

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it complies 
with relevant guidance. 

Financial information in the Vale of White Horse Statement of Accounts 2020/21 published with the financial statements was consistent with the audited financial 
statements.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statements and can confirm they are consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and we 
have no other matters to report.

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of 
our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We cannot complete our procedures as the NAO have been unable to issue the group instruction.  Therefore, we currently cannot certify completion of the audit.

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit, 
either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which required us 
to issue a report in the public interest. 

We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our responsibilities under 
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We did not identify any issues. P

age 83

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 84



29

Assessment of Control 
Environment

07

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 85



30

Assessment of Control Environment

Review and challenge of external valuation reportArea

Vale of White Horse District Council employ a management specialist to assist in the valuations of their property, plant and 
equipment (PPE) and investment properties (IP). The external valuer employed is LSH.

There is no issue or concern with management’s use of a specialist in this area, however, management are still expected to review 
and challenge the output of their specialists. 

LSH provided the summary figures for their valuation in time for completion of the financial statement, however the full report 
(which included key details including the valuers methodology) was not received by the council until requested during the external 
audit period. Therefore, management could not have challenged the underlying information and assumptions.

Observation

When the final report from the valuer was received, some figures contained within were different to the original figures LSH provided 
over email.

Since the accounts were prepared prior to the receipt of this report, it is our judgement that management did not sufficiently or 
adequately challenge the findings of their specialist. Had the full report been obtained and reviewed, this misstatement may have not 
occurred. If other errors had existed, e.g. inconsistent assumptions, use of incorrect information, management would not have
identified them prior to the audit.

Impact

Rating

It is accepted that the issue occurred and the service management are in the process of taking steps to ensure that there will be no re-
occurrence. Strategic Property will work with Finance to agree a clear programme for delivery of asset valuations in a timely manner. A 
check and challenge process will be built into the programme.  LSH are contacted to deliver asset valuations for 21/22 and 22/23.  The 
draft valuations are due to be delivered by LSH by the end of May 2022.

Management 
comment

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 86



31

Assessment of Control Environment

Debtor and Creditor ListingsArea

Sampling of debtor and creditor balances was impeded by the Council being unable to provide clean listings of the amounts on the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2021.  Listings often contained opening balances and movements during the year, not the final 
balances.

Observation

The lack of clean listings impeded the efficiency of the audit as it took time to provide listings, and when provided samples often had to 
be returned and replaced because the items were not debtor of creditor balances as at 31 March.

The wider implication is that if listings cannot be provided for the audit process, there may be further weaknesses in the Council’s 
ability to manage its creditors and debtors.

Impact

Rating

The quality of balance sheet reconciliations is being addressed for the March 2022 Year End close. To alleviate the burden on the 
financial accounting staff who have been solely responsible for these reconciliations in the past, the finance business partners will 
become directly involved in the process of preparation and clearance.
Standard templates are being agreed and where necessary staff are being trained on the correct presentation. 

Management 
comment

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 87



32

Independence08

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 88



33

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Confirmation

We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our confirmation in our audit planning board report presented at the 25 January 
2022 Joint Audit and Governance Committee. 

We complied with the FRC Ethical Standards and (the requirements of the PSAA’s Terms of Appointment. In our professional judgement the firm is independent 
and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements.

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should review, as well as us. It is important that you and your Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee consider the facts known to you and come to a view. If you would like to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be 
pleased to do this at the meeting of the Joint Audit Committee and Governance Committee.

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside the NAO Code requirements, other than the role of reporting accountant for both authority’s 
housing benefit subsidy return.  This is a permitted service under the NAO’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 (AGN01)

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 89



34

Appendix A – Fees 
The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government.  

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Description

Final Fee 2020/21

£

Planned Fee 2020/21 

£

Final Fee 2019/20

£ 

Audit Scale Fee – Code work 36,289 36,289 36,289

Changes in work required to address professional and 
regulatory requirements and scope associated with risk 
(see Note 1)

38,536 £30,829 30,289

Revised Proposed Scale Fee 74,825 66,678 66,678

Scale Fee Variation – new VFM arrangements (Note 2) 6,000 6,000 - 11,000 N/A

Scale Fee Variation – revised ISA 540 (Note 2) 2,500 £2,500 N/A

Scale Fee Variation due to one-off issues impacting 
2019/20 and 2020/21 audits (see Note 3) 

TBD N/A 28,032

Total Proposed Audit Fee TBD 95,150

None Audit Fee - Housing Benefit Certification Work TBD 10,500 9,905

Note 1 - We have previously discussed with the management and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we do not believe the existing scale fees provide 
a clear link with a public sector organisation’s risk and complexity and laid out the impact of regulatory changes which have caused that. We have quantified the 
implications of these factors on our assessment of the baseline fee to deliver a sustainable high-quality external audit. For 2019/20 and 2020/21 the scale fee has 
been re-assessed to take these into account, using the same inputs. The fee impact rises by 25% in 2020/21, because PSAA fee variations rates have increased by 
25%.

Note 2 - In 2020/21, we expect the new VFM arrangements and revised ISA 540 (estimates) to result in a scale fee variation. PSAA have published guidance on 
these matters and advise for minimum additional fees for a district council, of £6,000 - £11,000 in respect of the new VFM arrangements, and a minimum of 
£2,500 in respect of the revised ISA 540.  We expect the final fee to be toward the bottom end of the ranges.

Note 3 – we will complete the calculation of any specific variations, such as accounting for Covid-19 grants, at the completion of the audit.  We expect the 
additional inputs to be less than the prior year, due to general improvements by the Council assisting the completion of the audit.

Note 4 – The Housing Benefit non-audit work is still in progress.  Fees will be determined based on the amount of additional testing required for any identified errors 
in the subsidy claim, consistent with the DWP HBAP instruction.

All audit fees are subject to determination by PSAA.

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 90



35

Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and your Authority, and its directors and senior management 
and its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to your Authority, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services 
provided to other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could 
compromise independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.

There are no relationships from 1 April 2020 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The fee table above includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2021 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard 
and in statute.

We confirm that none of the services listed in the fee table above has been provided on a contingent fee basis.

As at the date of this report, we are contracted to provide audit services for a further three years from 1 April 2020.

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2021: 

EY UK 2021 Transparency Report | EY UK

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 91

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021


36

Appendices09

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 92



37

Appendix A

Required communications with the Joint Audit & Governance 
Committee

There are certain communications that we must provide to the those charged with governance of UK entities. We have detailed these here together with a reference of 
when and where they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported?
When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the joint audit and governance committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit planning report

Planning and audit 
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings 
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process.

Audit results report

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 93



38

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

No conditions or events were identified, either 
individually or together to raise any doubt 
about Vale of White Horse’s ability to continue 
for the 12 months from the date of our report.

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected

• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any subsequent 
events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

No subsequent events have come to our 
attention which might affect the financial 
statements.

Fraud • Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the Authority, any 
identified or suspected fraud involving:

a. Management; 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when 
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit results report

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 94



39

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related 
parties including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit planning report
and
Audit results report

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 95



40

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

• Details of any inconsistencies between the Ethical Standard and Group’s policy for the 
provision of non-audit services, and any apparent breach of that policy

• Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services

• Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply more restrictive rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard

• The audit committee should also be provided an opportunity to discuss matters affecting 
auditor independence

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit results report

Consideration of laws 
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly 
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance 
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur 
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the 
audit committee may be aware of

We have not identified any material instances 
or non-compliance with laws and regulations

Significant deficiencies in 
internal controls identified 
during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit results report/Annual Audit Letter

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 96



41

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Written representations 
we are requesting from 
management and/or those 
charged with governance

• Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies or 
misstatements of fact 
identified in other 
information which 
management has refused 
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit planning report is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit Planning Report

Audit Results Report

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 97



42

Appendix B

Management representation letter

fair view of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) 
and cash flows of the Council in accordance with [the CIPFA LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and are 
free of material misstatements, including omissions.  We have approved the 
financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the 
financial statements are appropriately described in the financial 
statements.

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has 
a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of 
accurate financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
We have disclosed to you any significant changes in our processes, controls, 
policies and procedures that we have made to address the effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic on our system of internal controls.

5. There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current 
audit and pertaining to the latest period presented.

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s 
activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that 
we are responsible to identify and address any non-compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud. 

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the 
financial statements of Vale of White Horse District Council (“the Council”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2021.  We recognise that obtaining representations 
from us concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant 
procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the Council financial position of Vale of 
White Horse District Council as of 31 March 2021 and of its income and 
expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21. 

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to 
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination 
of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you 
considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify -
nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other 
irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered 
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory 
authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2020/21. 

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our 
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  We 
believe the financial statements referred to above give a true and

Management Representation Letter

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 98



43

Appendix B

Management representation letter

• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and 
all material transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the financial 
statements, including those related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council 
and committees, including the Cabinet and Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee,  (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes 
have not yet been prepared) held through the  to the most recent meeting 
on the following date: [list date].

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the 
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the 
Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions 
of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of 
assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-
monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period 
ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the period 
end.  These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in the financial statements. 

5. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used 
in making accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and 
consistently applied to achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure 
that is in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of 
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, 
conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance 
with laws or regulations, including fraud that may have affected the 
Council (regardless of the source or form and including without 
limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including non-
compliance matters:

• involving financial statements;

• related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the 
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the 
[Council]’s financial statements;

• related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, but 
compliance with which may be fundamental to the operations of 
the Council’s activities, its ability to continue to operate, or to 
avoid material penalties;

• involving management, or employees who have significant roles 
in internal controls, or others; or 

• in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other 
non-compliance with laws and regulations communicated by 
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:

• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation 
and other matters;

• Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose 
of the audit; and

Management Representation Letter

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 99



44

Appendix B

Management representation letter

1. There have been no events including events related to the COVID-19 
pandemic, and including events related to the conflict and related sanctions 
in Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus, subsequent to period end which require 
adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

G. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the Narrative Statement and 
the Annual Governance Statement.

2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is 
consistent with the financial statements.

H. Ownership of Assets

1. Except for assets capitalised under finance leases, the Council has 
satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the balance sheet(s), and there 
are no liens or encumbrances on the Council’s assets, nor has any asset 
been pledged as collateral. All assets to which the Council has satisfactory 
title appear in the balance sheet.

I. Reserves

1. We have properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements the 
useable and unusable reserves. 

7. From the date of our last management representation letter 
(30/11/2021) through the date of this letter we have disclosed to you any 
unauthorized access to our information technology systems that either 
occurred or to the best of our knowledge is reasonably likely to have 
occurred based on our investigation, including of reports submitted to us 
by third parties (including regulatory agencies, law enforcement agencies 
and security consultants) , to the extent that such unauthorized access to 
our information technology systems is reasonably likely to have a material 
impact to the financial statements, in each case or in the aggregate.

D. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with 
guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are 
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.  

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and 
claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related 
to litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed 
in Note 24 to the financial statements all guarantees that we have given 
to third parties. 

E. Going Concern 

1. Note 30 to the financial statements discloses all the matters of which we 
are aware that are relevant to the Council’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, including significant conditions and events, our plans for future 
action, and the feasibility of those plans.

F. Subsequent Events 

Management Representation Letter

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 100



45

Appendix B

Management representation letter

L. Retirement benefits

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate 
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 
scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All 
significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have 
been identified and properly accounted for.

M. Climate-related matters

1. We confirm that to the best of our knowledge all information that is relevant 
to the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of climate-
related matters has been considered and reflected in the financial 
statements.

1. The key assumptions used in preparing the financial statements are, to the 
extent allowable under the requirements of CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, aligned 
with the statements we have made in the other information or other public 
communications made by us.

J. Use of the Work of a Specialist

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate 
the valuation of property, plant and equipment and of investment 
property; and the valuation of the net pension liability and have 
adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining 
the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the 
underlying accounting records.  We did not give or cause any instructions 
to be given to the specialists with respect to the values or amounts 
derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware 
of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity 
of the specialists.

K. Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and 
Net Pension Liability Estimate (‘the Estimates’)

1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the estimates 
have taken into account all relevant information of which we are aware. 

2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions 
and data used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or 
used in making the estimates.

3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with 
respect to the estimates, including those describing estimation 
uncertainty, are complete and are reasonable in the context of the 
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2020/21.

4. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been 
applied in making the estimates.

5. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the estimates and 
disclosures in the financial statements, including due to the COVID-19 
pandemic.

Management Representation Letter

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 101



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 6

P
age 102



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

2020/21 
 
 

  

Page 102

Agenda Item 7

Page 103



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 2 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

CONTENTS 

 

 
 

  Page 

Narrative statement 3 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 19 

Audit opinion  20 

The accounting statements: 25 

 Comprehensive income and expenditure statement 27 

 Movement in reserves statement 29 

 Balance sheet 30 

 Cash flow statement 31 

Notes to the accounting statements 32 

Collection fund account 72 

 Notes to the collection fund account 73 

Statement of accounting policies 77 

Glossary of terms 93 

Annual governance statement 100 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council 
135 Eastern Avenue 
Milton Park 
Milton 
Abingdon 
Oxfordshire 
OX14 4SB 

  
Page 103

Agenda Item 7

Page 104



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 3 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Narrative statement 
Introduction 
 
This narrative statement provides a commentary on South Oxfordshire District Council’s (council) 
performance during 2020/21.  It is a guide to the council’s performance against key targets, the most 
significant matters reported in the accounts, an explanation in overall terms of the council’s financial 
position at the end of the financial year, and a commentary on the council’s future prospects.  This 
statement does not form part of the financial statements.   
 
To assist the reader, a glossary of financial terms is provided on pages 93-100.                                                                        
 
The council’s accounts 
 
The council’s Statement of Accounts (SoA) shows the financial results of the council’s activities for 
the year ended 31 March 2021 and summarises the overall financial position of the council as at 31 
March 2021.  It is prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom (“the 
code”).  The accounts have been compiled under International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS).   
 
In addition, the Annual Governance Statement sets out the purpose and nature of the council’s 
governance framework.  It also provides a review of the effectiveness of the governance framework 
and highlights any significant governance issues.  This statement is published as a separate 
document and is available on the council’s website. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104

Agenda Item 7

Page 105



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 4 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Introduction to South Oxfordshire district 
 

 
 

South Oxfordshire is the seventh most rural district in the south east region, with an average of 2.09 
persons per hectare.  Around 50 per cent of the population live in rural areas, outside the main towns 
of Didcot, Henley, Thame and Wallingford.1  Population in mid-2019 was 142,057; of this figure, 

 
1 This statistic has been produced by measuring the proportion of OAs (Output Areas) in MSOAs (Middle Layer Super Output Areas) in South 
Oxfordshire into ‘urban’ and ‘rural’ using the latest mid-year population estimates. 
Output Areas: OA is the lowest geographical level at which census estimates are provided and are built from clusters of adjacent unit postcodes but 
as they reflected the characteristics of the actual census data. 
Middle Layer Super Output Areas: are a geographic hierarchy designed to improve the reporting of small area statistics in England and Wales. 

Page 105

Agenda Item 7

Page 106



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 5 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

21.1 per cent (or 29,974 people) were aged 65 or over and 2.9 per cent (or 4,120 people) were aged 
85 or over.2   
 
In 2031, the Office for National Statistics projects an increase by 3 per cent to 146,3833 (an extra 
4,326 people).   It is expected that there will be 37,102 people aged 65+, comprising 25 per cent of 
the population.  There are also projected to be 6,485 people aged 85+ (4 per cent of the population); 
this growth in the very old (+54 per cent) is higher than the England growth (+35 per cent).   
 
Between 2001 and 2011, the total number of households in South Oxfordshire increased by 2,000 
(+4 per cent).  As of 2011, there were 54,104 occupied households in South Oxfordshire, 74 per 
cent of which were owned in full or with a mortgage.  The majority of this growth was in private 
rented households, which has increased reliance on the private rented sector.4  
 
COVID-19 pandemic has had an impact on employment across South Oxfordshire and the country: 
of the resident population aged 16+ in South Oxfordshire, 3.4 per cent claim out of work benefits 
compared to last year’s 1 per cent. However, this figure remained way below England’s average of 
6.4 per cent.5 
 
In 2019, the cheapest (lowest quartile) market housing in South Oxfordshire was 13.31 times a 
lowest quartile salary, and the South Oxfordshire ratio of lower quartile house prices to lower quartile 
earnings remains well above the England average of 7.27.6  This means that many people can’t 
afford to buy, and many young people need to move out of the district because the housing prices 
are high compared to salary.  
 
Much of the countryside in South Oxfordshire is protected from development by being part of the 
Oxford Green Belt or the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  These compounds 
the challenges of providing sufficient housing to meet identified need whilst protecting the natural 
environment. 
 

How performance is measured 
 
The council’s activities are guided by a four-year corporate plan for 2020-2024, and by fulfilling its 
statutory responsibilities. Key measures will be reviewed and reported via quarterly and annual 
corporate plane performance reports.  The reports will be subject to an input and approval process 
by the council’s senior management team, Scrutiny Committee, Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee and Cabinet and then published on the council’s website.  
 

The council corporate priorities 
 
The council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024 contains six strategic themes: 
 

• Protect and restore the natural world 

• Openness and accountability 

• Action on the climate emergency 

• Improved economic and community wellbeing 

• Homes and infrastructure that meet local needs 

• Investment and innovation that rebuilds its financial viability.  
 

 
2 2019-based small area population estimates 
3 2018-based subnational population projections 
4 Census 2011 
5 ONS Claimant count by sex and age, January 2021. 
6 Housing Affordability data for 2019 from ONS March 2020: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/ratioofhousepricetoworkplacebasedearningslowerquartileandmedian 

Page 106

Agenda Item 7

Page 107



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 6 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

The South Oxfordshire District Council Corporate Plan for 2020-2024, sets out what 
it hopes to achieve for South Oxfordshire over the next four years. Following a 
successful engagement with residents, the Council reviewed hundreds of responses which 
have informed the priorities that the council will deliver. The plan was adopted at a 
full council meeting in October 2020. 
 
Feedback from residents and partners was that the Council needed to focus on new 
priorities such as protecting the environment, mitigating the Climate Emergency and 
ensuring effective transparency and accountability. 
 
Although work is underway on these new themes, the Council is continuing to explore how 
best to effectively invest, resource and deliver these. During the development of 
the Plan, there was much uncertainty about the future of local government, both in 
terms of its structure and its financing, this uncertainty remains, and the Council is working 
to position itself to respond to the changing landscape it operates within. This 
has meant it has to prioritise what it wants to deliver. Some of the Corporate 
Plan projects have now been included in its budget for the year ahead, whilst others 
require more detailed scoping and consideration. 
 
The Plan was developed during the COVID-19 pandemic and reflects the need to 
focus on a sustainable recovery that prioritises community well-being and resilience 
as well as economic prosperity and will include an update going forward on its 
work to recover from the COVID-19 pandemic and monitoring the performance of the 
Plan. 
 

Covid-19 – community hub and roadmap 

The continuing impact of the pandemic on the Council’s performance can be seen in 
this report. The majority of councillors and officers continue to work from home, other 
than those whose work requires otherwise, in those cases the appropriate risk 
assessments are taken and government guidelines are followed. The Council is proud of 
the quick and efficient response delivered by its services to support its communities during 
this time. 
 
The Council is continuing to help residents and businesses. The Community Hub puts 
residents in touch with a network of volunteer groups and organisations to help with 
food, medicine and friendly phone calls. In urgent cases, support is available for 
food and prescription deliveries. A total of 397 food parcels have been delivered to 
residents since the start of the pandemic, and 498 medicine collections took place 
across both South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse. This builds on a range 
of information and advice available for the public and businesses on its website, 
such as how to book a vaccine and how to obtain financial support. 
 
As well as dedicating significant officer resource to the pandemic, including 
community testing, the council have also made its buildings available. Since 
Cornerstone Arts Centre closed its doors to the public in March last year, it has been 
home to the council’s food distribution service, helping to ensure hundreds of 
families received urgent food parcels. 
 
The Council is working with its partners at the county and district councils, local GPs and the 
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group on a COVID-19 vaccination outreach 
scheme. There are a range of reasons why people might not have responded to their 
invitation to arrange a vaccination - from difficulties in booking an appointment or 
arranging transport, to hesitancy or misunderstandings about the vaccine. Its 

Page 107

Agenda Item 7

Page 108



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 7 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

officers, will be providing the people they speak to with help to book an appointment, 
arrange transport, or simply offering information and advice in a format agreed with 
its NHS colleagues and using the feedback from residents and the outcomes of visits  
to help build up a detailed picture of why people may be not taking up the opportunity of 
vaccination. 
 
The Council hopes this outreach programme will be a valuable tool in ensuring that everyone 
who wants the vaccine can be supported to get it and that nobody gets left behind in 
the rollout of Oxfordshire’s vaccination programme. The outreach scheme has been 
recognised by Oxfordshire CCG and the NHS regional team as an exemplar piece of 
novel work that has increased uptake within its communities. 
 
The Council has also visited 268 people across South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White 
Horse who the NHS test and trace national system has been unable to reach. The 
employment of 2 Government funded COVID-19 Compliance Marshals has enabled 
us to encourage and support businesses to trade in a ‘COVID-19 secure’ manner, 
and to provide further advice to the public. So far, £41.3 million have been paid in 
financial support to businesses in South Oxfordshire, through a range of HM 
Government grant schemes. 
 
As part of the council’s initial response to the pandemic, each councillor was 
provided with £2,000 for them to spend directly to support communities trying to 
respond to the crisis. 
 
As the COVID-19 vaccination programme continues to progress well, the frame of 
thinking is moving to the medium/longer-term. The Oxfordshire Economic Recovery 
Plan has been developed and will soon be developing the councils plan, that will 
provide a route map for recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, and the impact it 
has had on its residents, the council and businesses. 
   
 

PROTECT AND RESTORE THE NATURAL WORLD 

In February 2021, an Ecological Emergency was declared by the Council to add 
further weight to its commitment to protect and restore the natural world. The 
declaration includes: 

 

• Changing the name of the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee (CEAC) to 
    the Climate and Ecological emergencies Advisory Committee (CEEAC). 
 

• Setting up a Biodiversity Working Group to identify and prioritise new nature 
protection and restoration initiatives across the council, including COVID-19 
recovery projects. 
 

• Appointing two Councillors as Tree Champions. 
 
An officer working group is developing a Tree Policy for consideration by council in 
July 2021 and undertaking engagement on plans to set up a county wide 
Local Nature Partnership to explore to further opportunities to enhance and restore 
its natural world. 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council has also agreed to take action to try and minimise 
light pollution in the district, a motion put forward set out the harmful impacts of light 

Page 108

Agenda Item 7

Page 109



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 8 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

pollution on human health and sleep, biodiversity and carbon emissions. It 
highlighted the need to provide infrastructure that ensures dark skies are possible 
and limits light pollution. The Council recognises the importance of the issue and has 
welcomed the work being undertaken by the All-Party Parliamentary Group on Dark 
Skies – including its ten policy recommendations for HM Government and is lobbying 
for them to be implemented. 
 
At this years’ Town and Parish Forum, there will be a workshop on the natural 
environment and a biodiversity talk from a local organisation who will share their 
advice on engaging with communities on protecting nature. The theme of the forum 
is called: ‘Climate Action – how to take action together’ and the aim is to gain 
feedback on its forthcoming climate action plan and explore joint working 
opportunities. 
 
 

CLIMATE EMERGENCY 

In April 2019 the Council declared a Climate Emergency which was followed by a 
pledge to become a carbon neutral council by 2025 and a carbon neutral district by 
2030. A Climate Action Plan for 2021-24 has been developed and annual climate 
action work programme approved. The Council has completed baseline reviews and 
scenario modelling to enable the development of a robust climate action plan. 
 
While the Covid-19 pandemic created many challenges in 2020/21, there were also 
some positive outcomes, including a reduction in the Council’s carbon emissions. 
The table below shows the key operational areas in which emissions reductions 
were made in the first three quarters of 2020/21 
 

South Oxfordshire CO2 emissions (tonnes) Quarter 1 to Quarter 3 2020/21 

 2019/20 2020/21 Change on 
2019/20 

% change on 
2019/20 

Leisure centres 923 
 

363 -560 -60.67% 

Council offices 67 
 

50 -17 -25.37% 

Cornerstone 78 
 

49 -29 -37.18% 

Staff mileage 24 
 

11 -13 -54.17% 

The leisure centre reductions can be attributed exclusively to closures due to Covid- 
19 related closures and restricted access. The sustained reductions will 
only be achieved through the implementation of decarbonisation projects. 
 
For office and staff related emissions there is an opportunity to consolidate some of 
the emissions reductions into longer term adjustments to working arrangements. 
Though it should be noted that carbon emission savings from the council buildings 
will have transferred to some extent to individual officer’s homes. 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council have secured county wide funding from Green Homes Grant 
Local Authority Delivery Scheme in February 2021. At least 150 homes across Oxfordshire will be 
made more energy efficient because of the successful county-wide bid for £1.5 
million of government funding. The county council will be working together with 
expected delivery partner the National Energy Foundation (NEF) to help less well-off 

Page 109

Agenda Item 7

Page 110



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 9 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

households retrofit their homes with energy saving equipment – cutting families’ fuel 
bills while at the same time helping to reduce the county’s carbon footprint. 
 
NEF, a registered charity with expertise in energy efficiency and fuel poverty, will 
work with the county’s five city and district councils (Cherwell, Oxford City, South 
Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse and West Oxfordshire) to identify properties that fit 
the criteria. 
 
Following feedback from the review into their operations, The Oxfordshire Growth 
Board has established an Environment Advisory Group to complement their work. 
This group will advise (i.e. non decision making) and provide strategic oversight of 
Growth Board work, provide a read across and challenge to ensure synergies 
between Oxfordshire strategies and develop proposals for addressing these strategic 
gaps lobbying for and gaining HM Government support for addressing 
environmentally issues for Oxfordshire at scale. The Leader of South Oxfordshire will 
Chair the advisory group and South Oxfordshire will also have a Cabinet Member 
representative on the group. It is anticipated that this group will join up with the 
Oxford Cambridge arc leaders group and its Senior Responsible Officer will be 
involved in the arc environment working group ensuring effective collaboration on 
both strategic programmes in Oxfordshire. 
 
Cabinet has endorsed the Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle (EV) Infrastructure Strategy to 
ensure that anyone wishing to buy an EV will have access to convenient charging 
facilities. A Park and Charge project will install EV chargers in 5 public car parks this 
year. 
 
The residents in South Oxfordshire are the second-best recyclers in England. South 
Oxfordshire recycles 64 per cent of its waste, this puts the district above the national 
recycling rate of 45.5 per cent and means it has consistently been in the top 
ten in the past five years. 
 
New website content on Climate Action has been launched to promote and raise 
awareness of the climate emergency and provide advice and support to residents 
and businesses. The Council has amended its decision-making templates to include 
climate and ecological implications to embed the Climate Emergency at the heart of 
its decision-making. This year’s Town & Parish Council Forum is titled ‘Climate 
Action – how can we take action together’ and will discuss how to work together on 
making the district carbon neutral by 2030. 
 

OPENNESS AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

The Council are developing a new Performance Management Framework to further 
enhance residents and partners ability to see progress on implementing its priorities 
set out in the Corporate Plan 2020-24 and recognise cross-departmental working 
ensuring that council departments work collaboratively to deliver best outcomes for 
residents. 
 
The Council has completely rebuilt and relaunched its websites to make them easier to use 
for everyone, including those who are new to interacting with the councils online and 
those who have accessibility challenges, like visual impairments. It has used 
direct and effective communications tools to keep all of its communities, staff, 
councillors, partner organisations and volunteer groups well-informed on a daily 
basis during the height of the pandemic. It has used highly engaging digital 

Page 110

Agenda Item 7

Page 111



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 10 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

communications to get across complex messages to both inform, educate and 
reassure the general public and other customers about the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Around 11,300 views of Council committee meetings for South Oxfordshire District  
Council and the Vale of White Horse District Council since they started online at 
the beginning of the pandemic. The High Court have now ruled on whether or not  
virtual committee meetings could continue, and the news is that ‘primary legislation’ 
is required to continue with this approach. The council returned to face-to-face committee 
meetings after the elections in May. 
 
HM Government are consulting on whether to legislate for virtual meetings in the 
future, having acknowledged the increased participation overall and the 
environmental benefits of this approach. 
 
Innovative communication methods to educate residents about day-today council  
work has been used, including providing an online educational recycling quiz, which  
more than 2,000 people took part in. 
 
A new post has been put in place for a senior officer to lead the improvement of its 
online and digital communication and engagement to ensure the councils don’t stand 
still, but continually innovate and develop how its communities interact with us. 
 
There have been 55 consultations carried out, surveys and other engagement projects. This 
includes 24 statutory consultations, and 12 pieces of internal engagement with staff 
and councillors. 
 
Over 1,700 people responded to its public consultation on the Corporate Plan 
proposals for both South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse District Councils, 
which helped shape the councils’ key priorities for the next four years, by far the 
most responses to a Corporate Plan consultation for at least 10 years. 
Consultation and engagement work helped shape and ratify updated and 
amended council policies, including statutory documents like its Off-Street Parking 
Orders and its Statement of Community Involvement for Planning. 
 
The Council is using feedback to help shape the some of the councils’ response to Covid-19 
too, by carrying out a Lockdown Lifestyle survey with its Active Communities team, 
in which nearly 1,800 respondents told us how the first lockdown affected their 
physical and mental health. 
 
Furthermore, continuing use technology to engage with partners including through  
Didcot Garden Town Parish Councils Sounding Board to and a Town and Parish Council  
virtual tour and climate change session. 
 
The Council has also introduced external consultation tracking mechanisms earlier 
this year as a part of its aim to give greater strategic oversight and make sure we 
are having as much influence as we can. The council responds to consultations on 
proposed changes in policy and operations from a number of different sources. 
 
Adding increased co-ordination and tracking to this work will ensure the council can 
best make their voice heard, whether strengthening its voice by exploring joint 
submissions or working more closely with the Local Government Association and 
District Council Network where preparing a submission and help to decide whether 
there is adequate value in responding to some consultations at all. 
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 7

Page 112



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 11 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Souh Oxfordshire District Council has responded to 9 non statutory consultations across 
a range of issues, including the National Planning Policy Framework and National Model  
Design Code, Local Transport Connectivity Plan and the future of the New Homes Bonus  
Funding consultation. We are also currently developing a Grants Policy to support the  
corporate plan and encourage diversification of funding streams for voluntary and community 
sector groups. 
 

IMPROVED ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING 

South Oxfordshire has a large number of small and micro businesses and is well 
placed to adapt to changes in the economy, but support will be needed for it to 
remain a healthy and vibrant place to live and work. The pandemic has shown the 
strength of the community but there are areas of isolation and deprivation in its 
district, and the benefits of access to culture, leisure and community for all has been 
made clear. 
 
Didcot and the Science Vale area (including part of neighbouring Vale of White 
Horse District) have been a focus for a significant amount of housing and business 
growth and work to attract high-tech and design-based business into the area, and 
to support its Small- and Medium-sized Enterprises (SMEs) to grow. The first 
enterprise zone, EZ1, covering Milton Park and Harwell, is performing strongly. Its 
second Enterprise Zone, EZ2, covers a number of sites in South Oxfordshire, 
including a portion of the former Didcot power station site and the Southmead sites. 
It has been in place since 2016, and is seeing some early wins in terms of inward 
investment and some large businesses moving in. Although very few of these sites 
are in South Oxfordshire, they form part of the wider Science Vale and Didcot growth 
areas and bring jobs and infrastructure improvements to the local economy. 
Improvements to infrastructure which are partially funded by the Enterprise Zones, 
such as the Milton Interchange, bring benefits directly to South Oxfordshire 
residents. 
 
Since the outbreak of the pandemic, its COVID -19 response has been integral to 
supporting businesses and communities in the district. The Community Hub has 
supported hundreds of residents across the district whilst also encouraging patients 
who have been invited for a vaccine and not accepted the offer. So far, a total of 
£40.4 million have been paid in financial support to businesses in South Oxfordshire, 
through a range of HM Government grant schemes. The work on the Oxfordshire 
and local Economic Recovery Plan will provide an economic route map for recovery 
from the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Work has commenced on the concept of healthy place-shaping to create sustainable 
well-designed communities where healthy behaviours are the norm. The Council will develop 
a collaborative policy and influencing framework to wrap around and support local 
areas and continue to attend the Oxfordshire Health Improvement Board and 
Oxfordshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to ensure the council aligns 
and contributes to health and wellbeing in its broader sense. 
 
The Council’s Didcot Garden Town Team have implemented a range of activity to promote 
healthy living, including an arts and culture map trail project, Science Vale Cycle 
Network (SVCN) improvements making connectivity easier between the surrounding 
employment centres and key urban areas, a Pop Up spaces project and the 
introduction of Street Tag - a fun, free smartphone app that offers rewards for 
exercise. Through an Active Communities Team, it has offered an out-reach to promote 

Page 112

Agenda Item 7

Page 113



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 12 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

activity across the district, for example organising health walks, when Covid-19 
restrictions have allowed. 
 
Following government advice that leisure centres can start to reopen South 
Oxfordshire and their leisure contractor GLL, which runs the Better leisure centres 
across the districts, have agreed on a phased approach to re-opening. The councils’ 
have already resumed some of their outdoor sessions, such as Nordic Walking, and 
these are also following strict Covid-19 rules. In line with the government restrictions 
the council will also take a phased approach to re-opening their outdoor pool, at 
Riverside in Wallingford. Last year both pools remained shut as a result of the 
lockdown restrictions. The current plan is to open the pools for the summer season. 
This is subject to continued progress towards the government’s roadmap out of 
lockdown. 
 
Though by carrying out a Lockdown Lifestyle survey with an Active Communities 
team, in which nearly 1,800 respondents responded how the first lockdown affected their 
physical and mental health and the way residents want to keep active has changed and  
work will be done to incorporate this feedback. 
 
Work is also underway with local partners to transfer civil parking enforcement 
responsibility from Thames Valley Police to the district. 
 
All of community centres on Great Western Park have now opened. The 
Northern, District and Southern centres, two of which are brand new buildings, and 
are now available for residents and groups to hire with priority bookings given to 
groups helping to support Covid-19 responses. 
 
Last year, the district councils took over the District and Southern centres from 
Taylor Wimpey and, during lockdown, have modified them to ensure they comply 
with health and safety regulations, and work has been carried out on all three 
centres to introduce all the necessary Covid-19 safety measures. 
 
Changes to the way the council spends Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funds  
which will mean that money secured from housing developments in the district will  
be released for projects that make a significant difference to communities and help  
fulfil the strategies outlined in the corporate plan 2020-24. 
 
As part of its commitments to help the districts become carbon neutral, the council has 
struck up a-new partnership to help local businesses reduce their carbon footprint. 
It is aiming for an ambitious net-zero target in South Oxfordshire, and businesses have  
an important role to play in achieving this goal. As strategic partners, the council will be  
working with Oxfordshire Greentech to help connect businesses with specialist suppliers, 
customers and support organisations, and access funding streams and networking  
opportunities to help them minimise their emissions and impact on the environment.  
The councils’ South and Vale Business Support team will be partnering with the countywide 
network organisation to host events to show businesses how they can recycle more and  
reduce waste, how to incorporate sustainable procurement in their processes and to build in 
sustainability training. 
 
The council has a long history of supporting communities to help themselves through grant 
funding for projects. 
 
 

Page 113

Agenda Item 7

Page 114



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 13 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

HOMES AND INFRASTRUCTURE THAT MEET LOCAL NEEDS 

Because of the high demand for housing, the attractive and accessible nature of its 
district, and the high house prices, its key challenge on housing is to facilitate the 
delivery of new housing and achieve an appropriate mix of housing to meet local 
need. 
 
Following the submission of its Local Plan 2034 in March 2019, the new 
administration (May 2019) sought to review it. However, the Secretary of State 
imposed a Direction on the council in March 2020 to progress the Local Plan 2034 
through the examination process to adoption by December 2020. 
 
During the year,1300 new homes have been built in the district, compared to 1,326 
in 2019/20; completion of affordable homes is down in 2020/1 to 217 compared to 
517 in 2019/20 
 
Going forward, South Oxfordshire have agreed to develop a future joint Local Plan 
for the area to reduce costs and help the councils’ meet their ambitious targets for 
making the two districts carbon neutral. 
 
Local Plans are used to help determine planning applications and set out how and 
where new housing developments should take place, along with identifying the 
infrastructure needed to support them. They also set out policies on what kind of 
housing is appropriate and acceptable; what the local requirements for affordable 
housing are; and can even set requirements on the energy-efficiency levels of new 
developments. 
 
Both councils have committed to do everything they can to address the climate and 
ecological emergency, and officers advised that the consensus on these issues 
makes this a rare opportunity to create a joint Local Plan. 
 
The advantages include the planning issues in the two districts are quite similar, like 
the need for carbon reduction, affordable housing and new and improved 
infrastructure, and so a joint plan would be able to address these issues in a coordinated way. 
 
There will also be cost savings by producing one plan for both districts because 
there would be one set of evidence studies, one local plan examination and one 
Planning Inspector not two. 
 
After the first two good progress towards the targets in all parts of the Oxfordshire Housing  
and Growth Deal, though the COVID-19 pandemic is having a significant impact on growth  
and development which prompted a review of all areas of activity. It is still anticipated that the 
Oxford to Cambridge Arc will be a major government focus for economic recovery. 
 
 
In March 2021, South Oxfordshire building control service was awarded the quality 
mark ISO 9001 for their provision of public sector building control and public 
protection services. 
 
Building control is a service that checks that structures and buildings are constructed 
or modified to meet Building Regulations standards to make sure that the minimum 
standards to protect people’s safety, health and welfare in and around buildings can 
be achieved. 

Page 114

Agenda Item 7

Page 115



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 14 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
An important part of their work is to help improve energy efficiency, protect and 
enhance the environment and promote sustainable development. 
 
This quality mark is a fantastic achievement for its building control team and 
demonstrates its commitment to providing a quality service for residents. Ensuring 
the safety of all building work, whether on its homes, public buildings or commercial 
properties is a vital role for the communities it serves. 
 
Its Planning Service are also reviewing its adopted design guide (2016). This will 
help further improve the quality of new development and to mitigate climate change. 
The Climate Emergency Advisory Committee are involved in this project and have 
provided some recommendations to officers. 
 
The council has done this by proactively engaging with customers at the earliest point and 
through positive partnerships with other agencies. These include Citizens Advice 
Bureau and Connection Floating Support, who provide debt and welfare advice to 
enable customers to remain in their own homes. using Enhanced Housing  
Options – an online assessment tool to help customers address their housing issues. 
Customers who do not have access to a computer are able to telephone a member 
of the housing team who will guide them through the process. 
 
As of 31 March 2021 4 households were in emergency temporary accommodation; the  
rolling six-month average of households in emergency temporary accommodation was 5.7 . 
The rolling six-month average length of stay for households in emergency temporary 
accommodation was 50 days compared to a central government ceiling target of 42 days. 
 
The council has also made good progress on developing its council homes delivery vehicle 
and have undertaken an appraisal of options that sets out the specific levers and characteristics 
that may be available to us. 
 

Investment and innovation that rebuilds the councils financial viability 

At the time of developing the Corporate Plan 2020-24 the pandemic has cost, and 
lost, the council money. Many years of austerity before that, as well as a failure to 
increase council tax in line with growing costs, makes it hard to balance the books. 
 
Over a number of years, the council has made significant savings through joint 
working, especially with its close partner the Vale of White Horse District Council, 
with whom it has saved costs on staffing, contracts and office accommodation. 
This type of innovative joint working, along with sound financial management, has 
helped to keep costs down and meant that it is able to keep the cost of council 
tax to residents low. 
 
In recent years the level of council tax has been kept low, from £123 for a band ‘D’ 
property in 2011/12 to £131.24 2021/22. This is the eighth lowest of all shire district 
councils. 
 
It measures a number of key income streams, to ensure that both maximising income and 
understanding early where external factors might impact on budgets. During 2020/21: 

 

• Planning income totalled £2.35million against a budget of £1.57 million, this 
compared to income of £1.54 million in 2019/20. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 7

Page 116



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 15 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

• Land charges income totalled £330k compared to £281k in the previous year. 
 

• Car parking income totalled £688k compared to £965k in the previous year. 
 

•  The New Homes Bonus paid to the council for 2021/22 will be £2.55million, 
compared to an average of £1.11 million, putting it eighteenth out of all 181 
shire district councils. 

 
Its Council Tax collection rate of 98.28 per cent put it joint 57th with two other 
councils when ranked against all 188 shire district councils existing at end March 
2020 (the latest national data available). 
 
The development of its innovative Transformation Strategy will diversify its revenue 
streams, improve effectiveness and secure on-going viability. It is exploring 
scope for improved IT systems including for finance, accounting and payment 
solutions. These will improve efficiencies, leverage digital opportunities and meet 
requirements for modern government and planning processes. Its ResolvIS project 
will provide further automation of the revenues & benefits service and greater self-service for 
customers and improve operational efficiency and user experience. It is also exploring new 
revenue streams including for renewable energy and other land projects, such as exploring 
revenue generation opportunities from a Wind Solar Farm. 
 
The councils new corporate focus on securing external funding will be implemented 
through the further development of its External Funding Framework. This 
framework builds on its track record of partnership working to successfully secure 
external funding such as the £218 million of Housing Infrastructure Funding (HIF) 
which is being used to improve local transport links. 
 
Its Strategic Property Review, development of an enhanced property and asset 
records and databases, along with its One Public Estate project will embed strong 
stewardship of all council assets including property and financial investments. The 
Strategic Property Review has taken longer than anticipated as its surveyors have 
been reviewing all of its assets thoroughly and also looking for any opportunities for 
environmental upgrades. 
 
Financial Performance 2020/21 
 

The paragraphs below show the council’s financial performance for 2020/21 in the following areas: 

 

• revenue expenditure; 
 

• capital expenditure; and 
 

• treasury management activities. 

It also discusses the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for the year and 

its balance sheet at the end of the year. 

 

Revenue outturn 2020/21 

 

The council’s funding requirement for 2020/21, including parish precepts, was £15.6 million, after 
accounting for the use of reserves and investment income.  Direct Service Expenditure for the 

Page 116

Agenda Item 7

Page 117



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 16 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

year was £6.4 million below budget as shown in the table below, analysed across the council’s 
service areas 
 

Service expenditure 
Budget 

£000 
Actual 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Corporate Management Team 995 836 (159) 

Corporate Services 4,901 4,101 (800) 

Development & Regeneration 4,023 935 (3,088) 

Finance 419 593 174 

Housing & Environment 7,185 5,941 (1,244) 

Legal Services 1,086 977 (109) 

Partnership & Insight 3,369 3,221 (148) 

Planning 2,253 976 (1,276) 

Partnerships 706 534 (173) 

Managed Vacancy Factor (78) 0 78 

Contingency (2,939) (2,589) 350 

Direct service expenditure 21,920 15,525 (6,395) 

Interest (2,583) (2,474) 108 

Government grant income (2,747) (2,747) (0) 

Transfer to/from reserves (6,537) (6,428) 108 

Net revenue spend 10,053 3,876 (6,179) 

Transfer of Surplus to Reserves       

Net revenue spend   6,178 
 

6,178 

Government Funding 0 1,378 1,378 

Budget requirement set by council 10,053 11,432 1,377 

Parish precepts 5,524 5,524 0 

Total funding requirement 15,577 16,956 
 

1,377  

Rural Service Delivery Grant (RSDG) 42 42 0 

Council tax income 12,827 13,222 396 

Retained business rates 2,709 3,692 983 

Total funding 15,578 16,956 1,377 

    

 
Of the £6.2 million net revenue underspend above, £3.8 million represents slippage in one-off 
budgets that have been carried forward to 2021/22.  The largest carry forwards are in 
Development and Regeneration and include £1.4 million for the Didcot Garden Town and 
Gateway and £1.3 million for the Berinsfield Regeneration project.  
 
 
Capital outturn 2020/21 
 
Capital expenditure totalled £2.3 million in 2020/21 and was £1.8 million below the working 
budget. Material capital expenditure projects include over £0.8 million in disabled facilities grants, 
over £0.3 million in housing act works and £0.4 million in grants to local organisations.   
 
The main source of funding for the programme was the council’s own reserves with the balance 
made up by government grants and other contributions.  
 

Page 117

Agenda Item 7

Page 118



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 17 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Further details on both revenue and capital expenditure for 2020/21 will be considered in an 
outturn report to Scrutiny Committee in October 2021. 
 
Treasury Management 2020/21 
 
In accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy, by actively managing its investments, the 
council earned interest and investment income of £2.5 million against a budget of £2.6 million.  Of 
this income, £0.6 million represents dividends accumulated on the council’s unit trust holdings, 
which are distributed as additional units. The remaining income will fund revenue expenditure 
during 2021/22. 
 
Further details on treasury management for 2020/21 will be provided in an outturn report for  
consideration in September 2021 by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and Cabinet, 
and by Council in October 2021. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 2020/21 
 
The CIES presents the council’s income and expenditure for the year based on accounting 
standards, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  Councils raise taxation to cover 
expenditure in accordance with regulations, but this is different to the accounting cost.  These 
adjustments are detailed in notes 2 to 5. After the total financing from government grants and 
local taxpayers of £31.1 million, the council had a surplus on provision of services of £6.9 million.   
 
This surplus is then adjusted for items, that are not expected to materialise for many years due to 
their nature, to produce the total comprehensive income and expenditure figure for the year 
which is a deficit of £8.3 million.  This figure corresponds to the total movement on the balance 
sheet for the year. 
 
Balance Sheet  
 
The reported net worth of the council decreased from £162.2 million to £151.3 million at 31 March 
2021, a decrease of £8.9 million due mainly to the increase in the pension deficit of £17.8 million 
offset by an increase in grants received of £8 million.  
 
Revenue reserves have increased by £8.1 million due to the receipt of grant income. The capital 
receipts reserve has fallen by £0.1 million during the year due to funding for capital expenditure 
exceeding receipts. The capital grants reserve has increased by £7.5 million, primarily due to £6 
million in year receipts of CIL. Unusable reserves have decreased by £23.8 million principally due 
to the increase in the pension deficit.   
 
 
Collection Fund 
 
The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation of billing 
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund.  The statement shows the transactions of the 
billing authority in relation to the collection from local taxpayers of council tax and Non-Domestic 
Rates (NDR) and its distribution to precepting bodies.  For the council, the major council tax 
precepting bodies are Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Thames Valley. 
 
On council tax, income of £119 million was received and £117.8 million was paid out in precepts 
and demands.  After taking the provision for bad debts and balance brought forward into account, 
the surplus on the council tax collection fund balance at the end of the year was £3.1 million.  
This will be re-distributed to all major precepting authorities. 

Page 118

Agenda Item 7

Page 119



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 18 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
On Non-Domestic Rates (NDR), £28.9 million was received and £44 million was paid out to the 
council, central government and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC).  After taking the balance 
brought forward, provision for bad debts and the provision for appeals into account, the deficit on 
the NDR collection fund balance at the end of the year was £19.5 million.  This will be shared 
between the council, central government and OCC, the SODC share being £8.1 million.  
 
Future prospects 
 
As part of the annual budget setting process for 2021/22, council agreed both its Medium-Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) for 2021/22 to 2025/26.  The MTFP provides a forward budget model for 
the next five years, highlighting known estimated budget pressures for new responsibilities and 
changes in legislation, predicted investment and capital receipts. 
 
The MTFP highlights significant challenges ahead for the council.  This reflects the fact that 
revenue expenditure is expected to exceed revenue income each year. In light of the reserves 
and balances available to the council, it can set a balanced revenue budget during the MTFP 
period by drawing heavily on reserves.   
 
Although the budget is sustainable across the MTFP period it is not sustainable beyond the 
medium term based on current projections of government funding.  These projections are 
themselves subject to uncertainty pending further information on the outcome of the fair funding 
review, the review of New Homes Bonus, and the spending review.  To identify ways to address 
the projected funding shortfall the council will carry out a thorough review of its Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) when there is greater certainty around future government funding, and 
in the next few years will take steps to reduce the gap between its income and its expenditure to 
ensure its longer term financial viability. 
  
As part of budget setting for 2021/22, council also agreed a capital programme to 2025/26 
costing £54.5 million.  This will be funded from a combination of the council’s usable capital 
receipts and other contributions.   
 
Impact of COVID-19 
 
The pandemic has had a significant impact on the Council. It has considered the impact on the 
Council’s finances (see note 32 on page 69). 
 
 
 
 
 
Simon Hewings 
Head of finance and Deputy Section 151 Officer  
24 May 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 119

Agenda Item 7

Page 120



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 19 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 
 

1. The authority's responsibilities 
 

The authority is required to: 
 

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 
arrangements.  In this council, that officer is the head of finance and chief finance 
officer;  

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; and 

• approve the statement of accounts. 
 

2. Responsibilities of the chief finance officer 
 
The chief finance officer’s responsibilities include the preparation of the council's statement 
of accounts, which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 
accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) is required to present a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the council at the accounting date and its income and expenditure 
for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

 
In preparing this statement of accounts, the chief finance officer has: 

 

• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently 

• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 

• complied with the local authority code. 
 
The chief finance officer has also: 
 

• kept proper accounting records which were up to date 

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 

I certify that this statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the authority at 31 March 2021 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 
31 March 2021. 

 

 
 

       Simon Hewings 
       Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer  
       24 May 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 120

Agenda Item 7

Page 121



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 20 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE 
DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the financial statements of South Oxfordshire District Council for the year ended 
31 March 2021 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements 
comprise the: 
 

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,  

• Movement in Reserves Statement,  

• Balance Sheet,  

• Cash Flow Statement 

• the related notes 1 to 32 

• Collection Fund Account and the related notes 1 to 3 
 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21. 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of South Oxfordshire District Council as at 
31 March 2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21. 

 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of 
the authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor General’s 
(C&AG) AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Head of Finance & Section 151 
Officer ’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the 
authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period to March 2024 from when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer with 
respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.  However, because 

Page 121

Agenda Item 7

Page 122



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 21 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the 
authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
Other information 
 
The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  The Head of Finance & Section 151 
Officer is responsible for the other information contained within the Statement of Accounts. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the 
extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.  
 
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in 
the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is 
a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are 
required to report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Matters on which we report by exception 
 
We report to you if: 

• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent with other 
information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the Council; 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; 

• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;  

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to 
law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014; 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; 

• we are not satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 
2021.  

 
We have nothing to report in these respects  
 
Responsibility of the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer  
Responsibilities set out on page 17 the  Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer is responsible for 
the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in 
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and for being satisfied that they give a true 
and fair view and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 

Page 122

Agenda Item 7

Page 123



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 22 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer is responsible for 
assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority 
either intends to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, 
and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.  
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.   

 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including 
fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not 
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, 
forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.   The extent to which our 
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the 
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with 
governance of the entity and management.  
 

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the 
authority and determined that the most significant are:  
• Local Government Act 1972,  
• Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance 

Act 1992),  
• The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 as 

amended in 2018 and 2020,  
• Planning Act 2008 and the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/948)  
• The Local Government Finance Act 2012, 
• The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and 
• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

 
In addition, the council has to comply with laws and regulations in the areas of anti-bribery and 
corruption, data protection, employment Legislation, tax Legislation, general power of 
competence, procurement and health & safety.  
 
We understood how South Oxfordshire District Council is complying with those frameworks by 
understanding the incentive, opportunities and motives for non-compliance, including inquiring of 
management, head of internal audit and those charged with governance and obtaining and 
reading documentation relating to the procedures in place to identify, evaluate and comply with 
laws and regulations, and whether they are aware of instances of non-compliance. We 
corroborated this through our reading of the authority’s committee minutes, through enquiry of 
employees to confirm authority policies, and through the inspection of other information. Based on 

Page 123

Agenda Item 7

Page 124



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 23 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws 
and regulations. Our procedures had a focus on compliance with the accounting framework 
through obtaining sufficient audit evidence in line with the level of risk identified and with relevant 
legislation. 

 
We assessed the susceptibility of the /authority’s financial statements to material misstatement, 
including how fraud might occur by understanding the potential incentives and pressures for 
management to manipulate the financial statements, and performed procedures to understand the 
areas in which this would most likely arise. Based on our risk assessment procedures, we 
identified improper recognition of revenue and expenditure (through the inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue expenditure) and management override of controls to be our fraud risks.  
 
To address our fraud risk of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure we tested the 
authority’s capitalised expenditure to ensure the capitalisation criteria were properly met and the 
expenditure was genuine.  

 
To address our fraud risk of management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of 
journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making 
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of 
any identified significant transactions that were unusual or outside the normal course of business.  
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 
the Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
 

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 

of resources 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to 
the guidance on the specified reporting criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General 
(C&AG) in April 2021, as to whether the South Oxfordshire District Council had proper 
arrangements for financial sustainability, governance and improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as those necessary 
for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether South 
Oxfordshire Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2021. 
 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in 
all significant respects, South Oxfordshire District Council had put in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy 
ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources.  
 
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 
operating effectively.  
 

Delay in certification of completion of the audit  

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed the 
work necessary to issue our assurance statement in respect of the Authority’s Whole of 

Page 124

Agenda Item 7

Page 125



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 24 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Government Accounts consolidation pack. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material 
effect on the financial statements or our work on value for money arrangements. 
 
 

Use of our report 
 
This report is made solely to the members of South Oxfordshire District Council, as a body, in 
accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, 
as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 
published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than South Oxfordshire District Council 
and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed. 
 
 
 
 
Kevin Suter (Key Audit Partner) 
Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor) 
Southampton 
[Date] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125

Agenda Item 7

Page 126



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 25 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Core financial statements 

The following pages show the council’s core financial statements, and the notes to the accounts. 

The core statements are as follows: 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) (page 27-28).  This shows the 

accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  Authorities raise taxation 

(council tax) to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 

accounting cost.  The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.   

Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) (page 29).  The MiRS shows the movement from the 

start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable 

reserves’ (i.e. expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. It shows how 

the movements in year of the authority’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses 

incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory 

adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. The net 

increase/decrease line shows the statutory general fund balance in the year following those 

adjustments. 

Balance Sheet (BS) (page 30). This shows the value (as at the balance sheet date) of the assets 

and liabilities recognised by the council.  The net assets of the council (being assets less liabilities) 

are matched by the reserves held by the council.  Reserves are reported in two categories.  The 

first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those that the council may use to provide 

services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations 

on their use (e.g. the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or 

repay debt).  The second category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and 

losses (e.g. the revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide 

services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the MiRS line 

‘adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

Cash Flow Statement (CFS) (page 31).  This shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of 

the council during the reporting period.  The statement shows how the authority generates and 

uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing 

activities.  The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the 

extent to which the operations of the council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or 

from the recipients of services provided by the council.  Investing activities represent the extent to 

which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 

council’s future service delivery.  Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in 

predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (e.g. borrowing) to the council.            

Notes to the core financial statements (pages 32-71).  The core statements are supported by 

comprehensive notes to the accounts. 

Accounting policies (pages 77-100). These are the accounting policies adopted in compiling the 

council’s accounting statements which explain the basis on which the figures in the accounts have 

been prepared. 

 

Page 126

Agenda Item 7

Page 127



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 26 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Supplementary financial statements 

In addition to core financial statements and notes the council, as an authority that issues council 

tax and business rates bills, maintains a separate income and expenditure account, the collection 

fund, showing transactions in relation to this income and how the demands on the fund from 

central government, Oxfordshire County Council, Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames 

Valley and town and parish councils have been satisfied.  This is shown on pages 73 to 76. 

 

 

 

 

Page 127

Agenda Item 7

Page 128



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 27 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

Comprehensive income and expenditure statement  
       

2019/20 Restated    2020/21 

Exp Inc Net 
 

Exp Inc Net 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

1,264 (420) 844 Strategic Management 
Board 

1,513 (527) 985 

6,640 (1,956) 4,684 Corporate Services 5,718 (1,349) 4,369 

6,215 (2,423) 3,792 Development and 
Regeneration 

6,771 (2,889) 3,882 

21,298 (21,446) (148) Finance 22,232 (21,576) 656 

12,807 (5,903) 6,904 Housing and Environment  14,153 (6,641) 7,512 

2,587 (1,106) 1,481 Legal and Democratic  2,002 (882) 1,120 

3,701 (45) 3,656 Partnership and Insight  3,393 (164) 3,230 

6,682 (3,888) 2,794 Planning 6,622 (4,929) 1,693 

459 (183) 276 Policy & Programme  1,428 (757) 670 

61,652 (37,372) 24,280 Cost of services 63,832 (39,714) 24,117 

5,144 0 5,144 Parish council precepts and 
other grants 

5,524  5,524 

5,144 0 5,144 Other operating 
expenditure 

5,524 0 
 

5,524 

0 (2,408) (2,408) Interest receivable and 
similar income 

 (1,886) (1,886) 

0 (863) (863) Other investment income 
(dividends) 

 (727) (727) 

  (391) (391) Other investment income 
(long leases) 

 (322) (322) 

3,132  3,132 (Surplus)/Deficit on Financial 
Instruments valued through 
P&L 

 (2,397) (2,397) 

75 (1,433) (1,359) Income and expenditure in 
relation to investment 
properties 

304 (1,496) (1,192) 

1,518 0 1,518 Net Interest on defined 
benefit liability 

1,034  1,034 

4,725 (5,094) (369) Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 

1,338 (6,828) (5,490) 

0 (8,763) (8,763) Recognised capital grants 
and contributions 

 (8,799) (8,799) 

   Covid Grant   (2,589) (2,589) 

0 (12,514) (12,514) Council tax  (13,222) (13,222) 

0 (19,118) (19,118) Retained business rates  (20,082) (20,082) 

16,200 0 16,200 Business rates tariff 16,390  16,390 

0 (1,981) (1,981) Non-ringfenced government 
grants 

 (2,790) (2,790) 

16,200 (42,376) (26,176) Taxation and non-specific 
grant income 

16,390 (47,482) (31,092) 

 
 
                                                       

                                                                                                                                         Continued…  

Page 128

Agenda Item 7

Page 129



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 28 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

*The 2019/20 cost of services figures have been restated following a restructure.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Movement in reserves statement 

Continued 

87,721 (84,842) 2,879  (Surplus)/deficit on 
provision of services 

87,084 (90,024) (6,940) 

  
 

0 Total (Gain)/loss on 
revaluation of non-current 
assets 

 89 89 

  (21,219) (21,219) Remeasurement of net 
defined benefit liability 

15,153  15,153 

    (21,219) Total other comprehensive 
income and expenditure 

15,153 89 15,242 

    (18,340) Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

102,237 (93,935) 8,302 

Page 129

Agenda Item 7

Page 130



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 29 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

 

For the year ended 31 March 2020 

 

 
The general fund balance includes earmarked revenue reserves which have been disclosed separately in prior years. 

Transfers between these two funds are detailed in note 6.  

  General Capital Capital Total Unusable Total 

  fund receipts grants usable reserves authority 

  Balance reserve unapplied Reserves   reserves 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance - 31 Mar 2020 (55,440) (30,831) (39,886) (126,157) (33,467) (159,624) 

Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure  

(6,940) 0 0 (6,940) 15,241 8,301 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
regulations (note 5) 

(1,170) 61 (7,485) (8,594) 8,594 
 

0 

Net increase/decrease 
before transfers to other 
reserves 

(8,110) 61 (7,485) (15,534) 23,834 8,301 

Transfers to/from other 
reserves 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Increase/decrease 
(movement) in year 

(8,108) 61 (7,485) (15,532) 23,834 8,301 

Balance - 31 Mar 2021 (63,548) (30,770) (47,371) (141,689) (9,632) (151,323) 

  
General 

fund 
balance 

Capital 
receipts 
reserve 

Capital 
grants 

unapplied 

Total 
usable 

reserves 

Unusable 
reserves 

Total 
authority 
reserves 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance - 31 Mar 2019 (57,584) (31,280) (32,481) (121,344) (19,940) (141,284) 
Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure  

2,879 0 0 2,879 (21,219) (18,340) 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and funding 
basis under regulations (note 
5) 

737 449 (7,405) (7,693) 7,693 0 

Net increase/decrease 
before transfers to other 
reserves 

2,142 449 (7,405) (4,815) (13,526) (18,340) 

Transfers to/from other 
reserves 

0 0 0  0  (0) 0 

Increase/decrease 
(movement) in year 

2,142 
  

449 (7,405) (4,815) (13,526) (18,340) 

Balance - 31 Mar 2020 (55,440) (30,831) (39,886) (126,157) (33,467) (159,624) 

Page 130

Agenda Item 7

Page 131



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 30 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Balance sheet 

31 March 
2020 

  31 March 2021   

£000    £000  £000  Notes 

33,224  Property, plant & equipment  33,808 6  

7,763 Investment Property   8,067 7 

20 Intangible assets  124   

42,905 Long term investments  26,306 8  

27,483 Long term debtors   25,906 9  

111,395 Long term assets  94,211   

97,833 Short term investments 128,253  8 

21,443 Short term debtors 22,729  9  

9,021 Cash and cash equivalents 11,188  10  

128,297 Current assets  162,170   

(24,426) Short term creditors (30,498)  12  

(3,119) Provisions  (3,361)  13 

(8,337) Capital grants receipts in advance (9,245)    

(35,882) Current liabilities  (43,104)   

        

(44,187) Long term Liabilities  (61,956) 18f 

        

159,623 Net assets  151,321   

(40,819) Non-earmarked revenue reserves (57,335)    

(14,621) Earmarked revenue reserves (6,213)    

(30,831) Usable capital receipts reserve (30,770)    

(39,886) Capital grants unapplied (47,371)    

(126,157) Usable reserves  (141,689) See 
MIRS 

(11,219) Revaluation reserve (11,110)  14a 

905 Financial instrument revaluation 
reserve 

(1,492)  14b 

(39,839) Capital adjustment account  (40,939)  14c 

44,187 Pensions reserve 61,956  14d 

(27,575) Deferred capital receipts reserve  (25,998)  14e 

(114) Collection Fund Adjustment Account 7,762  14f 

188 Short-term accumulating compensated 
absences 

188  14g 

(33,467) Unusable reserves  (9,633)   
 

      

(159,624) Total reserves  (151,322)   

     

  

Page 131

Agenda Item 7

Page 132



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 31 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Cash flow statement 

 

2019/20   2020/21 Notes 

£'000   £'000   

 (2,879)  Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services 6,941   

6,355  Adjust net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 
for non-cash movements 

723 

  
(8,763) Adjust for items included in the net surplus or (deficit) on 

the provision of services that are investing and financing 
activities 

(8,799) 

  

(5,287) Net Cash flows from operating activities  (1,135)   

 Investing Activities    
(356) Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets 
(746) 

  
(105,521) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments  

(108,500)   
0 Other payments for investing activities (55)   

310 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 

0 

  
99,500 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 96,639   
12,759 Other receipts from investing activities 11,337   

6,692 Total Investing Activities (1,326)   

  Financing Activities    

37 Billing authorities - council tax and NDR adjustments 4,628    
Total Financing Activities    

1,443 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,167   

 7,578 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

9,021 

  

9,021 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 
period 

11,188 10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 132

Agenda Item 7

Page 133



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 32 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Notes to the accounts 2020/21 

1. Statement of accounting policies 

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices  
applied by the council in preparing and presenting these financial statements.  These can be 
reviewed in detail on pages 80-95.  

2. Expenditure and funding analysis 

The expenditure and funding analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from 
resources (government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in 
comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making 
purposes between the council’s directorates/services/departments. Income and expenditure 
accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

2019/20 Restated   2020/21 

N
e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

C
h

a
rg

e
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

 B
a

la
n

c
e
 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 b
e

tw
e
e

n
 t

h
e
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

B
a
s

is
 

N
e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 

a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

  

N
e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

C
h

a
rg

e
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

 B
a
la

n
c

e
 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 b
e

tw
e
e

n
 t

h
e
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

B
a
s

is
 

N
e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 

a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

666 178 844 Strategic Management Board 836 149 985 

4333 351 4,684 Corporate Services 4,101 267 4,369 

2,722 1,070 3,792 Development and Regeneration 3,790 92 3,882 

(233) 75 (148) Finance 589 67 656 

4,814 2,090 6,094 Housing and Environment  5,917 1,595 7,512 

1,293 188 1,481 Legal and Democratic  977 144 1,120 

3,629 26 3,556 Partnership and insight  3,221 9 3,230 

2,080 714 2,794 Planning 1,090 603 1,693 

213 64 276 Policy & Programmes  530 141 670 

20,260 4,755 24,282 Net cost of services        21,051 3,067 24,117 

(13,791) (6,177) (21,401) Other Income and Expenditure (29,160) (1,897) (31,057) 

5,736 (1,422) 2,881 (Surplus) or deficit on provision of 
services 

(8,108) 1,170 (6,938) 

(57,582)     Opening General Fund Balance (55,441)   

5,736     Surplus or (deficit) on general fund 
balance in year 

(8,108)   

0     Transfers to/from non-general fund 
balance reserves 

   

(55,441)     Closing general fund balance at 31 
March 

(63,549)   

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 133

Agenda Item 7

Page 134



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 33 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
3.  Note to the expenditure and funding analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2019/20  Restated   2020/21 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 

(n
o

te
 1

) 

N
e

t 
c

h
a

n
g

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

P
e

n
s

io
n

s
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

(N
o

te
 2

) 

O
th

e
r 

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
s

 

(N
o

te
 3

) 

T
o

ta
l 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 

  

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 

(n
o

te
 1

) 

N
e

t 
c

h
a

n
g

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

P
e

n
s

io
n

s
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

(N
o

te
 2

) 

O
th

e
r 

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
s

 

(N
o

te
 3

) 

T
o

ta
l 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

0 178 0 178 Strategic Management Board 0 149  149 

1,018 (667) 0 351 Corporate Services 567 (300)  267 

710 360 0 1,070 Development and Regeneration (199) 291  93 

0 75 0 75 Finance 3 64  67 

1,491 598 0 2,090 Housing and Environment  1,104 490  1,594 

10 178 0 188 Legal and Democratic  9 135  144 

0 26 0 26 Partnership and insight  0 9  9 

0 714 0 714 Planning 0 603  603 

0 64  64 Policy & Programmes  0 141  141 

3,229 1,526 0 4,755 Net cost of services 1,484 1,582  3,067 

(7,695) 1,518 0 (6,177) Other income and expenditure 
from the Expenditure and Funding 
Analysis 

(2,931) 1,034  (1,897) 

(4,466) 3,044 0 (1,422) Difference between general fund 
surplus or deficit and 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services 

(1,446) 2,616  1,170 

The adjustments above are for transactions included in the CIES which cannot be charged to 

the general fund under statute. They include: 

1) Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and 

revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for other operating expenditure, capital 

grants received in year where there is no repayment condition. 

2) Net change for the pension adjustment relates to the removal of pension contributions and 

the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income 

3) Other differences are for reanalysis of items between services and in other income and 

expenditure, the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council 

tax and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income 

recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.  

Page 134

Agenda Item 7

Page 135



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 34 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

4. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total CIES recognised by the council in the 
year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory 
provisions as being available to the council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
 

31 March 2020   31 March 2021 

Usable Reserves 
M

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

u
n

u
s

a
b

le
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

  Usable Reserves 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

u
n

u
s

a
b

le
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
  

G
e

n
 f

u
n

d
 b

a
l 

&
 

e
a

rm
a

rk
e
d

 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

re
c
e

ip
ts

 

re
s

e
rv

e
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e

d
 

  

G
e

n
 f

u
n

d
 b

a
l 

&
 

e
a

rm
a

rk
e
d

 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

re
c
e

ip
ts

 

re
s

e
rv

e
  

C
a

p
it

a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e

d
  

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

        

Adjustments primarily involving the 
capital adjustment account:         

        
Reversal of items debited or credited to 
the CIES:         

(673) 0  0  673  Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets 

(519)   519 

0  0  0  0  Revaluation gains on property, plant 
and equipment 

561   (561) 

(678)  0  0  678 Movements in fair value of long-term 
leases 

(1,568)   1,568 

(75) 0  0  75  Movement of Fair Value or Investment 
Properties 

304   (304) 

(16) 0  0  16  Amortisation of intangible assets (14)   14 

(1,928) 0  (669)  2,597  Revenue expenditure funded from 
capital under statute 

(1,514)   1,514 

(2)      2  Other 0    

        Adjustments primarily involving the 
capital grants unapplied account: 

    

8,684  0  (8,684) 0  Capital grants and contributions 
unapplied credited to the CIES 

8,884  (8,709) (175) 

(664) 0  664 
  

0  Expenditure funded by developers 
contributions 

(420)  420  

        Adjustments primarily involving the 
capital receipts reserve: 

    

0  (310) 0  310 
  

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited 
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to 
the CIES 

    

732  938  1,285  (2,955) Use of the capital receipts reserve to 
finance new capital expenditure 

1,333 122 804 (2,259) 

        Adjustments primarily involving the 
deferred capital receipts reserve: 

    

58  (179) 0  121  Transfer of deferred sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement 

52 (61)  9 

(3,132)     3,133  Reversal of Surplus on Financial 
Instruments valued through the 
profit and loss 

2,397   (2,397) 

(3,044) 0  0  3,044  Adjustments primarily involving the 
pensions reserve: 

(2,616)   2,616 

        Adjustments primarily involving the 
Collection fund adjustment account: 

    

2 0  0  (2) Amount by which council tax and NDR 
income credited to the CIES is different 
from income calculated for the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

(8,050)   8,050 

(737)  449  (7,404) 7,693  Total adjustments (1,170) 61 (7,485) (8,594) 

 

Page 135

Agenda Item 7

Page 136



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 35 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

5. Transfers to/from general fund balance and earmarked reserves 

This note details all movements in the reserves that comprise the general fund balance and 
earmarked reserves. 
 

01 Apr. 2019 to 31 Mar. 2020   01 Apr. 2020 to 31 Mar. 2021 

Balance 
brought 
forward 

Transfers 
in 

Transfers 
out 

Balance 
carried 
forward  

Balance 
brought 
forward 

Transfer
s in 

Transfers 
out 

Balance 
carried 
forward 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

        General Fund balances         
(750) 0 0 (750)  General Fund (750)   19  (731) 

(30,656) (12,523)  9,519 
  

(33,660) Enabling fund (b) (33,660)   (18,684)        6,349 (45,995) 

(10,609)  0  0  (10,609)  Interest allocated as 
principal (c) 

(10,609)  0 0 (10,609) 

(42,015) (12,523) 9,519 (40,019) 
Total general fund 
balance 

(45,019) (18,684) 6,368 (57,335) 

      Earmarked reserves     

(2,223)  0  0  (2,223) Revenue funding (d) (2,223) 0 0     (2,223) 

  4,200 4,200 ARR – Carry Forward (a) 4,200  3,212 7,412 

(536) 0   0 (536) Building control (e) (536) 0 0      (536) 

(3,238)  (753)  474 (3,517) Revenue grants reserve (f)     (3,517) (944)             550 (3,911) 

 (6,737)  (176)  2,208 (4,705) New homes bonus (g) (4,705) (240)         2,189 (2,756) 

(1,851) (575)  0  (2,426) Unit trust dividend 
reinvested reserve (h) 

    (2,426) (455) 130 (2,751) 

(981)  (233)  0 (1,214) Didcot reserve (i) (1,214) (234) 0 (1,448) 

(15,566) (1,737) 6,882 (10,421) Total earmarked reserves (10,421)  (1,873)          6,081 (6,213) 

 
  

Page 136

Agenda Item 7

Page 137



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 36 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

The purpose of each reserve is as follows: 

(a) 
Accumulated surpluses in previous years, which have not yet been 
earmarked. Enabling fund balances and movements shown for 2019/20 
include carry forwards. 

(b) 
To hold sums received from the sale of capital assets and which have 
now been recycled into the equivalent amount of interest and thus could 
be used to meet any future costs.  

(c) To hold interest distributed on balances for capital expenditure. 

(d) By departments from underspends to cover future specific costs. 

(e) From ring fencing the building control trading account. 

(f) To fund revenue expenditure from grants received in advance. 

(g) To hold receipts of new homes bonus funding. 

(h) To hold the dividends re-invested in the council’s unit trust investments. 

(i) 
To hold rental income received from land in Didcot for future investment 
in Didcot. 

  

Page 137

Agenda Item 7

Page 138



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 37 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

6. Property, plant and equipment 

Table 6a Movements in property, plant and equipment 2020/21     

  

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 &

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e

h
ic

le
s

, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

r

e
 a

s
s

e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

a
s

s
e

ts
 

A
s
s

e
ts

 

u
n

d
e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 

T
o

ta
l 

P
P

&
E

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation             

At 01 Apr 2020 31,891 2,760 584 1,162 673 37,070 

Additions 0 155 346 0 123 624 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) to RR 

(64) 0 0 (25) 0 (89) 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) to SDPS 

561 0 0 0 0 561 

Depreciation written back on 
revaluation 

(100) 0 0 0 0 (100) 

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other movements 0 (2) 0 0 0 (2) 

31 Mar 2021 32,289 2,913 930 1,137 796 38,065 

 

At 01 Apr 2020 (821) (2,585) (439) 0 0 (3,845) 

Depreciation charge for 2020/21 (471) (86) (33) 0 0 (590) 

Depreciation written back on 
revaluation 

176 0 0 0 0 176 

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Impairment losses/reversals to 
SDPS 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

At 31 Mar 2021 (1,116) (2,671) (472) 0 0 (4,259) 

Balance sheet at 31 Mar 2021 31,173 242 458 1,137 796 33,806 

Balance sheet at 31 Mar 2020 31,070 175 145 1,162 673 33,225 

Notes             

RR = Revaluation reserve             

SDPS = Surplus or deficit on provision of services         

 

 

 

  

Page 138

Agenda Item 7

Page 139



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 38 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Table 6b Movements in property, plant and equipment 2019/20     

 

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 &

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e

h
ic

le
s

, 
p

la
n

t 
&

 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

a
s

s
e

ts
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

a
s

s
e

ts
 

A
s
s

e
ts

 u
n

d
e

r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 

T
o

ta
l 

P
P

&
E

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation             

At 01 Apr 2019 32,275 2,738 580 1,162 352 37,107 

Additions 0 22 4 0 321 348 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) to 
RR 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) to 
SDPS 

(67) 0 0 0 0 67 

Depreciation written back on 
revaluation 

(7) 0 0 0 0 (7) 

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Disposals (310) 0 0 0 0 (310) 

At 31 Mar 2020 31,891 2,760 584 1,162 673 37,071 

Depreciation and impairments 

At 01 Apr 2019 (340) (2,472) (434) 0 0 (3,246) 

Depreciation charge (488) (113) (5) 0 0 (606) 

Depreciation written back on 
revaluation 

7 0 0 0 0 7 

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Impairment losses/reversals to SDPS 0 0 0 0 0 0 

At 31 Mar 2020 (821) (2,585) (439) 0 0 (3,845) 

Balance sheet at 31 Mar 2020 31,070 175 145 1,162 673 33,225 

Balance sheet at 31 Mar 2019 31,935 266 146 1,162 352 33,861 

Notes             

RR = Revaluation reserve             

SDPS = Surplus or deficit on provision of 
services           

 
Depreciation 
 

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation: 

• Other land and buildings – on an individual basis as assessed by the valuer 

• Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – 1 to 24 years 

• Infrastructure –on an individual basis as assessed by the valuer 

Capital commitments 

Page 139

Agenda Item 7

Page 140



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 39 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

As at the end of March 2021 the council had capital commitments on a number of contracts in 
2020/21 and future years, budgeted to cost £0.6 million.  The commitments are: 

• Capital grants - £0.3 million 

• Leisure contracts - £0.3 million 

Revaluations 

The council has a rolling programme that ensures that all property, plant and equipment required 
to be measured at current value or fair value as appropriate is revalued at every five years.  Any 
assets that may be subject to special conditions will be valued more often, as required. 

The council’s operational assets have been valued as at 31 March 2021 by Lambert Smith 
Hampton in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the 
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS Red Book, UK 
Appendix 5).  

The significant assumptions applied in estimating the 2020/21 values are that: 

• There is no contamination problem nor deleterious/hazardous substance present; 

• Good title can be shown and that the properties comply with all legal and statutory 
requirements regarding either the structure or its existing /past usage, 

• There will be an adequate level of expenditure on repairs and maintenance 
 

All operational PPE assets are measured at current value with surplus assets at fair value. Assets 
under construction are valued at cost. 

The council has no material surplus assets. 

 

 

Table 6c Revaluations property, plant and equipment 

  
Other 
land & 

buildings 

Vehicles, 
plant & 

equipment 

Infrastructure 
assets 

Community 
assets 

Assets 
under 

construction 
Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Carried at historical 
cost 

0 2,913 930 1,137 796 5,776 

Valued at fair value 
as at: 

    
      

  

31 March 2021 2,401 0 0 0 0 2,401 
31 March 2020 2,814 0 0 0 0 2,814 
31 March 2019 20,852 0 0 0 0 20,852 
31 March 2018 3,890 0 0 0 0 3,890 
31 March 2017 2,334 0 0 0 0 2,334 

Total value 32,291 2,913 930 1,137 796 38,067 

       

Page 140

Agenda Item 7

Page 141



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 40 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

7. Investment properties 

Income and expenditure in respect of investment properties is shown on the face of the CIES. 

There are no restrictions on the council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment 
property or on the council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The 
council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or 
repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the 
year: 

 

2019/20 
£000 

  2020/21 
£000 

7,838  Balance at 1 April 7,763  

(75) Changes in fair value 304 

7,763 Balance at 31 March 8,067 

 

Fair value hierarchy 

All the council’s investment properties have been value assessed as level 2 on the fair value 
hierarchy for valuation purposes (see accounting policy xxii for an explanation of fair value levels). 

Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 for values for investment property 

The fair value of investment property has been measured using a market approach, which takes 
into account quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, 
research into market evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant strength for 
existing tenants, and data and market knowledge gained in managing the council’s investment 
asset portfolio.  Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and sold 
and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading to the properties being categorised as 
level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. 

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment 
properties. 

Highest and best use 

In estimating the fair value of the council’s investment properties, the highest and best use is their 
current use. 

Valuation process for investment properties 

The council’s investment property has been valued as at 31 March 2021 by Lambert Smith 
Hampton in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the 
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Lambert Smith Hampton 
has confirmed that there has been no material change in the value of properties from 31 January 
2021 to 31 March 2021. 

 

 

Page 141

Agenda Item 7

Page 142



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 41 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

8. Financial instruments 

The borrowings and investments disclosed in the balance sheet are made up of the following 
categories of financial instruments: 
 

Table 8a Categories of financial instrument 

  Long term Current 

  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Investments         

Amortised costs 26,315 7,010 106,854 139,442 

Fair value through profit and loss 16,590 19,296 0 0 

Total financial assets (investments) 42,905 26,306 106,854 139,442 

Debtors       

Financial assets carried at contract amount 27,483 25,241 20,562 21,024 

Total financial assets   27,483 25,241 20,562 21,024 

Creditors       

Financial liabilities carried at contract amount 0 0 13,406 30,165 

Total financial liabilities 0 0 13,406 30,165 

 

(1) Under accounting requirements, the carrying value of the financial instrument value is shown in 
the balance sheet which includes the principal amount borrowed or lent and further 
adjustments for breakage costs including accrued interest.  Accrued interest is shown 
separately in current assets/liabilities where payments/receipts are due within one year.  The 
effective interest rate is accrued interest receivable under the instrument, adjusted for the 
amortisation of any premiums or discounts reflected in the purchase price. 

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss – the council holds £10 million in unit trusts 
with Legal & General and £6.5 million in the CCLA pooled property fund.  The Council has 
applied a statutory override to these which results in the charge to the CIES being reversed 
out, via the MiRS and into the Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 142

Agenda Item 7

Page 143



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 42 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Financial instrument gains/losses 

The gains and losses recognised in the CIES in relation to financial instruments are made up as 
follows: 
 
Table 8b Financial instrument gains and losses 2020/21 

  Financial assets 

  

Loan and 
receivables 

Fair value 
through 

profit and 
loss 

Total 

  £000 £000 £000 

Interest receivable and similar income 1,877 0 1,877 
Other investment income (dividends) 0 727 727 

Total income in surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services 

1,877 727 2,604 

Gain/(loss) on revaluation 0 2,397 2,397 

Surplus arising on revaluation of financial assets 0 2,397 2,397 

Net gain/(loss) for the year 1,877 3,124 5,001 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 8c Financial instrument gains and losses 2019/20 

  Financial assets 

  
Loan and 

receivables 

Financial assets at fair 
value through Profit 

and Loss  
Total 

  £000 £000 £000 

Interest receivable and similar income 2,408  0  2,408 
Other investment income (dividends) 0  863 863 

Total income in surplus or deficit on 
the provision of services 

2,408 863 3,271 

Gain/(loss) on revaluation 0  (3,132) (3,132) 

Surplus arising on revaluation of 
financial assets 

0  (3,132) (3,132) 

Net gain/(loss) for the year 2,408 (2,269) 139 

Page 143

Agenda Item 7

Page 144



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 43 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Fair values of assets and liabilities 

Except for financial assets carried at fair value as described in table 9d below, all other financial 
liabilities and assets held by the Authority are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.  The 
fair values calculated are as follows: 
 

Table 8d Fair value of assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost 

31-Mar-20   31-Mar-21 

Carrying Fair value   Carrying Fair value 

amount     amount   

£000 £000   £000 £000 

106,854 106,854 Short term investments 139,442 139,442 

42,595 42,905 Long term investments 26,301 26,306 

20,562 20,562 Short term debtors 21,024 21,024 

27,243 27,243 Long term debtors  27,646 27,646 

197,564 197,564 Total financial assets 214,413 214,418 

(14,737)  (13,406)  Short term creditors (30,165) (30,165) 

(14,737) (13,406) Total financial liabilities (30,165) (30,165) 

 
Some of the Council’s financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Including 
the valuation techniques used to measure them. The fair value hierarchy for categorising 
instruments is as follows: 
 

• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date.  

• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.  
 

The fair values for loans and receivables include accrued interest.  

The comparator market rates prevailing have been taken from indicative investment rates at the 
balance sheet date.  In practice rates will be determined by the size of the transaction and the 
counterparty, but it is impractical to use these figures and the difference is likely to be immaterial. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are carried in the balance 
sheet at their fair value.  These fair values are based on public price quotations where there is an 
active market for the instrument. 

Short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 144

Agenda Item 7

Page 145



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 44 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

9. Debtors 

31-Mar-20   31-Mar-21 

Long Short 
  

Long Short 

term term term term 

£000 £000   £000 £000 

0  1,765 Central government bodies 0 676 

0  4,831 Other local authorities 0 6,897 

27,483 14,847 Other entities and individuals 25,906 15,156 

27,483 21,443 Total debtors 25,906 22,729 

10. Cash and cash equivalents 

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

31 Mar 2020   31-Mar-2021 

£000   £000 

2 Cash held by the council 2  
(500) Bank overdraft (141) 
1,057 Bank current and instant access accounts 2,637  

8,462 Money market funds 8,690  

9,021 Total cash and cash equivalents 11,188  

11. Assets held for sale 

At the balance sheet date, the council has no material assets held for sale. 

12. Short–term creditors 

31 Mar 2020   31-Mar-2021 

£000   £000 

(6,646) Central government bodies (13,086) 
(16,306) Other local authorities (14,357) 
(1,474) Other entities and individuals (3,055) 

(24,426)   (30,498) 

 
13. Provisions 

The provision in 2020/21 represents amounts set aside to meet future potential business rate 
appeals liabilities. 

  
Provisions 

£000 

Balance at 01 Apr 2020 (3,119) 

Movement in year (242) 

Balance at 31 Mar 2021 (3,361) 

Page 145

Agenda Item 7

Page 146



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 45 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

14. Unusable reserves 

Revaluation reserve 

The revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the council arising from increases in the value 
of its property, plant and equipment.  The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains 
are: 

• revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 

• used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or 

• disposed of and the gains are realised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 
reserve was created.  Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 
balance on the capital adjustment account. 
 

 
Financial instruments revaluation reserve 
 
The financial instruments revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the council arising from 
increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have 
fixed or determinable payments.  The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated 
gains are: 

• Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 

• Disposed of and the gains are realised. 

 

 

 

Table 14a Revaluation reserve 

      

2019/20   2020/21 

     

£000   £000 

(11,625) Balance at 1 April 20 (11,219) 

0 Upward revaluation of assets (229) 

310 
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses 
not charged to the surplus/deficit on the provision of 
services 

318 

310 
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current 
assets not posted to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 

89 

96 
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical 
cost depreciation 

20 

0 Other 0 

(11,219) Balance at 31 March 21 (11,110) 

Page 146

Agenda Item 7

Page 147



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 46 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

Table 14b Financial instruments revaluation reserve   

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(2,227) Balance at 1 April  905 

3,132 Revaluation of investments (2,397) 

905 Balance at 31 March  (1,492) 

 
Capital adjustment account 

The capital adjustment account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The account 
is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment 
losses and amortisations are charged to the CIES (with reconciling postings from the revaluation 
reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis).  The account is credited with the 
amounts set aside by the council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and 
enhancement. 

The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and gains 
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the council. 

The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment before 
1 April 2007, the date that the revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains. 

 

 

Table 14c Capital adjustment account    

2019/20   2020/21 
     

£000   £000 

(40,152) Balance at 1 April (39,839) 

  
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or 
credited to the CIES: 

  

509 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 495 

69 Revaluations (gains)/losses on property, plant and equipment (561) 
16 Amortisation of intangible assets 17 

2,597 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,514 
75 Movement in the fair value of investment properties (304) 

0 
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of 
the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES* 

0 

0 Adjusting amounts written out to the revaluation reserve 0 
  Capital financing applied in the year:  

(938) Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new capital expenditure (123) 

(1,285) 
Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES that have been 
applied to capital financing 

(804) 

(732) Capital expenditure charged against earmarked reserves (1,333) 
2 Other adjustments 1 

(39,839) Balance at 31 March (40,937) 

Page 147

Agenda Item 7

Page 148



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 47 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Pensions reserve 

The pensions reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory  
provisions.  The council accounts for post-employment benefits in the CIES as the benefits are 
earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect 
inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the 
costs.  However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the council 
makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is 
directly responsible.  The debit balance on the pensions reserve therefore shows a substantial 
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the council has 
set aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set 
aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 
 

 
Deferred capital receipts reserve 

The deferred capital receipts reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current 
assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory arrangements, the 
council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are 
backed by cash receipts.  When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are 
transferred to the capital receipts reserve. 

 

Table 14e Deferred capital receipts reserve   

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

(28,375) Balance at 1 April (27,575) 

678 New deferred capital receipts raised in year 45 

122 Transfer to the capital receipts reserve upon receipt of cash 1,532 

(27,575) Balance at 31 March (25,998) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 14d Pensions reserve   

2019/20 
 

2020/21 

£000 
 

£000 

62,362  Balance at 1 April 44,187  

(21,219) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 15,153 

  Actuarial Gain/(loss)  

5,453 
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services 
in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement 

5,205 

(2,409) 
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 
pensioners payable in the year 

(2,589) 

44,187 Balance at 31 March 61,956 

Page 148

Agenda Item 7

Page 149



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 48 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Collection fund adjustment account 

The collection fund adjustment account manages the differences arising from the recognition of 
council tax income in the CIES as it falls due from council taxpayers compared with the statutory 
arrangements for paying across amounts to the general fund from the collection fund. 

 

Table 14f Collection fund adjustment account   

2019/20  2020/21 

£000  £000 

(111) Balance at 1 April (114) 

(3)  

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income 
credited to the CIES is different from council tax income and 
non-domestic rates calculated for the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

7,876 

(114) Balance at 31 March 7,762 

 
Accumulated absences account 

The accumulated absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the 
general fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, 
e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.  Statutory arrangements require that the 
impact on the general fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the account. 

 

Table 14g Accumulated absences account 

2019/20  2020/21 

£000   £000 

188 Balance at 1 April 188 

(188) 
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 
preceding year 

(188) 

188 Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 188 

188 Balance at 31 March 188 

15. Interest received, interest paid and dividends received 

The cash flow for operating activities included within the cash flow statement includes the following 
items: 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

2,408 Interest received 1,886 

863 Dividends received 727 

3,271 Total interest received, interest paid and dividends received 2,613 

 

 

 

Page 149

Agenda Item 7

Page 150



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 49 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

16. Expenditure and income analysed by nature 

The authority’s expenditure and income are analysed as follows: 
 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

  Expenditure  

17,395 Employee benefits expenses  19,234 

46,841  Other services expenses  44,295 

623  Depreciation and amortisation 607 

 16,200 Business rates tariff 16,390 

5,144  Precepts and levies  5,524 

1,518  Net interest on net defined benefit liability or asset 1,034 

0 Loss on disposal of assets 0 

87,721 Total expenditure  87,084 
 Income  

(38,805)  Fees, charges and other service income  (39,714) 

(3,661)  Interest, investment income and income from investment property (4,431) 

(31,632)  Income from council tax and non-domestic rates (33,305) 

(1,981)  Government grants and contributions (5,378) 

(8,763)  Recognised capital grants and contributions (8,799) 

0  Gain on revaluation of assets (2,397) 

(84,843) Total income  (94,024) 

2,878 (Surplus)/deficit on the provision of services  (6,940) 

   

 
17. Members’ allowances 

The council paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year: 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

175 Basic allowance 179 

114 Special responsibility allowance 120 

12 Expenses 2 

301   301 

 
 

18. Employee benefits 

Benefits payable during employment 

South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council share a joint Senior 
Management Team.  The employees detailed below therefore work across the two authorities and 
the costs are shared with South Oxfordshire DC contributing 53 per cent and Vale of White Horse 
DC contributing 47 per cent towards the costs. The three senior officers shown in table 18a are 
employed by South Oxfordshire DC. 

Page 150

Agenda Item 7

Page 151



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 50 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

A senior employee is one who earns a salary in excess of £150,000, or holds a designated 
position (with a salary in excess of £50,000) – these are detailed in the table below: 
 

 
The current chief finance officer, monitoring officer and two deputy chief executives are also heads 
of service. There are five other heads of service, two of whom are employed by Vale of White 
Horse District Council. 

The spot point pay level for heads of service is as follows: 

Table 18b Spot pay point - heads of service Number £ 

Heads of service at 31 March 2021 3 98,314 

Acting Deputy Chief Executive at 31 March 2021 3 119,519 

Interim Head of Service  1 98,314 

      

Heads of Service at  September 20 1 98,314 

Interim Heads of service at September 20- February 21 1 98,314 

 

The council is also obliged to disclose the numbers of other employees that were paid a salary in 
excess of £50,000 (these numbers do not include the senior officers detailed above).  Forty 
employees total remuneration, excluding employer’s pension contributions, was £50,000 or more.  

Table 18c Employee remuneration over £50,000   

Number of SODC/VOWH employees 

2019/20 

Remuneration band 
£ 2020/21 

  

8 50,000-54,999 19 

6 55,000-59,999 3 

8 60,000-64,999 8 

1 65,000-69,999 9 

1 70,000-74,999 0 

 

Table 18a Senior officers’ emoluments statutory 

Post title 
Financial  

year 

Salary 
(including 

fees & 
allowances) 

Expenses 

Total 
remuneration 

excluding 
pension 

contributions 

Pension 
contribu

tions 

Total 
remuneration 

including 
pension 

contributions 

    £ £ £ £ £ 

Head of paid 
service  

2020/21 179,348 0 179,348 27,105 206,453 

2019/20 161,227 2,122 163,349 20,798 184,147 

Chief finance 
officer (section 
151 officer) 

2020/21 98,314 450 98,764 16,025 114,789 

2019/20 67,122 802 67,924 3,150 71,074 

Monitoring 
officer 

2020/21 98,314 0 98,314 16,025 114,339 

2019/20 94,596 180 94,777 12,203 106,980 

Page 151

Agenda Item 7

Page 152



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 51 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Under the shared working arrangements, the council recharged a total of £7,174,428 of its salary 
costs to Vale of White Horse District Council, who in turn recharged £3,129,054 of its salary costs 
to this council.  

Termination benefits 

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies are set out in the table below: 
 

Table 18d Exit packages agreed 

Exit package cost 
band (including 
special payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of other 
departures 

agreed 

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in 
each band 

 £ 

  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 

£0 - £20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0             0 0 

£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 1 0 1 0    30,066 0 

£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 1 1 1 1 75,033 69,635 

£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£150,000 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 2 1 2 1 105,099 69,635 

 
 
The total value of exit packages paid in 2020/21 was £69,635. 
 
Post-employment benefits - defined benefit pension schemes 

Participation in pension schemes  

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the council makes contributions 
towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these benefits will not actually be payable 
until employees retire, the council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be 
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 

The council participates in The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The LGPS is a 
defined statutory scheme administered in accordance with the Local Government Scheme 
regulations 2013, is contracted out of the State Second Pension and currently provides benefits 
based on career average revalued salary and length of service on retirement.   

The administering authority for the Fund is Oxfordshire County Council.  The Pension Fund 
Committee oversees the management of the Fund whilst the day to day fund administration is 
undertaken by a team within the administering authority.  Where appropriate some functions are 
delegated to the Fund’s professional advisers. 

As administering authority to the Fund, Oxfordshire County Council, after consultation with the 
Fund Actuary and other relevant parties, is responsible for the preparation and maintenance of the 
Funding Strategy Statement and the Statement of Investment Principles.  These should be 
amended when appropriate based on the Fund’s performance and funding. 

Contributions are set every three years as a result of the actuarial valuation of the Fund required 
by the Regulations.  The actuarial valuation of the Fund has been carried out as at 31 March 2020 
and sets contributions for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023.  There are no minimum 

Page 152

Agenda Item 7

Page 153



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 52 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

funding requirements in the LGPS but the contributions are generally set to target a funding level 
of 100 per cent using the actuarial valuation assumptions. 

On the employer’s withdrawal from the Fund, a cessation valuation will be carried out in 
accordance with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 which will determine the termination 
contribution due by the employer, on a set of assumptions deemed appropriate by the Fund 
Actuary. 

This is a funded defined benefit career scheme, meaning that the council and employees pay 
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension’s liabilities with 
investment assets.  The fund has an independent global custodian, BNP Paribas, whose main 
duties include the safekeeping of the fund's investments, the collection of income and the 
execution of corporate actions, such as company mergers or takeovers.  

In addition, arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits are awarded 
upon early retirement. This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement under which liabilities are 
recognised when awards are made.  However, there are no investment assets built up to meet 
these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension’s payments as they 
fall due. 

In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the employer is exposed 
to a number of risks: 

• Investment risk. The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, which have 
volatile market values and while these assets are expected to provide real returns over the 
long-term, the short-term volatility can cause additional funding to be required if a deficit 
emerges.  

• Interest rate risk. The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on high quality 
corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows.  As the Fund holds assets such as 
equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not move in the same way.  

• Inflation risk. All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so deficits may 
emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation.  

• Longevity risk. In the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit will emerge in 
the Fund. There are also other demographic risks.  

In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Oxfordshire County Council Pension 
Fund, there is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient assets 
to cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining employers. 

 
All of the risks above may also benefit the employer e.g. higher than expected investment returns 
or employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually get inherited by the remaining 
employers.  
  

Page 153

Agenda Item 7

Page 154



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 53 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

These risks are also mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the 
general fund the amounts required by statute. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Transactions relating to retirement benefits 

The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they are earned 
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the 
charge made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-
employment / retirement benefits is reversed out of the general fund via the movement in reserves 
statement.  The following transactions have been made in the CIES and the general fund balance 
via the movement in reserves statement during the year: 

Pensions assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its 
defined benefit plans is as follows: 
  

Table 18e Transactions relating to retirement benefits 

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

  Cost of Services:   

3,920 Current service cost 4,171 

15 Past Service Cost 0 

  Financing and investment income and expenditure  

1,518 Net interest expense 1,034 

5,453 
Total post-employment benefit charged to the surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services 

5,205 

  Other post-employment benefit charged to the CIES  

  Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:  

12,934 
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net 
interest expense) 

(18,946) 

(5,952) 
Actual (gain) and losses arising on changes in demographic 
assumptions 

1,826 

(14,756) Actual (gain) and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions 33,560 

(13,445) Other (1,287) 

(15,766) 
Total post-employment benefit charges to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement 

20,358 

  Movement in Reserves Statement  

5,453 
Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit for the 
Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in accordance 
with the code 

5,200 

  
Actual amount charged against the general fund balance for pensions 
in the year: 

 

2,409 Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 2,589 

Page 154

Agenda Item 7

Page 155



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 54 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

18f Pension assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 

2019/20  2020/21 

£000   £000 

89,786 Fair value of employer assets 109,516 
(130,214) Present value of funded liabilities (167,391) 

(3,759) Present value of unfunded liabilities (4,081) 

 March early retirement accrual   

(44,187) Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (61,956) 

 

18g Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of the scheme assets 

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

101,996 Opening balance at 1 April 89,786 

2,433 Interest on assets 2,049 

(12,934) Return on assets less interest 18,946 

2,409 Employer contributions 2,589 

703 Contributions by scheme participants 845 

(4,821) Benefits paid (4,699) 

89,786 Closing present value of scheme assets 109,516 

 
 

18h Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of the scheme liabilities 

Funded 
and 

unfunded 
liabilities   

Funded and 
Unfunded 
liabilities  

2019/20 

  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(164,358) Opening balance at 1 April (133,973) 

(3,920) Current Service Cost (4,171) 

(3,951) Interest cost (3,083) 

(703) Contributions by scheme participants (845) 

5,952 
Actual (gains) and losses arising on changes in 
demographic assumptions 

(1,826) 

14,756 
Actual (gains) and losses arising on changes in financial 
assumptions 

(33,560) 

13,445 Other 1,287 

(15) Past service costs 0 

4,821 Benefits paid 4,699 

(133,973) Closing present value of liabilities (171,472) 

 
 

The discretionary benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The LGPS’ assets 
consist of the following categories: 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155

Agenda Item 7

Page 156



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 55 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Table 18i Breakdown of fund assets at fair value 

2019/20   2020/21 

Quoted 
Non 

quoted 
Total     Quoted 

Non 
quoted 

Total   

£000 £000 £000 %   £000 £000 £000 % 

0   0 0 Equities 0 0 0 0 
        Bonds:     

8,864   8,864 10     Government bonds 8,956 0 8,956 8 
1,998   1,998 2     Other 2,819 0 2,819 3 
3,477 4 3,481 4 Private equity 4,759 0 4,759 4 

  73,126 73,126 81 Other investment funds 0 88,979 88,979 81 
(57)   (57) 0 Foreign exchange 124 0 124 0 

2,374   2,374 3 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 

3,879 0 3,879 4 

16,656 73,130 89,786 100 Total 20,537 88,979 109,516 100 

 
 
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities 
 
In order to assess the value of the Council’s liabilities in the Fund as at 31 March 2021, it has 
rolled forward the value of the Council’s liabilities calculated at the latest formal valuation date of 
31 March 2020, allowing for the different financial assumptions required under the Accounting  

Standard at the reporting date. 

In calculating the current service cost, it has allowed for changes in the Council’s pensionable 
payroll as estimated from the contribution information provided. In calculating the asset share it 
has rolled forward the Council’s share of the assets calculated at the latest formal valuation date 
allowing for investment returns, the effect of contributions paid into, and estimated benefits paid 
from, the Fund by the Council and its employees.  

In preparing the balance sheet at 31 March 2021 and the revenue account to 31 March 2021 no 
allowance is made for the effect of changes in the membership profile since the last formal 
valuation date. The principal reason for this is that insufficient information is available to allow for 
any such adjustment. However, the effect is likely to be immaterial in actual terms. 

Whilst the liabilities calculated under the Accounting Standard include an allowance for some 
premature retirements on the grounds of ill-health, there is no allowance for early retirements on 
grounds of redundancy or efficiency other than those actual cases notified. 

It is not possible to assess the accuracy of the estimated rolled-forward liability without conducting 
a full valuation using updated individual member data. Such a valuation is generally not practical in 
the time available to meet the council’s reporting requirements. The estimated rolled-forward 
liability as at 31 March 2021 will therefore not reflect differences in demographic experience from 
that assumed (e.g. pensioner longevity) or the impact of differences between aggregate changes 
in salary/pension or changes for specific individuals. 

It has no reason to believe that the approximations used in rolling forward the valuation to 31 
March 2021 will introduce any undue distortion in the results. 

The Employer currently participates in the South Oxfordshire District Council pool with other 
employers in order to share experience of risks they are exposed to in the Fund. At the 2020 
valuation, the deficit for the whole pool was calculated and allocated to each employer in 

Page 156

Agenda Item 7

Page 157



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 56 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

proportion to their value of liabilities. The next reallocation will be carried out at the 2022 valuation, 
should the Employer remain in the pool. Each employer within the pool pays a contribution rate 
based on the cost of benefits of the combined membership of the pool. 

It has adopted a set of demographic assumptions that are consistent with those used for the most 
recent Fund valuation, which was carried out as at 31 March 2020.  The post retirement mortality 
tables adopted are the S2PA tables with a multiplier of 90 per cent.  These base tables are then 
projected using the CMI 2015 Model, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5 per cent 
per annum. 
 

Table 18j Principal actuarial assumptions   

2019/20   2020/21 

  
Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the 
scheme 

  

4.30% All assets 2.50% 

  Mortality assumptions  

  Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:  

22.2yrs Men 22.4yrs 

24.3yrs Women 24.7yrs 

  Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:  

22.9yrs Men 23.4yrs 

25.6yrs Women 26.3yrs 

  Other assumptions  

1.90% Inflation - CPI 2.85% 

1.90% Rate of general increase in salaries 2.85% 

1.90% Rate of increase to pensions 2.85% 

2.30% Discount rate 2.00% 

 
 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in 
the table above.  The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably 
possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for 
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain 
constant.  The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases for 
men and women. In practice this is unlikely to be correct, and changes in some of the assumptions 
may be interrelated.  The estimates in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting 
policies for then scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method.  The methods 
and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from 
those used in the previous period. 

Other assumptions are that: 

• Members will exchange half of their commutable pension for cash at retirement; 

• Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the pension 
weighted average tranche retirement age; and 

The proportion of members that had taken up the 50:50 option at the previous valuation date will 
remain the same. 
 
 

Page 157

Agenda Item 7

Page 158



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 57 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Table 18k Sensitivity analysis     

Change in assumption at 31 Mar 2021 

Approximate increase 
in employer liability 

% £000 

0.5% decrease in real discount rate 10 16,468 

0.5% increase in the salary increase rate 1 1,316 

0.5% increase in the pension increase rate * 9 14,834 

 
 

In order to quantify the impact of a change in the financial assumptions used it has calculated and 
compared the value of the scheme liabilities as at 31 March 2021 on varying bases.  The 
approach taken is consistent with that adopted to derive the IAS 19 figures provided. 

The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption (i.e. member life expectancy). 
For sensitivity purposes it has estimated that a one-year increase in life expectancy would 
approximately increase the employer’s Defined Benefit Obligation by around 3-5 per cent.  In 
practice the actual cost of a one-year increase in life expectancy will depend on the structure of 
the revised assumption (i.e. if improvements to survival rates predominantly apply to younger or 
older ages). 

The above figures have been derived based on the membership profile of the employer as at the 
date of the most recent actuarial valuation. 

Impact on the council’s cash flows 

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as 
possible, at a reasonable cost to the scheme employers and taxpayers, whilst ensuring the overall 
solvency of the fund.  There are no minimum funding requirements, but contributions are generally 
set to target a funding level of 100 per cent.  Funding levels are monitored regularly, and the next 
triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31 March 2022. 

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public 
Pensions Services Act 2013.  Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in England 
and Wales may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014.  The Act provides 
for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average 
revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits. 

The actuarial estimate of the duration of the council’s liabilities is 18 years.  The council anticipates 
paying £2.59 million in contributions to the scheme in 2021/22. 

Mcloud Judgement  

An estimated McCloud judgement allowance has been added to the formal valuation results so the 
impact is continued to be included within the balance sheet at 31 March 2021 (as per the 2020 
accounting approach) 

 

 

 

 

Page 158

Agenda Item 7

Page 159



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 58 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

19. External audit costs 

The council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the statement of accounts, 
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the 
council’s external auditors. 

In 2020/21 external audit services were provided by Ernst & Young LLP. 

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

54 
Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out 
by the appointed auditor for the year 

58 

9 
Fees payable to external auditor for the certification of grant 
claims and returns for the year 

10 

63   68 

20. Grant income 

The council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the CIES in 2020/21. 

 

2019/20 
£000   

2020/21 
£000 

  Credited to taxation and non-specific grant income   
19,118 Retained business rates 20,082 

(16,214) Business Rates Tariff (16,390) 

14 Council tax family annexe 17 

12,514 Council tax income 13,205 

7,372 Developers and other contributions 7,202 

1,391 Disabled facilities grant 1,640 

1,981 New homes bonus 2,747 

0 Covid grant 2,589 

26,176 Total 31,092 

  Credited to services  
100 Didcot Garden Town 125 

150 Berinsfield Regeneration 150 

376 Homelessness Support Grant 360 

395 Housing benefit - admin 361 

20,835 Housing benefit - subsidy 19,636 

104 Leader  31 

220 Neighbourhood planning  80 

123 New burdens revenue and other grants 185 

178 NNDR collection allowance 187 

119 Partnership & community safety 69 

24 Universal Credit 30 

 Community Hub ( Covid Grants) 386 

22,624 Total 21,600 

   

 

Page 159

Agenda Item 7

Page 160



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 59 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
21. Related parties 

The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals 
that have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the 
council.  Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the council 
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the 
ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the council. 

Related parties include: 

Central government.  Central government has effective control over the general operations of the 
council – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the council operates, 
provides a large proportion of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of 
the transactions that the council has with other parties (e.g. housing benefits).   Grants received 
from government are shown in note 20 above. 

Precepts.  Precept transactions in relation to Oxfordshire County Council, Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Thames Valley and the various town and parish councils, are shown within a 
note to the collection fund. 

Members of the council.  Members have direct control over the council’s financial and operating 
policies. During the year no members have undertaken any declarable, material transactions with 
the council.  Details of any transactions would be recorded in the register of members’ interests, 
open to public inspection at the council’s offices. This is in addition to a specific declaration 
obtained from all councillors in respect of related party transactions.  Members have declared an 
interest in one of the following organisations: 
 

• Chiltern Conservation Board 

• SOFEA 

As at publication, the below elected members had yet to return their declarations: 

Councillor Elizabeth Gillespie 
Councillor Lorraine Hillier 
Councillor Mocky Khan 
Councillor Jo Robb 
Councillor Alan Thompson 
Councillor Celia Wilson 

A check of the councillors’ register of interests has shown that none of the above named members 
had declared any related party transactions.   

Members represent the council on various organisations. Appointments are reviewed annually, 
unless a specific termination date for the term of office applies.  None of these appointments 
places the member in a position to exert undue influence or control. 

Officers of the council.  The senior officers of the council have control over the day to day 
management of the council and all heads of service and management team members have been 
asked to declare any related party transactions.  Officers have declared an interest in the following 
organisation: 

• Great Western Society (Didcot Railway Centre) 

Page 160

Agenda Item 7

Page 161



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 60 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Other organisations.  The council awards grants to support a number of voluntary or charitable 
bodies and individuals.  It does not attempt to exert control through this. 

22. Capital expenditure and capital financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including 
the value of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been 
used to finance it.  Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to 
revenue as assets are used by the council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 
council that has yet to be financed. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The council’s CFR is made up of certain balances on the balance sheet and for a council with no 
debt should equal zero. 
 

Table 22b Capital financing requirement  

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

0 Opening CFR 0 

33,225 Property, plant and equipment 33,808 

7,763 Investment properties  8,067 

20 Intangible assets 124 

10,006 Long term investments (note 1) 12,773 

(39,838) Capital adjustment account  (40,939) 

(11,219) Revaluation reserve (11,110) 

2,469 Financial instrument revaluation reserve (note 1) (24) 

(2,426) Unit trust dividend reinvested reserve (note 2) (2,751) 

0 Closing CFR (52) 

 
1) Investments in unit trusts only, excluding accrued interest. 

2) Unit trust dividend reinvested reserve included to show full financing of unit trust investments. 
 
 
 

Table 22a Capital expenditure and financing 

2019/20  2020/21 

£000   £000 

  Capital investment:   

350 Property, plant and equipment 625 

8 Intangible assets 121 

2,597 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,514 

2,955 Total capital investment 2,260 

  Sources of finance:  

(938) Capital receipts (123) 

(1,285) Government grants and other contributions (804) 

(732) Earmarked revenue reserves (1,333) 

(2,955) Total financing (2,260) 

Page 161

Agenda Item 7

Page 162



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 61 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

23. Leases 

Council as lessee 

Finance leases – the council has no finance leases. 

Operating leases – The council has one material operating lease for the office at 135 Eastern 
Avenue Milton Park, which its shared with Vale of White Horse District Council 

Council as lessor 

Finance leases – The council recognised a number of long-term leases in the 2015/16 accounts.  
A fourth, The Orchard Centre Phase II, was entered into in 2016/17.  The leases are:  

. 

• The Orchard Centre – 150-year lease signed in 2004 

• Gym, Cattle Market, Thame – 90-year lease signed in 1976 

• Industrial estate, Thame – 10 leases in excess of 76 years duration expiring between 2061 and 
2096 (see note 32) 

• The Orchard Centre Phase II – 150-year lease signed in 2017 

The council has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments 
expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the 
property when the lease comes to an end.  The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of 
the long-term debtor for the interest in the property acquired by the lessee and finance income that 
will be earned by the council in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding.  

 

Table 23a Interest in finance lease     

  2019/20 2020/21 

  £000 £000 

Finance lease debtor (net present value of minimum lease 
payments): 

    

Current 0 0 

Non-current 0 0 

Unearned finance income 8,294 8,641 

Unguaranteed residual value of property 11,465 12,145 

Gross investment in the lease 19,759 20,786 

 
 

The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the 
following periods: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 162

Agenda Item 7

Page 163



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 62 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
 
 

Table 23b Minimum finance lease payments 

  
Gross investment 

in the lease 
Minimum lease 

payments 

  
2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Not later than 1 year 445 445 445 445 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 
years 

1,548 1,568 1,548 1,568 

Later than 5 years 17,766 19,523 6,300 6,628 

Total 19,759 21,536 8,293 8,641 

 

Operating leases – the council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the 
following purposes: 

• for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local 
business, and 

• for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities and community centres. 

• The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years 
are: 

Table 23c Future minimum lease payments receivable 

  2019/20 2020/21 

  £000 £000 

Not later than one year 582 509 

Later than one year and not later than five years 1,104 1,467 

Later than five years 1,970 2,942 

 
24. Contingent liabilities 

At 31 March 2021, the council had the following contingent liabilities: 

• Compensation claims for injury and or damage.  The majority of claims for compensation 
are individually immaterial.  They relate to personal injuries sustained where the Authority is 
alleged to be at fault (for example, through a failure to repair a pavement properly).  
Provision has not been made for such claims as the authority’s liability is limited to the 
individual excess on the policy, which in most cases is £5,000.  Until claims are settled by 
the authority's insurers, the cost of the excess cannot be recognised.  It is also considered 
that collectively the sum of these claims in any one year is not material. 

• South Oxfordshire Council is part of an ongoing legal case involving other councils 
regarding NHS trusts being treated as charitable organisations in terms of being eligible for 
80 per cent relief from business rates. Should the outcome of the litigation be in favour of 
the NHS Trusts then this would mean a refund of business rates relating to previous years 
and on ongoing reduction in the business rates for NHS properties in South Oxfordshire 

• The High Court ruled in favour of the councils in December 2019.  In February 2020 the 
group of NHS Trusts applied for permission to appeal the ruling   

Page 163

Agenda Item 7

Page 164



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 63 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

25. Contingent assets 

At 31 March 2021, the council had no contingent assets. 

26. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 

The council’s activities expose it to a variety of risks.  The main risks are: 

• Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the council; 

• Liquidity risk - the possibility that the council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments; 

• Re-financing risk - the possibility that the council might be required to renew a financial 
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms; 

• Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the council as a result of changes 
in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

The council’s treasury management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. 

The treasury team carry out the procedures for risk management which are set out in the 
approved policies which cover specific areas such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the 
investment of surplus cash.  The procedures are set out through a legal framework based on the 
Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations.  These require the council to comply with 
the CIPFA prudential code, the CIPFA code of practice on treasury management in the public 
services and investment guidance issued through the Act. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to 
the council’s customers. 

The risk is managed through the council’s Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that 
deposits are only placed with financial institutions that meet the identified minimum credit criteria, 
as laid down by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors credit ratings services.  The strategy also 
sets out the maximum amounts and time limits that an investment can be made with a financial 
institution within each category. 

The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the authority are as detailed as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 164

Agenda Item 7

Page 165



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 64 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

  
 

Table 26a Credit criteria 

Deposits with banks 
and other financial 

institutions 
Min. Rating / Other 

Criteria 

Counter-
party 
Limit 

Amount 
at 31 Mar 

2021 

Maturity 
Limit 

  £000 £000   

Banks         

Close Brothers F2 15,000 7,000 1 year 
Goldman Sachs Int'l F1 15,000 9,000 2 years 
Lloyds F1 15,000 2,000 2 years 
Royal Bank of Scotland UK Sovereign 20,000 8,098 4 years 

Santander F1 15,000 410 2 years 

Building Societies      
Cambridge assets > £1,000m 10,000  5,000  12 months 
Furness assets > £1,000m 10,000  9,000  12 months 

National Counties  assets > £1,000m 10,000  8,500  12 months 

Monmouthshire assets > £1,000m 10,000  6,000  12 months 

Progressive   assets > £1,000m 10,000  5,500  12 months 
Saffron  assets > £1,000m 10,000  5,000  12 months 
Newcastle   assets > £3,000m 12,000  11,000  12 months 
Principality   assets > £5,000m 15,000  6,000  12 months 
Skipton  assets > £5,000m 15,000  6,000  12 months 
West Bromwich  assets > £5,000m 15,000  13,000  12 months 

Money Market Funds     
Goldman Sachs AAA 20,000  8,000  Liquid 

Blackrock AAA 20,000  690  Liquid 

Local Authorities      
Bury MBC    20,000  5,000  25 years 
Coventry City   20,000  5,000  25 years 

Thurrock BC   20,000  3,500  25 years 

Wokinghan BC   20,000  5,000  25 years 

Property Funds         

CCLA Property Fund   10,000  6,468  Variable 

Housing Associations     
Metropolitan  F1 15,000  5,000  2 years 

Places for People F1 15,000  10,000  2 years 

Managed Funds         

Unit trusts F1 10,000  12,645  Variable 

Total  
 162,811  

 
 

The full annual investment strategy for 2020/21 was approved by full council on 13 February 2020 
and is available on the council’s website.  

The council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building 
societies of £163 million cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to repay 
the principal sum will be specific to each institution.  Recent experience has shown that it is rare 
for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments.  A risk of recoverability applies to all the 
councils’ deposits but there was no evidence at 31 March 2021 that this was likely to crystallise. 

Page 165

Agenda Item 7

Page 166



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 65 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past 
experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal 
ratings in accordance with parameters set by the council. 

A provision is made for bad debts based on the debtors’ information at the year end. The ‘past 
due’ amount is analysed below. During the reporting period the council held no collateral as 
security. 

Table 26b below analyses the council’s short-term debt by age: 
 

Table 26b Short term debtors aged debt analysis 
Total 

£000 

Less than three months 19,393 

Three months to six months 151 

six months to one year 2,118 

Over one year 1,066 

Total 22,728 

 
 

Statutory debts are included in the figures above to enable comparison with the short-term debtors 
total as shown in the balance sheet and in note 9. 

Liquidity risk 

The council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures set out in the 
treasury management strategy, as well as comprehensive cash management system that seeks to 
ensure that cash is available as needed.  If unexpected movements happen, the council is able to 
access borrowing from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. 

The council is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  Therefore, there is 
no significant risk that the council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under 
financial instruments. 

The council has no debt and therefore is not exposed to refinancing risk of loans at this time.  All 
trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 

Refinancing and maturity risk 

The council maintains a significant investment portfolio.  There is a longer – term risk to the 
council which relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. 

Treasury indicator limits placed on investments for over one year in duration are used to manage 
this risk.  The council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the 
central treasury team manage the operational risks within the approved limits.  This includes 
monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the 
council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer-term investments provide stability 
of maturities in relation to longer term cash flow needs. 

The council has no longer term financial liabilities.  The maturity analysis of financial assets, 
excluding sums due from customers is as follows: 

 

Page 166

Agenda Item 7

Page 167



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 66 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

 
 

Table 26c Refinancing and maturity risk 

31 Mar 2020  31 Mar 2021 

£000   £000 

106,803 Less than one year 137,452 

24,307 Between one and two years 7,005 

2,002 Between two and three years 0 

16,596 More than three years 19,171 

149,708 Total 163,628 

Difference to table 26a is accrued interest 

 
Market risk 

a) Interest rate risk 
 

The council is exposed to some risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its 
investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the council, depending on 
how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods.  A rise in 
interest rates would have the following effects: 

• investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services will rise 

• investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 

Changes in interest receivable on variable rate investments will be posted to the surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services and affect the general fund balance.  Movements in the fair value of 
fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in other CIES. 

The council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The Annual Treasury 
Management Strategy draws together council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its expected 
treasury operations, including forecast interest rate movements. 

According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2021, if interest rates had been one per cent 
higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 

 

Table 26d Interest rate risk 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

(90) Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (87) 

(90) Impact on surplus or deficit on the provision of services (87) 

 
 

The impact of a one per cent fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being 
reversed. 

Page 167

Agenda Item 7

Page 168



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 67 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

b) Price risk  

The council holds an investment in unit trust equity shares to the value of £13 million and an 
investment in a pooled property fund to the value of £6.5 million. Whilst these investments are 
primarily held for interest earning potential, the council is exposed to losses and gains arising from 
the movement in prices of the shares held. 

The shares are classified as financial instruments.  This means that all movements in price will 
impact on gains and losses recognised in the financial instrument revaluation reserve. 

A movement of five per cent in the price of shares (positive or negative) would result in a £1.0 
million gain or loss being recognised in the financial instrument revaluation reserve. 
The council is not in a position to limit its exposure to price movements by further diversifying its 
portfolio. 

27. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

In applying the accounting policies set out on pages 80-95 the council has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  The 
critical judgements made in the statement of accounts are: 

Leases 

The council has examined its leases and classified them as either operational or finance leases. In 
some cases, the lease transaction is not always conclusive, and the council uses judgement in 
determining whether the lease is a finance lease arrangement that transfers substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership.  In reassessing the lease, the council has estimated the 
implied interest rate within the lease to calculate interest and principal payments. 

Funding 

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However, 
the council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the 
assets of the council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of 
service provision. 

Investment properties 

Investment properties have been estimated using the identifiable criteria under IAS 40 of being 
held for rental income or for capital appreciation.  These properties have been assessed using 
these criteria, which is subject to interpretation to determine if there is an operational reason for 
holding the property such as regeneration. 

28. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty 

Business rates 

Since the introduction of business rates retention scheme effective from 1 April 2013, councils are 
liable for successful appeals against business rates charged to businesses in 2020/21 and earlier 
financial years in their proportionate share.  Therefore, a provision has been recognised for the 
best estimate of the amount that businesses have been overcharged up to 31 March 2021.  The 
estimate has been calculated using the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) ratings list of appeals and 
the analysis of successful appeals to date when providing the estimate of total provision up to and 

Page 168

Agenda Item 7

Page 169



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 68 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

including 31 March 2021. The council’s share of the balance of business rate appeals provision at 
this date amounted to £3.4 million.  This has increased by £0.2 million from the previous year. 

 

 

Property, plant and equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of 
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.  If the council is 
unable to sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance this could bring into doubt the 
useful lives currently assigned to assets.  If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation 
increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls.  It is estimated that the annual charge for 
buildings would increase in these circumstances. 

Debt impairment 

At 31 March 2021 the council had a balance on short term debtors of £24.1 million.  A review of 
significant balances suggested that an impairment of doubtful debts of £3.7 million was 
appropriate.  If collection rates were to deteriorate an increase in the amount of the impairment of 
the doubtful debts would be required. 

Pensions 

The estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discounts used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of consulting 
actuaries (Barnett Waddington) is engaged (through Oxfordshire County Pension Fund) to provide 
the council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.  Details of the pension 
liabilities are in note 18.  

When the LGPS benefit structure was reformed in 2014, transitional protections were applied to 
certain older members close to normal retirement age.  The benefits accrued from 1 April 2014 by 
these members are subject to an ‘underpin’ which means that they cannot be lower than what they 
would have received under the previous benefit structure. The underpin ensures that these 
members do not lose out from the introduction of the new scheme, by effectively giving them the 
better of the benefits from the old and new schemes. 

29. Material items of income and expenditure 

There were no material items in the accounts for 2020/21. 

30. Accounting standards issued but not yet adopted 
 

At the balance sheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing standards 
have been published but not yet adopted by the Code of Practice of Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom: 
 

• IFRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on 
their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities (there is 
recognition for low-value and short-term leases). The council will adopt the amendments to 
IFRS 16 with effect from 1 April 2022  

 
 

Page 169

Agenda Item 7

Page 170



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 69 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

31. Going Concern  
 
The concept of a going concern assumes that an authority’s functions and services will continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The provisions in the Code (Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21) in respect of going concern reporting 
requirements reflect the economic and statutory environment in which local authorities operate. 
These provisions confirm that, as authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory 
prescription, they must prepare their financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting. 
Covid-19 has been a significant consideration in the assessment of going concern due to the 
uncertainty surrounding its impact and duration. Whilst the impact has proved to be material, 
significant additional resources have been received from Central Government to support the 
Council and the wider local economy. Both the cash and reserves position of the Council have 
also been considered.  
A cash flow forecast has been produced to March 2024 that indicates Strong cash balances 
throughout and closing cash and equivalents of £169 million. As at the 31 March 2020, the Council 
had General Reserves of £55.4 million which subsequently grew to £63.5 million by the 31 March 
2021. Both figures are significantly above the Council’s minimum recommended prudent balance 
of £4.5 million and no reliance has been placed on the General Reserve to balance the budget in 
2021/22. There are also significant earmarked reserves (£78.1million as of 31 March 2021). The 
Council prepared a five-year medium term financial plan in February 2022 which forecast General 
Reserves of £43.7 million by March 2024 
 
Overall, the Council is therefore in a strong position in terms of managing its medium-term 
financial position. 
The Council carries out functions essential to the local community and if financial difficulties were 
encountered alternative arrangements might be made by central government either for the 
continuation of the services it provides or for assistance with the recovery of a deficit over more 
than one financial year. As this is not the case the accounts have been prepared under the Code 
which assumes that services will be provided for the foreseeable future, at least until March 2024. 
 
32. Covid-19 Pandemic  
 
As a result of the Covid pandemic, the council had to provide much needed services in the 
following areas: 
• A local hub for support to residents 
 
• Provision of welfare and assistance to vulnerable residents particularly those that are being 
shielded and unable to leave home 
 
• Procurement of additional temporary accommodation for homeless persons and rough 
sleepers  
 
• Additional IT activity and support for Council staff Home working 
 
• Administration of Business Grants and local hardship assistance 
 
These costs however were broadly covered by emergency funding provided by the government.  
The Council’s Fees & Charges income was lower than anticipated in the budget. 75% of lost 
income for council provided services (Licence fee Income, Car Parks, Arts Centre Profits, Leisure 
Centre income, Land Charges & Planning Development Income) has been recovered from 
government initiates. The adverse effect of losing this income was also offset by the redeployment 
of budgeted staff to support services such as the ‘Covid Hub’   
Revenue reserves which currently stand at £63.5 million are not expected to be significantly  
affected as a result of the pandemic. 

Page 170

Agenda Item 7

Page 171



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 70 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
 
 
  

Page 171

Agenda Item 7

Page 172



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 71 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

This page is intentionally blank 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 172

Agenda Item 7

Page 173



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 72 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Collection fund account 

 
  

2019/20   2020/21 Notes 

Total   
Council 

tax 
NNDR Total   

£000  Income £000  £000  £000    

(111,868) Council taxpayers (118,972)  (118,972)   

  Transfers from general fund:      

(45,071) - Income from business ratepayers  (28,918) (28,918)   

(156,939)   (118,972) (28,918) (147,890)   

  Expenditure      

  Precepts and demands:      

85,673 Oxfordshire County Council 91,567  91,567   

12,003 Police and Crime Commissioner 12,961  12,961   

12,350 South Oxfordshire DC 13,290  13,290   

0 Business Rates:      

21,638 Payments to Government   21,858 21,858   

4,328 
Payments to Oxfordshire County 

Council 
 4,368 4,368   

17,311 Payments to South Oxfordshire DC  17,593 17,593   

178 Cost of Collection  175 175   
 Provisions:      

612 Provision for bad debts 1,965 3,843 5,808 3 

1,823 Provision for appeals  604 604 3 

155,916   119,783 48,441 168,224   

(1,023) (Surplus)/deficit for the year 811 19,523 20,334   

         

  Collection fund balance      

(2,186) Balance brought forward at 1 April (3,943) 734 (3,209)   

(1,023) (Surplus)/deficit for the year, as above 811 19,523 20,334   

(3,209) Balance carried forward at 31 March (3,132) 20,257 17,125   

         

  Allocated to:      

367 Central Government  10,129 10,129   

(2,986) Oxfordshire County Council (2,438) 2,026 (412)   

(437) Police and Crime Commissioner (341) 0 (341)   

(153) South Oxfordshire District Council (353) 8,102 7,749   

(3,209)   (3,132) 20,257 17,125   

Page 173

Agenda Item 7

Page 174



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 73 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Notes to the collection fund account 

 
1. Business rates (Non-Domestic Rates) 

Business rates are based on the rateable value of a property multiplied by a nationally determined 
rate (multiplier). The total amount collected by the council is paid into the national pool managed 
by central government. Each council then receives a redistributed amount from the pool based on 
an amount per head of population. 

     £ 

NNDR rateable value as at 01 Apr 2020    116,996,158 

NNDR rateable value as at 31 Mar 2021    117,303,501 
    

National multipliers (Pence): 2019/20  2020/21 

Small business non-domestic rating multiplier 49.1  49.9 

Non-domestic rating multiplier 50.4  51.2 

 
2. Council tax base calculation 

 
Council tax income is derived from charges according to the value of residential properties. 
Properties are classified into eight valuation bands. The council, as billing authority, calculates 
its tax base in accordance with governance regulations. The number of properties shown in the 
table below reflects the various discounts and exemptions allowed and a weighting is applied 
to calculate the equivalent band D dwellings. The tax base calculation is shown overleaf: 

 
   

Band Number of properties Band multiplier 
Band D 

equivalent 

A 2,114 6/9 1,409 

B 5,721 7/9 4,450 

C 17,427 8/9 15,491 

D 14,528 9/9 14,528 

E 10,298 11/9 12,586 

F 6,432 13/9 9,291 

G 6,000 15/9 10,000 

H 907 18/9 1,814 

  63,427   69,569 

Discounts and exemptions  (11,207) 

Class O exempt properties  654 

Sub total  59,016 

Assumed losses on collection (1,167) 

Council tax base  57,849 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 174

Agenda Item 7

Page 175



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 74 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

3. Council tax/NDR bad debt provision and NDR provision for valuation appeals 

The collection fund account provides for bad debts on arrears on the basis of prior years’ 
experience. 

 

2019/20 Council tax  2020/21 

£000   £000 

(3,314) Balance at 1 April (3,725) 

135 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 0 

(546) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (1,965) 

(3,725) Balance at 31 March (5,690) 

 

The council’s proportion of these write offs and movements in provision are shown below. 

2019/20 Council tax  2020/21 

£000   £000 

(372) Balance at 1 April (420) 

15 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 0 

(63) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (225) 

(420) Balance at 31 March (645) 

 

The collection fund account also provides for bad debt on NDR arrears. 

2019/20 NDR  2020/21 

£000   £000 

(1,582) Balance at 1 April (1,483) 

34 (Write back)/write off of debt offs during year 0 

(65) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (3,973) 

(1,613) Balance at 31 March (5,456) 

 

The council’s proportion of these write offs and movement in provision are shown below. 

2019/20 NDR  2020/21 

£000   £000 

(632) Balance at 1 April (645) 

14 (Write back)/write off of debt offs during year 0 

(27) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (1,537) 

(645) Balance at 31 March (2,182) 

 

 

 

 

Page 175

Agenda Item 7

Page 176



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 75 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

The collection fund account also provides for provision for appeals against the rateable valuation 
set by the Valuation Office Agency not settled as at 31 March 2020. 

2019/20 NDR 2020/21 

£000   £000 

(5,976) Balance at 1 April (7,798) 

(1,822) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (604) 

(7,798) Balance at 31 March (8,402) 

 

The council’s proportion of this provision is shown below. 

2019/20 NDR 2019/20 

£000   £000 

(2,390) Balance at 1 April (3,119) 

(729) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (242) 

(3,119) Balance at 31 March (3,361) 

 

Page 176

Agenda Item 7

Page 177



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 76 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

This page is intentionally blank 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
Page 177

Agenda Item 7

Page 178



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 77 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Statement of accounting policies 
 
(i) General principles 
 
The statement of accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial year 
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2021. The council is required to prepare an annual 
statement of accounts by 31 July 2021 and for the accounts to be prepared in accordance with 
proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Council Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the statement of accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
(ii) Accruals of income and expenditure 

 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made 
or received.  In particular: 
 
▪ revenue from contracts with service receipts, whether for services or the provision of goods, is 

recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in 
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract;  
 

▪ supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories 
on the balance sheet; 
 

▪ expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made; 
 

▪ interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract; and 
 

▪ where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.  Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are defined as follows: 
 
▪ cash and cash equivalents shall include bank overdrafts that are an integral part of the 

council’s cash management; 
 

▪ cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 
than for investment purposes; and 
 

▪ investments that can be liquidated or accessed within 30 days i.e. money market funds, call 
accounts and deposit accounts with a notice period of 30 days or less. 

Page 178

Agenda Item 7

Page 179



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 78 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Equity investments are excluded from the definition. 
 
(iv) Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or 
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
(v) Charges to revenue for non-current assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 
▪ depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 

 
▪ revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve against which the losses can be written off; and 
 

▪ amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue 
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing required.  As at 31 March 2021 this council has no 
borrowing requirement, so this contribution is not required.  Depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the contribution in the general fund balance, 
by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
(vi) Employee benefits 
 
Benefits payable during employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and 
non-monetary benefits for current employees.  They are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the council.  An accrual is made for the cost of 
holiday entitlements and additional hours earned by employees but not taken as time off before 
the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual is 
charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the MiRS 
so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence 
occurs. 
 
 
 
 

Page 179

Agenda Item 7

Page 180



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 79 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Termination benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable either as a result of a decision by the council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to 
accept voluntary redundancy. Such benefits are charged on an accrual basis to relevant service in 
the CIES when the council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an 
officer or group of officers or to making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  
In the MiRS, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for 
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. 
 
Post -employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered 
by Oxfordshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement 
lump sums and pensions). 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 
▪ The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are 

included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, 
etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees; 
 

▪ Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
yield at the 18 year point on the Merill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield curve which has 
been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19 and with consideration of the duration of the 
Council’s liabilities.  This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date.   
 

▪ The assets of Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are included 
in the balance sheet at their fair value: 

 
- Quoted securities - current bid price 

 
- Unquoted securities - professional estimate 
- Unitised securities - current bid price 

 
- Property - market value. 

 
▪ The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

 
▪ Service cost comprising: 

 
- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 

year - allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked. 

Page 180

Agenda Item 7

Page 181



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 80 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

- Past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect 
relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services in the CIES. 

- net interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (NDBL), i.e. net interest for the council – the 
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of 
time charged to the CIES – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure 
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability 
at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit 
liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

 
▪ Remeasurements comprising: 

 
- the return on scheme assets – excluding amounts included in the NDBL – charged to the 

pensions reserve as other CIES. 
- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 

have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to the pensions reserves as other 
CIES. 

 
▪ Contributions paid to the Oxfordshire County council pension fund - cash paid as employer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the general fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the 
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the MiRS this 
means that there are appropriations to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid a the year-end.   The 
negative balance that arises on the pensions reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to 
the general fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows 
rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary benefits 
 
The council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member 
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the 
same policies as are applied to the LGPS. 
 
(vii) Events after the balance sheet date 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the statement of accounts is 
authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified: 
 
▪ Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the 

statement of accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and 
▪ Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the statement of 

accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the statement of 
accounts. 

Page 181

Agenda Item 7

Page 182



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 81 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(viii) Financial instruments 
 

Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 
carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the income and expenditure account for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest 
for the instrument.  The only financial liabilities the council has are trade creditors.   
 
The council currently has no borrowings and has issued no bonds to bond holders. 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects 
the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are 
three main classes of financial assets measured at: 
 
▪ amortised cost; 

 
▪ Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL); 

 
▪ Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI). 

 
The council has no investments measured at FVOCI  
 
Financial instruments measured at amortised cost 
 
Financial instruments measure at amortised cost are recognised on the balance sheet when the 
council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured at fair value.  They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits 
to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument.  For most of the loans that the council has made, this means that the amount 
presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and 
interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
However, if the council has made loans at less than market rates (soft loans), then a loss is 
recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that 
will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the 
outstanding principal.  Interest is credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure 
line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the 
voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in 
the balance sheet.  
 
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the general fund balance is the interest 
receivable for the financial year. However, the loss attributable to a loan of less than £20,000 is 
not material and at the current date the council has no material loans.  
 
Expected credit loss 
 
The council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised costs, 
either on a 12 month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease 

Page 182

Agenda Item 7

Page 183



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 82 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) 
held by the council. 
 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take 
place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in 
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, 
losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, 
losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.  

 
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 
 
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services except where a statutory override applies in 
which case, they will be recognised in an unusable financial instruments reserve. 
 
The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 
 
▪ instruments with quoted market prices - the market price; 
▪ other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis. 

 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels: 
 
Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date, 
 
Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset, either directly or indirectly, 
 
Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 
 
For instruments where the statutory override applies, changes in fair value are balanced by an 
entry in the unusable financial instrument reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the surplus or 
deficit on revaluation of the assets.  The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred 
- these are debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along 
with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the unusable financial instrument reserve. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value 
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the financing and investment 
income and expenditure line in the CIES.  If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  
Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition 
cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any accumulated 
gains or losses previously recognised in the unusable financial instrument reserve. 
 

Page 183

Agenda Item 7

Page 184



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 83 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 
impairment losses). 
 
(ix) Foreign currency translation 
 
The council makes a number of small purchases in foreign currency.  However, the transaction is 
made at the current prevailing exchange rate, the goods or services are received immediately and, 
therefore, there are no gains or losses as a result of variances in the exchange rate required to be 
recorded. 
 
(x) Government grants and contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third-party 
contributions and donations, including Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions, are 
recognised as due to the council when there is reasonable assurance that: 
 
▪ the council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 

 
▪ the grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the CIES until conditions attached to 
the grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified.  If this is not the case, then 
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the balance sheet as creditors.  When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution 
is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or taxation 
and non-specific grant income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the general fund balance in 
the MiRS.  Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the 
capital grants unapplied reserve.  When it has been applied, it is posted to the capital adjustment 
account. 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
The council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure levy (CIL). The levy will be charged 
on new builds (chargeable developments for the authority) with appropriate planning consent. The 
council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge. The income from the levy will 
be used to fund a number of infrastructure projects (these include transport, flood defences and 
schools) to support the development of the area. 
 
CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement 
date of the chargeable development in the CIES in accordance with the accounting policy for 
government grants and contributions set out above. CIL charges will be largely used to fund 
capital expenditure. However, a proportion of the charges may be used to fund revenue 
expenditure.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 184

Agenda Item 7

Page 185



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 84 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(xi) Intangible assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the council. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the 
council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able 
to sell or use the asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as 
attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research 
expenditure cannot be capitalised). 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the council’s goods or services. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of 
the assets held by the council can be determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no 
intangible asset held by the council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at 
amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to 
the relevant service line(s) in the CIES.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an 
intangible asset is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the general fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
general fund balance in the MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xii) Interests in companies and other entities – jointly controlled operations and jointly 

controlled assets 
 
The council has no material interests in other companies or entities that have the nature of 
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities and there is therefore no requirement to 
prepare group accounts. 
 
Jointly controlled operations are classified as activities undertaken by the council in conjunction 
with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than 
the establishment of a separate entity.  They are items of property, plant or equipment that are 
jointly controlled by the council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain benefits 
for the venturers.  Whilst the council has entered into joint arrangements on the provision of 
services with other councils, none of the assets of those councils can be said to be under joint 
control of the councils. 
(xiii) Inventories and long-term contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.   
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the CIES with the value of works 
and services received under the contract during the financial year. 
 
 
 

Page 185

Agenda Item 7

Page 186



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 85 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(xiv) Investment property 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the 
highest and best use value of the asset from the market participants’ perspective.  Investment 
properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 
year-end.  Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the financing and investment income and 
expenditure line in the CIES.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the financing and investment 
income line and result in a gain for the general fund balance. However, revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the general 
fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the general fund balance in the 
MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xv) Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 
lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
The council as lessee 
 
Finance leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the balance sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for 
the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the council are added to the carrying amount 
of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 
▪ A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment - applied to write 

down the lease liability; and 
 

▪ A finance charge (debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this 

Page 186

Agenda Item 7

Page 187



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 86 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to 
the council at the end of the lease period). 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue 
funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 
contribution in the general fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital 
adjustment account in the MiRS for the difference between the two. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the services 
benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are made on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease. 
 
The council as lessor 
 
Finance leases 
 
Where the council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the balance sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the 
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet (whether property, plant and 
equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES 
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing the council’s net investment in the 
lease, is credited to the same line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease 
(long-term debtor) asset in the balance sheet. 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 
▪ A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the lease 

debtor (together with any premiums received); and 
 

▪ Finance income (credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
The gain credited to the CIES on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the general fund 
balance and is posted out of the general fund balance to the capital receipts reserve in the 
movement in reserves statement.  Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be 
settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the general fund 
balance to the deferred capital receipts reserve in the movement in reserves statement.  When the 
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used 
to write down the lease debtor.  At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
capital receipts reserve. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
therefore appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the 
MiRS. 
 
 
Operating leases 
 

Page 187

Agenda Item 7

Page 188



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 87 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the balance sheet.  Rental income is a creditor to the other operating 
expenditure line in the CIES.  Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. 
 
(xvi) Overheads and support services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to services in accordance with the 
authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.   
 
(xvii) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 
during more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 
 
Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 
expense when it is incurred. 
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 
▪ the purchase price;  
 
▪ any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
The council would not capitalise borrowing costs if required to be incurred for assets under 
construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows 
of the council).  In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the council. 
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the taxation and non-specific grant income line of the CIES, 
unless the donation has been made conditionally.  Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in 
the donated assets account.  Where gains are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the 
general fund balance to the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 
▪ Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost; 

 
▪ Surplus assets – fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a market participant’s 

perspective; 
 

Page 188

Agenda Item 7

Page 189



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 88 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

▪ All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in 
its existing use. 

 
Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value. 
 
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure 
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as 
a minimum every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation 
reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the CIES where 
they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
▪ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains); 

 
▪ where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the decrease in value the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and 
the remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 

 
▪ where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is written 

down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 
 

When assets are formally revalued, the accumulated depreciation and impairment balances are 
written down.  The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 
only, the date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
into the capital adjustment account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired.   Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
▪ Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains);  
 

▪ Where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the carrying amount 
of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and the 
remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 
 

▪ Where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is 
written down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 
 

Page 189

Agenda Item 7

Page 190



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 89 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

▪ Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 

Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 
▪ Buildings and infrastructure assets – straight line allocation over the useful life of the property 

as estimated by the valuer; 
 

▪ Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – on a straight-line basis, generally over the useful life 
of the asset. 

 
More detail on depreciation rates for asset categories is included in note 6 to the accounts. 
Where an item of property, plant and equipment has major components whose cost is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.   
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the 
capital adjustment account. 
 
Disposals and non-current assets held for sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held 
for sale.  The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 
this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value 
less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES.  Gains in 
fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous loss recognised in the surplus or 
deficit on provision of services.  Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified 
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were 
classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have 
been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale and their recoverable amount at the 
date of the decision not to sell.   
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.  
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance 
sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other 
operating expenditure line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated 
for the asset in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment account. 
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  
Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 

Page 190

Agenda Item 7

Page 191



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 90 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 
(xviii) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.   
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES when the 
authority has an obligation , and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of 
the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the balance 
sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes 
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement 
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the council settles the 
obligation. 
 
Contingent liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the council.  Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
Contingent assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
(xix) Reserves 
 
The council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the general fund balance in 
the movement in reserves statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, 
it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the CIES.  The reserve is then 

Page 191

Agenda Item 7

Page 192



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 91 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

appropriated back into the general fund balance in the MiRS so that there is no net charge against 
council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable 
resources for the council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note. 
 
(xx) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the CIES in the year.  Where the council has determined to meet the cost of 
this expenditure from existing capital resources, a transfer in the MiRS from the general fund 
balance to the capital adjustment account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is 
no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
(xxi) Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 
(xxii)  Fair Value Measurement 
 
The council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  
 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or  
 
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The council uses external valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities in line with the 
highest and best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the 
asset or liability being valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant.  
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the council’s fair value measurement of its assets 
and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
 
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
authority can access at the measurement date.  
 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly.    
 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
(xxiii) Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (England) 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of 
the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and 
NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the 
Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and 
NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors 

Page 192

Agenda Item 7

Page 193



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 92 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax 
and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 

 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR 
 
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine 
the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. 
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund 
is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of 
year balances in respect of council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for 
doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 
 
Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising 
from a past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made (fixed or 
determinable payments), the asset is written down and a charge made to the collection fund.  The 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future 
cash flows. 
 

 
 

  

Page 193

Agenda Item 7

Page 194



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 93 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Glossary of terms 
 
Accounts – A generic term for statements setting out details of income and expenditure or assets 
and liabilities or both in a structured manner. Accounts may be categorised by the type of 
transactions they record e.g. revenue accounts, capital accounts or by the purpose they serve e.g. 
management accounts, final accounts, balance sheets. 
 
Accounting policies – those principles, bases, conventions rules and practices applied by an 
entity that specify how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its 
financial statements through: 
 
a) recognising 
b) selecting measurement bases for, and 
c) presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves. 

 
Accounting policies do not include estimation techniques. 
 
Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are reflected in the 
financial statements.  For example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may 
specify whether an asset or a loss is to be recognised; the basis on which it is to be measured; 
and where in the revenue account or balance sheet it is to be presented. 
 
Accounting standards - A set of rules explaining how accounts are to be kept. By law, local 
Councils must follow ‘proper accounting practices’, which are set out in Act of Parliament and in 
professional codes and statements of recommended practices. These standards make 
comparability, among other things, possible. 
 
Accrual – a fundamental accounting principle is that income and expenditure should be 
accounted for in the period to which it relates, irrespective of the date of settlement.  An accrual is 
a sum included in the accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to goods or services 
received within the accounting period but for which payment has not been received or made. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pension liability that arise because events have 
not coincided with assumptions. Not charged to revenue. 
 
Agency – the provision of services by one organisation on behalf of another organisation. The 
organisation directly providing the services is reimbursed by the responsible organisation. 
 
Amortisation – the planned writing-down of the value of an asset (tangible or intangible) over its 
limited useful life. 
 
Asset – the creation or purchase of an item/building that has a monetary value.  Those assets of 
the council which are readily marketable are valued at market value.  Those which have a 
specialised use, such as leisure centres, are valued at depreciated replacement cost, which 
assesses the cost of providing a similar facility as a replacement but also allows a discount for the 
age of the asset.  Plant, equipment and community assets are valued at historic cost. 
 
Asset register – a register listing the book values of all the Council’s non-current fixed assets, 
both tangible and intangible. 
 
Balance sheet – the balance sheet is a statement of the assets and liabilities at the end of the 
accounting period.  It is a “snapshot” of the accounts at a single point in time. 
 

Page 194

Agenda Item 7

Page 195



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 94 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Capital adjustment account - accumulates (on the debit side) the write-down of the historical 
cost of fixed assets as they are consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on 
disposal. It accumulates (on the credit side) the resources that have been set aside to finance 
capital expenditure. The same process applies to capital expenditure that is only capital by 
statutory definition (Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute). The balance on the 
account thus represents timing differences between the amount of the historical cost of fixed 
assets that has been consumed and the amount that has been financed in accordance with 
statutory requirements. 
 
Capital expenditure – expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds 
to and not merely maintains the value of an existing fixed asset.  
 
Capital financing – assembling the money to pay for capital expenditure.  This will include capital 
receipts, government grants and contributions from developers. Also available are revenue monies 
and borrowing.  The council does not currently borrow to finance capital expenditure. 
 
Capital receipts – proceeds from the sale of an asset, e.g. land, buildings, equipment, vehicles. 
 
Central administration charges – central administration charges are an allocation of the net cost 
of the administrative and professional departments that support all of an authority’s services, e.g. 
finance, personnel. 
 
Central support services – the costs of providing those central functions which are concerned 
with the whole range of services and undertakings of the council and are not in the main 
identifiable with any particular service, e.g. the cost of office accommodation. 
 
CIPFA – CIPFA is the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, which is the leading 
professional accountancy body for public services. 
 
Code of Practice – the CIPFA Code of Practice for Local Authority accounting developed as part 
of the accounting standards to be followed in compiling this statement of accounts. 
 
Collection fund – a fund maintained by collecting authorities into which is paid council taxes, 
NDR, and community charges. The fund then meets the requirements of the county, district and 
parish councils and the Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley for council tax, and 
the county and central government for NDR. 
 
Community assets – assets that the council intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no 
determinable useful life, and that may have restrictions on their disposal.  Examples of community 
assets are parks and historical buildings.   
 
Consistency – the principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting 
period and from one period to the next is the same. 
 
Contingency - money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of 
expenditure, or shortfalls in income, and to provide for inflation where this is not included in 
individual budgets. 
 
Contingent asset – a potential asset arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the council’s 
control. 
 
Contingent liability – a contingent liability is either: 
 

Page 195

Agenda Item 7

Page 196



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 95 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

• a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or 

 

• a present obligation arising from past events where it is not possible to measure the amount of 
obligation with sufficient reliability. 

 
Council tax – a charge levied by all councils on domestic property values to contribute to the cost 
of providing local services.  Council tax for the county council, the local police crime commissioner 
and local parishes is collected by this council and paid over to them throughout the year. 
 
Council tax benefit - is the assistance provided by billing authorities to adults on low incomes to 
help them pay their council tax bill.  
 
Council tax requirement - the estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services that 
needed to be financed from the Council Tax after deducting income from fees and charges, certain 
specific grants and any funding from reserves. 
 
Creditor – the amount owed by the council for work done, goods received, or services rendered to 
the council within the accounting period but for which payment has not been made at the date of 
the balance sheet. 
 
Current asset – an asset where the value changes on a frequent basis e.g. stores, cash, debtors 
(as distinct from a fixed asset such as land and buildings). 
 
Current liability – an amount which will become payable or for which payment could be 
requested within the next accounting period, e.g. creditors, bank overdrafts, short term loans. 
 
Current service costs (pensions) – the increase in pension liabilities as a result of years of 
service earned this year. Allocated to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees 
worked. 
 
Debtor – an amount due to the council within the accounting period but not received at the date of 
the balance sheet. 
 
Deferred capital receipts - capital income still to be received after disposals have taken place. 
 
Defined benefit pension scheme – a pension or other retirement benefit scheme where the 
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are 
not directly related to the investments of the scheme. 
 
Defined contribution pension scheme – a pension or other retirement benefit scheme into 
which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or a percentage of pay and will 
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have 
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior 
periods. 
 
Depreciation – the measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that 
have been consumed during the period.  Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other 
reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether arising from use, passage of time or 
obsolescence through either changes in technology, legislation or demand for goods and service 
produced by the asset. 
 

Page 196

Agenda Item 7

Page 197



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 96 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Direct revenue financing – the financing of capital expenditure from the current year’s revenue 
account. 
 
Earmarked reserves - The council holds a number of reserves earmarked to be used to meet 
specific, known or predicted future expenditure. 
 
Events after the balance sheet date – events after the balance sheet date are those events, 
favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date (normally 31 March) and 
the date when the statement of accounts is authorised for issue – also referred to as Post  
Balance Sheet Events (PBSE).  These may be classed as ‘adjusting’ or ‘non-adjusting’. 
 
Exceptional items – material items which derive from events of transactions that fall within the 
ordinary activities of the authority and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size 
or incidence to give a true and fair presentation of the accounts. 
 
External audit - The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities 
to ensure the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and 
proper practices and to ensure the council has made proper arrangements to secure value for 
money in its use of resources. 
 
Extraordinary items – material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive 
from events of transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the authority and which are 
not expected to recur.  They do not include exceptional items, nor do they include prior period 
items merely because they relate to a prior period.  
 
Fair value – the fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arms-
length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of 
the asset. 
 
Finance lease – this is a lease, usually of land or buildings, which is treated as capital borrowing 
and for which transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the 
lessee; or where the residual interest in the asset transfers to the lessee on completion of the 
lease term. 
 
Financial instrument – a financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of 
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ 
covers both financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward 
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the most complex 
ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives. 
 
Financial regulations - These are the written code of procedures approved by the council, 
intended to provide a framework for proper financial management. Financial regulations usually 
set out rules on accounting, audit, administrative and budgeting procedures. 
 
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) – accounting practice recommended by the Accounting 
Standards Board (ASB) for adoption in the preparation of accounts by applicable bodies. 
 
Fixed asset – fixed assets are assets of the council that continue to have value and benefit for a 
period longer than one financial year. 
 
Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the results of actions to relieve the council of 
liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees.  
Debited to the net costs of services as part of non-distributed costs. 
 

Page 197

Agenda Item 7

Page 198



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 97 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

General fund – the main revenue account of an authority, which summarises the cost of all 
services provided by the council which are paid for from amounts collected from council taxpayers, 
government grants and other income. 
 
Going concern – the concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future, in particular that the revenue accounts and Balance Sheet assume no intention 
to curtail significantly the scale of operations. 
 
Heritage asset - A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and 
culture. 
 
Housing benefit - This is an allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or 
part, their rent. Benefit is allowed or paid by Local Authorities but Central Government refunds part 
of the cost of the benefits and of the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits 
paid to the Authority’s own tenants are known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants as 
rent allowance. 
 
IAS 19 – International Accounting Standard 19 requires the council to account for assets and 
liabilities which are in held the pension fund administered by Oxfordshire County Council but 
relating to this authority, in the accounts of this authority. 
 
IAS 40 - International Accounting Standard 40 relates to the accounting for investment properties. 
 
iBoxx – iBoxx indices cover the cash bond market. Underlying bond prices and indices are 
available in real time. 
 
Impairment – an unexpected or sudden decline in the value of a fixed asset, such as property or 
vehicle, below its carrying amount on the balance sheet. 
 
Infrastructure assets - Fixed Assets which generally cannot be sold and from which benefit can 
be obtained only by continued use of the asset created. Examples of such assets are highways, 
footpaths, bridges and water and drainage facilities. 
 
Intangible fixed assets – some capital expenditure does not give rise to a physical asset, but the 
benefits last a number of years.  These can be carried in the balance sheet as assets and written 
off over their useful life.  An example is computer software. 
 
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) – defined Accounting Standards that must be applied by all reporting entities to all financial 
statements in order to provide a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position, and a 
standardised method of comparison with financial statements of the other entities. 
 
Liabilities – these are amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at 
some time in the future.  Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance 
Sheet date. 
 
Liquid resources – current asset investments that are readily disposable without disrupting the 
authority’s business and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the 
carrying amount or traded in an active market. 
 
Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) (also known as business rates) – NDR is a tax charged on 
commercial properties.  It is calculated by multiplying a property's 'rateable value' by a nationally 
set amount (known as the ‘NDR multiplier’).  The council acts as a collecting agency for NDR and 

Page 198

Agenda Item 7

Page 199



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 98 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

the proceeds are then redistributed to central government, the county council and the balance 
retained by the council. 
 
Net Book Value (NBV) – the amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet; i.e.: 
their historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 
 
Net current replacement cost – the cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its 
existing condition and in its existing use. 
 
Net debt – the authority’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources.  Where the cash and liquid 
resources exceed borrowings, reference should be to Net funds rather than net debt. 
 
Net realisable value – the open market value of an asset in its existing use, less the expenses to 
be incurred in realising the asset. 
 
Non-operational assets – fixed assets held by the authority but not used or consumed in the 
delivery of services or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.  Examples of non-
operational assets include investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, 
pending their sale.  
 
Operating lease – this is a lease where ownership of the fixed asset remains with the lessor and 
the lease costs are revenue expenditure to the Council – generally any lease other than a finance 
lease. 
 
Operational assets – fixed assets held and occupied, use or consumed by the authority in the 
direct delivery of those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility or 
for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.  
 
Past service cost – the increase in pension liabilities arising from current year decisions whose 
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years, debited to the net cost of services as part 
of non-distributed costs interest cost, and the expected increase in the present value of liabilities 
during the year as they move one year closer to being paid, debited to net operating expenditure. 
 
Post Balance Sheet Events (PBSE) – see events after the balance sheet date 
 
Precept – the levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the latter to 
collect income from council taxpayers on their behalf.  Precepts are paid from the Collection Fund. 
 
Prior period adjustment – those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from 
changes in accounting policies or form the correction of fundamental errors.  A fundamental error 
is one that is of such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial statements.  They do 
not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior 
years. 
 
Provisions - amounts set aside to meet liabilities or losses which it is anticipated will be incurred 
but where the amount and/or the timing of such costs is uncertain. 
Related parties – This is defined under Financial Reporting Standard 8. The Council is required to 
disclose material transactions with related parties, which can include central government, 
subsidiary and associated companies, the Pension Fund, other Councils, and chief and senior 
officers. IAS24 requires attention to be drawn to the possibility that the reported financial position 
may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by material transactions with them. 
 
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period: 
 

Page 199

Agenda Item 7

Page 200



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 99 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(a) one party has direct or indirect control of the other; or 
(b) the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 
(c) one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to the 
extent that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interests; 
or 
d) the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an 
extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interest. 
 
Remuneration – all sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of 
expenses allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money 
value of any other benefits received other than cash.  Pension contributions payable by the 
employer are excluded. 
 
Reporting standards - the Code prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures for all 
normal transactions of a Local Authority.  It is based on International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), International Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) plus UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and 
Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 
 
Revenue expenditure - expenditure incurred on the day-to-day running of the Council.  This 
mainly includes employee costs, general running expenses and capital financing costs. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) – (formerly known as a 
deferred charge) arises where: 
 

• Expenditure is charged to capital but there is no tangible asset e.g. improvement grants, 
compensatory payments. When the expenditure is incurred it is charged to the income and 
expenditure account with a compensating entry in the statement of movement on the general 
fund balance to ensure that there is no impact on the council tax; and 

 

• Assets are transferred to another organisation and the associated transferred debt is being 
repaid over time. These charges are written down by the loan repayments so that the total 
equates to the relevant loan debt outstanding. 

 
Since there are no long-term economic benefits in the control of the council, these are written off 
to revenue (CIES) in the year incurred and no longer feature as assets in the balance sheet. 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) – this main non-specific grant paid by central government to local 
authorities to help fund the services that they provide. The allocation to each authority is 
determined by a complex formula.  This comprises the council’s general government grant 
income. 
 
Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) - prepared and published by CIPFA, the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) replaced the previous Best Value Accounting Code of 
Practice (BVACOP).  It is reviewed annually to ensure that it develops in line with the needs of 
modern local government, transparency, best value and public services reform. SeRCOP 
establishes proper practices with regard to consistent financial reporting for services and in 
England and Wales, it is given legislative backing by regulations which identify the accounting 
practices it propounds as proper practices under the Local Government Act 2003. 
 
Trading account – a method of matching income and expenditure for a particular activity or group 
of activities.   An example of this is building control. 
 

Page 200

Agenda Item 7

Page 201



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 100 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Transferred debt – this is the term given to housing assets transferred to another council, for 
which the council receives repayment in the form of a loan. 
 
Useful life – the period over which the authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual governance statement 
 
The annual governance statement forms part of the audited accounts and can be found on the 
South Oxfordshire Council website by accessing the link below: 
 
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/council-
finances/our-finances/ 
 

Page 201

Agenda Item 7

Page 202



Communication schedule for uncorrected misstatements

Entity: South Oxfordshire District Council Period Ended: 31-Mar-2021 Currency: GBP

Account (Note 1) Assets
Current

Assets
Non-current

Liabilities
Current

Liabilities
Non-current

Equity 
components

Effect on the 
current period 

OCI

(misstatements are recorded as journal entries with a 
description )

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit) Debit/(Credit) Debit/(Credit) Non 
taxable

Prior period 
Debit/(Credit)

Non 
taxable

Judgmental misstatements:

Factual misstatements:

21 SO 
PPE 
Additions 

Supplier control account 169,260

Infrastructure assets (169,260)

Projected misstatements:

21 
SODC Short Term Debtors 181,078

Short Term creditors (44,037)

Recognised capital grants and contributions (137,041) X

Total of uncorrected misstatements before income tax 181,078 (169,260) (44,037) 169,260 0 0 (137,041) 0

Total of uncorrected misstatements 181,078 (169,260) (44,037) 169,260 0 0 (137,041) 0

Financial statement amounts 162,170,000 94,211,000 (43,104,000) (141,689,000) (151,322,000) 6,940,000

Effect of uncorrected misstatements on F/S amounts 0.1% -0.2% 0.1% -0.1% 0.0% -2.0% 0.0%

Memo: Total of non-taxable items (marked 'X' above) (137,041) 0

Uncorrected misstatements before income tax 0.0% (137,041) 0

Less: Tax effect of misstatements at current year marginal rate 0% 0 0

Uncorrected misstatements in income tax 0 0

Cumulative effect of uncorrected misstatements after tax but before turnaround -2.0% (137,041) 0

Turnaround effect of prior period uncorrected misstatements                    After tax Memo: Before tax
All factual and projected misstatements: 0 0

Judgmental misstatements (Note 3): 0 0

Cumulative effect of uncorrected misstatements, after turnaround effect -2.0% (137,041)

Reversal of duplicate accrual in PPE Additions

CIL income accounted for on a cash basis instead of accruals basis.

Uncorrected misstatements Analysis of misstatements Debit/(Credit)

No. W/P ref. Income statement  effect 
of the current period

Income statement  effect of 
the prior period

Form 430GL+UKI (30 September 2021)

P
age 202

A
genda Item

 7

P
age 203



Communication schedule for uncorrected misstatements

Entity: South Oxfordshire District Council Period Ended: 31-Mar-2021 Currency: GBP

Account (Note 1) Assets
Current

Assets
Non-current

Liabilities
Current

Liabilities
Non-current

Equity 
components

Effect on the 
current period 

OCI

(misstatements are recorded as journal entries with a 
description )

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit)
(Note 2)

Debit/(Credit) Debit/(Credit) Debit/(Credit) Non 
taxable

Prior period 
Debit/(Credit)

Non 
taxable

Uncorrected misstatements Analysis of misstatements Debit/(Credit)

No. W/P ref. Income statement  effect 
of the current period

Income statement  effect of 
the prior period

Current year income before tax

Current year income after tax 6,940,000

Form 430GL+UKI (30 September 2021)

P
age 203

A
genda Item

 7

P
age 204



                 

 

 

 

 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

 

2020/21 

       

  

Page 204

Agenda Item 7

Page 205



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 2 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

     CONTENTS 
 

  Page 

Narrative statement 3 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 17 

Audit opinion 18 

The core financial statements: 23 

 Comprehensive income and expenditure statement 25 

 Movement in reserves statement 27 

 Balance Sheet 28 

 Cash flow statement 29 

Notes to the accounting statements 30 

Collection fund account 67 

 Notes to the collection fund account 68 

Statement of accounting policies 72 

Glossary of terms 88 

Annual governance statement 96 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

135 Eastern Avenue 

Milton Park 

Milton 

Abingdon 

Oxfordshire 

OX14 4SB 

  

Page 205

Agenda Item 7

Page 206



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 3 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Narrative statement 

Introduction 

This narrative statement provides a commentary on Vale of White Horse District Council’s 

(council) performance during 2020/21.  It is a guide to the council’s performance against key 

targets, the most significant matters reported in the accounts, an explanation in overall terms of 

the council’s financial position at the end of the financial year, and a commentary on the council’s 

future prospects.  This statement does not form part of the financial statements.   

To assist the reader, a glossary of financial terms is provided on pages 88-95.                                                                        

The council’s accounts 

The council’s Statement of Accounts (SoA) shows the financial results of the council’s activities for 

the year ended 31 March 2021 and summarises the overall financial position of the council as at 

31 March 2021.  It is prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA) code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom (“the 

code”).  The accounts have been compiled under International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS).   

In addition, the Annual Governance Statement sets out the purpose and nature of the council’s 

governance framework.  It also provides a review of the effectiveness of the governance 

framework and highlights any significant governance issues.  This statement is published as a 

separate document and is available on the council’s website. 

Introduction to Vale of White Horse district  

Vale of White Horse is the 11th most rural district in the South East region, with an average of 2.35 

persons per hectare.  Around 40 per cent of the population live in rural areas, outside the towns of 

Abingdon, Faringdon and Wantage, the village of Grove, and the Oxford belt.1  Population in mid-

2020 was 135,939; of these, 27,460 (20 per cent) were aged 65 or over, and 3,942 (3 per cent) 

were aged 85 or over.2  

In 2031, the Office for National Statistics projects a population increase of around 14 per cent to 

154,3983 (an extra 18,459 people).  It is expected that there will be 35,832 people aged 65+, 

comprising 23 per cent of the population.  There are also projected to be 5,823 people aged 85+ 

(4 per cent of the population); this growth in the very old (+30 per cent) is lower than the England 

growth (+35 per cent).  

Between 2001 and 2011, the total number of households in Vale of White Horse increased by 

3,600 (+8 per cent).  As of 2011, there were 49,400 occupied households in Vale of White Horse, 

 

1 This statistic has been produced by measuring the proportion of OAs (Output Areas) in MSOAs (Middle Layer Super Output Areas) in Vale of 

White Horse into ‘urban’ and ‘rural’ using the latest mid-year population estimates. 

Output Areas: OA is the lowest geographical level at which census estimates are provided and are built from clusters of adjacent unit postcodes but 
as they reflected the characteristics of the actual census data. 
Middle Layer Super Output Areas: are a geographic hierarchy designed to improve the reporting of small area statistics in England and Wales. 

2 2019-based small area population estimates 

3 2018-based subnational population projections 

Page 206

Agenda Item 7

Page 207



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 4 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

72 per cent of which were owned in full or with a mortgage.  The majority of this growth was in 

private rented households which increases reliance on the private rented sector.4  

The COVID-19 pandemic has had an impact on employment across Vale of White Horse and the 
country: of the resident population aged 16+, 3.3 per cent claim out of work benefits compared to 
last year’s 1.3 per cent. However, this figure remained way below England’s average of 6.4 per 
cent.5 
 
In 2019, the cheapest (lowest quartile) market housing in Vale of White Horse was 10.56 times a 

lowest quartile salary, and the Vale of White Horse ratio of lowest quartile house prices to lowest 

quartile earnings remains above the England average of 7.27.6  This means that many people 

can’t afford to buy, and many young people need to move out of the district. 

Corporate priorities 

The council’s Corporate Plan 2020–2024 contains strategic objectives and corporate priorities for 

the period, the focus is: 

• Providing the homes people need 

• Tackling the climate emergency 

• Building healthy communities 

• Building stable finances 

• Working in partnership 

• Working in an open and inclusive way. 

 

How performance is measured 

The council’s activities are guided by our four-year corporate plan for 2020-2024 and by fulfilling 

statutory responsibilities.  Key performance indicators will be measured 

for the council via quarterly and annual corporate plan performance reports. The 

reports will be subjected to a review process by the council’s senior management 

team, Climate Emergency Advisory Committee, Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet, and 

then published on the council’s website. 

COVID-19 – Community Hub and roadmap 
 
The continuing impact of the pandemic on the council’s performance is outlined in 
this report. The majority of councillors and officers continue to work from home, other 
than those whose work requires otherwise. In those cases, the appropriate risk 
assessments are taken, and government guidelines are followed. The Council is proud of the 
quick and efficient response its services deliver to support communities 
during this time. 
 
The Community Hub puts residents in touch with a network of volunteer groups and organisations 
to help with food, medicine and friendly phone calls. In urgent cases, support is available for food 
and prescription deliveries. A total of 397 food parcels have been delivered to residents 

 

4 Census 2011 

5 ONS Claimant count by sex and age, January 2021. 

6 Housing Affordability data for 2019 from ONS March 2020: 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/ratioofhousepricetoworkplacebasedearningslowerquartileandmedian 

Page 207

Agenda Item 7

Page 208



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 5 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

since the start of the pandemic, and 498 medicine collections took place across both 
South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse. In addition, a range of information 
and advice is available for the public and businesses on the council website, such as how to 
book a vaccination and how to obtain financial support. 
 
As well as dedicating significant officer resource to the pandemic, the council has also 
made its buildings available, including for the creation and operation of the community 
hub. The Beacon in Wantage from February 2021 is being used as a Covid-19 testing 
site for public-facing workers and volunteers who are not displaying symptoms. The council 
worked closely with partners across Oxfordshire to help set up this rapid 
symptom-free testing site to help stop the spread of the virus, protect the NHS and vital 
social care services, and ultimately to save lives. 
 
The council is working with partners at the county and district councils, local GPs and the 
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) on a COVID-19 vaccination outreach 
scheme. Officers provided people with help to book an appointment, arrange 
transport, or simply offered information and advice in a format agreed with NHS 
colleagues. Feedback from residents and the outcomes of visits to helped build up a detailed 
picture of why people may be not taking up the opportunity of vaccination. 
 
268 people across South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse who the NHS test and trace 
national system was unable to reach were visited and the employment of two Government funded 
COVID-19 Compliance Marshals enabled the council to encourage and support businesses to 
trade in a ‘COVID-19 secure’ manner, and to provide further advice to the public. 
 
During the year £28.7 million was paid in financial support to businesses in Vale of White Horse, 
through a range of HM Government grant schemes.  
 
As part of the council’s initial response to the pandemic, each councillor was provided 
with £2,000 for them to spend directly to support communities trying to respond to the 
crisis. 
 

As the COVID-19 vaccination programme continues to progress well, the frame of 

thinking is moving to the medium/longer-term. The Oxfordshire Economic Recovery 

Plan has been developed and the council we will soon be developing its own, that will 

provide a route map for recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, and the impact it has 

had on residents, the council and businesses. 

Providing the homes people need 

The council’s challenge is to find ways to provide more genuinely affordable housing, including 
housing for social rent, to better provide for the needs of the Vale residents, the aim is to 
provide a mix of tenures in each development to build sustainable homes in balanced 
and sustainable communities and influence decision makers, where the responsibility lies outside 
of Vale. 
 
The Vale of White Horse District’s Local Plan is divided into two parts: Local Plan 
2031 Part 1 was adopted at Full Council in December 2016; and Local Plan 2031 Part 
2 was adopted by Full Council on Wednesday 9 October 2019. 
 

Page 208

Agenda Item 7

Page 209



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 6 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Going forward, the Vale have agreed to develop a future joint Local Plan for the area 
to reduce costs and help the councils meet their ambitious targets for making the two 
districts carbon neutral. 
 
Local Plans are used to help determine planning applications and set out how and 
where new housing developments should take place, along with identifying the 
infrastructure needed to support them. They also set out policies on what kind of 
housing is appropriate and acceptable; what the local requirements for affordable 
housing is; and can even set requirements on the energy-efficiency levels of new 
developments 
 
Both councils have committed to do everything they can to address the climate and 
ecological emergency, and officers advised that the consensus on these issues 
makes this a rare opportunity to create a joint Local Plan. 
 
The advantages include the planning issues in the two districts are quite similar, like 
the need for carbon reduction, affordable housing and new and improved 
infrastructure, and so a joint plan would be able to address these issues in a co-ordinated way. 
 
There will also be cost savings by producing one plan for both districts because there 
would be one set of evidence studies, one local plan examination and one Planning 
Inspector not two. 
 
After the first two years there has been good progress towards the targets in all parts of 
the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal, though the COVID-19 pandemic is having 
a significant impact on growth and development which prompted a review of all areas 
of activity. It is still anticipated that the Oxford to Cambridge Arc will be a major 
government focus for economic recovery. 
 
In March 2021, the building control service were awarded the quality mark ISO 9001 
for their provision of public sector building control and public protection services. 
 
Building control is a service that checks that structures and buildings are constructed 
or modified to meet Building Regulations standards to make sure that the minimum 
standards to protect people’s safety, health and welfare in and around buildings can 
be achieved. 
 
An important part of their work is to help improve energy efficiency, protect and 
enhance the environment and promote sustainable development. 
 
This quality mark is a fantastic achievement for the building control team and 
demonstrates the council’s commitment to providing a quality service for residents. Ensuring 
the safety of all building work, whether on homes, public buildings or commercial 
properties is a vital role for the communities the council serves. 
 
The Planning Service are also reviewing the adopted design guide (2016). This will 
help further improve the quality of new development and to mitigate climate change. 
The Climate Emergency Advisory Committee are involved in this project and have 
provided some recommendations to officers. 
 
The Corporate Plan 2020-24 sets out to explore a council-owned holding 
company or vehicle, to focus on delivering a wide range of regeneration and 

Page 209

Agenda Item 7

Page 210



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 7 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

community benefits including housing, community facilities, land maintenance and 
health. An appraisal of options that sets out the specific levers and characteristics that may be 
available to the council to do has been undertaken. 
 

Tackling the climate emergency 

The council is proud of its record on waste and recycling. It has achieved 
efficiencies in its contract and maintained consistently high levels of recycling and 
customer satisfaction with the service provided. 
 
In February 2019 the council declared a Climate Emergency which was followed by a 
pledge to become a carbon neutral council by 2030 and a carbon neutral district by 
2045. A Climate Action Plan for 2021-24 has been developed and an annual climate 
action work programme approved. Completed baseline reviews and scenario modelling to  
enable the development of a robust climate action plan have been completed. 
 
While the COVID-19 pandemic created many challenges in 2020/21, there were also 
some positive outcomes, including a reduction in the council’s carbon emissions. The 
table below shows the key operational areas in which emissions reductions were 
made in the first three quarters of 2020/21 
 

Vale of White Horse CO2 emissions (tonnes) Quarter 1 to Quarter 3 

 2019/20 2020/21 Change on 
2019/20 

% Change on 
2019/20 

Leisure centres 1,125 450 -675 -60.00% 

Council offices 67 50 -17 -25.37% 

Beacon 45 28 -17 -37.78% 

Staff mileage 24 11 -13 -54.17% 

 
The leisure centre reductions can be attributed exclusively to closures due to COVID- 
19 related closures and restricted access. Sustained reductions will only 
be achieved through the implementation of decarbonisation projects. Progress has been 
Made on this and the council has successfully obtained £361k of external funding from  
the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme for installation of low carbon and renewable 
energy at Faringdon Leisure Centre. The project will involve the full refurbishment of the 
heating system on both the wet and dry sides of the leisure centre, with the replacement 
of the gas boilers with air source heat pumps, together with solar panels to generate 
renewable electricity on site to power the new heat pumps. The project will deliver annual 
energy savings of 450,000 kwh - which is the equivalent of powering around 120 houses. 
 
The council continues to explore further opportunities to secure external funding to further 
reduce building emissions. 
 
County wide funding from Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme was achieved 
in February 2021. At least 150 homes across Oxfordshire will be made more energy efficient 
because of the successful county-wide bid for £1.5 million of government funding. The county 
council will be working together with expected delivery partner the National Energy Foundation 
(NEF) to help less well-off households retrofit their homes with energy saving equipment – cutting 
families’ fuel bills while at the same time helping to reduce the county’s carbon footprint. 
 
NEF, a registered charity with expertise in energy efficiency and fuel poverty, will work 

Page 210

Agenda Item 7

Page 211



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 8 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

with the county’s five city and district councils (Cherwell, Oxford City, South 
Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse and West Oxfordshire) to identify properties that fit 
the criteria. 
 
Following feedback from the review into their operations, The Oxfordshire Growth 
Board has established an Environment Advisory Group to complement their work. 
This group will advise (i.e. non decision making) and provide strategic oversight of 
Growth Board work, provide a read across and challenge to ensure synergies 
between Oxfordshire strategies and develop proposals for addressing these strategic 
gaps lobbying for and gaining HM Government support for addressing 
environmentally issues for Oxfordshire at scale. The Vale of White Horse will have a 
Cabinet Member representative on the group. It is anticipated that this group will join 
up with the Oxford Cambridge arc leaders’ group and its Senior Responsible Officer 
will be involved in the arc environment working group ensuring effective collaboration 
on both strategic programmes in Oxfordshire. 
 
Cabinet has endorsed the Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle (EV) Infrastructure Strategy to 
ensure that anyone wishing to buy an EV will have access to convenient charging 
facilities. A Park and Charge project will install EV chargers in five public car parks 
this year. 
 
Recycling rates are high, and Vale has been in the top five of all English councils for 
recycling for several years. During 2019/20 (the latest year for which DEFRA figures 
are available), the council achieved a recycling rate of 63.3% per cent, which was third 
highest of all English councils; 62.5% was achieved in 2018/19. 
 
New website content on climate action has been launched to promote and raise 
awareness of the Climate Emergency and provide advice and support to residents 
and businesses. Decision-making templates have been amended to include climate 
and ecological implications to embed the Climate Emergency at the heart of council 
decision-making. This year’s Town & Parish Council Forum is titled ‘Climate Action – 
how can we take action together’ and will discuss how to work together on making the 
district carbon neutral by 2045. 
 

The Council are working with the operators of Milton Park (MEPC) to respond to the 

Climate Emergency and create healthy communities by bringing more sustainable 

investment, creating 10,000 new high value science and technology jobs. The review 

of the Milton Park Local Development Order, is part of the Science Vale strategy to 

provide an attractive environment for start-up businesses to grow and businesses to 

relocate -helping to create new jobs in science and technology, and other sectors. 

The Council supported by MEPC will carry out a public consultation later this year on 

the proposed modifications before they are considered by the council. 

Building healthy communities 

Since the outbreak of the pandemic, our COVID -19 response has been integral to 
supporting businesses and communities in the district. The Community Hub has supported 
hundreds of residents across the district whilst also encouraging patients 
who have been invited for a vaccine and not accepted the offer. So far, a total of 
£28.7 million has been paid in financial support to businesses in the Vale of White 
Horse, through a range of HM Government grant schemes. The work on the 

Page 211

Agenda Item 7

Page 212



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 9 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Oxfordshire and local Economic Recovery Plan will provide an economic route map 
for recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
A part of the council’s Covid-19 response, it supported a number of community groups (a 
network) and will be exploring how to develop this further. Work is also underway to 
further adapt the council’s Community Enablement function to respond to changing 
needs because of Covid-19 and a new framework, responding to changes in needs 
arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Work has commenced on the concept of healthy place-shaping to create sustainable 
well-designed communities where healthy behaviours are the norm. A collaborative policy 
and influencing framework is being developed to wrap around and support local 
areas.  The council is a member of the Oxfordshire Health Improvement Board and 
Oxfordshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to ensure it aligns and contributes to 
health and wellbeing in its broader sense. 
 
The Science Vale Cycle Network (SVCN) has received a £5.8 million investment, with 
construction now taking place to improve the routes. Five cycle routes are now 
complete and more than 10km of cycle and pedestrian paths are now open. These 
routes link all the key employment zones including Harwell Campus, Milton Park and 
Culham Science Centre with Abingdon, Wantage and Didcot, inclusive of Didcot 
Parkway. The second phase of the SVCN will be advanced in the upcoming year, as 
well as pushing forward a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) for 
Didcot. Our Didcot Garden Team have implemented a range of other projects 
including an arts and culture map trail project, a Pop-Up spaces project and the 
introduction of Street Tag - a free smartphone app that offers rewards for 
exercise. Through the Active Communities Team, the council offered out-reach to promote 
activity across the district, for example organising health walks, when COVID-19 
restrictions have allowed. 
 
Following government advice that leisure centres can start to reopen in the Vale of 
White Horse, the council and their leisure contractor GLL, which runs the Better 
leisure centres across the districts, have agreed on a phased approach to re-opening. 
The councils have already resumed some of their outdoor sessions, such as Nordic 
Walking, and these are also following strict COVID-19 rules. In line with the 
government restrictions the council will also take a phased approach to re-opening 
their outdoor pool, at Abbey Meadows in Abingdon. Last year both pools remained 
shut as a result of the lockdown restrictions. The current plan is to open the pools for 
the summer season. This is subject to continued progress towards the government’s 
roadmap out of lockdown. 
 
The Active Communities team carried out a Lockdown Lifestyle survey, in which nearly 
1,800 respondents explained how the first lockdown affected their physical and mental  
Health. The council will be working to incorporate this feedback in the future. 
 
Work is also underway with local partners to transfer civil parking enforcement 
responsibility from Thames Valley Police to the district. 
 
The council has changed to the way it spends Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funds 
which will mean that money secured from housing developments in the district will be 
released for projects that make a significant difference to communities and help fulfil the 
priorities outlined in the Corporate Plan 2020-24. 

Page 212

Agenda Item 7

Page 213



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 10 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
As part of our commitments to help the districts become carbon neutral, a new 
partnership has been struck to help local businesses reduce their carbon footprint. 
The council is aiming for an ambitious net-zero target in Vale of White Horse and  
businesses have an important role to play in achieving this goal. As strategic partners, 
the council will be working with Oxfordshire Greentech to help connect businesses 
with specialist suppliers, customers and support organisations, and access funding 
streams and networking opportunities to help them minimise their emissions and 
impact on the environment. The councils’ South and Vale Business Support team will 
be partnering with the countywide network organisation to host events to show 
businesses how they can recycle more and reduce waste, how to incorporate 
sustainable procurement in their processes and to build in sustainability training. 
 

The council has a long history of supporting communities to help themselves through grant 

funding for projects. 

Building stable finances 

At the time of developing the Corporate Plan 2020-24 the pandemic has cost, and 
lost, the council money. Many years of austerity before that, as well as a failure to 
increase council tax in line with growing costs, makes it hard to balance the books. 
 
Over a number of years, the council has made significant savings through joint 
working, especially with its close partner South Oxfordshire District Council, with 
whom there are saved costs on staffing, contracts and office accommodation. 
 
This type of innovative joint working, along with sound financial management, has 
helped to keep costs down and meant that the council is able to keep the cost of council tax 
to resident’s low. 
 
In recent years the level of council tax has been kept low, from £123 for a band ‘D’ 
property in 2011/12 to £141.69 for 2021/22. This is the fifteenth lowest of all shire 
district councils. 
 
A number of key income streams are used, to ensure that the council is both maximising 
income and understanding early where external factors might impact on budgets. 
During 2020/21: 

 

• Planning income totalled £1.57 million against a compared to income of £1.65 million in 
2019/20. 

 

• Land charges income totalled £261k compared to £223k in the previous year. 
 

• Car parking income totalled £209k compared to £476k in the previous year. 
 

• The New Homes Bonus paid to the council in the year was £5.29 million and for 2021/2 will 
be £4.56 million, compared to an average of £1.11 million, putting Vale District Council first out 
of all 181 current shire district councils 

 

• The Council Tax collection rate was 98.27 per cent putting the council joint 60th with one 
other council when ranked against all 188 shire district councils existing at the end of March 
2020 (the latest data available). 

Page 213

Agenda Item 7

Page 214



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 11 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
The development of an innovative Transformation Strategy will diversify council revenue 
streams, improve effectiveness and secure on-going viability. The council is exploring 
scope for improved IT systems including for finance, accounting and payment 
solutions. These will improve efficiencies, leverage digital opportunities and meet 
requirements for modern government and planning processes. The ResolvIS project 
will provide further automation of the revenues & benefits service and greater self- 
service for customers and improve operational efficiency and user experience. New 
revenue streams are also being explored including for renewable energy and other 
land projects, such as revenue generation opportunities from a wind solar farm. 
 
The council’s new corporate focus on securing external funding will be implemented 
through the further development of the External Funding Framework. This framework 
builds on the council’s recent success by securing funding as part of HM Government Public 
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme. 
 
The Strategic Property Review, development of an enhanced property and asset 
records and databases, along with the One Public Estate project will embed strong 
stewardship of all council assets including property and financial investments. The 
Strategic Property Review has taken longer than anticipated as surveyors have 
been reviewing all of council assets thoroughly and also looking for any opportunities for 
environmental upgrades. 
 
A new Procurement Strategy is being developed which will provide additional 
opportunities for savings and efficiencies and continue to lobby for a fairer distribution 
of government funding and more devolution of funding to councils to sustain essential 
local services. 
 

Working in partnership 

The council continues to nurture existing local partnerships and develop new connections 
With people, groups and businesses across the Vale. The COVID-19 community response 
has further fostered links with a range of organisations such as charities and 
community groups for support and NHS partners to facilitate the roll out of COVID-19 
vaccinations across Oxfordshire. The intention is to harness these opportunities and build 
longer lasting partnerships. 
 
The council has actively engaged in countywide and Arc-wide plans including economic 
recovery plans to maximise understanding of the local impact of COVID-19 and to 
help shape the support available to the local economy. A joint strategic vision for long term 
sustainable development across the County has just been agreed with all Oxfordshire local 
authorities. This sets out what the future growth in Oxfordshire should look like based on 
improving social, environmental and economic wellbeing for all. 
 
The council will engage with residents as this plan progresses to ensure the work remains 

rooted in the communities served. The future development of an enhanced 

consultations strategy and process to ensure the council responds to consultations and 

proactively lobbies national government and other bodies on matters that impact  

corporate priorities, will supports this work. It will be further enhanced by the 

development of a Partnership Protocol, mapping out the current local, regional and 

Page 214

Agenda Item 7

Page 215



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 12 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

national partnerships to ensure the Vale has an active presence and appropriate 

resources. 

Working in an open and inclusive way 

The Council are developing a new Performance Management Framework to further 
enhance residents’ and partners’ ability to see progress on implementing its priorities 
set out in the Corporate Plan 2020-24 and recognise cross-departmental working 
ensuring that council departments work collaboratively to deliver best outcomes for 
residents. 
 
The council has completely rebuilt and relaunched it websites to make it easier to use 
for everyone, including those who are new to interacting with the councils online and 
those who have accessibility challenges, like visual impairments. Direct and effective 
communications tools have been used to keep all communities, staff, councillors, 
partner organisations and volunteer groups well-informed on a daily basis during the 
height of the pandemic. Highly engaging digital communications were used get across 
complex messages to both inform, educate and reassure the general public and other 
customers about the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Since they started going online at the beginning of the pandemic there have been around 
11,300 views of committee meetings for South Oxfordshire District Council and the Vale 
of White Horse District Council. The High Court have now ruled on whether or not virtual 
committee meetings could continue, and the news is that ‘primary legislation’ is required to 
continue with this approach. 
 
This means the council will be returning to face-to-face committee meetings after the 
elections in May. The councils have been planning for this outcome for some time and 
need to finalise and implement the necessary arrangements. 
 
HM Government are consulting on whether to legislate for virtual meetings in the 
future, having acknowledged the increased participation overall and the environmental 
benefits of this approach. 
 
Innovative communication methods have been introduced to educate residents about day-today 
council work, including providing an online educational recycling quiz, which more 
than 2,000 people took part in. 
 
A new post has been put in place for a senior officer to lead the improvement of council 
online and digital communication and engagement to ensure the councils don’t stand 
still, but continually innovate and develop how communities interact with the council. 
 
During the year,55 consultations, surveys and other engagement projects have been carried 
out. This includes 24 statutory consultations, and 12 pieces of internal engagement with staff 
and councillors. 
 
Over 1,700 people responded to our public consultation on the corporate plan 
proposals for both South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse District Councils, 
which helped shape the councils’ key priorities for the next four years, by far the most 
responses received to a corporate plan consultation for at least 10 years. The 
consultation and engagement work helped shape and ratify updated and amended 
council policies, including statutory documents like Off-Street Parking Orders and 
Statement of Community Involvement for Planning. 

Page 215

Agenda Item 7

Page 216



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 13 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
The council is continuing to use technology to engage with partners including 
through Didcot Garden Town Parish Councils Sounding Board and a Town and Parish 
Council virtual tour and climate change session. 
 
The Council also introduced external consultation tracking mechanisms earlier this 
year as a part of the aim to give greater strategic oversight and make sure it is 
having as much influence as possible. The council responds to consultations on 
proposed changes in policy and operations from a number of different sources. Adding 
increased co-ordination and tracking to this work will ensure the council can best make 
their voice heard whether by strengthening its voice by exploring joint submissions 
or working more closely with the Local Government Association and District Council 
Network where they are preparing a submission and help decide whether there is 
adequate value in responding to some consultations at all. 
 
The council has responded to nine non statutory consultations across a range of issues, 
including the National Planning Policy Framework and National Model Design Code, 
Local Transport Connectivity Plan and the future of the New Homes Bonus funding 
consultation. 
 
A Grants Policy is currently being developed to support the corporate plan and encourage 
diversification of funding streams for voluntary and community sector groups. 
 

This report presents an interim summary of actions towards the priorities in the Corporate         

Plan 2020-24. 

Financial performance 2020/21 

The paragraphs below show the council’s financial performance for 2020/21 in the following areas: 

• revenue expenditure 

• capital expenditure; and 

• treasury management activities. 

It also discusses the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for the year and 

its balance sheet at the end of the year. 

Revenue outturn 2020/21 

The council’s funding requirement for 2020/21, before parish precepts, was £9.4 million, after 

accounting for the use of reserves and investment income.  Direct service expenditure for the year 

was £2.6 million below budget as shown in the table below, analysed across the council’s service 

areas 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 216

Agenda Item 7

Page 217



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 14 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Service expenditure 
Budget 

£000 
Actual 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Corporate Management Team 917 710 (207) 

Corporate Services 3,896 3,495 (401) 

Development & Regeneration 809 1,392 583 

Finance 475 695 220 

Housing & Environment 7,156 6,641 (515) 

Legal Services 1,092 944 (148) 

Partnership & Insight 3,414 3,026 (388) 

Planning 1,886 965 (921) 

Policy & Programmes 672 450 (222) 

Managed Vacancy Factor (422) 0 422 

Contingency (2,427) (3,493) (1,066) 

Direct service expenditure 17,468 14,825 (2,643) 

Interest Income (833) (1,021) (188) 

Government grant income (5,290) (5,290) (0) 

Net revenue spend 11,345 8,514 (2,831) 

Transfer of surplus/(deficit) to reserves:   (542) (542) 

Net Revenue Spend (1,856) (2,831) (975) 

Government Funding       

Budget requirement set by council 9,489 5,141 (4,348) 

Parish precepts 4,242 4,242 0 

Total funding requirement 13,731 9,383 (4,348) 

Council tax income (11,444) (11,794) (350) 

Retained business rates (2,287) (6,285) (3,998) 

Total funding (13,731) (18,079) (4,348) 

 

Of the £2.6 million direct service expenditure underspend above, £3.7m will be carried forward to 

20/21.  This comprises £1.2 million for slippage in one-off budgets and £2.5m of unbudgeted 

support grant relating to the Community hub which will be utilised in 2021/22.   

Capital outturn 2020/21 

Capital expenditure totalled £1.7 million in 2020/21 and spend for the year was £10.4 million below 

the working budget.  £1 million was spent on disabled facilities grants. 

The main source of funding for the programme was the council’s own reserves of capital receipts 

(money we have set aside from the sale of assets), with the balance made up by government 

grants and other contributions.  

Further details on both revenue and capital expenditure for 2020/21 was considered in an outturn 

report to Scrutiny Committee in October 2021. 

Treasury management 2020/21 

In accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy, by actively managing its investments, the 

council earned interest and investment income of £1.0 million against a budget of £0.9 million.  In 

accordance with the council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) income from interest on 

investments is applied in year to support the revenue account.   

Page 217

Agenda Item 7

Page 218



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 15 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Further details on treasury management for 2020/21that will be provided in an outturn report to 

be considered in September 2021 by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and Cabinet, 

and by Council in October 2021. 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 2020/21  

The CIES presents the council’s income and expenditure for the year based on accounting 

standards, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  Councils raise taxation to cover 

expenditure in accordance with regulations, but this may be different to the accounting cost.  

These adjustments are detailed in notes 2 to 4.  After the total financing from government grants 

and local taxpayers of £31.6 million, the council’s surplus on provision of services was £5.3 million.   

This surplus is then adjusted for items, that are not expected to materialise for many years due to 

their nature, produce the total comprehensive income and expenditure figure for the year which is 

a deficit of £1.8 million.  This figure corresponds to the total movement on the balance sheet for 

the year. 

Balance sheet 

The reported net worth of the council decreased from £64.6 million to £62.7 million at 31 March 

2021, an decrease of £1.8 million. This is primarily due to the defined benefit pension liability 

increasing £10.1m offset by a £8.8m surplus on the provision of services. 

This movement is also detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS).   

At the balance sheet date, the council had usable reserves of £58.1 million, made up of £26.9 

million general fund balance (including earmarked reserves), £13.9 million in capital receipts and 

£17.3 million in unapplied capital grants. 

Collection fund 

The collection fund is an agent’s statement reflecting the statutory obligation of billing authorities to 

maintain a separate Collection Fund.  The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority 

in relation to the collection from local taxpayers of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) 

and its distribution to precepting bodies.  For the council, the major council tax precepting bodies 

are Oxfordshire County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley, and 

with Central Government replacing Thames Valley for NDR. 

On council tax, income of £108.0 million was received and £106.6 million was paid out in precepts 

and demands.  After taking the provision for bad debts and balance brought forward into account, 

the surplus on the council tax collection fund balance at the end of the year was £2.9 million.  This 

will be re-distributed to all major precepting authorities. 

On NDR, £48.6 million was received and £61.7 million was paid out to the council, central 

government and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC).  After taking the balance brought forward, 

provision for bad debts and the provision for appeals into account, the deficit on the NDR 

collection fund balance at the end of the year was £14.8 million. This will be shared between the 

council, central government and OCC. 

The council is acting as the accountable body for the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

(OxLEP) and is retaining additional business rates collected from within the Science Vale, Didcot 

Growth Accelerator and Milton Park Extension Enterprise Zones on their behalf.  As at 31 March 

2021, the amount of business rates retained by the council on behalf of OxLEP was in excess of 

£11 million. 

Page 218

Agenda Item 7

Page 219



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 16 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Future prospects 

As part of the annual budget setting process for 2020/21, council agreed its Medium-Term 

Financial Plan (MTFP) for 2020/21 to 2024/25.  The MTFP provides a forward budget model for 

the next five years, highlighting known estimated budget pressures for new responsibilities and 

changes in legislation, predicted investment and capital receipts. 

The MTFP identifies serious challenges for the council.  Whilst, based on current assumptions and 

estimates, the council can set a balanced budget for the first four years of the MTFP period by 

drawing heavily on reserves, on current projections this is not possible for the fifth year.  This is 

based on current estimates of government funding, which are themselves subject to uncertainty 

pending further information on the outcome of the fair funding review, the review of New Homes 

Bonus, and the spending review.  Although this is not an immediate problem, based on current 

projections the budget is not sustainable over the medium to long term.   

Officers consider that significant work on the council’s revenue budgets and income streams is 

required to ensure that a balanced revenue budget can be set throughout the MTFP period and 

beyond that does not rely so heavily on reserves.   

As part of budget setting for 2020/21, council also agreed a capital programme to 2024/25 costing 

£20.9 million.  This will be funded from a combination of the council’s usable capital reserves and 

other contributions.  It is anticipated that by 31 March 2025 the council’s capital receipts balance 

will be £5.9 million.   

 

 

 

Simon Hewings  

Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer 

24 May 2022 

  

Page 219

Agenda Item 7

Page 220



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 17 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 

1. The authority's responsibilities 

The authority is required to: 

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 

arrangements.  In this council, that officer is the head of finance and chief finance 

officer.  

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 

safeguard its assets; and 

• approve the statement of accounts. 

2. Responsibilities of the chief finance officer 

The chief finance officer’s responsibilities include the preparation of the council's statement 

of accounts, which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) is required to present a true and fair view of 

the financial position of the council at the accounting date and its income and expenditure 

for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

In preparing this statement of accounts, the chief finance officer has: 

• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently 

• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 

• complied with the local authority code. 

The chief finance officer has also: 

• kept proper accounting records which were up to date 

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

I certify that this statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position 

of the authority at 31 March 2021 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 

31 March 2021. 

 

 

Simon Hewings  

Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer 

24 May 2022 

 

 

 

Page 220

Agenda Item 7

Page 221



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 18 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VALE OF WHITE HORSE 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of Vale of White Horse District Council for the year 

ended 31 March 2021 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements 

comprise the: 

 

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,  

• Movement in Reserves Statement,  

• Balance Sheet,  

• Cash Flow Statement 

• the related notes 1 to 32 and Statement of Accounting Policies 

• Collection Fund Account and the related notes 1 to 3 
 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 

the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2020/21. 

 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Vale of White Horse District Council as 
at 31 March 2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21. 
 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of 
the authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor General’s 
(C&AG) AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Head of Finance & Section 151 

Officer ’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 

to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the 

authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period to March 2024 from when the 

financial statements are authorised for issue 

Page 221

Agenda Item 7

Page 222



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 19 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer with 

respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.  However, because 

not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the 

authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than 

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  The Head of Finance & Section 151 

Officer is responsible for the other information contained within the Statement of Accounts. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the 

extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon.  

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in 

the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is 

a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are 

required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Matters on which we report by exception 

We report to you if: 

• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent with other 
information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the Council; 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; 

• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;  

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to 
law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014; 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; 

• we are not satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 
2021.  
 

We have nothing to report in these respects  

Responsibility of the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the statement of accounts set out 

on page 17 the  Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the 

Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper 

Page 222

Agenda Item 7

Page 223



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 20 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2020/21, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such 

internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority 

either intends to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, 

and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.   

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 

design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including 

fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not 

detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, 

forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.   The extent to which our 

procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the 

primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with 

governance of the entity and management.  

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the 

authority and determined that the most significant are:  

• Local Government Act 1972,  
• Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance 

Act 1992),  
• The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 as 

amended in 2018 and 2020,  
• Planning Act 2008 and the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/948)  
• The Local Government Finance Act 2012, 
• The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and 
• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

 
In addition, the council has to comply with laws and regulations in the areas of anti-bribery and 

corruption, data protection, employment Legislation, tax Legislation, general power of 

competence, procurement and health & safety.  

 

Page 223

Agenda Item 7

Page 224



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 21 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

We understood how Vale of White Horse District Council is complying with those frameworks by 

understanding the incentive, opportunities and motives for non-compliance, including inquiring of 

management, head of internal audit and those charged with governance and obtaining and 

reading documentation relating to the procedures in place to identify, evaluate and comply with 

laws and regulations, and whether they are aware of instances of non-compliance. We 

corroborated this through our reading of the authority’s committee minutes, through enquiry of 

employees to confirm authority policies, and through the inspection of other information. Based on 

this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws 

and regulations. Our procedures had a focus on compliance with the accounting framework 

through obtaining sufficient audit evidence in line with the level of risk identified and with relevant 

legislation. 

We assessed the susceptibility of the /authority’s financial statements to material misstatement, 

including how fraud might occur by understanding the potential incentives and pressures for 

management to manipulate the financial statements, and performed procedures to understand the 

areas in which this would most likely arise. Based on our risk assessment procedures, we 

identified improper recognition of revenue and expenditure (through the inappropriate 

capitalisation of revenue expenditure) and management override of controls to be our fraud risks.  

To address our fraud risk of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure we tested the 

authority’s capitalised expenditure to ensure the capitalisation criteria were properly met and the 

expenditure was genuine, and tested revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 

(REFCUS) to ensure its classification was correct.  

 
To address our fraud risk of management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of 

journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making 

accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of 

any identified significant transactions that were unusual or outside the normal course of business.  

 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 

Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part of our 

auditor’s report. 

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 

of resources 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to 

the guidance on the specified reporting criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General 

(C&AG) in April 2021, as to whether the Vale of White Horse District Council had proper 

arrangements for financial sustainability, governance and improving economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as those necessary 

for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether Vale of White 

Horse District Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk 

assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in 

all significant respects, Vale of White Horse District Council had put in place proper arrangements 

to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

 

Page 224

Agenda Item 7

Page 225



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 22 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy 

ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources.  

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 

operating effectively.  

Delay in certification of completion of the audit  

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed the 

work necessary to issue our assurance statement in respect of the Authority’s Whole of 

Government Accounts consolidation pack. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material 

effect on the financial statements or our work on value for money arrangements. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of Vale of White Horse District Council, as a body, in 

accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, 

as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 

published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 

do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Vale of White Horse District Council 

and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 

have formed. 

 

 

 

 

Kevin Suter (Key Audit Partner) 

Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor) 

Southampton 

[Date] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 225

Agenda Item 7

Page 226



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 23 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Core financial statements 

The following pages show the council’s core financial statements, and the notes to the accounts.  

The core statements are as follows: 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) (page 25).  This shows the 

accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  Authorities raise taxation 

(council tax) to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 

accounting cost.  The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.   

Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) (page 27).  The MiRS shows the movement from the 

start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable 

reserves’ (i.e., expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. It shows how 

the movements in year of the authority’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses 

incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory 

adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. The net 

increase/decrease line shows the statutory general fund balance in the year following those 

adjustments. 

Balance Sheet (BS) (page 28).  This shows the value (as at the balance sheet date) of the assets 

and liabilities recognised by the council.  The net assets of the council (being assets less liabilities) 

are matched by the reserves held by the council.  Reserves are reported in two categories.  The 

first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e., those that the council may use to provide 

services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations 

on their use (e.g., the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or 

repay debt).  The second category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and 

losses (e.g., the revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide 

services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the MiRS line 

‘adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

Cash Flow Statement (CFS) (page 29).  This shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of 

the council during the reporting period.  The statement shows how the authority generates and 

uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing 

activities.  The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the 

extent to which the operations of the council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or 

from the recipients of services provided by the council.  Investing activities represent the extent to 

which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 

council’s future service delivery.  Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in 

predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (e.g., borrowing) to the council. 

Notes to the core financial statements (pages 30 to 66).  The core statements are supported by 

comprehensive notes to the accounts.   

Accounting policies (pages 72 to 87).  These are the accounting policies adopted in compiling 

the council’s accounting statements which explain the basis on which the figures in the accounts 

have been prepared. 

Page 226

Agenda Item 7

Page 227



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 24 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Supplementary financial statements.   

In addition to core financial statements and notes the council, as an authority that issues council 

tax and business rates bills, maintains a separate income and expenditure account, the collection 

fund, showing transactions in relation to this income and how the demands on the fund from 

central government, Oxfordshire County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames 

Valley and town and parish councils have been satisfied.  This is shown on pages 67 to 70.  

Page 227

Agenda Item 7

Page 228



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 25 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Comprehensive income and expenditure statement 

2019/20 Restated   2020/21 

Exp Inc Net   Exp Inc Net 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

614 0 614 Corporate management team 956 (189) 768 

3,333 (545) 2,788 Corporate services 3,394 (470) 2,924 

7,025 (2,118) 4,907 Development and regeneration 6,246 (2,801) 3,445 

22,254 (22,047) 207 Finance 21,635 (20,819) 816 

11,058 (3,570) 7,488 Housing and environment 13,140 (4,845) 8,295 

1,548 (367) 1,181 Legal and democratic 1,496 (496) 1,000 

3,252 (7) 3,245 Partnership and insight 3,216 (169) 3,046 

4,547 (1,914) 2,633 Planning 4,763 (2,305) 2,458 

223 (23) 200 Policy & programmes 801 (318) 483 

53,855  (30,591) 23,264  Cost of services 55,648 (32,411) 23,237 

3,948 0 3,948 
Parish council precepts and other 

grants 
4,242 0 4,242 

0  0  0  
(Gain)/loss on the disposal of non-

current assets 
0 (631) (631) 

3,948  0  3,948  
Other operating expenditure 

4,242 (631) 3,691 

0 (1,169) (1,169) Interest receivable and similar income 0 (956) (956) 

  (115) (115) Other investment income (dividends) 0 (115) (115) 

97   97 Loss on revaluation of investments 19 0 19 

       281 281 
Changes in fair values of investment 

properties 
15 0 15 

0 (570) (570) 
Income and expenditure in relation to 

investment properties 
0 (238) (238) 

1,147  1,147 
Net Interest on net defined benefit 

liability or asset 
785 0 785 

1,244  (1,573) (329) Financing and investment income 

and expenditure 

819 (1,310) (491) 

0 (3,898) (3,898) 
Recognised capital grants and 

contributions 
0 (7,767) (7,767) 

0 0 0 COVID grants 0 (3,494) (3,494) 

  (11,177) (11,177) Council tax 0 (11,794) (11,794) 

  (23,257) (23,257) Retained business rates 0 (24,101) (24,101) 

20,440 0 20,440 Business rates tariff 20,773 0 20,773 

0  (4,816) (4,816) Non-ringfenced government grants 0 (5,299) (5,299) 

20,440  (43,148) (22,708) Taxation and non-specific grant 

income 

20,773 (52,455) (31,682) 

79,488  (75,311) 4,176  (Surplus) or deficit on provision of 

services 

81,482 (87,507) (5,325) 

  (335) (335) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-

current assets  

0 (2,912) (2,912) 

  
(14,958)  (14,958) Remeasurement of net defined benefit 

liability 

10,079 0 10,079 

Page 228

Agenda Item 7

Page 229



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 26 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

  
  (15,293) Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

  7,167 

  
  (11,117) Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

  1,842 

*The 2019/20 cost of services figures have been restated following a restructure.  

 

 

  

Page 229

Agenda Item 7

Page 230



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 27 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Movement in reserves statement 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

  General Capital Capital Total Unusable Total 
  fund receipts grants usable reserves reserves 
  balance  reserve unapplied reserves     
  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance - 31 Mar 2020 (19,022) (12,985) (11,746) (43,753) (20,817) (64,570) 

Total comprehensive income and 

expenditure  

(5,325) 0 0 (5,325) 7,166 1,841 

Adjustments between accounting 

basis and funding basis under 

regulations (note 4) 

(2,596) (895) (5,554) (9,045) 9,045 0 

Net increase/decrease before 

transfers to other reserves 

(7,921) (895) (5,554) (14,370) 16,211 1,841 

Transfers to/from other reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Increase/decrease (movement) in 

year 

(7,921) (895) (5,554) (14,370) 16,211 1,841 

Balance - 31 Mar 2021  (26,943) (13,880) (17,300) (58,123) (4,606) (62,729) 

For the year ended 31 March 2020 

  General Capital Capital Total Total Total 

  fund receipts grants usable unusable authority 

  balance reserve unapplied reserves reserves reserves 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance - 31 Mar 2019 (18,837) (13,426) (9,910) (42,173) (11,281) (53,454) 

Total comprehensive 

income and expenditure  

4,176 0 0 4,176 (15,293) (11,117) 

Adjustments between 

accounting basis and 

funding basis under 

regulations (note 4) 

(4,361) 441 (1,837) (5,757) 5,757 0 

Net increase/decrease 

before transfers to other 

reserves 

(185) 441 (1,837) (1,581) (9,536) (11,117) 

Transfers to/from other 

reserves 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Increase/decrease 

(movement) in year 

(185) 440 (1,837) (1,581) (9,536) (11,117) 

Balance - 31 Mar 2020 (19,022) (12,986) (11,746) (43,754) (20,817) (64,571) 

*The general fund balance includes earmarked revenue reserves which have been disclosed separately in prior years.  

Transfers between these two funds are detailed in note 5.  

Page 230

Agenda Item 7

Page 231



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 28 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Balance sheet 

 

31 March 2020   31 March 2021 

£000    £000  £000  Notes 

46,846 Property, plant & equipment 
 

48,247 6  

5,401 Investment Property   4,716 7  

36 Intangible assets   133   

25,606 Long term investments   17,587 8  

2,021 Long term debtors   1,874 9  

79,910 Long term assets   72,557   

58,500 Short term investments 83,000  8  

12 Inventories 1    

10,630 Short term debtors 12,257  9  

8,781 Cash and cash equivalents 20,159  10  

77,923 Current assets  115,417   

(27,264) Short Term Creditors (38,351)  12  

(4,692) Provisions  (4,218)  13  

(27,276) Capital grants and receipts in advance (37,518)    

(59,232) Current liabilities  (80,087)   

 (34,031) Other long-term liabilities (45,158)    

(34,031) Long term Liabilities  (45,158) 18f 

        

64,570 Net assets  62,729   

(6,693) Non-earmarked revenue reserves (14,144)    

(12,329) Earmarked revenue reserves (12,799)    

(12,986) Usable capital receipts reserve (13,880)    

(11,746) Capital grants unapplied (17,300)    

(43,754) Usable reserves  (58,123) MiRs 

(16,299) Revaluation reserve (18,710)  14a 

(606) Financial instrument revaluation reserve  (587)  14b 

(35,983) Capital adjustment account  (34,399)  14c 

34,031 Pensions reserve 45,158  14d 

(1,960) Deferred capital receipts reserve (1,811)  14e 

(120) Collection fund adjustment account 5,623  14f 

120 Short-term accumulating compensated 

absences 

120    

(20,817) Unusable reserves   (4,606)   

(64,571) Total reserves   (62,729)   

  

Page 231

Agenda Item 7

Page 232



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 29 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Cash flow statement 

31 March  

2020 
  

31 March  

2021 Notes 

£000  £000   

(4,176) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 5,325   

0 Adjust net surplus for profit on disposal (631)   

10,954 Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

for non-cash movements 

13,218 

  

(3,898) Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on 

the provision of services that are investing and financing 

activities 

(7,767) 

  

2,880 Net Cash flows from operating activities  10,145  

  Investing activities    

(233) Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets 

(159) 

  

(70,500) Purchase of short and long term investments (92,500)   

(1) Other payments for investing activities 0   

0 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets 

1,301 

  

63,000 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 78,000   

16,578 Other Receipts from investing activities 18,004   

8,844 Total investing activities 4,646   

  Financing activities    

0 Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing 0   

(5,776) Billing Authorities - Council tax and NDR adjustments (3,413)   

0 Other receipts from financing activities    

(5,776) Total financing activities (3,413)   

5,948 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents 

11,378 

  

2,833 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

reporting period 

8,781 

  

8,781 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

reporting period 20,159 10 

  

Page 232

Agenda Item 7

Page 233



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 30 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Notes to the accounts 2020/21 

1. Statement of accounting policies  

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by 

the council in preparing and presenting these financial statements.  These can be reviewed in 

detail on pages 73 to 88. 

2. Expenditure and funding analysis 

The expenditure and funding analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded 

from resources (government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities 

in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for 

decision making purposes between the council’s directorates/services/departments. Income 

and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented 

more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

2019/20 Restated   2020/21 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

C
h

a
rg

e
a
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

 B
a
la

n
c
e

 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

B
a
s
is

 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e
 

a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

C
h

a
rg

e
a
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

 B
a
la

n
c
e

 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

B
a
s
is

 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e
 

a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

555 59 614 Corporate management team  710 58 768 

3,353 (565) 2,788 Corporate services 3,500 (575) 2,924 

447 4,461 4,908 Development & regeneration  3,174 271 3,445 

90 117 207 Finance  695 121 816 

5,059 2,429 7,488 Housing & Environment  6,638 1,657 8,295 

1,112 69 1,181 Legal & democratic 944 56 1,000 

3,248 (3) 3,245 Partnership & Insight  3,026 20 3,046 

2,271 362 2,633 Planning 2,181 278 2,458 

184 16 200 Policy & Programmes  450 33 483 

16,319 6,945 23,264 Net cost of services 21,318 1,919 23,237 

(16,504) 2,585 (19,090) Other Income and Expenditure (29,240) (21) (29,262) 

(185) 4,359 4,175 
(Surplus) or deficit on provision of 

services 
(7,922) 1,898 (6,025) 

(18,837)   Opening General Fund Balance (19,022)   

(184)     
(Surplus) or Deficit on General Fund 

Balance in year 
(7,922)   

(19,022)     
Closing General Fund Balance at 31 

March 
(26,943) 

 

  

 

Page 233

Agenda Item 7

Page 234



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 31 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

3. Note to the expenditure and funding analysis 

2019/20 Restated   2020/21 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 

(n
o

te
 1

) 

N
e
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

P
e
n

s
io

n
s
 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 (

N
o

te
 2

) 

O
th

e
r 

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s

 

(N
o

te
 3

) 

T
o

ta
l 
A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 

(n
o

te
 1

) 

N
e
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

P
e
n

s
io

n
s
 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 (

N
o

te
 2

) 

O
th

e
r 

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s

 

(N
o

te
 3

) 

T
o

ta
l 
A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

0 59    59  Corporate management Team 0 58  58 

277  (842)    (565)  Corporate services 155 (730)  (575) 

4,329 132    4,461 Development & regeneration  169 102  271 

0  117    117 Finance   3 118  121 

2,062 367   2,429 Housing & Environment  1,332 325  1,657 

9  59    69  Legal & democratic 9 48  57 

0 (3)  (3)  Partnership & Inside  0 20  20 

1 361    362  Planning  (11) 289  278 

0 16  16 Policy & programmes  0 33  33 

6,678  267  0  6,945 Net cost of services 1,656 263  1,919 

(3,693) 1,147  (39) (2,585) 

Other Income and 

Expenditure from the 

Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis 

(6,583) 785 5,777 (21) 

 2,985 1,414  (39) 4,359 

Difference between general 

fund surplus or deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement 

surplus or deficit on the 

provision of Services 

(4,928) 1,047 5,777 1,895 

 

 

 

The adjustments above are for transactions included in the CIES which cannot be charged to the 

general fund under statute. They include: 

1) Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and 

revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for other operating expenditure, capital 

grants received in year where there is no repayment condition. 

2) Net change for the pension adjustment relates to the removal of pension contributions and the 

addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income 

3) Other differences are for reanalysis of items between services and in other income and 

expenditure, the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax 

and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised 

under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.  

Page 234

Agenda Item 7

Page 235



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 32 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 235

Agenda Item 7

Page 236



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 33 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

4. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total CIES recognised by the council in the 

year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory 

provisions as being available to the council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 

 
31 Mar 2020   31 Mar 2021 

Usable Reserves 
M

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

u
n

u
s

a
b

le
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

  Usable Reserves 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

u
n

u
s

a
b

le
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
  

G
e

n
 f

u
n

d
 b

a
l 

&
 

e
a

rm
a

rk
e
d

 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

re
c

e
ip

ts
 

re
s

e
rv

e
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e

d
 

  

G
e

n
 f

u
n

d
 b

a
l 

&
 

e
a

rm
a

rk
e
d

 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

re
c

e
ip

ts
 

re
s

e
rv

e
  

C
a

p
it

a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e

d
  

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

        Adjustments primarily involving the capital 
adjustment account: 

        

        Reversal of items debited or credited to the 
CIES: 

        

(1,763)     1,763 Charges for depreciation and impairment of 
non-current assets 

(1,661)   1,661 

1,155     (1,155) Revaluation gains on property, plant and 
equipment 

(45)   45 

(281)     281 Movement in the fair value of investment 
properties 

(15)   15 

(3,816)     3,816 Movements in fair value of long-term leases (149)   149 

        Capital grants and contributions applied     

(2,255)     2,255 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 
statute 

(1,145) (133)  1,278 

0       Amounts of non-current assets written off on 
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES 

 (30)  30 

      
 

Adjustments primarily involving the capital 
grants unapplied account: 

    

3,693 0 (3,446) (247) Capital grants and contributions unapplied 
credited to the comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement 

6,653  (5,554) 1,099 

        Adjustments primarily involving the capital 
receipts reserve: 

    

0 0 0 0 Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part 
of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 

646 (1,316)  670 

0 499 1,609 (2,108) Use of capital receipts reserve to finance new 
capital expenditure 

(69) 584  (515) 

      
 

Adjustments primarily involving the 
deferred capital receipts reserve: 

    

24 (58) 0 34 Transfer of deferred capital receipt relating to 
equity loan issued in year 

    

        Adjustments primarily involving the 
financial instruments revaluation reserve 

    

(97) 0 0 97 Reversal of surplus on Financial Instruments 
valued through Profit and Loss) 

(19)   19 

      
 

Adjustments primarily involving the 
pensions reserve: 

    

(1,414) 0 0 1,414 Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the 
Pensions Reserve) 

(1048)   1,048 

        Adjustments primarily involving the 
collection fund adjustment account: 

    

393 0 0 (393) Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account) 

(5,743)   5,743 

(4,361) 441 (1,837) 5,757 Total adjustments (2,595) (895) (5,554) 9,044 
 
 

Page 236

Agenda Item 7

Page 237



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 34 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

5. Transfers to/from general fund balance and earmarked reserves 

This note details all movements in the reserves that comprise the general fund balance and 

earmarked reserves. 
01 Apr 2019 to 31 Mar 2020 

restated  01 Apr 2020 to 31 Mar 2021 

B
a
la

n
c

e
 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 i
n

 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

u
t 

B
a
la

n
c

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d

 

fo
rw

a
rd

 

  

B
a
la

n
c

e
 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 i
n

 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

u
t 

B
a
la

n
c

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d

 

fo
rw

a
rd

 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

(6,244) (8,400) 7,951 (6,694) General fund balance (6,693) (13,017) 5,566 (14,144) 

(6,244) (8,400) 7,951 (6,693) Total general fund balance (6,693) (13,017) 5,566 (14,144) 

        Earmarked reserves     

(27)  27 0 (a) Community grants 0 0 0 0 

(80)  80 0 (b) Election equalisation 0 0 0 0 

(153)  153 0 
(c) Local development 

framework 
0 0 0 0 

(10)  10 0 (d) Reservoir 0 0 0 0 

(30)  16 (14) (e) Building regulations (14)   (14) 

(1)  1 0 
(f) Besselsleigh Wood 

management 
0 0 0 0 

(12)  12 0 (g) Rent deposit guarantee 0 0 0 0 

(50)  50 0 (h) Cabinet grants 0 0 0 0 

(10,990) (717) 733 (10,974) 
(i) Service & infrastructure 

grants 
(10,974) (5,722) 5,515 (11,181) 

(49)  49 0 (j) Self-insurance 0 0 0 0 

(1,191) (220) 70 (1,341) (k) Revenue grants reserve (1,341) (504) 241 (1,604) 

(12,593) (937) 1,201 (12,329) Total earmarked reserves (12,329) (6,226) 5,756 (12,799) 

 

The purpose of each reserve is as follows: 

(a) Grants awarded in previous years that have not yet been taken up 

(b) 
District council elections are held every four years and this reserve is used so that all the costs are not 

met in one year but spread over the term of the council 

(c) 
To meet the cost of any inquiries that have to be set up as a result of the updating of the local 

development framework 

(d) To meet any costs associated with Thames Water's proposal for a new reservoir 

(e) The building control trading account 

(f) To cover contributions to the management costs of Besselsleigh Wood 

(g) To guarantee rent deposits for private tenants 

(h) To provide matched funding to organisations 

(i) Fund to provide revenue support to service and infrastructure projects 

(j) To cover the excess payable on insurance claims 

(k) To fund revenue expenditure from grants received in advance 

(l) Covid 

 

 

Page 237

Agenda Item 7

Page 238



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 35 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

6. Property, plant and equipment 

Table 6a Movements in property, plant and equipment 2020/21       

  

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 &

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 a

s
s

e
ts

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 
P

P
&

E
 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation 

At 01 Apr 2020 47,473 6,191 142 861 0 (0) 54,667 

Additions 0 166 7 0 0 0 173 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) to RR 

2,858 0 0 45 0 0 2,903 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) to SDPS 

(45) 0 0 0 0 0 (45) 

Write out balances on revalued 
assets 

(348) 0 0 0 0 0 (348) 

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

At 31 Mar 2021 49,938 6,357 149 906 0 0 57,350 

Depreciation and impairments 

At 01 Apr 2020 (2,388) (5,297) (137) 0 0 0 (7,822) 

Depreciation charge (1,409) (221) (1) 0 0 0 (1,631) 

Write out balances on revalued 
assets 

350  0 0 0 0 0 350 

At 31 Mar 2021 (3,447) (5,518) (138) 0 0 0 (9,103) 

Balance sheet at 31 Mar 2021 46,491 839 11 906 0 0 48,247 

Balance sheet at 31 Mar 2020 45,085 894 5 861 0 0 46,845 

Notes               

RR = Revaluation reserve               

SDPS = Surplus or deficit on provision of services             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 238

Agenda Item 7

Page 239



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 36 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Table 6b Movements in property, plant and equipment 2019/20       

  

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 &

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 a

s
s

e
ts

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 
P

P
&

E
 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation 

At 01 Apr 2019 46,218 6,118 142 861 0 (0) 53,339 

Additions 0 73 0 0 0 0 73 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) to RR 

335 0 0 (0) 0 0 335 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) to SDPS 

1,155 0 0 0 0 0 1,155 

Write out balances on revalued 
assets 

(235) 0 0 0 0 0 (235) 

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

At 31 Mar 2020 47,473 6,191 142 861 0 0 54,667 

Depreciation and impairments 

At 01 Apr 2019 (1,209) (4,980) (136) 0 0 0 (6,325) 

Depreciation charge (1,414) (317) (1) 0 0 0 (1,732) 

Write out balances on revalued 
assets 

235 0 0 0 0 0 235 

At 31 Mar 2020 (2,388) (5,297) (137) 0 0 0 (7,822) 

Balance sheet at 31 Mar 2020 45,085 894 5 861 0 0 46,845 

Balance sheet at 31 Mar 2019 45,009 1,138 6 861 0 0 47,014 

Notes               

RR = Revaluation reserve               

SDPS = Surplus or deficit on provision of services             

 

Depreciation 

Where required, assets are depreciated in equal annual amounts over the assumed life of the 

asset.  The following useful lives have been used: 

• Buildings – on an individual basis as assessed by the valuer 

• Vehicles, equipment, CCTV, computer hardware – 5 years 

• Parks equipment, running track, boilers, large plant – 10 years 

• Infrastructure assets (sewage treatment works) – 10 years 

• Special items individually assessed (including heritage assets 

 

 

Page 239

Agenda Item 7

Page 240



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 37 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Capital commitments 

As at the end of March 2021 the council had capital commitments on a number of contracts in 

2021/22 and future years, budgeted to cost £1.3 million.  The commitments are: 

• Leisure contracts - £1.3 million 

Revaluations 

The council has a rolling programme that ensures that all property, plant and equipment required 

to be measured at current value or fair value as appropriate, is revalued every five years.  Any 

assets that may be subject to special conditions will be valued more often, as required.   

The council’s operational assets have been valued as at 31 January 2021 by Lambert Smith 

Hampton in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the 

professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS Red Book, UK 

Appendix 5).  

The significant assumptions applied in estimating the 2020/21 values are that: 

• There is no contamination problem nor deleterious/hazardous substance present; 

• Good title can be shown and that the properties comply with all legal and statutory 

requirements regarding either the structure or its existing /past usage, 

• There will be an adequate level of expenditure on repairs and maintenance. 

Table 6c Revaluations property, plant and equipment 

  

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 &

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e

h
ic

le
s
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
s
s

e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

a
s
s

e
ts

 

A
s

s
e

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000   £000 

Carried at historical cost 0  6,357  149  861  0  7,367  

Valued at:             

31 March 2021 11,495  0  0  45  0  11,540  

31 March 2020 0  0  0  0  0  0  

31 March 2019 9,583 0 0 0 0 9,583 

31 March 2018 24,992  0  0  0  0  24,992  

31 March 2017 3,868  0  0  0  0  3,868 

Total cost or valuation 49,938  6,357  149  906  0  57,350  

       

 

 

The council has no surplus assets. 

 

Page 240

Agenda Item 7

Page 241



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 38 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

7. Investment properties 

Income and expenditure in respect of investment properties is shown on the face of the CIES. 

There are no restrictions on the council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment 

property or on the council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The 

council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or 

repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the 

year: 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

5,683 Balance at 1 April 5,402 

0 Disposals (671) 

(281) Changes in fair value (15) 

5,402 Balance at 31 March 4,716 

 

Fair value hierarchy 

All the council’s investment properties have been value assessed as level 2 on the fair value 

hierarchy for valuation purposes (see accounting policy xxii for an explanation of fair value levels). 

Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 for values for investment property 

The fair value of investment property has been measured using a market approach, which takes 

into account quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, 

research into market evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant strength for 

existing tenants, and data and market knowledge gained in managing the council’s investment 

asset portfolio.  Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and sold 

and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading to the properties being categorised as 

level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. 

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment 

properties. 

Highest and best use 

In estimating the fair value of the council’s investment properties, the highest and best use is their 

current use. 

Valuation process for investment properties 

The council’s investment property has been valued as at 31 March 2021 by Lambert Smith 

Hampton in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the 

professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.   

Page 241

Agenda Item 7

Page 242



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 39 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

8. Financial instruments 

The borrowings and investments disclosed in the balance sheet are made up of the following 

categories of financial instruments: 

Table 8a Categories of financial instrument 

  Long term Current 

  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Investments         

Amortised costs 23,000 15,000 65,833 103,161 

Fair value through profit and loss 2,606 2,587 0 0 

Total financial assets (investments) 25,606 17,587 65,833 103,161 

Debtors       

Financial assets carried at contract amount 2,021 2,726 6,375 11,688 

Total financial assets 2,021 2,726 6,375 11,688 

Creditors       

Financial liabilities carried at contract amount 0 0 6,178 11,017 

Total financial liabilities 0 0 6,178 11,017 

 

(1) Under accounting requirements, the carrying value of the financial instrument value is shown 

in the balance sheet which includes the principal amount borrowed or lent and further 

adjustments for breakage costs including accrued interest.  Accrued interest is shown 

separately in current assets/liabilities where payments/receipts are due within one year.  The 

effective interest rate is effectively accrued interest receivable under the instrument, adjusted 

for the amortisation of any premiums or discounts reflected in the purchase price 

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss– the council holds £2.6 million in the 

CCLA pooled property fund. The Council has applied a statutory override to this fund which 

results in the charge to the CIES being reversed out, via the MiRS and into the Financial 

Instruments Revaluation Reserve. 

Financial instrument gains/losses 

The gains and losses recognised in the income and expenditure account in relation to financial 

instruments are made up as follows: 

Table 8b Financial instrument gains and losses 2020/21   

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

1,284 
Investment income (interest, dividends, gains/loss on 
disposal) 

1,072 

(97) Net increase/(decrease) in fair value (19) 

1,187 Net gain/(loss) for the year 1,053 

 

Page 242

Agenda Item 7

Page 243



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 40 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Fair values of assets and liabilities 

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables, long-term debtors 

and creditors are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost (in long term assets / liabilities 

with accrued interest in current assets / liabilities).  Their fair value can be assessed by calculating 

the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, 

using the following assumptions: 

• For loans receivable, prevailing benchmark rates have been used to provide the fair value; 

• where an instrument will mature within the next 12 months, the fair value is taken to be the 

carrying amount. 

• no early repayment or impairment is recognised. 

• the fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. 

 The fair values calculated are as follows: 

Table 8c Fair value of assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost 

31-Mar-20   31-Mar-21 

Carrying 
amount 

Fair 
value 

  
Carrying 
amount 

Fair 
value 

£000 £000   £000 £000 

67,281 68,669 Short term investments 97,220 97,465 
25,606 25,763 Long term investments 17,587 17,613 

9,658 9,658 Short term debtors 11,688 11,688 
2,021 2,021 Long term debtors 2,726 2,726 

104,566 106,111 Total financial assets 129,221 129,492 

(5,689) (5,689) Short term creditors (11,017) (11,017) 

(5,689) (5,689) Total financial liabilities (11,017) (11,017) 

The fair values for loans and receivables include accrued interest.  

The comparator market rates prevailing have been taken from indicative investment rates at the 

balance sheet date.  In practice, rates will be determined by the size of the transaction and the 

counterparty, but it is impractical to use these figures and the difference is likely to be immaterial. 

Short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Table 8d Financial Assets Fair Value Hierarchy-Fair value through profit 
and loss 

Fair Value 
Hierarchy 

Amount 
£’000 

CCLA Pooled Funds Level 1 2,587 

Page 243

Agenda Item 7

Page 244



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 41 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Some of the Council’s financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Including 
the valuation techniques used to measure them. The fair value hierarchy for categorising 
instruments is as follows: 

• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date.  

• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.  

The fair values for Financial Assets held at Amortised Cost include accrued interest.  
The comparator market rates prevailing have been taken from indicative investment rates at the 
balance sheet date.  In practice, rates will be determined by the size of the transaction and the 
counterparty, but it is impractical to use these figures and the difference is likely to be immaterial. 

Short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value. 

9. Debtors 

31-Mar-20   31-Mar-21 

Long Short 
  

Long Short 

term term term term 

£000 £000   £000 £000 

0 1,230 Central government bodies 0 (285) 

0 1,724 Other local authorities 0 2,259 

2,021 7,676 Other entities and individuals 1,874 10,283 

2,021 10,630 Total debtors 1,874 12,257 

 

10. Cash and cash equivalents 

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

31 March 2020   31 March 2021 

£000   £000 

2 Cash held by the council 2 

(1,131) Bank current and instant access accounts 5,937 

9,910 Money market funds 14,220 

8,781 Total cash and cash equivalents 20,159 

 

11. Assets held for sale 

At the balance sheet date, the council has no material assets held for sale. 

12. Short–term creditors 

31-Mar-20   31-Mar-21 

£000   £000 

(3,700) Central government bodies (14,677) 

(18,806) Other local authorities (18,062) 

(4,758) Other entities and individuals (5,612) 

(27,264) Total short-term creditors (38,351) 

Page 244

Agenda Item 7

Page 245



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 42 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 
13. Provisions 

The provision in 2020/21 represents amounts set aside to meet future business rate appeals 

liabilities. 

Provisions £000 

Balance at 01 Apr 2020 (4,692) 

Business rate appeals - movement in year 474 

Balance at 31 Mar 2021 (4,218) 

 

14. Unusable reserves 

Revaluation reserve 

The revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the council arising from increases in the value 

of its property, plant and equipment (including intangible assets).  The balance is reduced when 

assets with accumulated gains are: 

• Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost. 

• Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation. 

• Disposed of and the gains are realised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 

reserve was created.  Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 

balance on the capital adjustment account. 

Table 14a Revaluation reserve   

2019/20  2020/21 

£000   £000 

(16,311) Balance at 1 April (16,299) 

(428) Upward revaluation of assets (3,474) 

93 
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the 
surplus/deficit on the provision of services 

561 

0 Transfer to Capital Adjustment Account 0 

0 Disposals 150 

(335) 
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to 
the surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

(2,763) 

347 Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation 352 

347 Amount written off to the capital adjustment account 352 

0 Other 0 

(16,299) Balance at 31 March (18,710) 

Financial instrument revaluation reserve 

The financial instrument revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the council arising from 

increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have 

Page 245

Agenda Item 7

Page 246



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 43 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

fixed or determinable payments.  The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated 

gains are: 

• Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost. 

• disposed of and the gains are realised. 

Table 14b Financial instrument revaluation reserve   

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(702) Balance at 1 April Financial instrument revaluation reserve (606) 

96 Revaluation of investments 19 

(606) 
Balance at 31 March Available for sale financial instruments 
reserve 

(587) 

Capital adjustment account 

The capital adjustment account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 

arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 

acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The account 

is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment 

losses and amortisations are charged to the CIES (with reconciling postings from the revaluation 

reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis).  The account is credited with the 

amounts set aside by the council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and 

enhancement. 

The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and gains 

recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the council.  The account also 

contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment before 1 April 2007, the 

date that the revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains.  Note 4 provides details of the 

source of all the transactions posted to the account, apart from those involving the revaluation 

reserve. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 246

Agenda Item 7

Page 247



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 44 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

2019/20  Table 14c Capital adjustment account 2020/21 

£000   £000 

(36,425) Balance at 1 April (35,983) 

  Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or 

credited to the CIES: 
 

1,384 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,289 

(1,155) Revaluations (gains)/losses on property, plant and equipment 45 

29 Amortisation of intangible assets 20 

2,255 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,292 

281 Movement in the fair value of investment properties 15 

0 Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part 

of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 
505 

  Adjusting amounts written out to the revaluation reserve 0 

  Capital financing applied in the year:  

(499) Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure 
(585) 

(1,856) Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES that have been 

applied to capital financing 
(1,067) 

3 Other adjustments 70 

(35,983) Balance at 31 March (34,399) 

Pensions reserve 

The pensions reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 

accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 

provisions.  The council accounts for post-employment benefits in the CIES as the benefits are 

earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect 

inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the 

costs.  However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the council 

makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is 

directly responsible.  The debit balance on the pensions reserve therefore shows a substantial 

shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the council has 

set aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set 

aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 

Table 14d Pensions reserve   

2019/20 
 

2020/21 

£000 
 

£000 

47,575 Balance at 1 April 34,031 

(14,958) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 10,079 

  Actuarial gain/loss  

3,128 
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the 
surplus or deficit on the provision of services in the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement 

2,865 

(1,714) 
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 

(1,817) 

34,031 Balance at 31 March 45,158 

 

Page 247

Agenda Item 7

Page 248



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 45 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Deferred capital receipts reserve 

The deferred capital receipts reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current 

assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory arrangements, the 

council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are 

backed by cash receipts.  When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are 

transferred to the capital receipts reserve. 

Table 14e Deferred capital receipts reserve   

2019/20  2020/21 

£000   £000 

(5,809) Balance at 1 April (1,960) 

34 New deferred capital receipts raised in year 0 

3,815 Movement in valuation of property 149 

(1,960) Balance at 31 March (1,811) 

 

Collection fund adjustment account 

The collection fund adjustment account manages the differences arising from the recognition of 

council tax income in the CIES as it falls due from council taxpayers compared with the statutory 

arrangements for paying across amounts to the general fund from the collection fund. 

 

Table 14f Collection fund adjustment account   

2019/20  2020/21 

£000 
 

£000 

272 Balance at 1 April 2020 (120) 

(392) 

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income 

credited to the CIES is different from council tax income and 

non-domestic rates calculated for the year in accordance with 

statutory requirements 

5,743 

(120) Balance at 31 March 2021 5,623 

 

15. Interest received and interest paid 

The cash flow for operating activities included within the cash flow statement includes the following 

items: 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

1,168 Interest received 956 

116 Dividends received 115 

  1,284 Total interest received, interest paid and dividends received 1,071 

Page 248

Agenda Item 7

Page 249



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 46 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

16. Expenditure and income analysed by nature 

The authority’s expenditure and income are analysed as follows: 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

  Expenditure   

8,048 Employee benefits expenses 8,896 

43,655 Other services expenses  45,091 

1,732 Depreciation and amortisation 1,661 

20,440 Business rates tariff 20,773 

3,948 Precepts and levies  4,242 

1,147 Net interest on net defined benefit liability or asset 785 

0 Loss on disposal of assets 0 

518 Loss on revaluation of assets 34 

79,488 Total expenditure  81,482 

  Income  

(30,310) Fees, charges and other service income  (32,411) 

(1,854) Interest, investment income and income from investment property (1,310) 

(34,233) Income from council tax and non-domestic rates (35,895) 

(5,016) Government grants and contributions (8,793) 

(3,898) Recognised capital grants and contributions (7,767) 

0 Gain on the disposal of assets (631) 

(75,311) Total income  (86,807) 

4,177 (Surplus)/deficit on the provision of services  (5,325) 

 

17. Members’ allowances 

The council paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year. 

2019/20 
Members' allowance 

2020/21 

£000 £000 

186 Basic allowance 189 

121 Special responsibility allowance 123 

8 Expenses 0 

315   312 

 

18. Employees benefits 

Officers’ remuneration 

Vale of White Horse District Council and South Oxfordshire District Council share a joint Senior 

Management Team.  The employees detailed below therefore work across the two authorities, the 

costs are shared with South Oxfordshire DC contributing 50 percent and Vale of White Horse DC 

contributing 50 percent towards the costs. All senior officers are employed by South Oxfordshire 

DC. 

 

Page 249

Agenda Item 7

Page 250



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 47 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

A senior employee is one who earns a salary in excess of £150,000, or holds a designated 

position (with a salary in excess of £50,000) – these are detailed in the table below: 

Table 18a Senior officer’s emoluments statutory   

Post title 

 
 
Financial 
Year  

Salary 
(including 
fees & 
allowances) 

Expenses 

Total 
remuneratio
n excluding 

pension 
contribution

s 

Pension 
contributions 

Total 
remuneratio
n including 
pension 
contribution
s 

 

    £ £ £ £ £ 

Head of paid 
service 

2020/21 179,348 0 179,348 27,105 206,453 

2019/20 161,227 2,122 163,349 20,798 184,147 
Chief finance 
officer (section 
151 officer) 

2020/21 98,314 450 98,764 16,025 114,789 

2019/20 67,122 802 67,924 3,150 71,074 

Monitoring 
officer 

2020/21 98,314 0 98,314 16,025 114,339 

2019/20 94,596 180 94,776 12,203 106,979 

The chief finance officer and monitoring officer are also heads of service. 

The spot point pay level for heads of service is as follows: 

Table 18b Spot pay point - heads of service non-statutory 

Heads of service  3 98,314 

Acting Deputy Chief Executive  3 119,519 

Interim Head of Service  1 98,314 

   

Interim Heads of Service as at September 2020 1 98,314 

Interim Head of Service as at September 2020 – February 2021 1 98,314 

The council is also obliged to disclose the numbers of other employees that were paid a salary in 

excess of £50,000 (these numbers do not include the senior officers detailed above).  Sixteen 

employees whose remuneration, excluding employer’s pension contributions, was £50,000 or 

more are as follows: 

Table 18c Employee remuneration over £50,000   

Number of SODC/VOWH employees 

2019/20 
Remuneration band 

2020/21 

£ 

2 50,000-54,999 5 

2 55,000-59,999 5 

5 60,000-64,999 4 

0 70,000-74,999 2 

Under the shared working arrangements, the council recharged a total of £3,129,054 of its salary 

costs to South Oxfordshire District Council, which in turn recharged £7,174,428 of its salary costs 

to this council.  

 

Page 250

Agenda Item 7

Page 251



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 48 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Termination benefits 

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 

redundancies are set out in the table below: 

Table 18d Exit packages agreed 

Exit package cost band 
(including special 

payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of other 
departures 

agreed 

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in 
each band 

 £ 

  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 

£220,000 - £240,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Post-employment benefits – Defined benefit pension schemes 

Participation in pension schemes 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the council makes contributions 

towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these benefits will not actually be payable 

until employees retire, the council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be 

disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 

The council participates in The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The LGPS is a 

defined statutory scheme administered in accordance with the Local Government Scheme 

regulations 2013, is contracted out of the State Second Pension and currently provides benefits 

based on career average revalued salary and length of service on retirement. 

The administering authority for the Fund is Oxfordshire County Council.  The Pension Fund 

Committee oversees the management of the Fund whilst the day to day fund administration is 

undertaken by a team within the administering authority.  Where appropriate some functions are 

delegated to the Fund’s professional advisers. 

Contributions are set every three years as a result of the actuarial valuation of the Fund required 

by the Regulations.  The actuarial valuation of the Fund has been carried out as at 31 March 2021 

and sets contributions for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022.  There are no minimum 

funding requirements in the LGPS, but the contributions are generally set to target a funding level 

of 100 per cent using the actuarial valuation assumptions. 

On the employer’s withdrawal from the Fund, a cessation valuation will be carried out in 

accordance with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 which will determine the termination 

contribution due by the Employer, on a set of assumptions deemed appropriate by the Fund 

Actuary. 

This is a funded defined benefit career, meaning that the council and employees pay contributions 

into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension’s liabilities with investment 

assets.  The fund has an independent global custodian, BNP Paribas, whose main duties include 

Page 251

Agenda Item 7

Page 252



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 49 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

the safekeeping of the fund's investments, the collection of income and the execution of corporate 

actions, such as company mergers or takeovers.  

In addition, arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits are awarded 

upon early retirement. This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement under which liabilities are 

recognised when awards are made.  However, there are no investment assets built up to meet 

these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they 

fall due 

In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the Employer is exposed 

to a number of risks: 

• Investment risk. The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, which have 

volatile market values and while these assets are expected to provide real returns over the 

long-term, the short-term volatility can cause additional funding to be required if a deficit 

emerges.  

• Interest rate risk. The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on high quality 

corporate bonds to discount future liability cash flows.  As the Fund holds assets such as 

equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not move in the same way.  

• Inflation risk. All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so deficits may 

emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation.  

• Longevity risk. In the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit will emerge in 

the Fund. There are also other demographic risks. 

In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Oxfordshire County Council Pension 

Fund, there is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient assets 

to cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining employers. 

All of the risks above may also benefit the Employer e.g. higher than expected investment returns 

or employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually get inherited by the remaining 

employers. 

These risks are also mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the 

general fund the amounts required by statute. 

Transactions relating to retirement benefits 

The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they are earned 

by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the 

charge made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-

employment / retirement benefits is reversed out of the general fund via the movement in reserves 

statement.  The following transactions have been made in the CIES and the general fund balance 

via the movement in reserves statement during the year: 

 

 

Page 252

Agenda Item 7

Page 253



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 50 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

 

Table 18e Transactions relating to retirement benefits 

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

  Cost of Services:   

1,981 Service Cost 2,080 

  Financing and investment income and expenditure  

1,147 Net interest expense 785 

3,128 
Total post-employment benefit charged to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 

2,865 

  Other post-employment benefit charged to the CIES  

  Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:  

4,595 
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest 
expense) 

(12,065) 

(4,058) Actual (gain) and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions 1,195 

(9,792) Actual (gain) and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions 21,913 

(5,703) Other (964) 

(11,830) 
Total post-employment benefit charges to the comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement 

10,079 

  Movement in Reserves Statement  

(3,128) 
Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit for the Provision of 
Services for post-employment benefits in accordance with the code 

(2,865) 

  
Actual amount charged against the general fund balance for pensions in the 
year: 

 

1,714 Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 1,817 

 

Pensions assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its 

defined benefit plans is as follows: 

18f Pension assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 

2019/20  2020/21 

£000   £000 

57,196 Fair value of employer assets 69,729 

(89,497) Present value of funded liabilities (113,084) 

(1,730) Present value of unfunded liabilities (1,803) 

(34,031) Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (45,158) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 253

Agenda Item 7

Page 254



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 51 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

 

 

18g Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of the scheme assets   

LGPS   LGPS 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

61,414 Opening balance at 1 April 57,196 

1,464  Interest on assets 1,305 

(4,595)  Return on assets less interest 12,065 

1,714  Employer contributions 1,817 

338  Contributions by scheme participants 395 

(3,139)  Benefits paid (3,049) 

57,196 Closing present value of scheme assets 69,729 

 

18h Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of the scheme liabilities 

Funded and 
Unfunded 
liabilities 

 
Funded 

and 
Unfunded 
liabilities 

2019/20 
 

2020/21 
£000 

 
£000 

(109,092) Opening balance at 1 April (91,227) 

(1,981) Current Service Cost (2,080) 

(2,611) Interest cost (2,090) 

(338) Contributions by scheme participants (395) 

9,792 Actual (gains) and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (21,913) 

4,058 Actual (gain) and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions (1,195) 

5,703 Other 964 

3,139 Benefits paid 3,049 

(91,330) Closing present value of liabilities (114,887) 

 

The discretionary benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local 

Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories 

Table 18i Breakdown of fund assets at fair value 

2019/20   2020/21 

Quoted 
Non- 

quoted 
Total     Quoted 

Non- 
quoted 

Total   

£000 £000 £000 %   £000 £000 £000 % 

0 0 0   Equities     
        Property     
        Bonds:     

5,647  5,647 10 Government bonds 5,702  5,702 8 

1,272   1,272 2     Other 1,795  1,795 3 

2,215 2 2,217 4 Private equity 3,030  3,030 4 

  46,584 46,584 81 Other investment funds  56,653 56,653 81 

Page 254

Agenda Item 7

Page 255



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 52 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(36)   (36) 0 Foreign exchange 79  79 0 

1,512   1,512 3 Cash and cash equivalents 2,470  2,470 4 

10,610 46,586 57,196 100 Total 13,076 56,653 69,729 100 

 

 

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities 

In order to assess the value of the Council’s liabilities in the Fund as at 31 March 2021, we have 

rolled forward the value of the Council’s liabilities calculated at the latest formal valuation date of 

31 March 2020, allowing for the different financial assumptions required under the Accounting 

Standard at the reporting date. 

In calculating the current service cost, we have allowed for changes in the Council’s pensionable 

payroll as estimated from the contribution information provided. In calculating the asset share, we 

have rolled forward the Council’s share of the assets calculated at the latest formal valuation date 

allowing for: investment returns, the effect of contributions paid into, and estimated benefits paid 

from, the Fund by the Council and its employees.  

In preparing the balance sheet at 31 March 2021 and the revenue account to 31 March 2021 no 

allowance is made for the effect of changes in the membership profile since the last formal 

valuation date. The principal reason for this is that insufficient information is available to allow for 

any such adjustment. However, the effect is likely to be immaterial in actual terms. 

Whilst the liabilities calculated under the Accounting Standard include an allowance for some 

premature retirements on the grounds of ill-health, there is no allowance for early retirements on 

grounds of redundancy or efficiency other than those actual cases notified. 

It is not possible to assess the accuracy of the estimated rolled-forward liability without conducting 

a full valuation using updated individual member data. Such a valuation is generally not practical in 

the time available to meet the council’s reporting requirements. The estimated rolled-forward 

liability as at 31 March 2021 will therefore not reflect differences in demographic experience from 

that assumed (e.g. pensioner longevity) or the impact of differences between aggregate changes 

in salary/pension or changes for specific individuals. 

We have no reason to believe that the approximations used in rolling forward the valuation to 31 

March 2021 will introduce any undue distortion in the results. 

The employer currently participates in the Vale of White Horse District Council pool with other 

employers in order to share experience of risks they are exposed to in the Fund. At the 2019 

valuation, the deficit for the whole pool was calculated and allocated to each employer in 

proportion to their value of liabilities. The next reallocation will be carried out at the 2022 valuation, 

should the Employer remain in the pool. Each employer within the pool pays a contribution rate 

based on the cost of benefits of the combined membership of the pool. 

We have adopted a set of demographic assumptions that are consistent with those used for the 

most recent Fund valuation, which was carried out as at 31 March 2020.  The post retirement 

mortality tables adopted are the S2PA tables with a multiplier of 90 per cent.  These base tables 

are then projected using the CMI 2015 Model, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5 

per cent per annum. 

Page 255

Agenda Item 7

Page 256



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 53 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

 

 

 

Table 18j Principal actuarial assumptions   

2019/20   2020/21 

  Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme   

4.30% All assets 4.30% 

  Mortality assumptions   
  Longevity at 65 for current pensioners – retiring today:   

22.2 Yrs. Men 22.4 

24.3 Yrs.  Women 24.7 

  Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:   

22.9 Yrs. Men 23.4 

25.6 Yrs.  Women 26.3 

  Other assumptions   
1.90% Inflation - CPI 2.85% 

1.90% Rate of general increase in salaries 2.85% 

  1.90%  Rate of increase to pensions   2.85% 

2.30% Discount rate 2.00% 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in 

the table above.  The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably 

possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for 

each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain 

constant.  The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases for 

men and women. In practice this is unlikely to be correct, and changes in some of the assumptions 

may be interrelated.  The estimates in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting 

policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method.  The methods 

and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from 

those used in the previous period. 

Other assumptions are that: 

• Members will exchange half of their commutable pension for cash at retirement. 

• members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the pension 

weighted average tranche retirement age: and 

• the proportion of members that had taken up the 50:50 option at the previous valuation date 

will remain the same. 

Table 18k Sensitivity analysis     

Change in assumption at 31 Mar 2021 
Approximate increase in employer 

liability 

  % £0 

Page 256

Agenda Item 7

Page 257



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 54 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

0.5% decrease in real discount rate 9 10,653 

0.5% increase in the salary increase rate 1 854 

0.5% increase in the pension increase rate * 8 9,593 

 
* Pension increases and deferred revaluation are linked to inflation (CPI) 

In order to quantify the impact of a change in the financial assumptions used we have calculated 

and compared the value of the scheme liabilities as at 31 March 2021 on varying bases.  The 

approach taken is consistent with that adopted to derive the IAS 19 figures provided. 

The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption (i.e. member life expectancy).  

For sensitivity purposes we estimate that a one-year increase in life expectancy would 

approximately increase the employer’s Defined Benefit Obligation by around 3-5 per cent.  In 

practice the actual cost of a one-year increase in life expectancy will depend on the structure of 

the revised assumption (i.e. if improvements to survival rates predominantly apply to younger or 

older ages). 

The above figures have been derived based on the membership profile of the employer as at the 

date of the most recent actuarial valuation. 

Impact on the council’s cash flows 

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as 

possible, at a reasonable cost to the scheme employers and taxpayers, whilst ensuring the overall 

solvency of the fund.  There are no minimum funding requirements, but contributions are generally 

set to target a funding level of 100 per cent.  Funding levels are monitored regularly, and the next 

triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31 March 2022. 

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public 

Pensions Services Act 2013.  Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in England 

and Wales may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014.  The Act provides 

for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average 

re-valued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits. 

The actuarial estimate of the duration of the council’s liabilities is 20 years.  The council anticipates 

paying £1.82 million in contributions to the scheme in 2021/22. 

 

19. External audit costs 

The council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the statement of accounts, 

certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the 

council’s external auditors. 

In 2020/21 external audit services were provided by Ernst & Young LLP (EY). 

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

54 
Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by 
the appointed auditor for the year 

58 

9 
Fees payable to external auditor for the certification of grant 
claims and returns for the year 

10 

Page 257

Agenda Item 7

Page 258



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 55 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

63   68 

 

 

 

20. Grant income 

2019/20 
  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

  Credited to taxation and non-specific grant income   

2,817 Retained business rates 3,328 

11,177 Council tax income 11,794 

2,453 Developers and other capital contributions 6,179 

0 Covid grant 3,494 

1,444 Disabled facilities grant 1,588 

4,816 New homes bonus 5,290 

0 Revenue support grant 9 

22,707 Total 31,682 

  Credited to services  

176 Business rates collection allowance 174 

150 Didcot Garden Town 0 

17 Electoral reform 14 

158 Homelessness Support 189 

212 Housing benefit - admin 235 

19,973 Housing benefit - subsidy 19,087 

0 Local council tax admin subsidy 85 

108 New burdens revenue and other grants 453 

120 Neighbourhood planning 65 

35 Universal credit 20 

0 Covid support grants 163 

30 Other  0 

20,979 Total 20,485 

 

The council credited the above grants, contributions and donations to the CIES in 2020/21. 

 

21. Related parties 

The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals 

that have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the 

council.  Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the council 

might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the 

ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the council.  Related parties include: 

Central government.  Central government has effective control over the general operations of the 

council – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the council operates, 

provides a large proportion of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of 

Page 258

Agenda Item 7

Page 259



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 56 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

the transactions that the council has with other parties (e.g. housing benefits).  Grants received 

from government are shown in note 20 above. 

Precepts.  Precept transactions in relation to Oxfordshire County Council, Police and Crime 

Commissioner for Thames Valley and the various town and parish councils, are shown within a 

note to the collection fund. 

Members of the council.  Councillors have direct control over the council’s financial and 

operating policies. During the year no councillors have undertaken any declarable, material 

transactions with the council.  Details of any transactions would be recorded in the register of 

members’ interests, open to public inspection at the council’s offices. This is in addition to a 

specific declaration obtained from all councillors in respect of related party transactions.  

As at publication, the below elected members had yet to return their declarations: 

• Councillor Jerry Avery 

• Councillor Matthew Barber 

• Councillor Margaret Crick 

• Councillor Amos Duveen 

• Councillor Neil Fawcett 

• Councillor Robert Maddison 

• Councillor Patrick O’Leary 

• Councillor Janet Shelley 

• Councillor Richard Webber 

Members represent the council on various organisations. Appointments are reviewed annually, 

unless a specific termination date for the term of office applies.  None of these appointments 

places the member in a position to exert undue influence or control. 

Officers of the council.  The senior officers of the council have control over the day to day 

management of the council and all heads of service and management team members have been 

asked to declare any related party transactions.  For 2020/21 nothing was declared. 

Other organisations.  The council awards grants to support a number of voluntary or charitable 

bodies and individuals.  It does not attempt to exert control through this. 

22.  Capital expenditure and capital financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including 

the value of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been 

used to finance it.  Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to 

revenue as assets are used by the council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 

council that has yet to be financed. 

 

 

 

Page 259

Agenda Item 7

Page 260



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 57 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

 

 

 

Table 22 Capital expenditure and financing   

2019/20  2020/21 

£000   £000 

0 Opening capital financing requirement 0 

  Opening balance adjustment   

  Capital investment   

73 Property, plant and equipment 173 

0 Other 0 

27 Intangible assets 117 

2,255 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 1,362 

  Sources of finance  

(499) Capital receipts (585) 

(1,856) Government grants and other contributions (1,067) 

0 Closing capital financing requirement 0 

0 Increase/(decrease) in capital financing requirement 0 

 

23. Leases 

Council as lessee 

Finance leases – the council has no finance leases. 

Operating leases – The council has one material operating lease for the shared used (with South 

Oxfordshire District Council) of the office at 135 Eastern Avenue Milton Park.   

Council as lessor 

Finance leases - The council recognised three long term leases in the 2015/16 accounts.  The 

leases are: 

• Abbey Shopping Centre, Abingdon – 250-year lease signed in 2012 

• Tilsley Park, Abingdon - 125-year lease signed in 2014 

• The Upper Reaches Hotel, Abingdon - 125-year lease signed in 1969 

The council has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments 

expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the 

property when the lease comes to an end.  The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of 

the long-term debtor for the interest in the property acquired by the lessee and finance income that 

will be earned by the council in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding. The gross 

investment is made up of the following amounts: 

 

Page 260

Agenda Item 7

Page 261



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 58 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 23a Interest in finance lease 

  

2019/20 2020/21 

    

£000 £000 

Finance lease debtor (net present value of minimum lease payments):     

Non-current 0 0 

Unearned finance income 3,168 3,011 

Unguaranteed residual value of property 5,718 5,718 

Gross investment in the lease 8,886 8,729 

The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the 

following periods: 

Table 23b Minimum finance lease payments         

  
Gross 

investment in 
the lease 

Minimum lease 
payments 

  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Not later than 1 year 175 157 175 157 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 701 544 701 544 

Later than 5 years 8,010 8,027 2,292 2,309 

Total 8,886 8,728 3,168 3,010 

Operating leases – the council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the 

following purposes: 

• For economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local 

business,  

• for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities and community centres. 

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 

Table 23c Future minimum lease payments receivable   

31-Mar-20 
  

31-Mar-21 

£000 £000 

652 Not later than one year 643 

1,174 Later than one year and not later than five years 872 

206 Later than five years 126 

Page 261

Agenda Item 7

Page 262



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 59 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

The minimum lease payments receivable does not include rents that are contingent on events 

taking place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.  In 

2020/21, no contingent rents were receivable by the council (2019/20 nil also). 

 

 

24.    Contingent liabilities 

At 31 March 2021, the council had the following contingent liabilities: 

• Compensation claims for injury and or damage.  The majority of claims for compensation 
are individually immaterial.  They relate to personal injuries sustained where the Authority is 
alleged to be at fault (for example, through a failure to repair a pavement properly).  
Provision has not been made for such claims as the authority’s liability is limited to the 
individual excess on the policy, which in most cases is £5,000.  Until claims are settled by 
the authority's insurers, the cost of the excess cannot be recognised.  It is also considered 
that collectively the sum of these claims in any one year is not material. 

• Vale of White Horse District Council is part of an ongoing legal case involving other councils 
regarding NHS trusts being treated as charitable organisations in terms of being eligible for 
80 per cent relief from business rates. Should the outcome of the litigation be in favour of 
the NHS Trusts then this would mean a refund of business rates relating to previous years 
and on ongoing reduction in the business rates for NHS properties in Vale of White Horse.  

• The High Court ruled in favour of the councils in December 2019.  In February 2020 the 
group of NHS Trusts applied for permission to appeal the ruling   

25. Contingent assets 

At 31 March 2021, the council had no contingent assets. 

26. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments  

The council’s activities expose it to a variety of risks.  The main risks are: 

• Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the council. 

• Liquidity risk - the possibility that the council might not have funds available to meet its 

commitments to make payments. 

• Re-financing risk - the possibility that the council might be required to renew a financial 

instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms. 

• Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the council as a result of changes 

in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

The council’s treasury management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets 

and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. 

The treasury team carry out the procedures for risk management which are set out in the 

approved policies which cover specific areas such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the 

Page 262

Agenda Item 7

Page 263



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 60 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

investment of surplus cash. The procedures are set out through a legal framework based on the 

Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations.  These require the council to comply with  

the CIPFA prudential code, the CIPFA code of practice on treasury management in the public 

services and investment guidance issued through the Act 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to 

the council’s customers. 

The risk is managed through the council’s Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that 

deposits are only placed with financial institutions that meet the identified minimum credit criteria, 

as laid down by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors credit ratings services.  The strategy also 

sets out the maximum amounts and time limits that an investment can be made with a financial 

institution within each category. 

The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the authority at 31 March 2021 are as 

detailed as follows: 

Table 26a Credit criteria 

Deposits with banks and other 
financial institutions 

Min. Rating Other Criteria Counterparty 
Limit 

Amount 
at 31 

March 
2021 

Maturity 
Limit 

F
it

c
h

 

M
o

o
d

y
s

 

S
 &

 P
 

  

    £000 £000   

Banks               

Close Brothers F2      5,000  10,000  1 years 

Goldman Sachs International F1 P-1 A-1   10,000  10,000  2 years 

Building Societies               

Cambridge       assets > £1,000m 3,000  3,000  12 months 
Furness 

      assets > £1,000m 3,000  6,000  12 months 

Monmouthshire       assets > £1,000m 6,000  4,000  12 months 

National Counties       assets > £1,000m 6,000  6,000  12 months 

Newcastle       assets > £1,000m 6,000  3,500  12 months 

Progressive       assets > £1,000m 6,000  6,000  12 months 

Saffron       assets > £1,000m 3,000  3,000  12 months 

West Bromwich        assets > £1,000m 6,000  5,000  12 months 

Principality        BBB- 7,000  5,000  12 months 

 Skipton    BBB- 7,000 3,000 12 months 

Money Market Funds               

Goldman Sachs       AAA 20,000  14,000  Liquid 

LGIM       AAA 20,000  220  Liquid 

Local authorities               

Fife Council          20,000  5,000  25 years 

Worthing Borough Council         20,000  3,000  25 years 

Housing Associations               

Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd F1       10,000  10,000  2 years 

Southern Housing Group   P-1     10,000  5,000  2 years 

Places for People Homes A Baa1 A-   10,000  10,000  2 years 

Page 263

Agenda Item 7

Page 264



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 61 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Property funds               

CCLA Property Fund         3,000  2,587  Variable 

                

Total           114,807    

The full annual investment strategy for 2020/21 was approved by full council on 12 February 2020 

and is available on the council’s website. 

The council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building 

societies cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to repay the principal 

sum will be specific to each institution.  Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such 

entities to be unable to meet their commitments.  A risk of non-recoverability applies to all the 

councils’ deposits but there was no evidence at 31 March 2021 that this was likely to crystallise. 

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past 

experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal 

ratings in accordance with parameters set by the council. 

A provision is made for bad debt based on the debtors’ information at the year end.  The ‘past due’ 

amount is analysed below.  During the reporting period the council held no collateral as security. 

Table 26b below analyses the short-term debt figure by age. 

Table 26b Short term debtors aged debt analysis 
Total 

£000 

Less than three months 9,252 

Three months to six months 222 

Six months to one year 2,306 

Over one year 477 

Total 12,257 

Statutory debts are included in the figures above to enable comparison with the short-term debtors 

total as shown in the balance sheet and in note 9. 

Liquidity risk 

The council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures set out in the 

treasury management strategy, as well as comprehensive cash management system that seeks to 

ensure that cash is available as needed.  If unexpected movements happen, the council is able to 

access borrowing from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. 

The council is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 

1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  Therefore, there is 

no significant risk that the council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under 

financial instruments. 

The council has no debt and therefore is not exposed to refinancing risk of loans at this time.  All 

trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 

Refinancing and maturity risk 

Page 264

Agenda Item 7

Page 265



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 62 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

The council maintains an investment portfolio.  There is a longer-term risk to the council which 

relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. 

Treasury indicator limits placed on investments for over one year in duration are used to manage 

this risk.  The council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the 

central treasury team manage the operational risks within the approved limits.  This includes 

monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the 

council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer-term investments provide stability 

of maturities in relation to longer term cash flow needs. 

The maturity analysis of financial assets, excluding sums due from customers is as follows: 

Table 26c Refinancing and maturity risk 

31-Mar-20  31-Mar-21 

£000   £000 

63,410 Less than one year 97,220 

28,000 Between one and two years 15,000 

0 Between two and three years 0 

2,606 More than three years 2,587 

94,016 Total  114,807 

Market risk 

a) Interest rate risk.  The council is exposed to some risk in terms of its exposure to interest 

rate movements on its investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the 

council, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial 

instrument periods.  A rise in interest rates would have the following effects: 

• investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services will rise 

• investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 

Changes in interest receivable on variable rate investments will be posted to the surplus or deficit 

on the provision of services and affect the general fund balance.   

The council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The Annual Treasury 

Management Strategy draws together council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its expected 

treasury operations, including forecast interest rate movements. 

According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2020, if interest rates had been one per cent 

higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 

Table 26d Interest rate risk 

2019/20   2020/21 
£000   £000 

(99) Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (142) 

(99) Impact on surplus or deficit on the provision of services (142) 

Page 265

Agenda Item 7

Page 266



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 63 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

The impact of a one per cent fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being 

reversed. 

b) Price risk.  The council holds an investment in a pooled property fund with shares to the 

value of £2.6 million.  Whilst this investment holding is generally for interest earning potential, the 

council is exposed to losses and gains arising from the movement in prices of the shares held. 

The shares are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.  This means that all movements in 

price will impact on gains and losses recognised in the available for sale financial instruments 

reserve. 

A movement of five per cent in the price of shares (positive or negative) would result in a £0.1 

million gain or loss being recognised in the available for sale financial instruments reserve. 

The council is not in a position to limit its exposure to price movements by further diversifying its 

portfolio. 

27. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

In applying the accounting policies set out on pages 75 – 90, the council has had to make certain 

judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  The 

critical judgements made in the statement of accounts are: 

Leases 

The council has examined its leases and classified them as either operational or finance leases. In 

some cases, the lease transaction is not always conclusive, and the council uses judgement in 

determining whether the lease is a finance lease arrangement that transfers substantially all the 

risks and rewards incidental to ownership.  In reassessing the lease, the council has estimated the 

implied interest rate within the lease to calculate interest and principal payments. 

Funding 

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However, 

the council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the 

assets of the council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of 

service provision. 

Investment Properties 

Investment properties have been estimated using the identifiable criteria under IAS 40 of being 

held for rental income or for capital appreciation.  These properties have been assessed using 

these criteria, which is subject to interpretation. 

28. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation 

uncertainty 

Business rates 

Since the introduction of Business Rates Retention Scheme effective from 1 April 2013, Local 

Authorities are liable for successful appeals against business rates charged to businesses in 

202/21 and earlier financial years in their proportionate share.  Therefore, a provision has been 

recognised for the best estimate of the amount that businesses have been overcharged up to 31 

March 2021.  The estimate has been calculated using the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) ratings 

list of appeals and the analysis of successful appeals to date when providing the estimate of total 

Page 266

Agenda Item 7

Page 267



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 64 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

provision up to and including 31 March 2021.  The council’s share of the balance of business rates 

appeals provision at this date amounted to £4.2 million. 

Property, plant and equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of 

repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.  If the council is 

unable to sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance this could bring into doubt the 

useful lives currently assigned to assets.  If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation 

increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls.  It is estimated that the annual charge for 

buildings would increase in these circumstances. 

Debt impairment 

At 31 March 2021 the council had a balance on short-term debtors of £8.5 million.  A review of 

significant balances suggested that an impairment of doubtful debts of £3.8 million was 

appropriate.  If collection rates were to deteriorate an increase in the amount of the impairment of 

the doubtful debts would be required. 

Pensions 

The estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements 

relating to the discounts used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in 

retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of consulting 

actuaries (Barnett Waddington) is engaged (through Oxfordshire County Pension Fund) to provide 

the council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.  Details of the pension 

liabilities are in note 18. 

29. Material items of income and expenditure 

The council’s accounts include no material items  

30. Going concern 

The concept of a going concern assumes that an authority’s functions and services will continue in 

operational existence for the foreseeable future. The provisions in the Code (CODE OF 

PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY ACCOUNTING IN THE UNITED KINGDOM 2020/21 in 

respect of going concern reporting requirements reflect the economic and statutory environment in 

which local authorities operate. These provisions confirm that, as authorities cannot be created or 

dissolved without statutory prescription, they must prepare their financial statements on a going 

concern basis of accounting. 

Covid-19 has been a significant consideration in the assessment of going concern due to the 

uncertainty surrounding its impact and duration. Whilst the impact has proved to be material, 

significant additional resources have been received from Central Government to support the 

Council and the wider local economy. Both the cash and reserves position of the Council have 

also been considered.  

A cash flow forecast has been produced to March 2024 that indicates Strong cash balances 

throughout and closing cash and equivalents of £117 million. As at the 31 March 2020, the Council 

had General Reserves of £6.7million which subsequently grew to £14.2 million by the 31 March 

2021. Both figures are significantly above the Council’s minimum recommended prudent balance 

of £4.5million and no reliance has been placed on the General Reserve to balance the budget in 

Page 267

Agenda Item 7

Page 268



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 65 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

2021/22. There are also significant earmarked reserves (£44.0 million as of 31 March 2021). The 

council prepared a five-year medium term financial plan in February 2022 which forecast General 

Reserves of £15.9 million by March 2024 

Overall, the Council is therefore in a relatively strong position in terms of managing its medium-

term financial position.  

The Council carries out functions essential to the local community and if financial difficulties were 

encountered alternative arrangements might be made by central government either for the 

continuation of the services it provides or for assistance with the recovery of a deficit over more 

than one financial year. As this is not the case the accounts have been prepared under the Code 

which assumes that services will be provided for the foreseeable future, at least until March 2024.  

 

31. Covid-19 Pandemic 

As a result of the Covid pandemic, the council had to provide much needed services in the 

following areas: 

• A local hub for support to residents 
 

• Provision of welfare and assistance to vulnerable residents particularly those that are being 
shielded and unable to leave home 

 

• Procurement of additional temporary accommodation for homeless persons and rough 
sleepers  
 

• Additional IT activity and support for Council staff Home working 
 

• Administration of Business Grants and local hardship assistance 
 

These costs however were broadly covered by emergency funding provided by the government.  

The Council’s Fees & Charges income was lower than anticipated in the budget. 75% of lost 

income for council provided services (Licence fee Income, Car Parks, Arts Centre Profits, Leisure 

Centre income, Land Charges & Planning Development Income) has been recovered from 

government initiates. The adverse effect of losing this income was also offset by the redeployment 

of budgeted staff to support services such as the ‘Covid Hub’   

Commercial Property Income, which is not being compensated by government was less than 

budget by £309,000. 

Revenue reserves which currently stand at £60.8million are not expected to be significantly 

affected as a result of the pandemic.   

 

32. Accounting standards issued but not yet adopted 

At the balance sheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing standards 

have been published but not yet adopted by the Code of Practice of Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom: 

Page 268

Agenda Item 7

Page 269



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 66 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

• IFRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on 
their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities (there is 
recognition for low-value and short-term leases). The council will adopt the amendments to 
IFRS 16 with effect from 1 April 2022  

 

  

Page 269

Agenda Item 7

Page 270



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 67 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

 

Collection fund account 

2019/20 

£000 
  

2020/21 

£000  

2020/21 

£000  

2020/21 

£000  
Notes 

Total   
Council 

tax 
NDR Total   

  INCOME         

(101,429) Council taxpayers (108,037)  (108,037)   

  Transfers from general fund:      

(57,189)   - Income from business ratepayers  (48,688) (48,688)   

(158,618)   (108,037) (48,688) (156,725)   

  EXPENDITURE      

  Precepts and demands:      

79,100   - Oxfordshire County Council 83,012  83,012   

11,069   - Police and Crime Commissioner 11,751  11,751   

11,204   - Vale of White Horse District Council 11,802  11,802   

  Business Rates:      

25,786   - Payments to Government  30,628 30,628   

5,157   - Payments to Oxfordshire County  5,690 5,690   

  Council      

20,629   - Payments to VWHDC  25,414 25,414   

173   - Cost of Collection  171 171   

  Bad and doubtful debts:      

699   - Provision for bad debts 1,954 3,102 5,056 3 

3,155   - Provision for appeals  (1,189 (1,189) 3 

156,972   108,519 63,816 172,335   

(1,646) (Surplus)/deficit for the year 482 15,128 15,610   

         

  COLLECTION FUND BALANCE      

(2,015) Balance brought forward at 1 April (3,397) (263) (3,660)   

(1,646) (Surplus)/deficit for the year, as above 482 15,128 15,610   

(3,661) Balance carried forward 31 March (2,915) 14,865 11,950   

         

  Allocated to:      

(132)  - Government  7,432 7,432   

(2,677)  - Oxfordshire County Council (2,270) 1,487 (783)   

(372)  - Police and Crime Commissioner (322) 0 (322)   

(480)  - Vale of White Horse District Council (323) 5,946 5,623   

(3,661)   (2,915) 14,865 11,950   

  

Page 270

Agenda Item 7

Page 271



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 68 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Notes to the collection fund account 

1. Business rates (Non-Domestic Rates) 

Business rates are based on the rateable value of a property multiplied by a nationally determined 

rate (multiplier). The total amount collected by the council is paid into the national pool managed 

by central government. Each council then receives a redistributed amount from the pool based on 

an amount per head of population. 

   £ 

NNDR rateable value as at 01 Apr 2020   144,977,022 

NNDR rateable value as at 31 Mar 2021   147,899,465 

National multipliers (Pence): 2019/20 2020/21 

Small business non-domestic rating multiplier 49.1 49.9 

Non-domestic rating multiplier 50.4 51.2 

 

2. Council tax base calculation 

Council tax income is derived from charges according to the value of residential properties. 

Properties are classified into eight valuation bands. The council, as billing authority, calculates its 

tax base in accordance with governance regulations. The number of properties shown in the table 

below reflects the various discounts and exemptions allowed and a weighting is applied to 

calculate the equivalent band D dwellings. The tax base calculation is as follows:     

Band Number of properties Band multiplier Band D equivalent 

A 1,701 6/9 1,134 
B 6,278 7/9 4,883 
C 17,954 8/9 15,959 
D 13,306 9/9 13,306 
E 9,811 11/9 11,991 
F 5,945 13/9 8,587 
G 4,507 15/9 7,512 
H 468 18/9 936 

  59,970   64,308 

Discounts and exemptions  (11,697) 

Class O exempt properties  1,127 

Sub total  53,738 

Assumed losses on collection (1,052) 

Council tax base  52,686 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 271

Agenda Item 7

Page 272



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 69 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

3. Council tax/NDR bad debt provision and NDR provision for valuation appeals 

The collection fund account provides for bad debts on council tax arrears based on prior years’ 

experience. 

2019/20 
Council tax  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(2,292) Balance at 1 April (2,690) 

0 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 0 

(398) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (1,954) 

(2,690) Balance at 31 March (4,644) 

The council’s proportion of these write offs and movement in provision are shown below. 

2019/20 
Council tax  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(253) Balance at 1 April (297) 

0 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 0 

(44) Net (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (217) 

(297) Balance at 31 March (514) 

The collection fund account also provides for bad debt on NDR arrears. 

2019/20 
NDR  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(1,294) Balance at 1 April (1,595) 

0 (Write back)/write off of debt offs during year 0 

(301) Net (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (3,101) 

(1,595) Balance at 31 March (4,696) 

 

The council’s proportion of these write offs and movement in provision are shown below. 

 

2019/20 
NDR  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(517) Balance at 1 April (637) 

0 (Write back)/write off of debt offs during year 0 

(120) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year (1,241) 

(637) Balance at 31 March (1,878) 

The collection fund account also provides for provision for appeals against the rateable valuation 

set by the Valuation Office Agency not settled as at 31 March 2021.  

  

Page 272

Agenda Item 7

Page 273



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 70 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

2019/20 
NDR  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(8,579) Balance at 1 April (11,734) 

3,460 (Write back)/write off of debt offs during year 0 

(6,615) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year 1,189 

(11,734) Balance at 31 March (10,545) 

 

The council’s proportion of this provision is shown below. 

2019/20 
NDR  

2020/21 

£000 £000 

(3,431) Balance at 1 April (4,692) 

1,385 (Write back)/write off of debt offs during year 0 

(2,646) (Increase)/decrease in provisions during year 474 

(4,692) Balance at 31 March (4,218) 

 

  

Page 273

Agenda Item 7

Page 274



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 71 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

This page is intentionally blank 

  

Page 274

Agenda Item 7

Page 275



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 72 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Statement of accounting policies 

(i) General principles 

The statement of accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial year 

and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2021. The council is required to prepare an annual 

statement of accounts by 31 July 2021 and for the accounts to be prepared in accordance with 

proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 

Council Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, supported by International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

The accounting convention adopted in the statement of accounts is principally historical cost, 

modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

(ii) Accruals of income and expenditure 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made 

or received. In particular: 

▪ revenue from contracts with service receipts, whether for services or the provision of goods, is 

recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in 

accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.  

▪ supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 

between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories 

on the balance sheet. 

▪ expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 

recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 

made. 

▪ interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 

income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 

instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract; and 

▪ where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 

paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.  Where 

debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 

revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 

penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are defined as follows: 

▪ cash and cash equivalents shall include bank overdrafts that are an integral part of the 

council’s cash management. 

▪ cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 

than for investment purposes; and 

▪ investments that can be liquidated or accessed within 30 days i.e. money market funds, call 

accounts and deposit accounts with a notice period of 30 days or less. 

Equity investments are excluded from the definition. 

Page 275

Agenda Item 7

Page 276



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 73 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(iv) Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 

material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 

current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or 

the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 

events and conditions on the council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a 

change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 

balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 

applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 

opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

(v) Charges to revenue for non-current assets 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 

the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

▪ depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

 

▪ revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve against which the losses can be written off; and 

▪ amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 

losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue 

towards the reduction in its overall borrowing required.  As at 31 March 2021 this council has no 

borrowing requirement, so this contribution is not required.  Depreciation, revaluation and 

impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the contribution in the general fund balance, 

by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 

(vi) Employee benefits 

Benefits payable during employment 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 

include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and 

non-monetary benefits for current employees.  They are recognised as an expense for services in 

the year in which employees render service to the council.  An accrual is made for the cost of 

holiday entitlements and additional hours earned by employees but not taken as time off before 

the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual is 

charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the MiRS 

so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence 

occurs. 

Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable either as a result of a decision by the council to 

terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to 

accept voluntary redundancy. Such benefits are charged on an accrual basis to relevant service in 

Page 276

Agenda Item 7

Page 277



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 74 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

the CIES when the council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an 

officer or group of officers or to making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 

general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or 

pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  

In the MiRS, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 

debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for 

the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 

the year-end. 

Post -employment Benefits 

Employees of the authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered 

by Oxfordshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement 

lump sums and pensions). 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

▪ The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are 

included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an 

assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 

to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, 

etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees; 

▪ Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 

yield at the 18 year point on the Merill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield curve which has 

been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19 and with consideration of the duration of the 

Council’s liabilities.  This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date.   

▪ The assets of Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are included 

in the balance sheet at their fair value: 

- Quoted securities - current bid price 

- Unquoted securities - professional estimate 

- Unitised securities - current bid price 

- Property - market value. 

 

▪ The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components 

▪ Service cost comprising: 

- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 

year - allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked. 

- Past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect 

relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services in the CIES. 

- net interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (NDBL), i.e. net interest for the council – the 

change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of 

time charged to the CIES – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure 

the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability 

Page 277

Agenda Item 7

Page 278



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 75 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit 

liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

 

▪ Remeasurements comprising: 

- the return on scheme assets – excluding amounts included in the NDBL – charged to the 

pensions reserve as other CIES. 

- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 

have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 

actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to the pensions reserves as other 

CIES. 

 

▪ Contributions paid to the Oxfordshire County council pension fund - cash paid as employer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the general fund balance to be 

charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the 

year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the MiRS this 

means that there are appropriations to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 

debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 

pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid a the year-end.   The 

negative balance that arises on the pensions reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to 

the general fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows 

rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 

Discretionary benefits 

The council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 

event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member 

of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the 

same policies as are applied to the LGPS. 

(vii) Events after the balance sheet date 

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 

occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the statement of accounts is 

authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified: 

▪ Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the 

statement of accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and 

 

▪ Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the statement of 

accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 

material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 

financial effect. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the statement of 

accounts. 

 

 

Page 278

Agenda Item 7

Page 279



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 76 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(viii) Financial instruments 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 

carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the income and expenditure account for interest 

payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest 

for the instrument.  The only financial liabilities the council has are trade creditors.   

The council currently has no borrowings and has issued no bonds to bond holders. 

Financial assets 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects 

the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are 

three main classes of financial assets measured at: 

▪ amortised cost. 

  

▪ Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL). 

 

▪ Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI). 

The council has no investments measured at FVOCI.  

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost 

Financial instruments measure at amortised cost are recognised on the balance sheet when the 

council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 

measured at fair value.  They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits 

to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are 

based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 

instrument.  For most of the loans that the council has made, this means that the amount 

presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and 

interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

However, if the council has made loans at less than market rates (soft loans), then a loss is 

recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that 

will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the 

outstanding principal.  Interest is credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure 

line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the 

voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in 

the balance sheet.  

Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the general fund balance is the interest 

receivable for the financial year. However, the loss attributable to a loan of less than £20,000 is 

not material and at the current date the council has no material loans.  

Expected credit loss 

The council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, 

either on a 12 month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease 

Page 279

Agenda Item 7

Page 280



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 77 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) 

held by the council. 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take 
place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in 
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, 
losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, 
losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.  

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the balance sheet when the 

authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 

measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in 

the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services except where a statutory override applies in 

which case, they will be recognised in an unusable financial instruments reserve. 

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 

▪ instruments with quoted market prices - the market price. 

▪ other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis. 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 

levels: 

Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 

authority can access at the measurement date, 

Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 

the asset, either directly or indirectly, 

Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 

For instruments where the statutory override applies, changes in fair value are balanced by an 

entry in the unusable reserve financial instrument reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the 

surplus or deficit on revaluation of the assets.  The exception is where impairment losses have 

been incurred - these are debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in 

the CIES, along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the unusable financial 

instrument reserve. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 

payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value 

falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the financing and investment 

income and expenditure line in the CIES.  If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the 

impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 

of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  

Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition 

cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 

financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any accumulated 

gains or losses previously recognised in the unusable financial instruments reserve. 

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 

impairment losses). 

Page 280

Agenda Item 7

Page 281



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 78 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(ix) Foreign currency translation 

The council makes a number of small purchases in foreign currency.  However, the transaction is 

made at the current prevailing exchange rate, the goods or services are received immediately and, 

therefore, there are no gains or losses as a result of variances in the exchange rate required to be 

recorded. 

(x) Government grants and contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third-party 

contributions and donations, including Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions, are 

recognised as due to the council when there is reasonable assurance that: 

▪ the council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 

▪ the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the CIES until conditions attached to 

the grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 

future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 

contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified.  If this is not the case, then 

future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 

carried in the balance sheet as creditors.  When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution 

is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or taxation 

and non-specific grant income (non ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES. 

Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the general fund balance in 

the MiRS.  Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the 

capital grants unapplied reserve.  When it has been applied, it is posted to the capital adjustment 

account. 

Business Improvement Districts 

A Business Improvement District (BID) scheme applies to an area within the authority.  The 

scheme is funded by a BID levy paid by non-domestic ratepayers.  The authority acts as the billing 

authority under the scheme, and accounts for income received and expenditure incurred (including 

contributions to the BID project) within the relevant service within the CIES  

Community Infrastructure Levy 

The council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure levy (CIL). The levy will be charged 

on new builds (chargeable developments for the authority) with appropriate planning consent. The 

council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge. The income from the levy will 

be used to fund a number of infrastructure projects (these include transport, flood defences and 

schools) to support the development of the area. 

CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement 

date of the chargeable development in the CIES in accordance with the accounting policy for 

government grants and contributions set out above. CIL charges will be largely used to fund 

capital expenditure. However, a proportion of the charges may be used to fund revenue 

expenditure.  

 

Page 281

Agenda Item 7

Page 282



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 79 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(xi) Intangible assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 

council as a result of past events (e.g., software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 

future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the council. 

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 

feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the 

council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able 

to sell or use the asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as 

attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research 

expenditure cannot be capitalised). 

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 

intended to promote or advertise the council’s goods or services. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of 

the assets held by the council can be determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no 

intangible asset held by the council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at 

amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to 

the relevant service line(s) in the CIES.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an 

indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant 

service line(s) in the CIES.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an 

intangible asset is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES. 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 

amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 

impact on the general fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 

general fund balance in the MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale 

proceeds greater than £10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 

(xii) Interests in companies and other entities – jointly controlled operations and jointly 

controlled assets 

The council has no material interests in other companies or entities that have the nature of 

subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities and there is therefore no requirement to 

prepare group accounts. 

Jointly controlled operations are classified as activities undertaken by the council in conjunction 

with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than 

the establishment of a separate entity.  They are items of property, plant or equipment that are 

jointly controlled by the council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain benefits 

for the venturers.  Whilst the council has entered into joint arrangements on the provision of 

services with other councils, none of the assets of those councils can be said to be under joint 

control of the councils. 

(xiii) Inventories and long-term contracts 

Inventories are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.   

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the CIES with the value of works 

and services received under the contract during the financial year. 

 

Page 282

Agenda Item 7

Page 283



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 80 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(xiv) Investment property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  

The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 

production of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the 

highest and best use value of the asset from the market participants’ perspective.  Investment 

properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 

year-end.  Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the financing and investment income and 

expenditure line in the CIES.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the financing and investment 

income line and result in a gain for the general fund balance. However, revaluation and disposal 

gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the general 

fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the general fund balance in the 

MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 

£10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 

(xv) Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 

risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 

lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 

separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 

return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 

dependent on the use of specific assets. 

The council as lessee 

Finance leases 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the balance sheet at the 

commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present 

value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for 

the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the council are added to the carrying amount 

of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  

Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Lease payments are apportioned between: 

▪ A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment - applied to write 

down the lease liability; and 

 

▪ A finance charge (debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 

CIES). 

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 

applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this 

Page 283

Agenda Item 7

Page 284



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 81 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to 

the council at the end of the lease period). 

The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 

losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue 

funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  

Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 

contribution in the general fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital 

adjustment account in the MiRS for the difference between the two. 

Operating leases 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the services 

benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are made on a straight-

line basis over the life of the lease. 

The council as lessor 

Finance leases 

Where the council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 

relevant asset is written out of the balance sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the 

lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet (whether property, plant and 

equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES 

as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing the council’s net investment in the 

lease, is credited to the same line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 

netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease 

(long-term debtor) asset in the balance sheet. 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

▪ A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the lease 

debtor (together with any premiums received); and 

 

▪ Finance income (credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 

CIES). 

The gain credited to the CIES on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the general fund 

balance and is posted out of the general fund balance to the capital receipts reserve in the 

movement in reserves statement.  Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be 

settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the general fund 

balance to the deferred capital receipts reserve in the movement in reserves statement.  When the 

future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used 

to write down the lease debtor.  At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 

capital receipts reserve. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 

assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 

therefore appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the 

MiRS. 

 

 

Page 284

Agenda Item 7

Page 285



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 82 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Operating leases 

Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 

asset is retained in the balance sheet.  Rental income is a creditor to the other operating 

expenditure line in the CIES.  Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. 

(xvi) Overheads and support services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to services in accordance with the 

authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.   

(xvii) Property, plant and equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 

services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 

during more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 

capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 

service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 

future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 

expense when it is incurred. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

▪ the purchase price.  

 

▪ any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

The council would not capitalise borrowing costs if required to be incurred for assets under 

construction. 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 

acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows 

of the council).  In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 

acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the council. 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference between fair value and any 

consideration paid is credited to the taxation and non-specific grant income line of the CIES, 

unless the donation has been made conditionally.  Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in 

the donated assets account.  Where gains are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the 

general fund balance to the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 

Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases: 

▪ Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost. 

 

▪ Surplus assets – fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a market participant’s 

perspective. 

Page 285

Agenda Item 7

Page 286



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 83 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

▪ All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in 

its existing use. 

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 

asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value. 

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 

historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 

Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure 

that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as 

a minimum every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation 

reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the CIES where 

they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

▪ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 

accumulated gains); 

 

▪ where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the decrease in value the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and 

the remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 

▪ where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is written 

down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 

When assets are formally revalued, the accumulated depreciation and impairment balances are 

written down.  The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 

only, the date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 

into the capital adjustment account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 

impaired.   Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 

recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 

the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 

▪ Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 

accumulated gains).  

 

▪ Where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the carrying amount 

of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and the 

remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 

▪ Where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is 

written down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 

Page 286

Agenda Item 7

Page 287



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 84 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

▪ Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 

service line(s) in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 

would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic 

allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets 

without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and 

assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

▪ Buildings and infrastructure assets – straight line allocation over the useful life of the property 

as estimated by the valuer. 

 

▪ Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – on a straight-line basis, generally over the useful life 

of the asset. 

More detail on depreciation rates for asset categories is included in note 5 to the accounts. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment has major components whose cost is significant 

in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.   

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 

value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 

based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the 

capital adjustment account. 

Disposals and non-current assets held for sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 

through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held 

for sale.  The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 

this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value 

less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES.  Gains in 

fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous loss recognised in the surplus or 

deficit on provision of services.  Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified 

back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were 

classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have 

been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale and their recoverable amount at the 

date of the decision not to sell.   

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.  

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance 

sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other 

operating expenditure line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 

against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated 

for the asset in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment account. 

Page 287

Agenda Item 7

Page 288



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 85 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  

Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 

assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 

appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 

(xviii) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council a legal or constructive 

obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.   

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES when the 

authority has an obligation and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the 

expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the balance 

sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes 

less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement 

than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 

another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 

service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the council settles the 

obligation. 

Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible 

obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 

future events not wholly within the control of the council.  Contingent liabilities also arise in 

circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the 

accounts. 

Contingent assets 

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible asset 

whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the council. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 

where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 

 (xix) Reserves 

The council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 

contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the general fund balance in 

the movement in reserves statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, 

it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the CIES.  The reserve is then 

Page 288

Agenda Item 7

Page 289



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 86 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

appropriated back into the general fund balance in the MiRS so that there is no net charge against 

council tax for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 

instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable 

resources for the council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note. 

(xx) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 

does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 

relevant service in the CIES in the year.  Where the council has determined to meet the cost of 

this expenditure from existing capital resources, a transfer in the MiRS from the general fund 

balance to the capital adjustment account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is 

no impact on the level of council tax. 

(xxi) Value Added Tax (VAT) 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 

Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 

(xxii)  Fair Value Measurement 

The council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the 

reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 

transfer a liability at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement assumes that the 

transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or  

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The council uses external valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities in line with the 

highest and best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the 

asset or liability being valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant.  

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the council’s fair value measurement of its assets 

and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

authority can access at the measurement date.  

Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly or indirectly.    

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

(xxiii) Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (England) 

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of 

the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and 

NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the 

Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and 

NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors 

and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax 

and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 

Page 289

Agenda Item 7

Page 290



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 87 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR 

 

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine 

the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. 

Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund 

is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement. The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of 

year balances in respect of council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for 

doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 

Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising 

from a past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made (fixed or 

determinable payments), the asset is written down and a charge made to the collection fund.  The 

impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future 

cash flows. 

 

  

Page 290

Agenda Item 7

Page 291



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 88 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Glossary of terms 

Accounts – A generic term for statements setting out details of income and expenditure or assets 

and liabilities or both in a structured manner. Accounts may be categorised by the type of 

transactions they record e.g. revenue accounts, capital accounts or by the purpose they serve e.g. 

management accounts, final accounts, balance sheets. 

Accounting policies – those principles, bases, conventions rules and practices applied by an 

entity that specify how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its 

financial statements through: 

a) recognising 

b) selecting measurement bases for, and 

c) presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves. 

 

Accounting policies do not include estimation techniques. 

Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are reflected in the 

financial statements.  For example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may 

specify whether an asset or a loss is to be recognised; the basis on which it is to be measured; 

and where in the revenue account or balance sheet it is to be presented. 

Accounting standards - A set of rules explaining how accounts are to be kept. By law, local 

Councils must follow ‘proper accounting practices’, which are set out in Act of Parliament and in 

professional codes and statements of recommended practices. These standards make 

comparability, among other things, possible. 

Accrual – a fundamental accounting principle is that income and expenditure should be 

accounted for in the period to which it relates, irrespective of the date of settlement.  An accrual is 

a sum included in the accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to goods or services 

received within the accounting period but for which payment has not been received or made. 

Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pension liability that arise because events have 

not coincided with assumptions. Not charged to revenue. 

Agency – the provision of services by one organisation on behalf of another organisation. The 

organisation directly providing the services is reimbursed by the responsible organisation. 

Amortisation – the planned writing-down of the value of an asset (tangible or intangible) over its 

limited useful life. 

Asset – the creation or purchase of an item/building that has a monetary value.  Those assets of 

the council which are readily marketable are valued at market value.  Those which have a 

specialised use, such as leisure centres, are valued at depreciated replacement cost, which 

assesses the cost of providing a similar facility as a replacement but also allows a discount for the 

age of the asset.  Plant, equipment and community assets are valued at historic cost. 

Asset register – a register listing the book values of all the Council’s non-current fixed assets, 

both tangible and intangible. 

Balance sheet – the balance sheet is a statement of the assets and liabilities at the end of the 

accounting period.  It is a “snapshot” of the accounts at a single point in time. 

Page 291

Agenda Item 7

Page 292



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 89 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Capital adjustment account - accumulates (on the debit side) the write-down of the historical 

cost of fixed assets as they are consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on 

disposal. It accumulates (on the credit side) the resources that have been set aside to finance 

capital expenditure. The same process applies to capital expenditure that is only capital by 

statutory definition (Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute). The balance on the 

account thus represents timing differences between the amount of the historical cost of fixed 

assets that has been consumed and the amount that has been financed in accordance with 

statutory requirements. 

Capital expenditure – expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds 

to and not merely maintains the value of an existing fixed asset.  

Capital financing – assembling the money to pay for capital expenditure.  This will include capital 

receipts, government grants and contributions from developers. Also available are revenue monies 

and borrowing.  The council does not currently borrow to finance capital expenditure. 

Capital receipts – proceeds from the sale of an asset, e.g. land, buildings, equipment, vehicles. 

Central administration charges – central administration charges are an allocation of the net cost 

of the administrative and professional departments that support all of an authority’s services, e.g. 

finance, personnel. 

Central support services – the costs of providing those central functions which are concerned 

with the whole range of services and undertakings of the council and are not in the main 

identifiable with any particular service, e.g., the cost of office accommodation. 

CIPFA – CIPFA is the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, which is the leading 

professional accountancy body for public services. 

Code of Practice – the CIPFA Code of Practice for Local Authority accounting developed as part 

of the accounting standards to be followed in compiling this statement of accounts. 

Collection fund – a fund maintained by collecting authorities into which is paid council taxes, 

NDR, and community charges. The fund then meets the requirements of the county, district and 

parish councils and the Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley for council tax, and 

the county and central government for NDR. 

Community assets – assets that the council intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no 

determinable useful life, and that may have restrictions on their disposal.  Examples of community 

assets are parks and historical buildings.   

Consistency – the principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting 

period and from one period to the next is the same. 

Contingency - money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of 

expenditure, or shortfalls in income, and to provide for inflation where this is not included in 

individual budgets. 

Contingent asset – a potential asset arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed 

only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the council’s 

control. 

 

 

Page 292

Agenda Item 7

Page 293



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 90 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Contingent liability – a contingent liability is either: 

• a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or 

 

• a present obligation arising from past events where it is not possible to measure the amount of 

obligation with sufficient reliability. 

 

Council tax – a charge levied by all councils on domestic property values to contribute to the cost 

of providing local services.  Council tax for the county council, the local police crime commissioner 

and local parishes is collected by this council and paid over to them throughout the year. 

Council tax benefit - is the assistance provided by billing authorities to adults on low incomes to 

help them pay their council tax bill.  

Council tax requirement - the estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services that 

needed to be financed from the Council Tax after deducting income from fees and charges, certain 

specific grants and any funding from reserves. 

Creditor – the amount owed by the council for work done, goods received, or services rendered to 

the council within the accounting period but for which payment has not been made at the date of 

the balance sheet. 

Current asset – an asset where the value changes on a frequent basis e.g. stores, cash, debtors 

(as distinct from a fixed asset such as land and buildings). 

Current liability – an amount which will become payable or for which payment could be 

requested within the next accounting period, e.g. creditors, bank overdrafts, short term loans. 

Current service costs (pensions) – the increase in pension liabilities as a result of years of 

service earned this year. Allocated to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees 

worked. 

Debtor – an amount due to the council within the accounting period but not received at the date of 

the balance sheet. 

Deferred capital receipts - capital income still to be received after disposals have taken place. 

Defined benefit pension scheme – a pension or other retirement benefit scheme where the 

scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are 

not directly related to the investments of the scheme. 

Defined contribution pension scheme – a pension or other retirement benefit scheme into 

which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or a percentage of pay and will 

have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have 

sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior 

periods. 

Depreciation – the measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that 

have been consumed during the period.  Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other 

reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether arising from use, passage of time or 

obsolescence through either change in technology, legislation or demand for goods and service 

produced by the asset. 

Page 293

Agenda Item 7

Page 294



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 91 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Direct revenue financing – the financing of capital expenditure from the current year’s revenue 

account. 

Earmarked reserves - The council holds a number of reserves earmarked to be used to meet 

specific, known or predicted future expenditure. 

Events after the balance sheet date – events after the balance sheet date are those events, 

favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date (normally 31 March) and 

the date when the statement of accounts is authorised for issue – also referred to as Post  

Balance Sheet Events (PBSE).  These may be classed as ‘adjusting’ or ‘non-adjusting’. 

Exceptional items – material items which derive from events of transactions that fall within the 

ordinary activities of the authority and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size 

or incidence to give a true and fair presentation of the accounts. 

External audit - The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities 

to ensure the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and 

proper practices and to ensure the council has made proper arrangements to secure value for 

money in its use of resources. 

Extraordinary items – material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive 

from events of transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the authority and which are 

not expected to recur.  They do not include exceptional items, nor do they include prior period 

items merely because they relate to a prior period.  

Fair value – the fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arms-

length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of 

the asset. 

Finance lease – this is a lease, usually of land or buildings, which is treated as capital borrowing 

and for which transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the 

lessee; or where the residual interest in the asset transfers to the lessee on completion of the 

lease term. 

Financial instrument – a financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of 

one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ 

covers both financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward 

financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the most complex 

ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives. 

Financial regulations - These are the written code of procedures approved by the council, 

intended to provide a framework for proper financial management. Financial regulations usually 

set out rules on accounting, audit, administrative and budgeting procedures. 

Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) – accounting practice recommended by the Accounting 

Standards Board (ASB) for adoption in the preparation of accounts by applicable bodies. 

Fixed asset – fixed assets are assets of the council that continue to have value and benefit for a 

period longer than one financial year. 

 

Page 294

Agenda Item 7

Page 295



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 92 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the results of actions to relieve the council of 

liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees.  

Debited to the net costs of services as part of non-distributed costs. 

General fund – the main revenue account of an authority, which summarises the cost of all 

services provided by the council which are paid for from amounts collected from council taxpayers, 

government grants and other income. 

Going concern – the concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the 

foreseeable future, in particular that the revenue accounts and Balance Sheet assume no intention 

to curtail significantly the scale of operations. 

Heritage asset - A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 

environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and 

culture. 

Housing benefit - This is an allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or 

part, their rent. Benefit is allowed or paid by Local Authorities but Central Government refunds part 

of the cost of the benefits and of the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits 

paid to the Authority’s own tenants are known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants as 

rent allowance. 

IAS 19 – International Accounting Standard 19 requires the council to account for assets and 

liabilities which are in held the pension fund administered by Oxfordshire County Council but 

relating to this authority, in the accounts of this authority. 

IAS 40 - International Accounting Standard 40 relates to the accounting for investment properties. 

iBoxx – iBoxx indices cover the cash bond market. Underlying bond prices and indices are 

available in real time. 

Impairment – an unexpected or sudden decline in the value of a fixed asset, such as property or 

vehicle, below its carrying amount on the balance sheet. 

Infrastructure assets - Fixed Assets which generally cannot be sold and from which benefit can 

be obtained only by continued use of the asset created. Examples of such assets are highways, 

footpaths, bridges and water and drainage facilities. 

Intangible fixed assets – some capital expenditure does not give rise to a physical asset, but the 

benefits last a number of years.  These can be carried in the balance sheet as assets and written 

off over their useful life.  An example is computer software. 

International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS) – defined Accounting Standards that must be applied by all reporting entities to all financial 

statements in order to provide a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position, and a 

standardised method of comparison with financial statements of the other entities. 

Liabilities – these are amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at 

some time in the future.  Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance 

Sheet date. 

 

Page 295

Agenda Item 7

Page 296



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 93 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Liquid resources – current asset investments that are readily disposable without disrupting the 

authority’s business and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the 

carrying amount or traded in an active market. 

Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) (also known as business rates) – NDR is a tax charged on 

commercial properties.  It is calculated by multiplying a property's 'rateable value' by a nationally 

set amount (known as the ‘NDR multiplier’).  The council acts as a collecting agency for NDR and 

the proceeds are then redistributed to central government, the county council and the balance 

retained by the council. 

Net Book Value (NBV) – the amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet; i.e.: 

their historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 

Net current replacement cost – the cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its 

existing condition and in its existing use. 

Net debt – the authority’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources.  Where the cash and liquid 

resources exceed borrowings, reference should be to Net funds rather than net debt. 

Net realisable value – the open market value of an asset in its existing use, less the expenses to 

be incurred in realising the asset. 

Non-operational assets – fixed assets held by the authority but not used or consumed in the 

delivery of services or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.  Examples of non-

operational assets include investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, 

pending their sale.  

Operating lease – this is a lease where ownership of the fixed asset remains with the lessor and 

the lease costs are revenue expenditure to the Council – generally any lease other than a finance 

lease. 

Operational assets – fixed assets held and occupied, use or consumed by the authority in the 

direct delivery of those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility or 

for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.  

Past service cost – the increase in pension liabilities arising from current year decisions whose 

effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years, debited to the net cost of services as part 

of non-distributed costs interest cost, and the expected increase in the present value of liabilities 

during the year as they move one year closer to being paid, debited to net operating expenditure. 

Post Balance Sheet Events (PBSE) – see events after the balance sheet date 

Precept – the levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the latter to 

collect income from council taxpayers on their behalf.  Precepts are paid from the Collection Fund. 

Prior period adjustment – those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from 

changes in accounting policies or form the correction of fundamental errors.  A fundamental error 

is one that is of such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial statements.  They do 

not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior 

years. 

Provisions - amounts set aside to meet liabilities or losses which it is anticipated will be incurred 

but where the amount and/or the timing of such costs is uncertain. 

Page 296

Agenda Item 7

Page 297



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 94 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Related parties – This is defined under Financial Reporting Standard 8. The Council is required to 

disclose material transactions with related parties, which can include central government, 

subsidiary and associated companies, the Pension Fund, other Councils, and chief and senior 

officers. IAS24 requires attention to be drawn to the possibility that the reported financial position 

may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by material transactions with them. 

Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period: 

(a) one party has direct or indirect control of the other: or 

(b) the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 

(c) one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to the 

extent that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interests: 

or 

d) the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an 

extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interest. 

Remuneration – all sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of 

expenses allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money 

value of any other benefits received other than cash.  Pension contributions payable by the 

employer are excluded. 

Reporting standards - the Code prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures for all 

normal transactions of a Local Authority.  It is based on International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS), International Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) plus UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and 

Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 

Revenue expenditure - expenditure incurred on the day-to-day running of the Council.  This 

mainly includes employee costs, general running expenses and capital financing costs. 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) – (formerly known as a 

deferred charge) arises where: 

• Expenditure is charged to capital but there is no tangible asset e.g. improvement grants, 

compensatory payments. When the expenditure is incurred it is charged to the income and 

expenditure account with a compensating entry in the statement of movement on the general 

fund balance to ensure that there is no impact on the council tax; and 

 

• Assets are transferred to another organisation and the associated transferred debt is being 

repaid over time. These charges are written down by the loan repayments so that the total 

equates to the relevant loan debt outstanding. 

 

Since there are no long-term economic benefits in the control of the council, these are written off 

to revenue (CIES) in the year incurred and no longer feature as assets in the balance sheet. 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) – this main non-specific grant paid by central government to local 

authorities to help fund the services that they provide. The allocation to each authority is 

determined by a complex formula.  This comprises the council’s general government grant 

income. 

 

Page 297

Agenda Item 7

Page 298



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 95 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) - prepared and published by CIPFA, the Service 

Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) replaced the previous Best Value Accounting Code of 

Practice (BVACOP).  It is reviewed annually to ensure that it develops in line with the needs of 

modern local government, transparency, best value and public services reform. SeRCOP 

establishes proper practices with regard to consistent financial reporting for services and in 

England and Wales, it is given legislative backing by regulations which identify the accounting 

practices it propounds as proper practices under the Local Government Act 2003. 

Trading account – a method of matching income and expenditure for a particular activity or group 

of activities.   An example of this is building control. 

Transferred debt – this is the term given to housing assets transferred to another council, for 

which the council receives repayment in the form of a loan. 

Useful life – the period over which the authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 298

Agenda Item 7

Page 299



                               

Vale of White Horse District Council 96 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

Annual governance statement 

 

The annual governance statement forms part of the audited accounts and can be found by 

accessing the link below: 

 

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/council-

finances/statement-of-accounts-annual-governance-statement/ 

 

Page 299

Agenda Item 7

Page 300

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/council-finances/statement-of-accounts-annual-governance-statement/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/council-finances/statement-of-accounts-annual-governance-statement/


 

1 

 

 

  

Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 
 
 

Scope of responsibility  
 
1. South Oxfordshire District Council ensures that its business is conducted legally and to 

proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively.  Under the Local Government Act 1999 the 
council makes arrangements for continuous improvement, with a view to economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness.  The council must make arrangements for the governance 
of its affairs, facilitating effective exercise of functions, including the management of 
risk.   

 
2. The council has corporate governance arrangements and has adopted a local code of 

governance.  This code is consistent with the “Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government” publication by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives, published in 2007.   

 
3. This Annual Governance Statement explains how the council has complied with its 

code of governance, and how it met the requirements of regulation 6 of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015 in relation to an annual review of the effectiveness of the 
council’s systems of internal control, and the preparation and approval of this 
statement.   

 
4. Our website at www.southoxon.gov.uk has a copy of the local code of corporate 

governance within its Constitution or it can be obtained from:  
 

Democratic Services 
South Oxfordshire District Council  
135 Eastern Avenue 
Milton Park  
Milton  
OX14 4SB 

 
Tel. 01235 422520  
Email: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk  

 

Page 300

Agenda Item 8

Page 301

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk


 

2 

The purpose of the governance framework  
 
5. The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values 

which direct and control the council, and activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with, and leads the community.  The framework enables the council to monitor 
achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether appropriate and cost-
effective services have been delivered by those objectives.   

 
6. The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  All risk 

of failure to achieve the council’s objectives cannot be eliminated and therefore the 
framework can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  
An ongoing internal control process is employed, which is designed to identify and 
prioritise risks to the achievement of the council’s objectives, to evaluate the likelihood 
of those risks, and mitigate their impact.   

 
7. The council has had the governance framework described below in place for the year 

ended 31 March 2021. 
 

The governance framework  

8. Full Council is responsible for directing and controlling the organisation through the 
governance framework, doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people, and 
in a timely manner.  Full Council’s responsibilities include agreeing the Constitution and 
key governance documents and agreeing the policy framework and the budget.   

 
9. The council has executive arrangements in place consisting of a cabinet, a scrutiny 

committee and a joint scrutiny committee with Vale of White Horse District Council.  
Cabinet is responsible for proposing the budget and policy framework and 
implementing them once approved by Council.  The scrutiny function allows a 
committee to question and challenge the policy and performance of Cabinet and 
promote public debate.   

 
10. The Chief Executive advises councillors on policy and procedures to drive the aims and 

objectives of the council.  As head of paid service, the Chief Executive oversees the 
employment and conditions of staff.  The Chief Executive leads a senior management 
team, shared with Vale of White Horse District Council.  The Chief Finance Officer, the 
Monitoring Officer, Deputy Chief Executives and heads of service are responsible for 
advising Cabinet and scrutiny committees on legislative, financial and other policy 
considerations to achieve the council’s objectives.  These officers are responsible for 
implementing councillors’ decisions.   

 
11. The governance framework for 2020/21 was based on the council’s code of 

governance.  This aims to meet the principles of good governance in all aspects of its 
work, with careful attention to the following main principles: 

• Focusing on the council’s purpose and on outcomes for the community and 
creating and implementing a vision for the local area 

• Councillors and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles 

Page 301

Agenda Item 8

Page 302



 

3 

• Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour 

• Taking informed and transparent decisions, which are subject to effective scrutiny  

• Managing risks 

• Developing the capacity and capability of councillors and officers to be effective 

• Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability 

 

Review of effectiveness of the governance framework 
 
12. The council has responsibility for reviewing, at least annually, the effectiveness of its 

governance framework, including the system of internal control.  This review is 
informed by the work of managers who have responsibility for the upkeep of the 
governance environment, the internal audit manager’s annual report, and also by 
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.   
 

13. The following section sets out tables showing: 

• the governance issues affecting the council;   

• how the council has tackled these issues in 2020/21 and the controls it has in 
place to ensure good governance; and   

• any actions identified to improve the council’s governance.    
 
 

Page 302

Agenda Item 8

Page 303



 

4 

The strategic planning framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
1 How does the council 

ensure it undertakes 
its responsibilities 
correctly?   

The strategic planning framework incorporates residents’ and service-
providers’ views, as well as national and local priorities.  The council 
periodically conducts a residents’ survey to ensure the council’s 
objectives reflect residents’ priorities.  The last residents’ survey was 
conducted in 2017/18.  There is a Public Engagement Charter 2016-
2020 that sets out how we engage and consult the public. Recent 
surveys, consultations and engagement reports are published on the 
website. 
 

To review the 
council’s 
engagement 
strategy. 

2 Where are the 
council’s corporate 
priorities?   

During 2020, the public were successfully consulted on the new 
Corporate Plan 2020-24, which has 6 key themes. Results were 
published in October 2020 and the Corporate Plan was adopted at a Full 
Council meeting in October 2020. This plan will begin to be implemented 
during 2021-22. 
The themes in the plan are: 

1. Protect and Restore our Natural World 
2. Openness and accountability  
3. Action on the climate emergency 
4. Improved economic and community well-being 
5. Homes and infrastructure that meet local needs 
6. Investment that rebuilds our financial viability 

   

To implement the 
newly adopted 
Corporate Plan 
2020-24  

3 How does the council 
address issues 
beyond its legal 
control and 
geographic limits?   

The council works with partners to address local and wider issues.  This 
is done through either formal partnerships or more informal liaison with 
other service providers.  Examples of the formal partnerships include:  

• Oxfordshire Growth Board and its advisory groups: Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050, Infrastructure, Housing 

• Enterprise Zones 

• Oxford-Cambridge Arc 

• South and Vale Community Safety Partnership   

 

4 What other key 
strategic planning 

The council has a newly adopted local plan, the South Oxfordshire Local 
Plan 2035. Working under a Direction from the Secretary of State, the 
council progressed the plan through examination and to adoption in 

 
To work with 
Oxfordshire principal 

P
age 303

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 304



 

5 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
strategies does the 
council have?  

December 2020. The local plan sets out the planning framework under 
Town and Country Planning legislation.   
 
In March 2021 Full Council decided to prepare the next Local Plan as a 
joint plan with the Vale of White Horse District Council.  
 
The council has also taken part in the development of the draft 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 with other councils across Oxfordshire through 
the Oxfordshire Growth Board.  Work on the plan continued over 
2020/21, albeit delayed by the pandemic, to prepare the plan for a 
second Regulation 18 consultation in summer 2021. 

councils to progress 
the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050.   

 
 

The performance management framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
5 How does the council 

set performance 
targets to achieve its 
strategic objectives?   

In the Corporate Plan 2020-24, the council has set performance targets 
to achieve its strategic objectives and corporate priorities.  A corporate 
delivery plan ensures that the council meets targets and achieves 
objectives.   
 
The council shares its Senior Management Team and staff with Vale of 
White Horse District Council.  This brings efficiencies for the council.  As 
of 1 April 2020, the management structure includes three Deputy Chief 
Executive and seven heads of service posts.     
 
Service areas have service plans to implement these objectives and 
meet the targets.  Staff have individual workplans and targets, ensuring 
that we work towards achieving a golden thread that aligns the council’s 
top-level objectives to the work of each council officer.  Managers are 
responsible to ensure these have been met.   
 
Corporate Plan targets set will be monitored on a quarterly basis. 
 

To implement and 
monitor the progress 
of the new Corporate 
Plan for 2020-2024 
in the year 2021-22 

P
age 304

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 305



 

6 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
6 How does the council 

monitor performance 
against key targets? 

The Senior Management Team receive regular board reports, which 
monitor performance of key measures.  Analysis of the board report 
demonstrates that the council is meeting most of the key performance 
measures.  In addition, the analysis shows a long-term, on-going trend 
of improvement.   
A new monitoring process will begin in 2021-22, to monitor the targets 
set within the new Corporate Plan 20-24. Staff performance objectives 
and reviews will link with the new corporate objectives 

To ensure the 
presentation of the 
board report is kept 
under review to 
measure 
performance against 
the strategic 
objectives.  
  
To implement 
performance 
monitoring of the 
Corporate Plan. 

7 Does the council 
monitor its 
performance against 
others? 

An annual board report benchmarks the council’s performance against 
other relevant district councils. Benchmarking work has been completed 
by Insight and Policy team. 

To continue to 
review the council’s 
performance in the 
annual board report.   

8 How does the council 
monitor its contractors’ 
performance? 

The council operates a formal framework for monitoring contractors’ 
performance and has officers monitoring performance on a regular 
basis.  For the major contracts, monitoring reports are submitted to the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee and a report is made to the relevant Cabinet 
member.   

To continue to 
scrutinise 
performance  

 
The legal framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
9 How does the council 

ensure it is acting 
lawfully? 

The council employs a Monitoring Officer, who is responsible for 
ensuring the council acts lawfully.  The Monitoring Officer will report 
directly to full Council or to Cabinet where it is considered that any 
proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness, or to the 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee, if any decision or omission has 
given rise to maladministration.   

 

10 How does the council 
ensure lawful 

The council’s Constitution sets out how it is managed and guides 
decision-making towards objectives and includes a set of procedure rules 

To keep under 
review in 2021/22 

P
age 305

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 306



 

7 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
decision-making?  
Does it have proper 
procedures in place?   

that govern how the council conducts its business.  The Constitution also 
includes protocols covering the disclosure of interests in contracts and 
the relationship between officers and councillors.   
 
The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring the lawfulness of 
decision-making and maintaining the Constitution.  The Constitution sets 
out the terms of reference to each committee and the level of delegated 
authority to officers.  A review and update of the Constitution was 
undertaken in 2017/18.  The Constitution was reviewed again in 2020-
21.  The Joint Constitution Review Group (comprising councillors from 
both councils) commenced the review in March 2020. A revised 
Constitution was adopted by both councils in October 2020 and 
published in November 2020.   
During 2020-21, the Coronavirus pandemic resulted in temporary 
legislation that allowed councils to legally hold formal meetings virtually.  
The Government issued The Local Authorities and Police and Crime 
Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 No.392.  The 
Regulations had been issued under Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 
2020. They allowed the council to hold virtual meetings between 4 April 
2020 and 6 May 2021.   
Democratic Services implemented this change with the adoption of 
virtual meeting procedure rules and usual business continued where 
possible during 2020-21. 
  

the legislation 
around council 
meetings to ensure 
that the council acts 
legally in its 
decision-making.   

11 Does the council have 
a leader and a 
cabinet? 

The Council appoints a leader, having adopted the ‘strong leader’ model 
under the Part 3 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007.  The leader has delegated authority to Cabinet 
members to make decisions within a given remit.  Individual Cabinet 
member decisions are recorded and published with a signature. Any key 
decisions taken by Cabinet, an individual Cabinet member or an officer 
are subject to the council’s scrutiny call-in procedure, which is set out in 
the council’s Constitution.   

 

P
age 306

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 307



 

8 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
12 Do officer reports to 

council meetings 
contain legal advice? 

All officer reports to the Council, Cabinet or committee meetings contain 
a section on the legal implications of taking a decision.  All draft reports 
are subject to consultation with Senior Management Team, legal and 
finance officers before publication.   

 

13 
1 

How does the council 
ensure councillors 
uphold strong ethical 
standards? 

The council’s Constitution incorporates the Councillors’ Code of Conduct, 
which requires high standards of conduct.  The Monitoring Officer 
provides training to councillors on compliance with the Councillors’ Code 
of Conduct.   
 
The council has appointed two independent persons to advise the 
Monitoring Officer and councillors on Code of Conduct complaints.   
 
In September 2020, annual code of conduct reports for 18-19 and 19-20 
were presented to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee (JAGC). 
The Monitoring Officer presents an annual report to the JAGC on the 
operation of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct.  This sets out how 
councillors’ compliance with the code is monitored.  No significant issues 
were raised in the last annual report to the committee.   
The Local Government Association was working on a revised model 
code of conduct in October 2020. A further report will be brought to the 
committee and the councils when any changes to the current 
arrangements are proposed. 

To monitor the 
outcome of the 
government’s 
consultation on a 
revision to the code 
of conduct, and if 
revised, to ensure 
the council’s 
Councillor Code of 
Conduct is updated 
with the required 
changes.   

14 Does the council’s 
legal team meet the 
high-quality 
standards? 

Lexcel is the Law Society’s accreditation quality mark.  This has been 
awarded to the council’s legal team, which undergoes a rigorous 
independent assessment each year to ensure that it meets the required 
standards of excellence in areas such as customer care, case 
management and risk management.  The legal team passed the Annual 
Maintenance Visit on 6 Feb 2020. The assessment for 2021 will take 
place on 22 June 2021. 
 

To continue to 
ensure the council 
meets the Law 
Society’s Lexcel 
accreditation quality 
mark.   

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 307

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 308



 

9 

The financial framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
15 How does the council 

ensure correct 
financial procedures?   

The council appoints a Section 151 Officer, who is responsible for the 
overall management of its financial affairs.  The Section 151 Officer 
determines all financial systems, procedures and supporting records of 
the council, after consultation with Acting Deputy Chief Executives and 
Heads of Service.  Any new or amended financial systems, procedures 
or practices are agreed with the Section 151 Officer before 
implementation.   

 

16 How do councillors 
and officers work 
together to ensure 
financial 
accountability? 

Cabinet and the Senior Management Team exercise collective 
responsibility for financial matters.  All members of the Senior 
Management Team accept individual and collective responsibility for the 
use of resources and financial accountability.  Senior Management 
Team supports Cabinet in the budget-setting process before Cabinet 
recommends the budget to full Council.   

 

17 Who approves the 
budget? 

Full Council is responsible for setting the budget and the council tax.  
The budget setting includes the revenue budget for the forthcoming 
year, and the capital programme for the forthcoming five-year period.  
The Council also approves a medium term financial plan for the next five 
years and a capital strategy for the forthcoming ten-year period.  This 
ensures better long-term financial planning.   
 
The Section 151 Officer reports to Council on the robustness of the 
budget of the financial estimates and the adequacy of reserves.   

 

18 Does the council 
share resources to 
save costs? 

To save costs, the council shares its staff and office resources with Vale 
of White Horse District Council.  The council has several joint contracts 
to achieve efficiency savings.   

To continue to find 
ways of sharing 
costs in 2021-22. 
 
Implementation of a 
Joint Local Plan with 
Vale of White Horse 
will save costs in 
future. 

P
age 308

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 309



 

10 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
19 How does the council 

manage its financial 
investments? 

Full Council is responsible for approving the Treasury Management 
Strategy.  This governs the operation of the council’s treasury function 
and is reviewed at least annually or when otherwise necessary.  This 
strategy includes parameters for lending and borrowing and identifies 
the risks of treasury activity.  The Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee and Cabinet review the draft strategy proposals before they 
are recommended to Council.  The Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee and Cabinet review the operation of the current strategy with 
mid-year and end of year monitoring reports, which are also 
recommended to Council. 

 

20 Once the budget is 
set, how is it 
implemented? 

Cabinet has overall responsibility for the implementation of the council’s 
financial strategies and spending plans.  It is authorised to make 
financial decisions, subject to these being consistent with the budget 
and policy framework and the Constitution.  Cabinet receives periodic 
budget monitoring reports.  Heads of service are required to provide 
reasons for budget variances; these recorded in the budget monitoring 
report.   
 
Senior Management Team considers requests for budget virements; the 
Constitution sets out the formal approval process.  This ensures that the 
council is able to realign resources to ensure that over- or underspends 
do not impact on its ability to deliver other services.   
 
In exceptional circumstances, as experienced during 2020/21 with the 
Coronavirus pandemic, the budget may need to be increased in year.  
This increase must be agreed by full council. 

To present regular 
budget monitoring 
reports to Cabinet.   

21 How are finances 
managed at service 
level? 

Deputy Chief Executives and Heads of Service are responsible for 
ensuring the proper maintenance of financial procedures and records, 
and the security of assets, property, records, and data within their 
service area.   

 

22 Is the management of 
budgets subject to 
audit? 

Internal Audit conducts a periodic review of the council’s budgetary 
control and considers budget implications in any review undertaken.   
Budgetary Control was last fully audited in 2019/20 and a satisfactory 
assurance opinion was issued. 

To ensure that 
budget management 
is included in all 
reviews where 
possible. 

P
age 309

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 310



 

11 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
23 Do officer reports to 

council meetings 
contain financial 
advice? 

All officer reports to the Council, Cabinet or committee meetings contain 
a section on the financial implications of taking a decision.  All draft 
reports are subject to consultation with Senior Management Team, legal 
and finance officers before publication.   

 

24 How are the council’s 
accounts approved? 

The council prepares a set of financial statements each year, which are 
submitted to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee for approval.   
 
 
The deadlines for completing the accounts for the 2020/21 financial 
year, ending on 31 March 2021, had changed as a result of the 
Redmond review.  The draft accounts now have to be prepared by 31 
July each year, and the final accounts have to be audited, approved by 
the committee and published by 30 September each year.   
 

To complete the 
2020-21 statement of 
accounts during 
2021-22 and prepare 
the statement of 
accounts for 2021-
22.   

25 Are the accounts 
audited? 

The council’s financial statements are audited by its external auditor, 
EY.  Each year’s accounts and EY’s annual Audit Letter are available to 
the public and are published on the council’s website.  The audited 
accounts and the external auditor’s report are considered by the Joint 
Audit and Governance Committee.   
The 2018/19 accounts were approved by the external auditor during 
2020/21.  
 

 

26 How does the council 
ensure it follows the 
correct accountancy 
practices? 

Officers keep up to date with the latest accounting developments, which 
enable them to be prepared for the changes in accounting practice that 
affect the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.  The 
council subscribes to the Chartered Institute of Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) finance advisory network and officers regularly 
attend these network events, enabling them to prepare for changes to 
accounting requirements.   

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 310

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 311



 

12 

The risk management framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
27 How does the council 

assess risks to ensure 
services are not 
disrupted?   

Risk management is important to the successful delivery of the council’s 
objectives.  It identifies and assesses risks, decides on appropriate 
responses, and provides assurance that the chosen responses are 
effective.  The overall responsibility for effective risk management in the 
council lies with the Chief Executive, supported by the Senior 
Management Team.  The council uses a standard risk management 
methodology which encompasses the identification, analysis, 
prioritisation, management and monitoring of risks in a corporate risk 
register.   
 
Councillors are made aware of how these risks are being managed 
through reports to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  The 
council employs a risk and insurance officer to implement the risk 
management strategy.   
 
A new risk management strategy and risk management policy and 
guidance was published in July 2020 and will be reviewed again in 2022 
to incorporate references to corporate delivery framework and revised 
roles and responsibility updates. 

To conduct a review 
of the risk 
management 
strategy and 
supporting 
framework beyond 
2022.  
 
 

28 How does 
management monitor 
risks? 

Risk champions have been identified for each service area, and 
operational risk registers are in place for these and all heads of service 
are responsible for ensuring that risks are identified and prioritised and 
entered onto the risk register.  A monthly meeting reviews the 
operational risk registers and ‘horizon scans’ future risks.   

The risk reporting framework in place is as follows: 

• Monthly reporting from project groups, service areas, third party 
contractors and corporate risks to the Risk Forum. 

• Quarterly reporting to the programmes and assurance team. 

• Quarterly reporting as and when required to Cabinet, Strategic 
Management Team, and the Operational Management Group. 

 

P
age 311

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 312



 

13 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
• Half yearly reporting to the Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee. 

All line managers are responsible for implementing strategies at team 
level through adequate communication, training and the assessment 
and monitoring of risks.  All officers must consider risk as part of 
everyday activities and provide input to the risk management process. 

29 Does the council have 
any business 
continuity 
arrangements? 

The council has business continuity management arrangements in place 
to ensure continuation of priority services in the event of an unforeseen 
disruption.  For example, these arrangements were put into practice on 
13 March 2020 in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, instructing 
everyone to work from home where they could.  The council had 
implemented this a week prior to the government’s lockdown. The office 
has remained Covid-19 secure with strong measures in place.  Formal 
meetings were held virtually to allow decision-making to continue.  Some 
staff were diverted to business-critical work, to support the local 
community (examples: a helpline and food deliveries), local business 
Covid-19 grant administration and support, assisting the NHS testing 
and vaccine roll out and county-wide efforts during the pandemic.   
  

To ensure business 
continuity 
arrangements 
continue to be 
regularly reviewed.   
Review of the 
Business continuity 
strategy. 

30 Do officer reports to 
council meetings 
advise on risk? 

Risk management has been incorporated into officer reports to Council, 
Cabinet and committee meetings, where officers are required to detail 
the risks and implications that the council faces in making its decision. 

 

 
 

The management development framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
31 How does the council 

help new councillors in 
their roles? 

Councillors are offered a comprehensive induction programme after their 
election.  This includes a welcome event, a councillor’s guide, a briefing 
on essential issues affecting the council, and targeted training sessions 
on planning and licensing law, and effective scrutiny.  There will be a 
further assessment of ongoing training needs.  Members of the Joint 
Audit and Governance Committee will also have a training programme.   

To continue to 
implement the 
councillors’ induction 
programme and to 
induct any 
councillors elected at 
a by-election.  

P
age 312

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 313



 

14 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
After the May 2019 elections, the Councillors induction programme was 
implemented. 

32 Does the council have 
an audit committee? 

The council has a Joint Audit and Governance Committee with Vale of 
White Horse District Council.  The purpose of the joint committee is to 
ensure a consistent approach, avoid duplication of resources and 
improve joint working between both councils.  The Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee undertakes the core functions of an audit 
committee, as set out in CIPFA’s Audit Committees – Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities (2005).   
 
Each council continues to have an individual audit and governance sub-
committee to agree procedures for handling individual code of conduct 
complaints against district, town and parish councillors.   

To continue to 
ensure that the Joint 
Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
membership is 
trained appropriately. 

33 Does the council have 
a scrutiny function? 

The council has a Joint Scrutiny Committee with Vale of White Horse 
District Council and a separate Scrutiny Committee to consider its own 
matters.  The scrutiny committees continue to help develop council 
policy.  They also review performance in meeting council objectives, and 
the council’s own Scrutiny Committee holds Cabinet to account for its 
decisions.  The scrutiny committees can set up task and finish groups to 
continue the work of scrutiny between meetings by investigating issues 
and suggest improvements.   
Scrutiny training was completed following the May elections and scrutiny 
briefing sessions. 
 

To continue to 
ensure that the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee 
and Scrutiny 
Committee members 
are trained 
appropriately.   

34 Does the council have 
a management 
training programme? 

The development opportunities for senior officers includes support 
towards a nationally recognised qualification.  They can also attend 
other strategic leadership programmes.  Attendees evaluate these 
programmes, provide feedback and line managers review training as 
part of the development and performance review and the formal one to 
one process.  Where identified executive coaching and mentoring is 
made available to senior managers. 

To continue the 
management 
development training 
programme in 
2021/22 to 
consolidate 
management 
development through 
refresher and follow-
up sessions.   

 

P
age 313

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 314



 

15 

 
 
 

Internal Audit 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
35 How does the council 

audit its functions? 
Internal Audit is the council’s independent assurance function that 
provides an objective assessment on the effectiveness of the council’s 
services.  It assists the council by evaluating the adequacy of 
governance, risk management, internal controls and use of resources 
through its planned audit work and recommends improvements where 
necessary. 
 
The internal audit manager reviews the entries in the gifts and hospitality 
register and regularly reminds councillors and officers of the 
requirements of the gifts and hospitality policy.   
 
Internal Audit provides assurance that it has complied with the relevant 
Internal Audit Standard setters.  These include the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy’s Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, which came into effect on 1 April 2013.  From 1 April 2017 
these standards encompassed the mandatory elements of the Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices 
Framework.   

To continue to 
provide a regular 
reminder of the 
requirements of the 
gifts and hospitality 
policy to councillors 
and officers in 
2021/22  
 

36 Does the council pro-
actively combat fraud? 

Internal Audit’s rolling audit plan includes a pro-active anti-fraud review 
each year to test the effectiveness of management controls to 
prevent/detect fraud within the key financial, HR and IT processes.  The 
profile of the anti-fraud, bribery and corruption policy and the 
whistleblowing policy have been raised by increased visibility, resulting 
from inclusion on the council’s website.   

 
The council actively participates in the national anti-fraud initiative, 
publicises successful cases against fraud, and shares intelligence with 
relevant partner organisations such as the Police, the Department for 
Work and Pensions, and the Housing Benefit Matching Service.  The 
council prosecutes those committed of fraud.  It undertakes active 

To remind staff of the 
need to be aware of 
fraud and the 
processes for 
dealing with any 
suspicions.     

P
age 314

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 315



 

16 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
recovery of fraudulent overpayments and ensures policies are applied 
consistently. 

 
The internal control arrangements include the council’s Constitution, the 
provision of an internal audit service, reports to the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee when necessary, transparent governance 
reporting through an assurance framework, and compliance with 
relevant laws and regulations.   
 
The council has an anti-money laundering policy and procedure and has 
designated the Section 151 Officer to be the council’s anti-money 
laundering reporting officer.   
 
While the risk of money laundering to the council remains low, the 
council remains vigilant.  The council has in place an anti-fraud, bribery 
and corruption policy and a whistleblowing policy; these were reviewed 
and updated in 2019.   

 
 

External sources of assurance 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
37 How does the council 

respond to issues 
raised by its external 
auditor?   

Issues raised by the council’s external auditor, and other external 
inspectors are used to identify improvement areas in the council’s 
governance arrangements.  EY was appointed as the council’s external 
auditor by the Public Sector Audit Appointments to continue to act as 
external auditors to South Oxfordshire District Council from 2018/19.  
 
The council prepares its accounts under International Financial 
Reporting Standards.  
 
Any issues raised by the council’s external auditor are reported to the 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  The committee ensures the 
actions are taken by instructing Senior Management Team accordingly. 

 

P
age 315

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 316



 

17 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
The committee considered the external auditor’s annual audit letter 
2018/19 in November 2020.  
   
The Local Government Ombudsman provides a summary information 
on complaints about the council to enable it to incorporate any feedback 
into service improvement.  These are reported to the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee annually.  The Senior Management Team has 
used the ombudsman’s feedback to review service provision.   

 
 

Current governance issues 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
38 How does the council 

monitor its contract 
under the Five 
Councils Partnership? 

The council has a contract for some of its corporate services with a 
contractor, through the Five Councils Partnership with Hart District 
Council, Havant Borough Council, Mendip District Council, and Vale of 
White Horse District Council.  The council entered into an inter-authority 
agreement with the other partner councils to cover the procurement and 
the governance of the future partnership.  In addition, a joint client team 
and a joint committee oversee the delivery of the contract.  The Joint 
Scrutiny Committee with Vale of White Horse District Council undertakes 
the scrutiny role. The contract is also monitored by a joint committee of 
members from all of the participating councils; by officers representing 
the councils on a Joint Tactical Board, and by chief executives on a 
Senior Management Board 

To keep the 
corporate services 
contract under 
review in 2021/22, 
taking any 
opportunities for 
commercial or 
operational 
improvement. 

39 Does the council 
monitor the 
effectiveness of 
individual projects?   
 

Following a series of programme governance reviews in 2018/19, the 
council reviewed and updated its project management framework.  
 
 

To continue to 
monitor the 
effectiveness of 
projects in 2021/22.   
 
 

 
 

P
age 316

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 317



 

18 

Conclusion 
 
14. The council proposes over the coming year to take steps to address the actions above.  

These will further enhance governance arrangements.  We, the undersigned, are 
satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in 
our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part 
of our next annual review.   

 

Signature 

 
 
 

Date 

 Mark Stone, Chief Executive 

Signature 

 
 
 Date 

 
Councillor David Rouane, Leader of the 
Council  

 
 

Page 317

Agenda Item 8

Page 318



 

1 

 

 

  

Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 
 
 

Scope of responsibility  
 
1. Vale of White Horse District Council ensures that its business is conducted legally and 

to proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively.  Under the Local Government Act 1999 the 
council makes arrangements for continuous improvement, with a view to economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness.  The council must make arrangements for the governance 
of its affairs, facilitating effective exercise of functions, including the management of 
risk.   

 
2. The council has corporate governance arrangements and has adopted a local code of 

governance.  This code is consistent with the “Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government” publication by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives, published in 2007.   

 
3. This Annual Governance Statement explains how the council has complied with its 

code of governance, and how it met the requirements of regulation 6 of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015 in relation to an annual review of the effectiveness of the 
council’s systems of internal control, and the preparation and approval of this 
statement.   

 
4. Our website at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk has a copy of the local code of corporate 

governance within its Constitution or it can be obtained from:  
 

Democratic Services 
Vale of White Horse District Council  
135 Eastern Avenue 
Milton Park  
Milton  
OX14 4SB 

 
Tel. 01235 422520  
Email: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk  

 

Page 318

Agenda Item 8

Page 319

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk


 

2 

The purpose of the governance framework  
 
5. The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values 

which direct and control the council, and activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with, and leads the community.  The framework enables the council to monitor 
achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether appropriate and cost-
effective services have been delivered by those objectives.   

 
6. The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  All risk 

of failure to achieve the council’s objectives cannot be eliminated and therefore the 
framework can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  
An ongoing internal control process is employed, which is designed to identify and 
prioritise risks to the achievement of the council’s objectives, to evaluate the likelihood 
of those risks, and mitigate their impact.   

 
7. The council has had the governance framework described below in place for the year 

ended 31 March 2021. 
 

The governance framework  

8. Full Council is responsible for directing and controlling the organisation through the 
governance framework, doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people, and 
in a timely manner.  Full Council’s responsibilities include agreeing the Constitution and 
key governance documents and agreeing the policy framework and the budget.   

 
9. The council has executive arrangements in place consisting of a cabinet, a scrutiny 

committee and a joint scrutiny committee with South Oxfordshire District Council.  
Cabinet is responsible for proposing the budget and policy framework and 
implementing them once approved by Council.  The scrutiny function allows a 
committee to question and challenge the policy and performance of Cabinet and 
promote public debate.   

 
10. The Chief Executive advises councillors on policy and procedures to drive the aims and 

objectives of the council.  As head of paid service, the Chief Executive oversees the 
employment and conditions of staff.  The Chief Executive leads a senior management 
team, shared with South Oxfordshire District Council.  The Chief Finance Officer, the 
Monitoring Officer, Deputy Chief Executives and heads of service are responsible for 
advising Cabinet and scrutiny committees on legislative, financial and other policy 
considerations to achieve the council’s objectives.  These officers are responsible for 
implementing councillors’ decisions.   

 
11. The governance framework for 2020/21 was based on the council’s code of 

governance.  This aims to meet the principles of good governance in all aspects of its 
work, with careful attention to the following main principles: 

• Focusing on the council’s purpose and on outcomes for the community and 
creating and implementing a vision for the local area 

• Councillors and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles 

Page 319

Agenda Item 8

Page 320



 

3 

• Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour 

• Taking informed and transparent decisions, which are subject to effective scrutiny  

• Managing risks 

• Developing the capacity and capability of councillors and officers to be effective 

• Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability 

 

Review of effectiveness of the governance framework 
 
12. The council has responsibility for reviewing, at least annually, the effectiveness of its 

governance framework, including the system of internal control.  This review is 
informed by the work of managers who have responsibility for the upkeep of the 
governance environment, the internal audit manager’s annual report, and also by 
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.   
 

13. The following section sets out tables showing: 

• the governance issues affecting the council;   

• how the council has tackled these issues in 2020/21 and the controls it has in 
place to ensure good governance; and   

• any actions identified to improve the council’s governance.    
 
 

Page 320

Agenda Item 8

Page 321



 

4 

The strategic planning framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
1 How does the council 

ensure it undertakes 
its responsibilities 
correctly?   

The strategic planning framework incorporates residents’ and service-
providers’ views, as well as national and local priorities.  The council 
periodically conducts a residents’ survey to ensure the council’s 
objectives reflect residents’ priorities.  The last residents’ survey was 
conducted in 2017/18.  There is a Public Engagement Charter 2016-
2020 that sets out how we engage and consult the public. Recent 
surveys, consultations and engagement reports are published on the 
website. 
 

To review the 
council’s 
engagement 
strategy. 

2 Where are the 
council’s corporate 
priorities?   

During 2020, the public were successfully consulted on the new 
Corporate Plan 2020-24, which has 6 key themes. Results were 
published in October 2020 and the Corporate Plan was adopted at a Full 
Council meeting in October 2020. This plan will begin to be implemented 
during 2021-22. 
The themes in the plan are: 

1. Providing the homes people need   
2. Tackling the Climate Emergency 
3. Building healthy communities 
4. Building stable finances 
5. Working in partnership 
6. Working in an open and inclusive way 

 

To implement the 
newly adopted 
Corporate Plan 
2020-24  

3 How does the council 
address issues 
beyond its legal 
control and 
geographic limits?   

The council works with partners to address local and wider issues.  This 
is done through either formal partnerships or more informal liaison with 
other service providers.  Examples of the formal partnerships include:  

• Oxfordshire Growth Board and its advisory groups: Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050, Infrastructure, Housing 

• Enterprise Zones 

• Oxford-Cambridge Arc 

• South and Vale Community Safety Partnership   

 

4 What other key 
strategic planning 

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 was adopted at Full 
Council in December 2016; and Local Plan 2031 Part 2 was adopted by 
Full Council in October 2019. 

 
To work with 
Oxfordshire principal 

P
age 321

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 322



 

5 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
strategies does the 
council have?  

In March 2021 Full Council decided to prepare the next Local Plan as a 
joint plan with South Oxfordshire District Council.  
 
The council has also taken part in the development of the draft 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 with other councils across Oxfordshire through 
the Oxfordshire Growth Board.  Work on the plan continued over 
2020/21, albeit delayed by the pandemic, to prepare the plan for a 
second Regulation 18 consultation in summer 2021. 

councils to progress 
the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050.   

 
 

The performance management framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
5 How does the council 

set performance 
targets to achieve its 
strategic objectives?   

In the Corporate Plan 2020-24, the council has set performance targets 
to achieve its strategic objectives and corporate priorities.  A corporate 
delivery plan ensures that the council meets targets and achieves 
objectives.   
 
The council shares its Senior Management Team and staff with Vale of 
White Horse District Council.  This brings efficiencies for the council.  As 
of 1 April 2020, the management structure includes three Deputy Chief 
Executive and seven heads of service posts.     
 
Service areas have service plans to implement these objectives and 
meet the targets.  Staff have individual workplans and targets, ensuring 
that we work towards achieving a golden thread that aligns the council’s 
top-level objectives to the work of each council officer.  Managers are 
responsible to ensure these have been met.   
 
Corporate Plan targets set will be monitored on a quarterly basis. 
 

To implement and 
monitor the progress 
of the new Corporate 
Plan for 2020-2024 
in the year 2021-22 

6 How does the council 
monitor performance 
against key targets? 

The Senior Management Team receive regular board reports, which 
monitor performance of key measures.  Analysis of the board report 
demonstrates that the council is meeting most of the key performance 

To ensure the 
presentation of the 
board report is kept 
under review to 

P
age 322

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 323



 

6 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
measures.  In addition, the analysis shows a long-term, on-going trend 
of improvement.   
A new monitoring process will begin in 2021-22, to monitor the targets 
set within the new Corporate Plan 20-24. Staff performance objectives 
and reviews will link with the new corporate objectives 

measure 
performance against 
the strategic 
objectives.  
  
To implement 
performance 
monitoring of the 
Corporate Plan. 

7 Does the council 
monitor its 
performance against 
others? 

An annual board report benchmarks the council’s performance against 
other relevant district councils. Benchmarking work has been completed 
by Insight and Policy team.  

To continue to 
review the council’s 
performance in the 
annual board report.   

8 How does the council 
monitor its contractors’ 
performance? 

The council operates a formal framework for monitoring contractors’ 
performance and has officers monitoring performance on a regular 
basis.  For the major contracts, monitoring reports are submitted to the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee and a report is made to the relevant Cabinet 
member.   

To continue to 
scrutinise 
performance  

 
The legal framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
9 How does the council 

ensure it is acting 
lawfully? 

The council employs a Monitoring Officer, who is responsible for 
ensuring the council acts lawfully.  The Monitoring Officer will report 
directly to full Council or to Cabinet where it is considered that any 
proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness, or to the 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee, if any decision or omission has 
given rise to maladministration.   

 

10 How does the council 
ensure lawful 
decision-making?  
Does it have proper 
procedures in place?   

The council’s Constitution sets out how it is managed and guides 
decision-making towards objectives and includes a set of procedure rules 
that govern how the council conducts its business.  The Constitution also 
includes protocols covering the disclosure of interests in contracts and 
the relationship between officers and councillors.   
 

To keep under 
review in 2021/22 
the legislation 
around council 
meetings to ensure 
that the council acts 

P
age 323

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 324



 

7 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring the lawfulness of 
decision-making and maintaining the Constitution.  The Constitution sets 
out the terms of reference to each committee and the level of delegated 
authority to officers.  A review and update of the Constitution was 
undertaken in 2017/18.  The Constitution was reviewed again in 2020-
21.  The Joint Constitution Review Group (comprising councillors from 
both councils) commenced the review in March 2020. A revised 
Constitution was adopted by both councils in October 2020 and 
published in November 2020.   
During 2020-21, the Coronavirus pandemic resulted in temporary 
legislation that allowed councils to legally hold formal meetings virtually.  
The Government issued The Local Authorities and Police and Crime 
Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 No.392.  The 
Regulations had been issued under Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 
2020. They allowed the council to hold virtual meetings between 4 April 
2020 and 6 May 2021.   
Democratic Services implemented this change with the adoption of 
virtual meeting procedure rules and usual business continued where 
possible during 2020-21. 
  

legally in its 
decision-making.   

11 Does the council have 
a leader and a 
cabinet? 

The Council appoints a leader, having adopted the ‘strong leader’ model 
under the Part 3 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007.  The leader has delegated authority to Cabinet 
members to make decisions within a given remit.  Individual Cabinet 
member decisions are recorded and published with a signature. Any key 
decisions taken by Cabinet, an individual Cabinet member or an officer 
are subject to the council’s scrutiny call-in procedure, which is set out in 
the council’s Constitution.   

 

12 Do officer reports to 
council meetings 
contain legal advice? 

All officer reports to the Council, Cabinet or committee meetings contain 
a section on the legal implications of taking a decision.  All draft reports 
are subject to consultation with Senior Management Team, legal and 
finance officers before publication.   

 

13 
1 

How does the council 
ensure councillors 

The council’s Constitution incorporates the Councillors’ Code of Conduct, 
which requires high standards of conduct.  The Monitoring Officer 

To monitor the 
outcome of the 

P
age 324

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 325



 

8 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
uphold strong ethical 
standards? 

provides training to councillors on compliance with the Councillors’ Code 
of Conduct.   
 
The council has appointed two independent persons to advise the 
Monitoring Officer and councillors on Code of Conduct complaints.   
 
In September 2020, annual code of conduct reports for 18-19 and 19-20 
were presented to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee (JAGC). 
The Monitoring Officer presents an annual report to the JAGC on the 
operation of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct.  This sets out how 
councillors’ compliance with the code is monitored.  No significant issues 
were raised in the last annual report to the committee.   
The Local Government Association was working on a revised model 
code of conduct in October 2020. A further report will be brought to the 
committee and the councils when any changes to the current 
arrangements are proposed. 

government’s 
consultation on a 
revision to the code 
of conduct, and if 
revised, to ensure 
the council’s 
Councillor Code of 
Conduct is updated 
with the required 
changes.   

14 Does the council’s 
legal team meet the 
high-quality 
standards? 

Lexcel is the Law Society’s accreditation quality mark.  This has been 
awarded to the council’s legal team, which undergoes a rigorous 
independent assessment each year to ensure that it meets the required 
standards of excellence in areas such as customer care, case 
management and risk management.  The legal team passed the Annual 
Maintenance Visit on 6 Feb 2020. The assessment for 2021 will take 
place on 22 June 2021. 
 

To continue to 
ensure the council 
meets the Law 
Society’s Lexcel 
accreditation quality 
mark.   

 
 

The financial framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
15 How does the council 

ensure correct 
financial procedures?   

The council appoints a Section 151 Officer, who is responsible for the 
overall management of its financial affairs.  The Section 151 Officer 
determines all financial systems, procedures and supporting records of 
the council, after consultation with Acting Deputy Chief Executives and 
Heads of Service.  Any new or amended financial systems, procedures 

 

P
age 325

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 326



 

9 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
or practices are agreed with the Section 151 Officer before 
implementation.   

16 How do councillors 
and officers work 
together to ensure 
financial 
accountability? 

Cabinet and the Senior Management Team exercise collective 
responsibility for financial matters.  All members of the Senior 
Management Team accept individual and collective responsibility for the 
use of resources and financial accountability.  Senior Management 
Team supports Cabinet in the budget-setting process before Cabinet 
recommends the budget to full Council.   

 

17 Who approves the 
budget? 

Full Council is responsible for setting the budget and the council tax.  
The budget setting includes the revenue budget for the forthcoming 
year, and the capital programme for the forthcoming five-year period.  
The Council also approves a medium term financial plan for the next five 
years and a capital strategy for the forthcoming ten-year period.  This 
ensures better long-term financial planning.   
 
The Section 151 Officer reports to Council on the robustness of the 
budget of the financial estimates and the adequacy of reserves.   

 

18 Does the council 
share resources to 
save costs? 

To save costs, the council shares its staff and office resources with 
South Oxfordshire District Council.  The council has several joint 
contracts to achieve efficiency savings.   

To continue to find 
ways of sharing 
costs in 2021-22. 
 
Implementation of a 
Joint Local Plan with 
South Oxfordshire 
will save costs in 
future. 

19 How does the council 
manage its financial 
investments? 

Full Council is responsible for approving the Treasury Management 
Strategy.  This governs the operation of the council’s treasury function 
and is reviewed at least annually or when otherwise necessary.  This 
strategy includes parameters for lending and borrowing and identifies 
the risks of treasury activity.  The Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee and Cabinet review the draft strategy proposals before they 
are recommended to Council.  The Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee and Cabinet review the operation of the current strategy with 

 

P
age 326

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 327



 

10 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
mid-year and end of year monitoring reports, which are also 
recommended to Council. 

20 Once the budget is 
set, how is it 
implemented? 

Cabinet has overall responsibility for the implementation of the council’s 
financial strategies and spending plans.  It is authorised to make 
financial decisions, subject to these being consistent with the budget 
and policy framework and the Constitution.  Cabinet receives periodic 
budget monitoring reports.  Heads of service are required to provide 
reasons for budget variances; these recorded in the budget monitoring 
report.   
 
Senior Management Team considers requests for budget virements; the 
Constitution sets out the formal approval process.  This ensures that the 
council is able to realign resources to ensure that over- or underspends 
do not impact on its ability to deliver other services.   
 
In exceptional circumstances, as experienced during 2020/21 with the 
Coronavirus pandemic, the budget may need to be increased in year.  
This increase must be agreed by full council. 

To present regular 
budget monitoring 
reports to Cabinet.   

21 How are finances 
managed at service 
level? 

Deputy Chief Executives and Heads of Service are responsible for 
ensuring the proper maintenance of financial procedures and records, 
and the security of assets, property, records, and data within their 
service area.   

 

22 Is the management of 
budgets subject to 
audit? 

Internal Audit conducts a periodic review of the council’s budgetary 
control and considers budget implications in any review undertaken.   
Budgetary Control was last fully audited in 2019/20 and a satisfactory 
assurance opinion was issued. 

To ensure that 
budget management 
is included in all 
reviews where 
possible. 

23 Do officer reports to 
council meetings 
contain financial 
advice? 

All officer reports to the Council, Cabinet or committee meetings contain 
a section on the financial implications of taking a decision.  All draft 
reports are subject to consultation with Senior Management Team, legal 
and finance officers before publication.   

 

24 How are the council’s 
accounts approved? 

The council prepares a set of financial statements each year, which are 
submitted to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee for approval.   
 
 

To complete the 
2020-21 statement of 
accounts during 
2021-22 and prepare 

P
age 327

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 328



 

11 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
The deadlines for completing the accounts for the 2020/21 financial 
year, ending on 31 March 2021, had changed as a result of the 
Redmond review.  The draft accounts now have to be prepared by 31 
July each year, and the final accounts have to be audited, approved by 
the committee and published by 30 September each year.   
 

the statement of 
accounts for 2021-
22.   

25 Are the accounts 
audited? 

The council’s financial statements are audited by its external auditor, 
EY.  Each year’s accounts and EY’s annual Audit Letter are available to 
the public and are published on the council’s website.  The audited 
accounts and the external auditor’s report are considered by the Joint 
Audit and Governance Committee.   
The 2018/19 accounts were approved by the external auditor during 
2020/21.  
 

 

26 How does the council 
ensure it follows the 
correct accountancy 
practices? 

Officers keep up to date with the latest accounting developments, which 
enable them to be prepared for the changes in accounting practice that 
affect the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.  The 
council subscribes to the Chartered Institute of Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) finance advisory network and officers regularly 
attend these network events, enabling them to prepare for changes to 
accounting requirements.   

 

 
 

The risk management framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
27 How does the council 

assess risks to ensure 
services are not 
disrupted?   

Risk management is important to the successful delivery of the council’s 
objectives.  It identifies and assesses risks, decides on appropriate 
responses, and provides assurance that the chosen responses are 
effective.  The overall responsibility for effective risk management in the 
council lies with the Chief Executive, supported by the Senior 
Management Team.  The council uses a standard risk management 
methodology which encompasses the identification, analysis, 
prioritisation, management and monitoring of risks in a corporate risk 
register.   

To conduct a review 
of the risk 
management 
strategy and 
supporting 
framework beyond 
2022.  
 
 

P
age 328

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 329



 

12 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
 
Councillors are made aware of how these risks are being managed 
through reports to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  The 
council employs a risk and insurance officer to implement the risk 
management strategy.   
 
A new risk management strategy and risk management policy and 
guidance was published in July 2020 and will be reviewed again in 2022 
to incorporate references to corporate delivery framework and revised 
roles and responsibility updates. 

28 How does 
management monitor 
risks? 

Risk champions have been identified for each service area, and 
operational risk registers are in place for these and all heads of service 
are responsible for ensuring that risks are identified and prioritised and 
entered onto the risk register.  A monthly meeting reviews the 
operational risk registers and ‘horizon scans’ future risks.   

 

The risk reporting framework in place is as follows: 

• Monthly reporting from project groups, service areas, third party 
contractors and corporate risks to the Risk Forum. 

• Quarterly reporting to the programmes and assurance team. 

• Quarterly reporting as and when required to Cabinet, Strategic 
Management Team, and the Operational Management Group. 

• Half yearly reporting to the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

All line managers are responsible for implementing strategies at team 
level through adequate communication, training and the assessment 
and monitoring of risks.  All officers must consider risk as part of 
everyday activities and provide input to the risk management process. 

 

29 Does the council have 
any business 

The council has business continuity management arrangements in place 
to ensure continuation of priority services in the event of an unforeseen 

To ensure business 
continuity 

P
age 329

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 330



 

13 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
continuity 
arrangements? 

disruption.  For example, these arrangements were put into practice on 
13 March 2020 in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, instructing 
everyone to work from home where they could.  The council had 
implemented this a week prior to the government’s lockdown. The office 
has remained Covid-19 secure with strong measures in place.  Formal 
meetings were held virtually to allow decision-making to continue.  Some 
staff were diverted to business-critical work, to support the local 
community (examples: a helpline and food deliveries), local business 
Covid-19 grant administration and support, assisting the NHS testing 
and vaccine roll out and county-wide efforts during the pandemic.   
  

arrangements 
continue to be 
regularly reviewed.   
Review of the 
Business continuity 
strategy. 

30 Do officer reports to 
council meetings 
advise on risk? 

Risk management has been incorporated into officer reports to Council, 
Cabinet and committee meetings, where officers are required to detail 
the risks and implications that the council faces in making its decision. 

 

 
 

The management development framework 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
31 How does the council 

help new councillors in 
their roles? 

Councillors are offered a comprehensive induction programme after their 
election.  This includes a welcome event, a councillor’s guide, a briefing 
on essential issues affecting the council, and targeted training sessions 
on planning and licensing law, and effective scrutiny.  There will be a 
further assessment of ongoing training needs.  Members of the Joint 
Audit and Governance Committee will also have a training programme.   
After the May 2019 elections, the Councillors induction programme was 
implemented. 

To continue to 
implement the 
councillors’ induction 
programme and to 
induct any 
councillors elected at 
a by-election.  

32 Does the council have 
an audit committee? 

The council has a Joint Audit and Governance Committee with South 
Oxfordshire District Council.  The purpose of the joint committee is to 
ensure a consistent approach, avoid duplication of resources and 
improve joint working between both councils.  The Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee undertakes the core functions of an audit 
committee, as set out in CIPFA’s Audit Committees – Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities (2005).   
 

To continue to 
ensure that the Joint 
Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
membership is 
trained appropriately. 

P
age 330

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 331



 

14 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
Each council continues to have an individual audit and governance sub-
committee to agree procedures for handling individual code of conduct 
complaints against district, town and parish councillors.   

33 Does the council have 
a scrutiny function? 

The council has a Joint Scrutiny Committee with South Oxfordshire 
District Council and a separate Scrutiny Committee to consider its own 
matters.  The scrutiny committees continue to help develop council 
policy.  They also review performance in meeting council objectives, and 
the council’s own Scrutiny Committee holds Cabinet to account for its 
decisions.  The scrutiny committees can set up task and finish groups to 
continue the work of scrutiny between meetings by investigating issues 
and suggest improvements.   
Scrutiny training was completed following the May elections and scrutiny 
briefing sessions. 
 

To continue to 
ensure that the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee 
and Scrutiny 
Committee members 
are trained 
appropriately.   

34 Does the council have 
a management 
training programme? 

The development opportunities for senior officers includes support 
towards a nationally recognised qualification.  They can also attend 
other strategic leadership programmes.  Attendees evaluate these 
programmes, provide feedback and line managers review training as 
part of the development and performance review and the formal one to 
one process.  Where identified executive coaching and mentoring is 
made available to senior managers. 

To continue the 
management 
development training 
programme in 
2021/22 to 
consolidate 
management 
development through 
refresher and follow-
up sessions.   

 
 

Internal Audit 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
35 How does the council 

audit its functions? 
Internal Audit is the council’s independent assurance function that 
provides an objective assessment on the effectiveness of the council’s 
services.  It assists the council by evaluating the adequacy of 
governance, risk management, internal controls and use of resources 
through its planned audit work and recommends improvements where 
necessary. 

To continue to 
provide a regular 
reminder of the 
requirements of the 
gifts and hospitality 
policy to councillors 

P
age 331

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 332



 

15 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
 
The internal audit manager reviews the entries in the gifts and hospitality 
register and regularly reminds councillors and officers of the 
requirements of the gifts and hospitality policy.   
 
Internal Audit provides assurance that it has complied with the relevant 
Internal Audit Standard setters.  These include the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy’s Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, which came into effect on 1 April 2013.  From 1 April 2017 
these standards encompassed the mandatory elements of the Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices 
Framework.   

and officers in 
2021/22  
 

36 Does the council pro-
actively combat fraud? 

Internal Audit’s rolling audit plan includes a pro-active anti-fraud review 
each year to test the effectiveness of management controls to 
prevent/detect fraud within the key financial, HR and IT processes.  The 
profile of the anti-fraud, bribery and corruption policy and the 
whistleblowing policy have been raised by increased visibility, resulting 
from inclusion on the council’s website.   

 
The council actively participates in the national anti-fraud initiative, 
publicises successful cases against fraud, and shares intelligence with 
relevant partner organisations such as the Police, the Department for 
Work and Pensions, and the Housing Benefit Matching Service.  The 
council prosecutes those committed of fraud.  It undertakes active 
recovery of fraudulent overpayments and ensures policies are applied 
consistently. 

 
The internal control arrangements include the council’s Constitution, the 
provision of an internal audit service, reports to the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee when necessary, transparent governance 
reporting through an assurance framework, and compliance with 
relevant laws and regulations.   
 

To remind staff of the 
need to be aware of 
fraud and the 
processes for 
dealing with any 
suspicions.     

P
age 332

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 333



 

16 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
The council has an anti-money laundering policy and procedure and has 
designated the Section 151 Officer to be the council’s anti-money 
laundering reporting officer.   
 
While the risk of money laundering to the council remains low, the 
council remains vigilant.  The council has in place an anti-fraud, bribery 
and corruption policy and a whistleblowing policy; these were reviewed 
and updated in 2019.   

 
 

External sources of assurance 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
37 How does the council 

respond to issues 
raised by its external 
auditor?   

Issues raised by the council’s external auditor, and other external 
inspectors are used to identify improvement areas in the council’s 
governance arrangements.  EY was appointed as the council’s external 
auditor by the Public Sector Audit Appointments to continue to act as 
external auditors to Vale of White Horse District Council from 2018/19.  
 
The council prepares its accounts under International Financial 
Reporting Standards.  
 
Any issues raised by the council’s external auditor are reported to the 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  The committee ensures the 
actions are taken by instructing Senior Management Team accordingly. 
The committee considered the external auditor’s annual audit letter 
2018/19 in November 2020.  
   
The Local Government Ombudsman provides a summary information 
on complaints about the council to enable it to incorporate any feedback 
into service improvement.  These are reported to the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee annually.  The Senior Management Team has 
used the ombudsman’s feedback to review service provision.   

 

 
 

P
age 333

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 334



 

17 

Current governance issues 
 

Ref. Governance issue Controls in 2020/21 Actions 
38 How does the council 

monitor its contract 
under the Five 
Councils Partnership? 

The council has a contract for some of its corporate services with a 
contractor, through the Five Councils Partnership with Hart District 
Council, Havant Borough Council, Mendip District Council, and South 
Oxfordshire District Council.  The council entered into an inter-authority 
agreement with the other partner councils to cover the procurement and 
the governance of the future partnership.  In addition, a joint client team 
and a joint committee oversee the delivery of the contract.  The Joint 
Scrutiny Committee with South Oxfordshire District Council undertakes 
the scrutiny role. The contract is also monitored by a joint committee of 
members from all of the participating councils; by officers representing 
the councils on a Joint Tactical Board, and by chief executives on a 
Senior Management Board. 

To keep the 
corporate services 
contract under 
review in 2021/22, 
taking any 
opportunities for 
commercial or 
operational 
improvement. 

39 Does the council 
monitor the 
effectiveness of 
individual projects?   
 

Following a series of programme governance reviews in 2018/19, the 
council reviewed and updated its project management framework.  
 
 

To continue to 
monitor the 
effectiveness of 
projects in 2021/22.   
 
 

 
 

P
age 334

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 335



 

18 

Conclusion 
 
14. The council proposes over the coming year to take steps to address the actions above.  

These will further enhance governance arrangements.  We, the undersigned, are 
satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in 
our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part 
of our next annual review.   

 

Signature 

 
 
 

Date 

 Mark Stone, Chief Executive 

Signature 

 
 
 

Date 

 Councillor Emily Smith, Leader of the Council  

 
 

Page 335

Agenda Item 8

Page 336



South Oxfordshire District Council, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Abingdon, Oxfordshire 
OX14 4SB www.southoxon.gov.uk  
 
 

  

 

Finance 

HEAD OF SERVICE: SIMON HEWINGS  

 

 Kevin Suter 
Ernst & Young  
Grosvenor House 
Grosvenor Square 
Southampton 
SO15 2BE 

 

 
Contact officer:  Simon Hewings     
Simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk 

Tel: 01235 422499 
  

Textphone users add 18001 before you dial 
 

Your reference:  
Our reference: 

 
24 May 2022 
 
Dear Kevin 

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial 
statements of South Oxfordshire District Council “the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 
2021.  We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the information 
contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to 
whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Council financial position of 
South Oxfordshire District Council as of 31 March 2021and of its income and expenditure for 
the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.  

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to express an 
opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the accounting system, 
internal control and related data to the extent you considered necessary in the 
circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all 
fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist. 

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the 
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:  

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records  

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the 
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2020/21.  

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our responsibility for the 
fair presentation of the financial statements.  We believe the financial statements 
referred to above give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
(or results of operations) and cash flows of the Council in accordance with [the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21, and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.  We have 
approved the financial statements. 

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 
are appropriately described in the financial statements. 

Page 336

Agenda Item 9

Page 337

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

2 

 

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a system of 
internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in 
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2020/21, that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  We have disclosed to you any significant changes in our processes, 
controls, policies and procedures that we have made to address the effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic on our system of internal controls. 

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in the 
accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and pertaining to 
the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements taken as a whole.  We have not corrected these differences 
identified by and brought to the attention from the auditor because we don’t consider 
they have a material effect on the statements. 

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud 
 

 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s activities are 
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are responsible to 
identify and address any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including 
fraud. 

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.  

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

 

 

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws or 
regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Council (regardless of the source 
or form and including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including 
non-compliance matters: 

 involving financial statements; 

 related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of 
material amounts and disclosures in the Council’s financial statements; 

 related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be 
fundamental to the operations of the Council’s activities, its ability to continue to 
operate, or to avoid material penalties; 

 involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal 
controls, or others; or  

 in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance 
with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees, 
analysts, regulators or others. 

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions 

1. We have provided you with: 

 Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 
the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

Page 337

Agenda Item 9

Page 338



 

 

3 

 

 Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; 
and 

 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and all material 
transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the financial statements, including 
those related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and 
committees, including the Cabinet and Joint Audit and Governance Committee, (or 
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) 
held through the to the most recent meeting on the 24 May 2022   

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of 
related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and 
all related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales, 
purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, 
guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the 
period ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the period end.  
These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial 
statements.  

5. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in making 
accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and consistently applied to 
achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is in accordance with the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21. 

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of contractual 
agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of 
non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all 
outstanding debt. 

7. From the date of our last management representation letter (30/11/2021) through the 
date of this letter we have disclosed to you any unauthorized access to our information 
technology systems that either occurred or to the best of our knowledge is reasonably 
likely to have occurred based on our investigation, including of reports submitted to us 
by third parties (including regulatory agencies, law enforcement agencies and security 
consultants) , to the extent that such unauthorized access to our information technology 
systems is reasonably likely to have a material impact to the financial statements, in 
each case or in the aggregate. 

D. Liabilities and Contingencies 

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether 
written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial 
statements.   

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or 
not they have been discussed with legal counsel. 

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to litigation and 
claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 24 to the financial 
statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.  

E. Going Concern  

Page 338

Agenda Item 9

Page 339



 

 

4 

 

1. Note 31 to the financial statements discloses all the matters of which we are aware that 
are relevant to the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, including significant 
conditions and events, our plans for future action, and the feasibility of those plans. 

F. Subsequent Events  

1. There have been no events including events related to the COVID-19 pandemic, and 
including events related to the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or 
Belarus, subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the 
financial statements or notes thereto. 

G. Other information 

1.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises Narrative Statement. 

2.  We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the 
financial statements. 

Page 339

Agenda Item 9

Page 340



Vale of White Horse District Council, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Abingdon, Oxfordshire 
OX14 4SB www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk  
 
 

  

 

Finance 

HEAD OF SERVICE: SIMON HEWINGS  

 

 

Kevin Suter 
Ernst & Young  
Grosvenor House 
Grosvenor Square 
Southampton 
SO15 2BE 
 

 
Contact officer:  Simon Hewings   
Simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk 

Tel: 01235 422499 
  

Textphone users add 18001 before you dial 
 

Your reference:  
Our reference:  

 
24 May 2022 
 
Dear Kevin, 
 
This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial 
statements of Vale of White Horse District Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 
31 March 2021.  We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the 
information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form 
an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of Vale of White Horse District Council as of 31 March 2021 and of 
its income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21.  

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to 
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the 
accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you considered 
necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be 
expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any 
exist. 

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for 
the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:  

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records  

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for 
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.  

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our responsibility 
for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  We believe the financial 
statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance (or results of operations) and cash flows of the Council in 

Page 340

Agenda Item 9

Page 341

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


 

accordance with [the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and are free of material 
misstatements, including omissions.  We have approved the financial statements. 

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements. 

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a 
system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate 
financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  We have disclosed to you 
any significant changes in our processes, controls, policies and procedures that 
we have made to address the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our system 
of internal controls. 

5. There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit and 
pertaining to the latest period presented. 

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud 
 
 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s activities 
are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are 
responsible to identify and address any non-compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations, including fraud. 

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.  

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

 
 

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws 
or regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Council (regardless of 
the source or form and including without limitation, any allegations by 
“whistleblowers”), including non-compliance matters: 

 involving financial statements; 

 related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the 
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the Council’s 
financial statements; 

 related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be 
fundamental to the operations of the Council’s activities, its ability to 
continue to operate, or to avoid material penalties; 

 involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal 
controls, or others; or  

 in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-
compliance with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former 
employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

Page 341

Agenda Item 9

Page 342



 

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions 

1. We have provided you with: 

 Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 
other matters; 

 Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 
audit; and 

 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and all 
material transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the financial 
statements, including those related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and 
committees, including the Cabinet and Joint Audit and Governance Committee,  
(or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been 
prepared) held through the  to the most recent meeting on the 24 May 2022.   

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification 
of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related 
parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which we are 
aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and 
services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and 
transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related 
balances due to or from such parties at the period end.  These transactions have 
been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.  

5. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in 
making accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and 
consistently applied to achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is 
in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21. 

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of 
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or 
other requirements of all outstanding debt. 

7. From the date of our last management representation letter (30/11/2021) through 
the date of this letter we have disclosed to you any unauthorized access to our 
information technology systems that either occurred or to the best of our 
knowledge is reasonably likely to have occurred based on our investigation, 
including of reports submitted to us by third parties (including regulatory 
agencies, law enforcement agencies and security consultants) , to the extent that 
such unauthorized access to our information technology systems is reasonably 
likely to have a material impact to the financial statements, in each case or in the 
aggregate. 

 

D. Liabilities and Contingencies Page 342

Agenda Item 9

Page 343



 

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, 
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately 
reflected in the financial statements.   

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, 
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel. 

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to 
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 24 
to the financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.  

E. Going Concern  

1. Note 30 to the financial statements discloses all the matters of which we are 
aware that are relevant to the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
including significant conditions and events, our plans for future action, and the 
feasibility of those plans. 

F. Subsequent Events  

1. There have been no events including events related to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
and including events related to the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, 
Russia and/or Belarus, subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or 
disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

G. Other information 

1.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the Narrative Statement and the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

2.  We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent 
with the financial statements. 

H. Ownership of Assets 

1. Except for assets capitalised under finance leases, the Council has satisfactory 
title to all assets appearing in the balance sheet(s), and there are no liens or 
encumbrances on the Council’s assets, nor has any asset been pledged as 
collateral. All assets to which the Council has satisfactory title appear in the 
balance sheet. 

I. Reserves 

1. We have properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements the usable 
and unusable reserves.  

J. Use of the Work of a Specialist 

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the 
valuation of property, plant and equipment and of investment property; and the 
valuation of the net pension liability and have adequately considered the 
qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts and disclosures 
included in the financial statements and the underlying accounting records. We 
did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with respect 
to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not Page 343

Agenda Item 9

Page 344



 

otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or 
objectivity of the specialists. 

K. Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Net 
Pension Liability Estimate (‘the Estimates’) 

1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the estimates have 
taken into account all relevant information of which we are aware.  

2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and data 
used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in making 
the estimates. 

3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to 
the estimates, including those describing estimation uncertainty, are complete 
and are reasonable in the context of the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21. 

4. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been applied in 
making the estimates. 

5. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the estimates and disclosures in 
the financial statements, including due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

L. Retirement benefits 

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate 
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme 
liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All significant 
retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have been identified and 
properly accounted for. 

M.  Climate-related matters 

1. We confirm that to the best of our knowledge all information that is relevant to the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of climate-related matters 
has been considered and reflected in the financial statements. 

 
2. The key assumptions used in preparing the financial statements are, to the 

extent allowable under the requirements of CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, aligned with the 
statements we have made in the other information or other public 
communications made by us. 

 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
_______________________ 
Simon Hewings 

Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer 

 
 
_______________________ 
Co-Chair of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee  

Page 344

Agenda Item 9

Page 345



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Audit and Governance 

Work Programme 

containing Joint Audit and Governance  
Committee work to be undertaken  

MAY 2022 – SEPTEMER 2022 
 

       
 

 
What is the work programme? 
 
The Audit and Governance Work Programme belongs to South Oxfordshire District Council’s and Vale of White Horse District Council’s 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to 
change at each committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional work without notice.   
 

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

Internal audit annual 
report 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

To review the work of 
internal audit in 
2021/22. 

To monitor the 
effectiveness of 
internal audit and to 
make 
recommendations for 
changes as necessary. 
 

 

Internal audit activity 
report - first quarter 
2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan. The 
report will summarise 
the outcomes of recent 
audit activity for the 
committee to consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken as necessary. 
 

 

P
age 345

A
genda Item

 10

P
age 346



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Internal audit 
management report - 
first quarter 2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the audit 
plan. 

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit pan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 
 

 

Covid-19 grants audit 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive an update on 
the Covid-19 grants 
audit. 

To consider the 
internal audit review. 
 

 

Health and safety 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Deborah Porter 
Deborah.Porter@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
reports on health and 
safety. 

To review and 
comment on the 
report. 
 

 

Risk management 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Harry Barrington-
Mountford, 
Interim Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 
harry.barrington-
mountford@sout
handvale.gov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework. 

To review and 
comment on progress. 
 

 

Treasury management 
outturn report - 
2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee is 
responsible for 
monitoring the councils' 
treasury management 
activity. 

To consider the 
2021/22 outturn report 
and make 
recommendations to 
Cabinet. 
 

 

P
age 346

A
genda Item

 10

P
age 347



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Internal audit activity 
report - second quarter 
2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2021/22. The report will 
summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity for 
the committee to 
consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken where 
necessary. 
 
 

 

Internal audit 
management report - 
second quarter 
2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan.  

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit plan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 
 

 

Code of conduct 
annual report - 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Patrick Arran, 
Head of Legal 
and Democratic 
patrick.arran@so
uthandvale.gov.u
k 

The committee has 
responsibility for having 
an overview of the 
standards of conduct 
framework for 
councillors, any co-
opted members and 
parish councillors. 

To review operation of 
the code of conduct. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 347

A
genda Item

 10

P
age 348


	Agenda
	 Full meeting pack
	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 External auditor's audit results report - 2020/21
	21 VOWH Audit Results Report 2020-21

	7 Statement of accounts - 2020/21
	SODC Letter of Rep Errors Schedule
	21 VOWH Statement of accounts 2021_Audit Committee

	8 Annual governance statements - 2020/21
	DRAFT V1 VOWH Annual Governance Statement 2020-21

	9 Letters of representation to the external auditor
	Vale LOR

	10 Work programme


